
           

City of Lubbock, Texas
Regular City Council Meeting

August 13, 2024
Mark W. McBrayer, Mayor
Christy Martinez-Garcia, Mayor Pro Tem, District 1
Gordon Harris, Councilman, District 2
David Glasheen, Councilman, District 3
Brayden Rose, Councilman, District 4
Dr. Jennifer Wilson, Councilwoman, District 5
Tim Collins, Councilman, District 6

    W. Jarrett Atkinson, City Manager
Matt Wade, City Attorney

Courtney Paz, City Secretary

http://www.mylubbock.us

City Council Chambers, Citizens Tower, 1314 Avenue K, Lubbock, Texas

City of Lubbock City Council Meetings are available to all persons regardless of disability. If you require special assistance,
please contact the City Secretary's Office at (806)775-2061 or write to Post Office Box 2000, Lubbock, Texas 79457 at least 48
hours in advance of the meeting.

Executive Session Disclosure Statement: The City Council reserves the right to adjourn into executive session at any time during
the course of the meeting to discuss any item listed on this agenda as authorized by Chapter 551 of the Texas Government Code,
including but not necessarily limited to §551.071 (Consultation with Attorney), §551.072 (Deliberations regarding Real
Property), §551.073 (Deliberations regarding Gifts and Donations), §551.074 (Personnel Matters), §551.076 (Deliberations
regarding Security Devices), §551.086 (Public Power Utilities: Competitive Matters), §551.087 (Deliberations regarding
Economic Development Negotiations). 

Note: On occasion the City Council may consider agenda items out of order. 

1:00 p.m. - City Council convenes in City Council Chambers and immediately recesses into
Executive Session.
 

           
1. Executive Session   

 

1. 1. Hold an executive session in accordance with Texas Government Code, Section 551.071,
with legal counsel for advice about pending or contemplated litigation or settlement
agreement and on matters in which the duty of the attorney under the Texas Disciplinary
Rules of Professional Conduct conflicts with Chapter 551.

  

 

1. 1. 1. Article 22.03 of the Lubbock City Code and Chapter 13 of the Texas Water Code   

 

1. 2. Hold an executive session in accordance with the Texas Government Code, Section
551.072, to deliberate the purchase, exchange, lease, or value of real property.

  

 

1. 2. 1. Commercial Lease Amendment for property located at 5034 Frankford Avenue,
Lubbock, Texas, 79424

  

 

http://www.mylubbock.us


Adjourn from Executive Session
 

Immediately following Executive Session, the City Council reconvenes in Work Session in City
Council Chambers.
 

2. Hear and discuss presentations regarding the following and provide guidance to staff
as appropriate.

  

 

2. 1. Presentation and discussion of the Proposed FY 2024-25 Operating Budget and Capital
Program, and discuss all funds of the City, including but not limited to General Fund, Debt
Service Fund, Internal Services, Enterprise Funds, Special Revenue Funds, Component
Units, Related Entities, Debt and Debt Obligations, Capital Improvement Program, current
and proposed American Rescue Plan Act Funds and uses, and related and associated items
and use of such funds; and take action to direct the City Manager to make changes to said
Budget.

  

 

2:00 p.m. - The City Council continues in Open Session in City Council Chambers.
 

3. Ceremonial Items   

 

3. 1. Invocation   

 

3. 2. Pledges of Allegiance   

 

Call to Order
 

4. Citizen Comments - According to Lubbock City Council Rules, any citizen wishing to
appear in-person before a regular meeting of the City Council, regarding any matter
posted on the City Council Agenda below, shall complete the sign-up form provided
at the meeting, no later than 2:00 p.m. on August 13, 2024. Citizen Comments provide
an opportunity for citizens to make comments and express a position on agenda
items. 

  

 

5. Minutes   

 

5. 1. July 2, 2024 Regular City Council Meeting
July 9, 2024 Special City Council Meeting
July 18, 2024 Special City Council Meeting - Work Session 

 

6. Consent Agenda - Items considered to be routine are enacted by one motion without   



6. Consent Agenda - Items considered to be routine are enacted by one motion without
separate discussion. If the City Council desires to discuss an item, the item is removed
from the Consent Agenda and considered separately.

  

 

6. 1. Budget Ordinance Amendment 2nd Reading - Finance: Consider Budget Ordinance
No. 2024-O0103, Amendment 43, amending the FY 2023-24 Budget for municipal
purposes respecting the Cable Services Fund; providing for filing; and providing for a
savings clause.

 

6. 1. 1. Resolution - Communications & Public Engagement: Consider a resolution authorizing
the Mayor to execute Purchase Order 364545, with Nelco Media, for Phase II Upgrade of
audio and video infrastructure and equipment in City Council Chambers, Communications
Studio, and Conference Rooms.

 

6. 2. Budget Ordinance Amendment 1st Reading - Finance: Consider Budget Ordinance
Amendment 45, amending the FY 2023-24 Budget for municipal purposes respecting the
Information Technology Capital Project Fund and the Health Benefits Operating Fund;
providing for filing; and providing for a savings clause.

 

6. 3. Ordinance 1st Reading - Right-of-Way: Consider an ordinance abandoning and closing
portions of an underground streetlight cable easement located in Lot 334, Lincoln 16
Addition, City of Lubbock, Lubbock County, Texas, south of Princeton Street and east of
North Clinton Avenue.

 

6. 4. Resolution - Right-of-Way: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to accept, for
and on behalf of the City of Lubbock, one (1) street, public use, and right-of-way deed, and
all related documents, in connection with certain real property located in Section 10, Block
JS, Lubbock County, Texas (Parcel 20), on the east side of Upland Avenue, north of 19th
Street and south of 18th Street, to be utilized for the Upland Avenue: 4th Street to 19th
Street 2022 Road Bond Project.

 

6. 5. Resolution - Right-of-Way: Consider a resolution authorizing the mayor to execute a
Street Use License and/or City Public Grounds Monitor Well Permit, and all related
documents, by and between the City of Lubbock and the Air Force Civil Engineer Center,
and located in the right-of-way of 25th Street, west of Inler Avenue.

 

6. 6. Ordinance 1st Reading - Engineering: Consider an ordinance amending Articles 39.04
and 39.07 of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Lubbock, by adding Articles
39.07.046, and amending Sections 39.04.012, 39.04.013, and 39.07.020, to allow for
certain building permits to be approved while required infrastructure is constructed in
parallel. 

 

6. 7. Resolution - Engineering: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute



6. 7. Resolution - Engineering: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute
Professional Services Agreement, Contract 18233, with Freese and Nichols, Inc., for final
design, bid, and construction phase services for the 66th Street Drainage Channel
Improvements Project.

 

6. 8. Resolution - Engineering: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute Public
Works Contract 18190, with Lone Star Dirt & Paving, LTD, for the 66th Street Channel
Drainage Improvements Project, along 66th Street to Playa. Lake 039.

 

6. 9. Resolution - Engineering: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute
Amendment No. 1 to Professional Services Agreement, Contract 17087, with HDR
Engineering, Inc., for engineering services for the reconstruction of Milwaukee Avenue
from 4th Street to the City of Lubbock north city limits, 2022 Road Bond Project.

 

6. 10. Resolution - Engineering: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute
Amendment No. 2 to Professional Services Agreement, Contract 17074, with Freese and
Nichols, Inc., for the design of the Upland Avenue from 34th Street to 50th Street 2022
Road Bond Project, and street bond management.  

 

6. 11. Resolution - Engineering: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute Public
Works Contract 18109, with Winston Electric Inc., dba Acme Electric Company, Texas,
for the West Lubbock Water System Expansion early procurement.

 

6. 12. Resolution - Public Works Solid Waste: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to
execute Contract 18166, with MJE, LLC, for the West Texas Region Disposal Facility
Cell 6 Construction.

 

6. 13. Resolution - Public Health Services: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to
execute Amendment No. 4 to the Health and Human Services Commission Contract No.
HHS000779500003, and all related documents, under the Substance Use Prevention,
Treatment and Recovery Services Block Grant, by and between the City of Lubbock, and
the State of Texas' Health and Human Services Commission, to provide Treatment for
Youth (TRY) funding.

 

6. 14. Resolution - Aviation: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to accept a Federal
Aviation Grant Agreement for the Mechanical Equipment Replacement Project at Lubbock
Preston Smith International Airport.

 

6. 14. 1. Resolution - Aviation: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute Contract
17935, with Anthony Mechanical, Inc., for the Mechanical Equipment Replacement
Project at Lubbock Preston Smith International Airport.

 

6. 14. 2. Resolution - Aviation: Consider resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute Change
Order No. 1 to Contract 17935, with Anthony Mechanical, Inc., for the Mechanical
Equipment Replacement Project at Lubbock Preston Smith International Airport.



 

6. 14. 3. Resolution - Aviation: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute
Amendment No.16 to Contract 15200, with RS&H, Inc., for Construction Administration
and Resident Project Representative Services, for the Mechanical Equipment Replacement
Project at Lubbock Preston Smith International Airport.

 

6. 15. Resolution - Aviation: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to accept a Federal
Aviation Grant Agreement for the Taxiway Lima Extension, Taxilane Addition, and Apron
Expansion Project at Lubbock Preston Smith International Airport.

 

6. 15. 1. Resolution - Aviation: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to
execute Amendment No. 8 to Contract 15310, with Parkhill, for professional architectural
and engineering services for the Taxiway Lima Extension, Taxilane Addition, and Apron
Expansion Project at Lubbock Preston Smith International Airport. 

 

6. 16. Resolution - Business Development: Consider a resolution authorizing a Commercial
Revitalization Grant Program (Facade) expenditure of Market Lubbock, Inc., to be
provided to VCC Management, LLC, dba Vogue College, located at 1712 34th Street,
pursuant to Article IV, Section 5, of the Amended and Restated Bylaws of the Market
Lubbock Development Corporation. 

 

6. 17. Resolution - Business Development: Consider a resolution authorizing a Downtown
Grant Program (Facade) expenditure of Market Lubbock, Inc., to be provided to Mixed
Nutz Leasing, LLC, located at 1937 Texas Avenue, pursuant to Article IV, Section 5, of
the Amended and Restated Bylaws of the Market Lubbock Development Corporation. 

 

6. 18. Resolution - Business Development: Consider a resolution authorizing a Downtown
Grant Program (Facade) expenditure of Market Lubbock, Inc., to be provided to Landlines,
LLC, located at 1106 Main Street, pursuant to Article IV, Section 5, of the Amended and
Restated Bylaws of the Market Lubbock Development Corporation. 

 

6. 19. Resolution - Business Development: Consider a resolution authorizing a Downtown
Grant Program (Permittable) expenditure of Market Lubbock, Inc., to be provided to
Landlines, LLC, located at 1106 Main Street, pursuant to Article IV, Section 5, of the
Amended and Restated Bylaws of the Market Lubbock Development Corporation. 

 

6. 20. Resolution - Business Development: Consider a resolution authorizing a Commercial
Revitalization Grant Program (Facade) expenditure of Market Lubbock, Inc., to be
provided to The Rolling Cones, located at 3006 34th Street, pursuant to Article IV, Section
5, of the Amended and Restated Bylaws of the Market Lubbock Development
Corporation. 

 

6. 21. Resolution - Business Development: Consider a resolution authorizing a Commercial



6. 21. Resolution - Business Development: Consider a resolution authorizing a Commercial
Revitalization Grant Program (Permittable) expenditure of Market Lubbock, Inc., to be
provided to The Rolling Cones, located at 3006 34th Street, pursuant to Article IV, Section
5, of the Amended and Restated Bylaws of the Market Lubbock Development
Corporation. 

 

6. 22. Resolution - Business Development: Consider a resolution authorizing a Commercial
Revitalization Grant Program (Facade) expenditure of Market Lubbock, Inc., to be
provided to Elida Morin, located at 1819 E. Broadway, pursuant to Article IV, Section 5, of
the Amended and Restated Bylaws of the Market Lubbock Development Corporation. 

 

6. 23. Resolution - Business Development: Consider a resolution authorizing a Commercial
Revitalization Grant Program (Permittable) expenditure of Market Lubbock, Inc., to be
provided to Elida Morin, located at 1819 E. Broadway, pursuant to Article IV, Section 5, of
the Amended and Restated Bylaws of the Market Lubbock Development Corporation. 

 

6. 24. Resolution - Business Development: Consider a resolution authorizing a Commercial
Revitalization Grant Program (Facade) expenditure of Market Lubbock, Inc., to be
provided to Mags and Blades Ventures, LLC, located at 2223 34th Street, pursuant to
Article IV, Section 5, of the Amended and Restated Bylaws of the Market Lubbock
Development Corporation. 

 

6. 25. Resolution - Parks and Recreation: Consider a resolution authorizing Purchase Order
10027645, with Advantage Courts Co., for the resurfacing and maintenance of park courts
and court amenities at Wheelock, Rawlings, Underwood, Charles Guy, Hoel,
Whisperwood, and Higinbotham Parks.

 

6. 26. Resolution - Information Technology: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to
execute Purchase Order 33001881, with Dell Marketing LP, for the purchase of computers
for the scheduled computer replacement program.

 

6. 27. Resolution - Information Technology: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to
execute Purchase Order 33001880, with Dell Marketing LP, for the purchase of two Dell
PowerStore 1200T data storage appliances, to replace existing data storage units, and to
provide for additional data storage capacity.

 

6. 28. Resolution - Police: Consider a resolution authorizing the Chief of Police for the City of
Lubbock, to execute a Memorandum of Understanding, and all related documents, by and
between the United States Secret Service and the City of Lubbock, on behalf of the
Lubbock Police Department, regarding reimbursement of certain overtime costs and other
expenses pursuant to 31 U.S.C. § 9705.

 

6. 29. Resolution - Lubbock Power & Light: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to



6. 29. Resolution - Lubbock Power & Light: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to
execute the Eighth Amendment to the Professional Services Agreement dated May 29,
2018, by and between the City of Lubbock, acting by and through Lubbock Power &
Light, and TMG Utility Advisory Services, Inc., expanding the scope of services to include
work required to integrate with Smart Meter Texas.

 

6. 30. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning (District 1): Consider Ordinance No. 2024-O0079,
for Zone Case 3224-A, a request of Lone Star Suds, LLC for Centric Capital Partners, Inc.,
for a zone change from Neighborhood Commercial District (NC) and Auto-Urban
Commercial District (AC) to Auto-Urban Commercial District (AC), at 2401 19th Street,
located south of 19th Street and west of Avenue X, Ellwood Place Addition, Block 1, the
east 140 feet of Lot 1.

 

6. 31. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning (District 3): Consider Ordinance No. 2024-O0104,
Zone Case 763-D, a request of Woda Cooper Companies, Inc. for Buslon, Inc., for a zone
change from Low Density Single-Family District (SF-2) and Medium Density Residential
District (MDR) to Medium Density Residential District (MDR), at 5311 Bangor Avenue,
located north of 54th Street and east of Bangor Avenue, on approximately 5.9 acres of
unplatted land out of Block E-2, Section 28.

 

6. 32. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning (District 6): Consider Ordinance No. 2024-O0105,
for Zone Case 2538-MM, a request of K-9 Kennels, for a zone change from Low Density
Single-Family District (SF-2) to Heavy Commercial District (HC), at 1607 and 1715
Alcove Avenue, located north of 19th Street and east of Alcove Avenue, on approximately
6.1 acres of unplatted land out of Block D-6, Section 1.

 

7. Regular Agenda   

 

7. 1. Board Appointments - City Secretary: Consider appointments to the Quincy Park Public
Improvement District (PID) Advisory Board.

 

7. 2. Board Appointments - City Secretary: Consider appointments to the Upland Crossing
Public Improvement District (PID) Advisory Board.

 

7. 3. Board Appointments - City Secretary: Consider appointments to the Valencia Public
Improvement District (PID) Advisory Board.

 

7. 4. Report: City of Lubbock 2022 Street Bond Progress Report
 

7. 5. Ordinance Single Reading - City Secretary: Consider adoption of an Ordinance Calling
a Bond Election to be held within the City of Lubbock, Texas; making provisions for the
conduct and the giving of notice of the election; and containing other provisions related
thereto.

 



7. 6. Resolution - City Manager: Consider a resolution declaring the intent of the City Council
and its commitment to create a contract with the voters stipulating that the proceeds from
the bonds shall be used for the projects identified in the ordinance calling the November 5,
2024 Bond Election and directing the City Manager to implement the November 5,
2024 Bond Program, in accordance with specific projects and programs set forth in the
resolution and the propositions approved by the voters.

 

7. 7. Resolution - Finance: Consider a resolution adopting a proposed maximum tax rate that
will result in additional revenues as outlined in Section 26.05 (d) of the Tax Code of the
State of Texas, and setting the date for the public hearing to discuss the proposed tax rate.

 

7. 8. Resolution - Finance: Consider a resolution suspending the effective date for ninety days,
in connection with the rate increase filing made on about July 16, 2024, by West Texas
Gas, Inc.; finding that the meeting complies with the open meetings act; making other
findings and provisions related to the subject; and declaring an effective date.

 

7. 9. Resolution - Planning: Consider a resolution prescribing the type of notice to be given for
a joint meeting of the City Council and the Planning and Zoning Commission, for a public
hearing to consider amendments to the Unified Development Code (UDC), as provided
under Section 211.007(d) of the Texas Local Government Code, and setting the date for
the public hearing.

 

7. 10. Ordinance 1st Reading - Planning:
A. Consider and take action on the City of Lubbock Planning and Zoning Commission's
final report of August 1, 2024, to the Lubbock City Council on proposed amendments to
the Unified Development Code (Ordinance No. 2023-O0054) recommended for adoption,
limited to the following: 

Section 39.02.018.c.1.A (related to Residential Uses in the SF-2, MDR, and
HDR Districts)

1.

Table 39.02.004.c-2 (related to SF-2 Lot Density and Dimensions)2.
Table 39.02.004.d-2 (related to MDR Lot Density and Dimensions)3.
Table 39.03.023-2 (related to Base Public and Nonresidential Districts Sign Standards)4.
Section 39.07.041 and the Final Plat Submission Checklist (related to Final Plat
Document Requirements and Applicant Responsibilities)

5.

Section 39.07.040 and the Preliminary Plat Submission Checklist (related to
Preliminary Plat Document Requirements and Applicant Responsibilities)

6.

Section 39.10.002 (related to Definitions)7.
Section 39.02.016, Table 39.02.004.c-1, Table 39.02.004.d-1, Table 39.02.004.d-3,
Table 39.02.004.e-1, Table 39.02.004.e-3, Table 39.03.009-1 (related to the Land Use
Matrix)

8.

Section 39.07.041.j (related to Final Plat Recording)9.
Section 39.07.041.k.3 (related to Final Plat and Preliminary Plat Renewal and
Expiration)

10.

Section 39.07.040.b (related to Preliminary Plat Purpose)11.
Section 39.02.004.a.7, Section 39.02.004.b.7, Section 39.02.004.c.7, Section
39.02.004.d.7, Section 39.02.004.e.7 (related to Signs in Residential Districts for
Non-Residential Uses)

12.

Table 39.02.004.e-2 (related to HDR Lot Density and Dimensions)13.



Table 39.02.016-1 (related to Outdoor Storage in the Industrial Park District (IP))14.
Section 39.06.002 (related to the Planning and Zoning Commission)15.
Section 39.02.020.d.7.C (related to Nonresidential and Mixed-Use Accessory Uses
and Structures)

16.

Section 39.02.020.c (related to Residential Accessory Uses and Structures)17.
Section 39.07.044.b (related to Waiver of Improvements)18.
Section 39.07.045.b (related to Delay of Improvements)19.
Section 39.02.018.e (related to Limited Use Standards)20.
Table 39.03.002-1 (related to Building and Site Design Applicability)21.
Table 39.02.004.c-3 (related to SF-2 Off-Street Parking and Loading Schedule)22.
Section 39.03.023.b.8 (related to Monument Signs)23.
Table 39.04.005-3 (related to Minimum Driveway Throat Length)24.
Section 39.04.021.b (related to Recording of Plat and Dedication of Improvements)25.
Table 39.03.016-1 (related to District Bufferyard Standards)26.
Section 39.02.020.b.6 (related to Nonresidential and Mixed-Use Fences)27.
Section 39.04.012 (related to Public Water Systems)28.
Section 39.04.013 (related to Public Wastewater Systems)29.
Section 39.02.023.b.3 (related to Specific Allowances for Height Requirements)30.
Table 39.02.022-1 (related to setback measurements)31.
Section 39.02.023.d.3 (related to Contextual Rear Setbacks)32.
Section 39.02.004.a.4.A, Section 39.02.004.b.4.A, Section 39.02.004.c.4.A, Section
39.02.004.d.4.A, and Section 39.02.004.e.4.A (related to Lot Density and Dimensions)

33.

Table 39.02.006.b-2 (related to Office (OF) Lot Intensity and Dimensions)34.
Section 39.07.004.f (related to Plat Filing)35.

B. Consider and take action on the City of Lubbock Planning and Zoning Commission's
final report of August 1, 2024, to the Lubbock City Council on proposed amendments to
the Unified Development Code (Ordinance No. 2023-O0054) recommended for denial,
limited to the following: 

Section 39.02.020.c.6.A.ii (related to Residential Accessory Uses and Structures -
Outdoor Swimming Pool, Spa, and Hot Tub)

1.

 

7. 11. Resolution - Libraries: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute a Lease
Agreement with Luskey Brothers Investments, for the Godeke Branch Library located at
5034 Frankford Avenue.

 

7. 12. Resolution - City Council: Consider a resolution to fund the security, trolley, and general
marketing of the First Friday Art Trail for the Louise Hopkins Underwood Center for the
Arts, as part of the Cultural Arts Grant Program as recommended by Civic Lubbock, Inc. 

 



 AI# 12743 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 1. 
08/13/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
July 2, 2024 Regular City Council Meeting
July 9, 2024 Special City Council Meeting
July 18, 2024 Special City Council Meeting - Work Session 

Item Summary
July 2, 2024 Regular City Council Meeting
July 9, 2024 Special City Council Meeting
July 18, 2024 Special City Council Meeting - Work Session 

Fiscal Impact
None 

Staff/Board Recommending
Courtney Paz, City Secretary 

Attachments
7.2.2024 Regular City Council Meeting 
7.9.2024 Special City Council Meeting 
7.18.2024 S Work Session 



CITY OF LUBBOCK
REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING

July 2, 2024
5:30 P. M.

 
The City Council of the City of Lubbock, Texas met in regular session on the 2nd of July, 2024, in City
Council Chambers, Citizens Tower, 1314 Avenue K, Lubbock, Texas at 5:30 p.m.

  
5:30 P.M. CITY COUNCIL CONVENED

City Council Chambers, Citizens Tower, 1314 Avenue K, Lubbock, Texas

Present:  Mayor Mark W. McBrayer; Mayor Pro Tem Christy Martinez-Garcia; Council Member Tim
Collins; Council Member David Glasheen; Council Member Gordon Harris; Council Member
Brayden Rose; Council Member Dr. Jennifer Wilson; City Manager W. Jarrett Atkinson; City
Secretary Courtney Paz; City Attorney Matt Wade 

 

Note:       City Council addressed agenda items in the following order:
1.1-1.2; Citizen Comments 2; and 3.1-3.2.

               
1. Ceremonial Items
 
1. 1. Invocation

 
Pastor Jose Limas, Community Christian Church, led the invocation.

 
1. 2. Pledges of Allegiance

 
Pledges of Allegiance, to the United States and Texas Flags, were led by Council Member
David Glasheen.

 
Call to Order
 
The meeting was called to order at 5:33 p.m.
 
2. Citizen Comments - According to Lubbock City Council Rules, any citizen wishing to

appear in-person before a regular meeting of the City Council, regarding any matter
posted on the City Council Agenda below, shall complete the sign-up form provided at the
meeting, no later than 5:30 p.m. on July 2, 2024. Citizen Comments provide an
opportunity for citizens to make comments and express a position on agenda items. 
 
No one appeared to speak. 

 



Regular Agenda

3. 1. Resolution - City Secretary: Resolution No. 2024-R0303 electing a Mayor Pro Tem pursuant
to Chapter 1, Article IX, Section 12 of the City Charter. 

Motion by Council Member Dr. Jennifer Wilson,  seconded by Council Member David
Glasheen, to approve Resolution No. 2024-R0303, electing Council Member Christy
Martinez-Garcia as Mayor Pro Tem. 

Vote: 7 - 0 Motion carried

3. 2. Resolution - City Manager: Resolution No. 2024-R0304 establishing a Citizens Advisory
Committee to study and make recommendations regarding the street and roadway construction
and repair needs of the City of Lubbock, and for a possible future bond election in connection
therewith, and naming members to said Committee.

Jarrett Atkinson, city manager; and Matt Wade, city attorney, gave comments and answered
questions from City Council.

Motion by Mayor Pro Tem Christy Martinez-Garcia, seconded by Council Member Tim
Collins, to approve Resolution No. 2024-R0304, and appointing the following members:
Mayor position and chair of the committee - Heather Keister; District 1 positions - Leo
Flores and Alex Scarborough; District 3 positions - Jon David Bruegel and Victoria
Whitehead; District 4 position - Jordan Wheatley; District 5 positions - Ken Corbin and
John Rantz. Additional names will be submitted to the City Secretary upon finalization. 

Vote: 7 - 0 Motion carried

5:40 P.M. CITY COUNCIL ADJOURNED

There being no further business to come before Council, Mayor McBrayer adjourned the meeting.

The July 2, 2024 Regular City Council Meeting minutes were approved by the City Council on the 13th day of
August, 2024.

____________________________________
MARK W. McBRAYER, MAYOR

ATTEST:

___________________________________
Courtney Paz, City Secretary

Regular City Council Meeting 
July 2, 2024 Page 2 of 2



CITY OF LUBBOCK
SPECIAL CITY COUNCIL MEETING

July 9, 2024
1:00 P.M.

The City Council of the City of Lubbock, Texas met in special session on the 9th of July, 2024, in City
Council Chambers, Citizens Tower, 1314 Avenue K, Lubbock, Texas at 1:00 p.m.

1:00 P.M. CITY COUNCIL CONVENED
City Council Chambers, Citizens Tower, 1314 Avenue K, Lubbock, Texas

Present:  Mayor Pro Tem Christy Martinez-Garcia; Council Member Tim Collins; Council Member
David Glasheen; Council Member Gordon Harris; Council Member Brayden Rose; Council
Member Dr. Jennifer Wilson; City Manager W. Jarrett Atkinson; City Secretary Courtney Paz;
City Attorney Matt Wade 

Absent:  Mayor Mark W. McBrayer 

Note:      City Council addressed agenda items in the following order: 
Executive Session; 2.1; 3.1-3.2; Citizen Comments 4; 5.1; 6.1-6.22; 6.24-6.28; and 7.1-7.5.
Item No. 6.23 was postponed to the August 13, 2024 Regular City Council Meeting.

1. Executive Session

The meeting recessed at 1:00 p.m. and reconvened in Executive Session under the
provisions of Section 551, Texas Government Code. City Council reconvened in open
session at 1:49 p.m., and the meeting was called to order at 2:08 p.m.

1. 1. Hold an executive session in accordance with Texas Government Code, Section 551.071, with
legal counsel for advice about pending or contemplated litigation or settlement agreement and
on matters in which the duty of the attorney under the Texas Disciplinary Rules of Professional
Conduct conflicts with Chapter 551.

1. 1. 1. City of Lubbock v. Trumble Steel Erectors, Inc. et. al.; Cause No. DC-2024-CV-0165

1. 2. Hold an executive session in accordance with the Texas Government Code, Section 551.072, to
deliberate the purchase, exchange, lease, or value of real property.

1. 2. 1. 19th Street and Avenue X

1:49 p.m. - City Council reconvenes in City Council Chambers in Work Session regarding items for



1:49 p.m. - City Council reconvenes in City Council Chambers in Work Session regarding items for
presentation and discussion on such issues that may require in-depth consideration by the City
Council. No action will be taken by the City Council in Work Session.
 
2. Work Session - Hear and discuss presentations regarding the following and provide

guidance to staff as appropriate.
 
2. 1. Presentation regarding the West Texas State Veterans Cemetery

 
Jarrett Atkinson, city manager, introduced Dr. John Kelley, director of Texas State Veterans
Cemeteries. Dr. Kelley gave a presentation regarding the Texas State Veterans Cemetery and
answered questions from City Council. Topics discussed included: overview and updates to the
West Texas State Veterans Cemetery; project design; and a special thanks to local contractors,
sub-contractors, partners, and staff.
 
 

 
2:05 p.m. - The City Council continues in Open Session in City Council Chambers.
 
3. Ceremonial Items
 
3. 1. Invocation

 
Pastor Jeff McCreight, Rock City Church, led the invocation.

 
3. 2. Pledges of Allegiance

 
Pledges of Allegiance, to the United States and Texas Flags, were led by Council Member Dr.
Jennifer Wilson.

 
Call to Order
 
The meeting was called to order at 2:08 p.m.
 
4. Citizen Comments - According to Lubbock City Council Rules, any citizen wishing to

appear in-person before a meeting of the City Council, regarding any matter posted on the
City Council Agenda below, shall complete the sign-up form provided at the meeting, no
later than 2:00 p.m. on July 9, 2024.  Citizen Comments provide an opportunity for citizens
to make comments and express a position on agenda items. 
 
Sign ups:

Colby Norris, treasurer of Highland Oaks Homeowner's Association, appeared before City
Council to speak in favor of item 7.4 (a public hearing regarding the City of Lubbock's
intent to annex an area of land and execute an agreement with the Highland Oaks
Homeowner's Association). 
Christopher Walker; and Adam Hernandez, communications chair of Lubbock Compact,
appeared before City Council to speak on item 7.5 (resolution receiving the report and

Special City Council Meeting 
July 9, 2024 Page 2 of 8



appeared before City Council to speak on item 7.5 (resolution receiving the report and
recommendation of the Private Sewer Lateral Ad-Hoc Committee).  

 
5. Minutes
 
5. 1. May 21, 2024 Special City Council Meeting - Electric Utility Board

June 11, 2024 Regular City Council Meeting 
  

 
  Motion by Council Member David Glasheen, seconded by Council Member Dr. Jennifer

Wilson, to approve the May 21, 2024 Special City Council Meeting - Electric Utility Board
minutes and the June 11, 2024 Regular City Council Meeting minutes. 

  Vote: 6 - 0 Motion carried

  Other:  Mayor Mark W. McBrayer (ABSENT) 

 
6. Consent Agenda - Items considered to be routine are enacted by one motion without

separate discussion. If the City Council desires to discuss an item, the item is removed
from the Consent Agenda and considered separately.

 
  Motion by Council Member David Glasheen, seconded by Council Member Dr. Jennifer

Wilson, to approve items 6.1-6.22 and 6.24-6.28. 
  Vote: 6 - 0 Motion carried

  Other:  Mayor Mark W. McBrayer (ABSENT) 

 
6. 1. Budget Ordinance Amendment 2nd Reading - Finance: Ordinance No. 2024-O0090,

Amendment 35, amending the FY 2023-24 Budget for municipal purposes respecting the
Abandoned Vehicle Fund, Criminal Investigations Fund, and Department of Justice Asset
Sharing Fund; providing for filing; and providing for a savings clause. 

  

 
6. 2. Budget Ordinance Amendment 2nd Reading - Finance: Ordinance No. 2024-O0091,

Amendment 36, amending the FY 2023-24 Budget for municipal purposes respecting the Parks
& Recreation Fees; providing for filing; and providing for a savings clause. 

  

 
6. 3. Budget Ordinance Amendment 2nd Reading - Finance: Ordinance No. 2024-O0092,

Amendment 37, amending the FY 2023-24 Budget for municipal purposes respecting the Traffic
Capital Improvement Project Fund; providing for filing; and providing for a savings clause. 

  

 
6. 4. Budget Ordinance Amendment 2nd Reading - Finance: Ordinance No. 2024-O0093,

Amendment 38, amending the FY 2023-24 Budget for municipal purposes respecting the Parks
& Recreation Capital Project Fund and American Rescue Plan Act Funding; providing for filing;
and providing for a savings clause. 

  

 

Special City Council Meeting 
July 9, 2024 Page 3 of 8



6. 5. Budget Ordinance Amendment 2nd Reading - Finance: Ordinance No. 2024-O0094,
Amendment 39, amending the FY 2023-24 Budget for municipal purposes respecting the Grant
Fund; providing for filing; and providing for a savings clause. 

  

 
6. 5. 1. Resolution - Public Health Services: Resolution No. 2024-R0305 authorizing the Mayor to

execute Amendment No. 4 to the Department of State Health Services (DSHS) Contract
HHS000812700012, and all related documents, for SARS-CoV-2, epidemiology, surveillance,
and enhanced laboratory activities, by and between the City of Lubbock, and the State of Texas,
acting by and through DSHS. 

  

 
6. 6. Budget Ordinance Amendment 1st Reading - Finance: Ordinance No. 2024-O0100,

Amendment 40, amending the FY 2023-24 Budget for municipal purposes respecting the Civil
Service Positions; providing for filing; and providing for a savings clause. 

  

 
6. 7. Budget Ordinance Amendment 1st Reading - Finance: Ordinance No. 2024-O0101,

Amendment 41, amending the FY 2023-24 Budget for municipal purposes respecting the
Airport Capital Project Fund and Airport Operating Fund; providing for filing; and providing for
a savings clause. 

  

 
6. 8. Budget Ordinance Amendment 1st Reading  Finance: Ordinance No. 2024-O0102,

Amendment 42, amending the FY 2023-24 Budget for municipal purposes respecting the
Operating Budget for Market Lubbock Inc.-Visit Lubbock and Sports Authority; providing for
filing; and providing for a savings clause.
 
Jarrett Atkinson, city manager; Cheryl Brock, interim chief financial officer; and John Osborne,
president and chief executive officer for Lubbock Economic Development Alliance (LEDA),
gave comments and answered questions from City Council. 

  

 
6. 9. Resolution - Finance: Resolution No. 2024-R0306 to suspend for forty-five (45) days, the

effective date proposed by West Texas Gas Utility, LLC, to increase rates under the Gas
Reliability Infrastructure Program. 

  

 
6. 10. Resolution - Risk Management: Resolution No. 2024-R0307 authorizing the Mayor to

execute, for and on behalf of the City of Lubbock, a Compromise Settlement Agreement and
Release of All Claims, in City of Lubbock v. Trumble Steel Erectors, Inc. et. al.; Cause No.
DC-2024-CV-0165.  

  

 
6. 11. Resolution - Engineering: Resolution No. 2024-R0308 authorizing the Mayor to execute

Amendment No. 1 to the Professional Services Agreement Contract 17790, with Enprotec /
Hibbs & Todd, Inc., for the Northeast Sanitary Sewer Interceptor Intermediate Lift Station
Project. 

  

 
6. 12. Resolution - Public Works Traffic Management: Resolution No. 2024-R0309 authorizing the

Mayor to execute Contract 17627, with Kimley Horn and Associates, to develop a safety action
plan as part of the Safe Streets for All Program. 

  

 
6. 13. Resolution - Facilities Management: Resolution No. 2024-R0310 authorizing the Mayor to   

Special City Council Meeting 
July 9, 2024 Page 4 of 8



6. 13. Resolution - Facilities Management: Resolution No. 2024-R0310 authorizing the Mayor to
execute Contract 18045, with Lydick-Hooks, for the complete roof replacement of Pump Station
No. 14 located at 7308 Milwaukee Avenue. 

  

 
6. 14. Resolution - Aviation: Resolution No. 2024-R0311 authorizing the Mayor to execute Contract

18165, with W.R. Construction, Inc., and in doing so, ratifying all acts undertaken for
Emergency Repairs to the Consolidated Rental Car Facility at Lubbock Preston Smith
International Airport. 

  

 
6. 15. Resolution - Business Development: Resolution No. 2024-R0312 authorizing the Mayor to

execute Contract 17942, with SRH Landscapes, LLC, for annual right-of-way maintenance for
the North Overton Public Improvement District.  

  

 
6. 16. Resolution - Business Development: Resolution No. 2024-R0313 authorizing the Mayor to

execute Amendment No. 1 to Professional Services Agreement Contract 17764, with West
Texas Services, Inc. dba Tom's Tree Place, for services related to right-of-way improvements in
the North Overton Tax Increment Financing District boundary at 9th Street and 10th Street.  

  

 
6. 17. Resolution - Municipal Court: Resolution No. 2024-R0314 authorizing the Mayor to execute

Amendment No.1 to Contract 14522, with OpenEdge Payments, LLC, a division of Global
Payments, for the payment gateway to process credit card transactions. 

  

 
6. 18. Resolution - Fleet Services: Resolution No. 2024-R0315 authorizing the Mayor to execute

Amendment No. 1 to Contract 15862, with Lubbock Wrecker Services, Inc., for wrecker and
towing services for the Lubbock Police Department. 

  

 
6. 19. Resolution - Telecommunications: Resolution No. 2024-R0316 authorizing the Mayor to

execute Contract 18156, with World Wide Technology, LLC, for professional implementation
services related to the upgrade of the City-wide telephone system. 

  

 
6. 20. Resolution - Police: Resolution No. 2024-R0317 designating the City Manager as the

authorized official, to apply for and execute an agreement with the State of Texas Office of the
Governor's Rifle-Resistant Body Armor Grant Program FY2025, to fund the purchase of rifle
resistant body armor for the Police Department. 

  

 
6. 21. Resolution - Police: Resolution No. 2024-R0318 designating the City Manager as the

authorized official to apply for and execute an agreement with the State of Texas Office of the
Governor’s Bullet-Resistant Shield Grant Program FY2025, to fund the purchase of ballistic
shields for the Police Department. 

  

 
6. 22. Resolution - Police: Resolution No. 2024-R0319 authorizing the Mayor to execute a

Memorandum of Understanding, and all related documents, by and between the City of
Lubbock Police Department, the Texas Anti-Gang Center-Lubbock, and the South Plains Auto
Theft Task Force, to ensure sharing of Axon camera and image functionality, to enhance
cooperative investigative efforts in criminal investigations. 

  

 
6. 23. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning (District 1): Consider Ordinance No. 2024-O0079, for   

Special City Council Meeting 
July 9, 2024 Page 5 of 8



6. 23. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning (District 1): Consider Ordinance No. 2024-O0079, for
Zone Case 3224-A, a request of Lone Star Suds, LLC for Centric Capital Partners, Inc., for a
zone change from Neighborhood Commercial District (NC) and Auto-Urban Commercial
District (AC) to Auto-Urban Commercial District (AC), at 2401 19th Street, located south of
19th Street and west of Avenue X, Ellwood Place Addition, Block 1, the east 140 feet of Lot 1.
 
This item was postponed.
 
Jarrett Atkinson, city manager, gave comments and answered questions from City Council.

  

 
  Motion by Council Member Dr. Jennifer Wilson,  seconded by Council Member Brayden

Rose, to postpone this item to the August 13, 2024 Regular City Council Meeting. 
  Vote: 6 - 0 Motion carried

  Other:  Mayor Mark W. McBrayer (ABSENT) 

 
6. 24. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning (District 4): Ordinance No. 2024-O0095, for Zone Case

3310-B, a request of Seventeen Services, LLC for SPGO, LLC, for a zone change from Office
District (OF) to Neighborhood Commercial District (NC), generally located north of
142nd Street and west of Quaker Avenue, on 1.00 acre of unplatted land out of Block AK,
Section 5. 

  

 
6. 25. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning (District 4): Ordinance No. 2024-O0096, for Zone Case

3310-C, a request of AMD Engineering, LLC for Quaker/146 Investment Holdings, LP, for a
zone change from Low Density Single-Family District (SF-2) to Neighborhood Commercial
District (NC), generally located north of 146th Street and west of Quaker Avenue, on 9.23 acres
of unplatted land out of Block AK, Section 5. 

  

 
6. 26. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning (District 4): Ordinance No. 2024-O0097, for Zone Case

3310-D, a request of AMD Engineering, LLC, for Quaker/146 Investment Holdings, LP, for a
zone change from Low Density Single-Family District (SF-2) to Neighborhood Commercial
District (NC), generally located north of 146th Street and west of Quaker Avenue, on 8.67 acres
of unplatted land out of Block AK, Section 5. 

  

 
6. 27. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning (District 5): Ordinance No. 2024-O0098, for Zone Case

3303-C, a request of Seventeen Services, LLC, for SE4NS Properties, LLC, for a zone change
from Industrial Park District (IP) to Auto-Urban Commercial District (AC), at 12001 Frankford
Avenue, located east of Frankford Avenue and south of 119th Street, Stonewood Industrial Park
Addition, Tract C. 

  

 
6. 28. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning (District 6): Ordinance No. 2024-O0099, for Zone Case

1947-H, a request of Clovis Sign Service for Southwest Convenience Stores, for a zone change
from Medium Density Residential District (MDR) to Auto-Urban Commercial District (AC), at
5802 34th Street, located west of Frankford Avenue and north of 34th Street, Summer Place
Addition, Lot 10. 

  

 

Special City Council Meeting 
July 9, 2024 Page 6 of 8



7. Regular Agenda
 
7. 1. Board Appointments - City Secretary: Consider appointments to the I-27 Advisory

Committee of the Ports-to-Plains Trade Corridor Coalition.
  

 
  Motion by Council Member David Glasheen, seconded by Council Member Brayden Rose,

to appoint Mayor Mark W. McBrayer, to replace former Mayor Tray Payne to the I-27
Advisory Committee of the Ports-to-Plains Trade Corridor Coalition. 

  Vote: 6 - 0 Motion carried

  Other:  Mayor Mark W. McBrayer (ABSENT) 

 
7. 2. Board Appointments - City Secretary: Consider appointments of City Council members to the

South Plains Association of Governments (SPAG) Board.
  

 
  Motion by Council Member Dr. Jennifer Wilson,  seconded by Council Member David

Glasheen, to appoint Council Member Gordon Harris, to replace former Mayor Pro Tem
Shelia Patterson Harris. 

  Vote: 6 - 0 Motion carried

  Other:  Mayor Mark W. McBrayer (ABSENT) 

 
7. 3. Board Appointments - City Secretary: Consider appointments to the Transportation Policy

Committee of the Lubbock Metropolitan Planning Organization.
  

 
  Motion by Council Member Tim Collins, seconded by Council Member Dr. Jennifer

Wilson, to appoint Mayor Mark W. McBrayer and Mayor Pro Tem Christy
Martinez-Garcia, to replace former Mayor Tray Payne and former Council Member Steve
Massengale.  

  Vote: 6 - 0 Motion carried

  Other:  Mayor Mark W. McBrayer (ABSENT) 

 
7. 4. Public Hearing - Planning: Hold a public hearing in accordance with Section 43.0694(a) of the

Texas Local Government Code, regarding the City of Lubbock's intent to annex an area of land
generally described as 374.74 acres south of 146th Street and east of Frankford Avenue, into
Lubbock's corporate limits, and to execute a Municipal Services Agreement with the Highland
Oaks Homeowner's Association, for the requested annexation.
 
Public Hearing Only.
 
Kristen Sager, director of planning, gave a presentation and answered questions from City
Council.

  

Special City Council Meeting 
July 9, 2024 Page 7 of 8



 
Mayor Pro Tem Chisty Martinez-Garcia read into the record the following statement: "The
Texas Local Government Code requires a public hearing for the City Council to consider the
annexation of property."
 
Mayor Pro Tem Martinez-Garcia opened the public hearing at 2:41 p.m.
 
No one appeared to speak in favor or opposition.
 
Mayor Pro Tem Martinez-Garcia closed the public hearing at 2:42 p.m.

 
7. 5. Resolution - Public Works Wastewater: Resolution No. 2024-R0320 receiving the report and

recommendation of the Private Sewer Lateral Ad-Hoc Committee.
 
Wood Franklin, division director of public works, gave a presentation and answered questions
from City Council. Jeff Reese, chair of the Private Sewer Lateral Ad-Hoc Committee,
introduced the committee members and presented a report and recommendations from the
Committee and answered questions from City Council.

  

 
  Motion by Council Member David Glasheen, seconded by Council Member Brayden Rose,

to approve Resolution No. 2024-R0320. 
  Vote: 6 - 0 Motion carried

  Other:  Mayor Mark W. McBrayer (ABSENT) 

 

3:50 P.M. CITY COUNCIL ADJOURNED
 

There being no further business to come before Council, Mayor Pro Tem Martinez-Garcia
adjourned the meeting.

 
The July 9, 2024 Special City Council Meeting minutes were approved by the City Council on the 13th day of
August, 2024.

  
  ____________________________________

MARK W. McBRAYER, MAYOR
ATTEST:
 

 

___________________________________
Courtney Paz, City Secretary

 

Special City Council Meeting 
July 9, 2024 Page 8 of 8



CITY OF LUBBOCK
SPECIAL CITY COUNCIL MEETING

July 18, 2024
5:30 P.M.

 
The City Council of the City of Lubbock, Texas met in special session on the 18th of July, 2024, in City
Council Chambers, Citizens Tower, 1314 Avenue K, Lubbock, Texas at 5:30 p.m.

  
5:31 P.M. 
            

CITY COUNCIL CONVENED
City Council Chambers, Citizens Tower, 1314 Avenue K, Lubbock, Texas

Present:  Mayor Mark W. McBrayer; Mayor Pro Tem Christy Martinez-Garcia; Council Member Tim
Collins; Council Member David Glasheen; Council Member Gordon Harris; Council Member
Brayden Rose; Council Member Dr. Jennifer Wilson; City Manager W. Jarrett Atkinson; City
Attorney Matt Wade; Deputy City Secretary Jimmy Maynard 

 

Note:      City Council addressed agenda items in the following order: 
Citizen Comments 1; and 2.

               
1. Citizen Comments - According to Lubbock City Council Rules, any citizen wishing to appear

in-person before a regular meeting of the City Council, regarding any matter posted on the City
Council Agenda below, shall complete the sign-up form provided at the meeting, no later than
5:30 p.m. on July 18, 2024. Citizen Comments provide an opportunity for citizens to make
comments and express a position on agenda items. 
 
Sign ups:

Adam Hernandez, communications chair for Lubbock Compact; Josh Shankles, board member
and managing director of Lubbock Compact; and Brigid Krizek appeared before City Council to
speak on item 2 (review and discuss adopted Lubbock City Council Priorities and Fiscal Year
2024-2025 Budget Preparation). 

 
2. Review and Discuss Adopted Lubbock City Council Priorities and Fiscal Year 2024-2025 Budget

Preparation.

Topics may include: planning, goals, and budget priorities for the Lubbock City Council and the City
of Lubbock, and the programs, expenditures and policies of the City Council and the City of Lubbock,
including but not limited to the Lubbock City Charter, ARPA funding, annexation and growth,
aquatics, substance abuse, municipal fees, transportation, infrastructure, solid waste, streets, Gateway
Fund, Civic Center, Lubbock Animal Services, libraries, community engagement, capital
improvements, facilities, parks and recreation, development services, legislative agenda, public safety,
public health, public safety infrastructure, code enforcement, staffing levels, and future needs. This
discussion may include a wide range of topics related to the programs, operations, and policies of the



City Council and the City of Lubbock.

Action may be taken by the City Council to give direction to the City Manager in regard to
determining the priorities and goals discussed.

Jarrett Atkinson, city manager, introduced the item, gave comments, and answered questions from City
Council. 

The following priorities were identified and discussed by members of the City Council:
(The topics listed below were the subject of discussion by members of the City Council. This list is not
indicative what each member of council considered the noted topics as their priority.)

Public Safety:
Ensure adequate staffing, adequate funding, and competitive salaries for Lubbock Police Department,
Lubbock Animal Services, and Lubbock Fire Department; focus on crime reduction; reduce dog
attacks; and reduce loose animals. 

Infrastructure and Core Services:
Infrastructure funding for utilities, water, and streets; maintenance of current infrastructure
and established neighborhoods; and long-term infrastructure planning.

Fiscal Discipline:
No increases to the tax burden on citizens and maintain lower tax rates; reduce spending where
appropriate; and reduce outside consulting.

Quality of Life:
Parks, including park maintenance and planting of new trees; and planning for the future construction
of swimming pools.

Growth and Development:
Economic growth; grants for economic development and downtown businesses; growth of downtown
Lubbock; and business expansion. 

There was a consensus among City Council to exclude funding for the construction of a new
swimming pool, and to consider repairing the Clapp Park swimming pool in the Fiscal Year 2024-2025
budget.

City Council gave direction to the city manager to prepare presentations on a budget with a no new
revenue tax rate and a budget with a population plus inflation tax rate. 

7:24 P.M. CITY COUNCIL ADJOURNED

There being no further business to come before Council, Mayor McBrayer adjourned the meeting.

The July 18, 2024 Special City Council Meeting minutes were approved by the City Council on the 13th day

Special City Council Meeting 
July 18, 2024 Page 2 of 3



The July 18, 2024 Special City Council Meeting minutes were approved by the City Council on the 13th day
of August, 2024.

____________________________________
MARK W. McBRAYER, MAYOR

ATTEST:

___________________________________
Courtney Paz, City Secretary

Special City Council Meeting 
July 18, 2024 Page 3 of 3



 AI# 12674 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 6. 1. 
08/13/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Budget Ordinance Amendment 2nd Reading - Finance: Consider Budget Ordinance No.
2024-O0103, Amendment 43, amending the FY 2023-24 Budget for municipal purposes respecting the
Cable Services Fund; providing for filing; and providing for a savings clause.

Item Summary
On July 23, 2024, the City Council approved the first reading of the ordinance.

I. Amend the Cable Services Fund FY 2023-24 Operating Budget by increasing the appropriation and
funding in the amount of $785,390, from $500,000 to $1,285,390.
Funding will be from the Cable Services Excess Reserves.

The budget amendment will allow the Communications & Public Engagement Department to complete
Phase II of the process to update, correct, and proactively integrate state-of-the-art technology into the
studio, control room, Council Chambers, and Conference Rooms in Citizens Tower, in order to broadcast
City Council meetings to the public and to stay current with communication technologies to reach our
citizens.

Phase II of this configuration includes purchase and installation of additional infrastructure and
equipment for the following:

Council Chambers:
Replacement of the outdated Crestron system (Council Chambers dias and conference rooms interface),
to improve the audio and visual quality of meetings.

Communications & Public Engagement (C&PE) Studio:
Addition of a third television camera with teleprompter, controls, lenses, and mobile base;
Replacement of non-functioning Pan/Tilt/Zoom (PTZ) Cameras on the Studio Walls; and
Addition of an LED wall to enable background content creation for videos and interviews, as well as
creation of shows for Channel 2 and social media platforms.

2nd Floor Conference Room:
Addition of three PTZ cameras on the walls, in order to broadcast meetings from this location;
Addition of one wide-angle camera and one close-up camera for the speaker, for meetings or workshops;
Addition of overhead microphones to enable broadcasts of meetings from the room, if so desired; and
Addition of remote streaming equipment to enable live-streaming events or meetings straight to Channel
2 and social platforms.

Communications & Public Engagement (C&PE) Department Offices:
Addition of two cameras and 3 microphones to enable current office space to also be used for interviews
when the studio is not available.



Fiscal Impact
The additional $785,390 funding for the Cable Services Fund FY 2023-24 Operating Budget will be
from the Cable Services Fund Excess Reserves.

Staff/Board Recommending
Cheryl Brock, Interim Chief Financial Officer

Attachments
Budget Amendment 43 







 AI# 12697 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 6. 1. 1. 
08/13/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Communications & Public Engagement: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to
execute Purchase Order 364545, with Nelco Media, for Phase II Upgrade of audio and video
infrastructure and equipment in City Council Chambers, Communications Studio, and Conference
Rooms.

Item Summary
One of the primary functions of the Communications & Public Engagement Department (C&PE) is to
broadcast City Council meetings to the public. To adequately continue this, C&PE has worked
continuously for the last four years to update, correct, and proactively integrate technology into our
studio, control room, and Citizens Tower, as a whole, to be efficient and stay current with communication
technologies to reach our citizens.

We have been working with Nelco for the past two years to get our system working and streamlined, and
to properly configure all our components to have smooth operations during meetings and more ways to
create in-house content. The purpose of Phase II is to update, correct, and proactively integrate
state-of-the-art technology into the Studio, Control Room, Council Chambers, and Conference Rooms in
Citizens Tower, in order to broadcast City Council meetings to the public and to stay current with
communication technologies to reach our citizens.

Phase II of this configuration includes purchase and installation of additional infrastructure and
equipment for the following:

Council Chambers:
Replacement of the outdated Crestron system (Council Chambers dias and conference rooms interface),
to improve the audio and visual quality of meetings.

Communications & Public Engagement (C&PE) Studio:
Addition of a third television camera with teleprompter, controls, lenses, and mobile base;
Replacement of non-functioning Pan/Tilt/Zoom (PTZ) Cameras on the Studio Walls; and
Addition of an LED wall to enable background content creation for videos and interviews, as well as
creation of shows for Channel 2 and social media platforms.

2nd Floor Conference Room:
Addition of three PTZ cameras on the walls, in order to broadcast meetings from this location;
Addition of one wide-angle camera and one close-up camera for the speaker, for meetings or workshops;
Addition of overhead microphones to enable broadcasts of meetings from the room, if so desired; and
Addition of remote streaming equipment to enable live-streaming events or meetings straight to Channel
2 and social platforms. 
Communications & Public Engagement (C&PE) Department Offices:



Communications & Public Engagement (C&PE) Department Offices:
Addition of two cameras and 3 microphones to enable current office space to also be used for interviews
when the studio is not available.

Funding for this project will come completely from the Cable Services Fund. It is also known as PEG
funds which are for public, educational or governmental television channels. This fund receives revenue
from cable video service providers charging their customers PEG access channel fees at a set rate per
customer, each month. Per Texas law, PEG funds are designated only for items used for content creation
for the channel, and items that finance day-to-day operations of public-access channels.

Fiscal Impact
Purchase Order 364545, with Nelco Media, for $785,390 is funded from the Cable Services Fund in the
FY 2023-24 Operating Budget.

Staff/Board Recommending
Bill Howerton, Deputy City Manager
Lacey Nobles, Director of Communications & Public Engagement

Attachments
Resolution - Nelco Inc. 
PO 364545 - Nelco Inc., Contract 230105 





 

TO: SHIP TO: 

 INVOICE TO: CITY OF LUBBOCK  
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 
P.O. BOX 2000 
LUBBOCK, TX 79457 BY: 

Marta Alvarez, Director of Purchasing & Contract Management 

1Page    -
Date    - 7/11/2024P U R C H A S E   O R D E R
Order Number 364545 OP000
Branch/Plant          174

NELCO MEDIA INC CITY OF LUBBOCK
PO BOX 12301 COMMUNICATIONS

1314 AVE KSAN ANTONIO TX 78212
LUBBOCK TX 79401

Ordered .Freight7/23/2024
Taken ByRequested 8/16/2024 K MORGAN

TIPS Contract 230105/18222Delivery PER L ADAMS REQ 62006

Description/Supplier Item Ordered Unit Cost UM Extension Request Date
Phase II-Public Broadcast Configuration 1.000 785,389.9200 EA 785,389.92 8/16/2024

Total Order

NET DUE ON RECEIPTTerms 785,389.92

If you have any questions, please contact Lacey Nobles at 806-775-2279 or via email at LNobles@mylubbock.us  

This purchase order encumbers funds in the amount of $785,389.92 awarded to Nelco Media, Inc. of San 
Antonio, TX, on _________________, 2024. The following is incorporated into and made part of this purchase order by 
reference: Quote dated March 05, 2024, from Nelco Media, Inc. of San Antonio, TX, and TIPS Contract 230105.

Resolution #____________________ 

CITY OF LUBBOCK: 

______________________________________

Mark McBrayer, Mayor

ATTEST: 

______________________________________

Courtney Paz, City Secretary

INSURANCE REQUIRED:

Commercial General Liability: 

$1M occurrence / $2M aggregate (can be combined with an 

Excess Liability to meet requirement). CGL is required in ALL 

contracts. It is perhaps the most important of all 

insurance policies in a contractual relationship. It insures the 

Contractor has broad liability coverage for contractual activities 

and for completed operations.  

Commercial General Liability to include Products – 

Completion/OP, Personal and Advertising Injury, Contractual 

Liability, Fire Damage (any one fire), and Medical Expenses 

(any one person). 

Automotive Liability: 

$1M occurrence is needed. 

Workers Compensation and Employer Liability: 

Statutory. If the vendor is an independent contractor with no 

employees and are exempt from providing Workers' 

Compensation coverage, they must sign a waiver (obtained 

from COL Purchasing) and include a copy of their driver's 

license. Employer Liability ($1M) is required with 

Workers Compensation. 

Additional Policies: N/A 

*The City of Lubbock (including its officials, employees and volunteers) shall be afforded additional insured status on a primary

and non-contributory basis on all liability policies except professional liabilities and workers' comp. *Waivers of Subrogation are

required for CGL, AL, and WC. *To Include Products of Completed Operations endorsement. *Carrier will provide a 30-day

written notice of cancellation, 10-day written notice for non-payment. *Carriers must meet an A.M. Best rating of A- or better.

*Subcontractors must carry same limits as listed above. 

Cyber Liability Requirements: $2M  of coverage is needed for 
Liability. 

Technology Errors & Omissions Requirements: $1M per claim

Crime Protection Coverage Requirements: Employee Dishonesty 
or Fidelity Bond coverage REQUIRED in the amount equal to 
maximum exposure. 

170423
Rectangle



REV. 3/2022  

    Rev. 3/2022

Seller and Buyer agree as 
follows: 

PURCHASE ORDER     

TERMS AND CONDITIONS  

STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

ACCEPTANCE OF THIS PURCHASE ORDER:  

CONTRACTOR ACKNOWLEDGES, by supplying any Goods or Services that the Contractor has read, fully 

understands, and will be in full compliance with all terms and conditions and the descriptive material contained herein 

and any additional associated documents and Amendments.  The City disclaims any terms and conditions provided by 

the Contractor unless agreed upon in writing by the parties.  In the event of conflict between the City’s terms and 

conditions and any terms and conditions provided by the Contractor, the terms and conditions provided herein shall 

prevail.  The terms and conditions provided herein are the final terms agreed upon by the parties, and any prior 

conflicting terms shall be of no force or effect. 

1. SELLER TO PACKAGE GOODS.   Seller will package goods in accordance with good commercial practice. 

Each shipping container shall be clearly and permanently marked as follows  (a)  Seller’s name and address, (b) 

Consignee’s name, address and purchase order or purchase release number and the supply agreement number if 

applicable, (c) Container number and total number of containers, e.g. box 1 of 4 boxes, and (d) the number of the 

container bearing the packing slip. Seller shall bear cost of packaging unless otherwise provided. Goods shall be 

suitably packed to secure lowest transportation costs and to conform with requirements of common carriers and any 

applicable specifications.  Buyer’s count or weight shall be final and conclusive on shipments not accompanied by 

packing lists. 

2. SHIPMENT UNDER RESERVATION PROHIBITED. Seller is not authorized to ship the goods under 

reservation and no tender of a bill of lading will operate as a tender of goods. 

3. TITLE AND RISK OF LOSS.  The title and risk of loss of the goods shall not pass to Buyer until Buyer actually 

receives and takes possession of the goods at the point or points of delivery. 

4. NO REPLACEMENT OF DEFECTIVE TENDER.  Every tender of delivery of goods must fully comply with all 

provisions of this contract as to time of delivery, quality and the like. If a tender is made which does not fully conform, 

this shall constitute a breach and Seller shall not have the right to substitute a conforming tender, provided, where the 

time for performance has not yet expired, the Seller may reasonably notify Buyer of his intention to cure and may 

then make a conforming tender within the contract time but not afterward. 

5. INVOICES & PAYMENTS. a. S e l l e r  shall submit separate invoices, in duplicate, one each purchase order or 

purchase release after each delivery.  Invoices shall indicate the purchase order or purchase release number and 

the supply agreement number if applicable.  Invoices shall be itemized and transportation charges, if any, shall be 

listed separately.  A copy of the bill of lading, and the freight waybill when applicable, should be attached to the 

invoice. Mail To: Accounts Payable, City of Lubbock, P. O. Box 2000, Lubbock, Texas 79457.  Payment shall not 

be due until the above instruments are submitted after delivery. 

6. GRATUITIES.  The Buyer may, by written notice to the Seller, cancel this contract without liability to Seller if 

it is determined by Buyer that gratuities, in the form of entertainment, gifts or otherwise, were offered or given by the 

Seller, or any agent or representative of the Seller, to any officer or employee of the City of Lubbock with a view to 

securing a contract or securing favorable treatment with respect to the awarding or amending, or the making of any 

determinations with respect to the performing of such a contract.  In the event this contract is canceled by Buyer 

pursuant to this provision, Buyer shall be entitled, in addition to any other rights and remedies, to recover or withhold 

the amount of the cost incurred by Seller in providing such gratuities. 

7. SPECIAL TOOLS & TEST EQUIPMENT.  If the price stated on the face hereof includes the cost of any special

tooling or special test equipment fabricated or required by Seller for the purpose of filling this order, such special

tooling equipment and any process sheets related thereto shall become the property of the Buyer and to the extent

feasible shall be identified by the Seller as such. 

8. WARRANTY-PRICE. a. The price to be paid by the Buyer shall be that contained in Seller’s bid which 

Seller warrants to be no higher than Seller’s current process on orders by others for products of the kind and 

specification covered by this agreement for similar quantities under similar of like conditions and methods of purchase. 

In the event Seller breaches this warranty, the prices of the  items  shall  be  reduced  to  the  Seller’s  current  prices 

on  orders  by others, or  in  the alternative.  Buyer may cancel this contract without liability to Seller for breach 

or Seller’s actual expense. b. The Seller warrants that no person or selling agency has been employed or retained to 

solicit or secure this contract upon an agreement or understanding for commission, percentage, brokerage, or contingent 

fee excepting bona fide employees of bona fide established commercial or selling agencies maintained by the Seller for 

the purpose of securing business.  For breach of viciation of this warranty the Buyer shall have the right in addition to 

any other right of rights to cancel this contract without liability and to deduct from the contract price, or otherwise 

recover without liability and to deduct from the contract price, or otherwise recover the full amount of such commission, 

percentage, brokerage or contingent fee. 

9. WARRANTY-PRODUCT.  Seller shall not limit or exclude any implied warranties and any attempt to do so shall 

render this contract voidable at the option of the Buyer.  Seller warrants that the goods furnished will conform to the 

specification, drawings, and descriptions listed in the bid invitation, and to the sample(s) furnished by the Seller, if any. 

In the event of a conflict or between the specifications, drawings, and descriptions, the specifications shall govern. 

Notwithstanding any provisions contained in the contractual agreement, the Seller represents and warrants fault-free 

performance and fault-free result in the processing date and date related data (including, but not limited to calculating, 

comparing and sequencing) of all hardware, software and firmware products delivered and services provided under 

this Contract, individually or in combination, as the case may be from the effective date of this Contract. The 

obligations contained herein apply to products and services provided by the Seller, its sub- Seller or any third party 

involved in the creation or development of the products and services to be delivered to the City of Lubbock under this 

Contract.  Failure to comply with any of the obligations contained herein, may result in the City of Lubbock 

availing itself of any of its rights under the law and under this Contract including, but not limited to, its right pertaining 

to termination or default. The warranties contained herein are separate and discrete from any other warranties 

specified in this Contract, and are not subject to any disclaimer of warranty, implied or expressed, or limitation of the 

Seller’s liability which may be specified in this Contract, its appendices, its schedules, its annexes or any document 

incorporated in this Contract by reference. 

10. SAFETY WARRANTY.  Seller warrants that the product sold to the Buyer shall conform to the standards 

promulgated by the U. S. Department of Labor under the Occupational Safety and Health Act of 1970.  In the event the 

product does not conform to OSHA standards, Buyer may return the product for correction or replacement at the 

Seller’s expense.  In the event Seller fails to make the appropriate correction within a reasonable time, correction 

made by Buyer will be at the Seller’s expense. 

11. NO WARRANTY BY BUYER AGAINST INFRINGEMENTS.  As part of this contract for sale Seller agrees

to ascertain whether goods manufactured in accordance with the specifications attached to this agreement will give

rise to the rightful claim of any third person by way of infringement of the like.  Buyer makes no warranty that the 

production of goods according to the specification will not give rise to such a claim, and in no event shall Buyer be 

liable to Seller for indemnification in the event that Seller is sued on the grounds of infringement of the like.  If Seller 

is of the opinion that an infringement or the like will result, he will notify the Buyer to this effect in writing within two

weeks after the signing of this agreement.    If  Buyer  does  not  receive  notice  and  is  subsequently  held  liable  for 

the infringement or the like, Seller will save Buyer harmless.  If Seller in good faith ascertains the production of the 

goods in accordance with the specifications will result in infringement or the like, the contract shall be null and void. 

12. NON APPROPRIATION. All funds for payment by the City under this contract are subject to the availability of an 

annual appropriation for this purpose by the City.  In the event of nonappropriation of funds by the City Council of the 

City of Lubbock for the goods or services provided under the contract, the City will terminate the contract, without 

termination charge or other liability, on the last day of the then-current fiscal year or when the appropriation made for 

the then-current year for the goods or services covered by this contract is spent, whichever event occurs first.  If at any 

time funds are not appropriated for the continuance of this contract, cancellation shall be accepted by the Seller on 

thirty (30) days prior written notice, but failure to give such notice shall be of no effect and the City shall not be 

obligated under this contract beyond the date of termination. 

13. RIGHT OF INSPECTION.  Buyer shall have the right to inspect the goods at delivery before accepting them.

14. CANCELLATION.  Buyer shall have the right to cancel for default all or any part of the undelivered portion of 

this order if Seller breaches any of the terms hereof including warranties of Seller or if the Seller becomes insolvent or 

commits acts of bankruptcy.  Such right of cancellation is in addition to and not in lieu of any other remedies which 

Buyer may have in law or equity. 

15. TERMINATION. The performance of work under this order may be terminated in whole, or in part by the Buyer

in accordance with this provision.  Termination of work hereunder shall be effected by the delivery of the Seller of 

a “Notice of Termination” specifying the extent to which performance of work under the order is terminated and the 

date upon which such termination becomes effective. Such right or termination is in addition to and not in lieu of the 

rights of Buyer set forth in Clause 14, herein. 

16. FORCE MAJEURE.    Neither party shall be held responsible for losses, resulting if the fulfillment of any 

terms of provisions of this contract is delayed or prevented by any cause not within the control of the party whose 

performance is interfered with, and which by the exercise of reasonable diligence said party is unable to prevent. 

17. ASSIGNMENT-DELEGATION.  No right or interest in this contract shall be assigned or delegation of any 

obligation made by Seller without the written permission of the Buyer.  Any attempted assignment or delegation by 

Seller shall be wholly void and totally ineffective for all purpose unless made in conformity with this paragraph. 

18. WAIVER. No claim or right arising out of a breach of this contract can be discharged in whole or in part by a

waiver or renunciation of the claim or right unless the waiver or renunciation is supported by consideration and is in

writing signed by the aggrieved party. 

19. INTERPRETATION-PAROLE EVIDENCE. This writing, plus any specifications for bids and performance

provided  by  Buyer  in  its  advertisement for  bids,  and  any  other  documents provided by Seller as part of his bid,

is intended by the parties as a final expression of their agreement and intended also as a complete and exclusive

statement of the terms of their agreement.   Whenever a term defined by the Uniform Commercial Code is used in this

agreement, the definition contained in the Code is to control. 

20. APPLICABLE LAW.  This agreement shall be governed by the Uniform Commercial Code. Wherever the term 

“Uniform Commercial Code” is used, it shall be construed as meaning the Uniform Commercial Code as adopted in 

the State of Texas as effective and in force on the date of this agreement. 

21. RIGHT TO ASSURANCE.  Whenever one party to this contract in good faith has reason to question the other

party’s intent to perform he may demand that the other party give written assurance of his intent to perform.  In the

event that a demand is made and no assurance is given within five (5) days, the demanding party may treat this

failure as an anticipatory repudiation of the contract. 

22. INDEMNIFICATION.  Seller shall indemnify, keep and save harmless the Buyer, its agents, officials and 

employees, against all injuries, deaths, loss, damages, claims, patent claims, suits, liabilities, judgments, costs and 

expenses, which may in anywise accrue against the Buyer in consequence of the granting of this Contract or which 

may anywise result therefrom, whether or not it shall be alleged or determined that the act was caused through 

negligence or omission of the Seller or its employees, or of the subSeller or assignee or its employees, if any, and the 

Seller shall, at his own expense, appear, defend and pay all charges of attorneys and all costs and other expenses 

arising therefrom of incurred in connection therewith, and, if any judgment shall be rendered against the Buyer in any 

such action, the Seller shall, at its own expenses, satisfy and discharge the same Seller expressly understands and 

agrees that any bond required by this contract, or otherwise provided by Seller, shall in no way limit the 

responsibility to indemnify, keep and save harmless and defend the Buyer as herein provided. 

23. TIME.   It is hereby expressly agreed and understood that time is of the essence for the performance of this

contract, and failure by contract to meet the time specifications of this agreement will cause Seller to be in default

of this agreement. 

24. MBE.  The City of Lubbock hereby notifies all bidders that in regard to any contract entered into pursuant to

this request, minority and women business enterprises will be afforded equal opportunities to submit bids in response

to this invitation and will not be discriminated against on the grounds of race, color, sex or natural origin in

consideration for an award. 

25. NON-ARBITRATION. The City reserves the right to exercise any right or remedy to it by law, contract, equity, or

otherwise, including without limitation, the right to seek any and all forms of relief in a court of competent

jurisdiction. Further, the City shall not be subject to any arbitration process prior to exercising its unrestricted

right to seek judicial remedy. The remedies set forth herein are cumulative and not exclusive, and may be exercised

concurrently. To the extent of any conflict between this provision and another provision in, or related to, this document,

this provision shall control. 

26. RIGHT TO AUDIT. At any time during the term of the contract, or thereafter, the City, or a duly authorized

audit representative of the City or the State of Texas, at its expense and at reasonable times, reserves the right to

audit Contractor's records and books relevant to all services provided to the City under this Contract. In the event such

an audit by the City reveals any errors or overpayments by the City, Contractor shall refund the City the full amount

of such overpayments within thirty (30) days of such audit findings, or the City, at its option, reserves the right to

deduct such amounts owing the City from any payments due Contractor. 

27. The Contractor shall not assign or sublet the contract, or any portion of the contract, without written consent from 

the Director of Purchasing and Contract Management. 

28. Contracts with Companies Engaged in Business with Iran, Sudan, or Foreign Terrorist Organization Prohibited. 

Pursuant to Section 2252.152 of the Texas Government Code, prohibits the City from entering into a contract with a

vendor that is identified by The Comptroller as a company known to have contracts with or provide supplies or service

with Iran, Sudan or a foreign terrorist organization 

29. Texas Government Code. Section 2252.908 requires a business entity entering into certain contracts with a 

governmental entity or state agency to file with the governmental entity or state agency a disclosure of interested parties 

at the time the business entity submits the signed contract to the governmental entity or state agency.  Instructions for

completing Form 1295 are available at: http://www.ci.lubbock.tx.us/departmental-

websites/departments/purchasing/vendor-information 

30. No Boycott of Israel.  Pursuant to Section 2271.002 of the Texas Government Code, Respondent certifies that 

either (i) it meets an exemption criteria under Section 2271.002; or (ii) it does not boycott Israel and will not boycott

Israel during the term of the contract resulting from this solicitation. Respondent shall state any facts that make it 

exempt from the boycott certification in its Response. 

31. No Boycott of Energy Companies.  Pursuant to Section 2274 of the Texas Government Code, Respondent 

certifies that either (i) it meets an exemption criteria under Section 2274.002; or (ii) it does not boycott Energy 

Companies and will not boycott Energy Companies during the term of the contract resulting from this solicitation.

Respondent shall state any facts that make it exempt from the boycott certification in its Response. 

32. No Boycott of a Firearm Entity or Firearm Trade Association.  Pursuant to Section 2274 of the Texas 

Government Code, Respondent certifies that either (i) it meets an exemption criteria under Section 2274.002; or (ii) it

does not boycott a Firearm Entity or Firearm Trade Association and will not boycott a Firearm Entity or Firearm 

Trade Association during the term of the contract resulting from this solicitation. Respondent shall state any facts that

make it exempt from the boycott certification in its Response. 

33.  Contracts with Companies Engaged in Business with Iran, Sudan, or Foreign Terrorist Organization Prohibited. 

Pursuant to Section 2252.152 of the Texas Government Code, prohibits the City from entering into a contract with a 

vendor that is identified by The Comptroller as a company known to have contracts with or provide supplies or 

service with Iran, Sudan or a foreign terrorist organization 

34. TEXAS PUBLIC INFORMATION ACT. The requirements of Subchapter J, Chapter 552, Government Code, 

may apply to this contract and the contractor or vendor agrees that the contract can be terminated if the contractor or 

vendor knowingly or intentionally fails to comply with a requirement of that subchapter. 

35. Pursuant to Section 552.301(c) of the Texas Government Code, the City of Lubbock has designated the following 

email address for which public information requests may be made by an emailed request: orr@mylubbock.us. Please 

send this request to this email address for it to be processed

http://www.ci.lubbock.tx.us/departmental-websites/departments/purchasing/vendor-information
http://www.ci.lubbock.tx.us/departmental-websites/departments/purchasing/vendor-information
mailto:orr@mylubbock.us


Remittance Address:

Nelco Media, Inc. 

PO Box 12301 

SA TX 78212-0301

Nelco Media, Inc

505 Howard St
San Antonio, TX  78212 US
+1 2106862918
sales@nelcomedia.net

Quote
ADDRESS

City of Lubbock
1314 Avenue K
Lubbock, TX 79401

SHIP TO

Mike Robles
City of Lubbock
1314 Avenue K
Lubbock, TX 79401

QUOTE # 2131
DATE 03/05/2024

  

ACTIVITY SKU QTY RATE AMOUNT

LUBBOCK REMOTE WORKFLOW 1 0.00 0.00T

NewTek - TriCaster TC Mini 4K Bundle
NewTek - TriCaster TC Mini 4K Bundle - 
includes TriCaster TC Mini 4K, TC Mini 4K CS, 
two Spark Plus 4K IO Converters and NewTek 
custom travel case

TCM4KUHDB 1 11,495.00 11,495.00T

NewTek ProTek Ultra TriCaster TC Mini 4K
NewTek ProTek Ultra for TriCaster TC Mini 4K 
including critical case handling, phone support 
and advanced replacement where applicable

PTUTCM4KUHD 1 1,295.00 1,295.00T

Panasonic - UHD 4K 20x PTZ Camera (White)
Panasonic - UHD 4K 20x PTZ Camera (White)
This pro PTZ camera outputs up to UHD 4K 
60p over a variety of 4K connections including 
12G-SDI, HDMI, optical fiber, and IP streaming. 
*Requires POE++ or separate 12V Power 
supply, not included

AW-UE150WPJ 4 11,400.00 45,600.00T

NDI®|HX License for Panasonic PTZ Cameras 
& Camcorders
NDI®|HX License for Panasonic PTZ Cameras 
& Camcorders

PPTZUCC 4 299.00 1,196.00T

Magewell Pro Convert for NDI to SDI
Use the Pro Convert for NDI to SDI Decoder 
from Magewell to convert an NDI stream with 
embedded audio to an SDI output signal. This 
converter supports resolutions up to 2K60 via 
NDI input and decodes at resolutions up to 
1080p60 for 3G-SDI output. Designed to link 
baseband equipment to IP-based media 
networks

2 425.00 850.00T

Panasonic RP60 compact controller
Power Supply for AW-RP60 Panasonic 
Controller

AW-RP60GJ5 1 95.99 95.99T



Remittance Address:

Nelco Media, Inc. 

PO Box 12301 

SA TX 78212-0301

ACTIVITY SKU QTY RATE AMOUNT

E-Image Aluminum Tripod with Rising Center 
Column & QR Plate for PTZ Cameras
When using a PTZ camera setup, skip the 
head as you don't need it, with the E-Image 
Aluminum Tripod with Rising Center Column & 
QR Plate for PTZ Cameras.

GA230-PTZ 4 379.99 1,519.96T

Tripod Carrying Case - Heavy Duty Nylon Bag 
with Shoulder Straps and Handles
High-Quality Construction: Designed to protect 
your tripod from the elements and allow you to 
carry it with ease, Tripod Carrying Case is 
crafted using heavy-duty Cordura-webbed 
nylon to supply long-term, reliable use.

4 25.00 100.00T

Panasonic RP60 COMPACT PTZ NETWORK 
CONROLLER
COMPACT PTZ NETWORK CONTROLLER 
PANASONIC

AWRP60GJ5 1 3,095.00 3,095.00T

NETGEAR 16-Port Gigabit Ethernet 
Unmanaged PoE Switch
16 Gigabit Ethernet ports
8 PoE+ and 8 Ultra60 PoE++ ports with 380W 
total power budget
Simple plug-and-play setup with no software to 
install or configuration needed

GS516UP 1 369.00 369.00T

Elvid StudioVision 4K HDMI Monitor with HDR 
(28")
This 28" StudioVision 4K HDMI Monitor with 
HDR is a valuable asset in the studio or on 
location, providing critical image assessment 
tools and supporting standard as well as HDR 
monitoring of your image

STV-280-4KHDR 2 989.00 1,978.00T

Mini DisplayPort Male to HDMI Male Cable, 
1080p, Gold-Plated Plugs, 6 Foot, Black
Mini DisplayPort Male to HDMI Male Cable, 
1080p, Gold-Plated Plugs, 6 Foot, Black

4 15.00 60.00T

LiveU LU300S
LIVEU GOV LU300S-5G LU300S HEVC video 
transmit unit with 2 internal 5G modems plus 1 
external 4G (Verizon) modem. Can be 
upgraded to 4 modems. Options on 4G and 5G 
external Modem upgraded

LU300S 1 9,995.00 9,995.00T

LiveU - LU4000 Single Output 4K or Quad HD 
Server
**NEW: This LU4000 offers 4x HD outputs in 
addition to the 1x 4K (1x12G or 4x3G). 
Replaces the previous LU4000 having only 1x 
SDI out. Required with the LU800 when selling 
the PRO-2 and PRO-4 Licenses.
LiveU - LU4000 - 1U Rack Mount 4K HEVC 
Decoder Server – Supports 1*4K or 4*HD SDI 
Outputs. Required for LU600 & LU800 if doing 
4K.

LU10-SV-1UL04-4K 1 8,900.00 8,900.00T

LiveU - 35 GB per unit per month LU-DATA-035 12 350.00 4,200.00T



Remittance Address:

Nelco Media, Inc. 

PO Box 12301 

SA TX 78212-0301

ACTIVITY SKU QTY RATE AMOUNT

LiveU - 35GB of data per unit per month (12 
month contract) - LU200, LU300 and LU600. 
Billed Quarterly or paid up front for the year) .

Laird Digital Cinema LCR-4694-B-B-200 12G-
SDI/4K UHD Single-Link BNC to BNC Camera 
Cable on Reel (20

LCR-4694-B-B-200 5 580.49 2,902.45T

Laird Digital Cinema Belden 10GX CAT6A 
Ethernet Cable & Hub Mounted RJ45 Jack & 
RJ45 ProShell Cap on

LCR-CAT6A-PS-200 5 405.49 2,027.45T

QSC TouchMix-16 Compact Digital Mixer with 
Touchscreen
The TouchMix-16 Compact Digital Mixer with 
Touchscreen from QSC is a 20-input digital 
mixer that features 16 built-in mic preamplifiers 
and can be controlled by its integrated 
touchscreen or wirelessly via an iPad 
connected to the same wireless network

TOUCHMIX-16 1 1,699.00 1,699.00T

CableCreation XLR Microphone Cable, 6 FT 
XLR Male to XLR Female Balanced 3 PIN Mic 
Cables, Black

4 9.99 39.96T

Shure ULX-D Digital Wireless Combo 
Microphone Kit with SM58 Capsule & MX150 
Lavalier

ULXD124/150/C-H50 1 2,499.00 2,499.00T

Nelco Media Installation
Nelco Media Installation

Install 1 5,400.00 5,400.00T

Nelco Media Training (On-Site)
Nelco Media Training (On-Site)

NMTOS 1 1,995.00 1,995.00T

STUDIO 1 0.00 0.00T

Blackmagic Design URSA Broadcast G2 
Camera
Blackmagic Design URSA Broadcast G2 
Camera

CINEURSAMWC6KG2 1 4,195.00 4,195.00T

Canon CJ18EX7.6B IASE 2/3" ENG/EFP 4K 
UHD Zoom Lens with Full Servo Control
Capture 4K UHD footage with the CJ18EX7.6B 
IASE 2/3" ENG/EFP 4K UHD Zoom Lens with 
Full Servo Control from Canon. The 
CJ18EX7.6B IASE is an 18x zoom lens for 2/3" 
format 3-chip ENG/EFP cameras that retains 
the compact lightweight design of Canon's 
HJ17EX7.6B lens, while improving on the zoom 
range and the digital drive as well as 
supporting 4K UHD and HDR footage. The lens 
incorporates a B4 mount, standard for 
ENG/EFP lenses, and features a built-in 2x 
extender.

CJ18EX7.6B IASE 1 23,700.00 23,700.00T

Steadicam SDMS-A30VK A30 and Zephyr Vest 
Kit
The Steadimate-S converts a handheld 
motorized gimbal into a full body-worn stabilizer 

TIF-SDMS-A30VK 1 2,795.00 2,795.00T



Remittance Address:

Nelco Media, Inc. 

PO Box 12301 

SA TX 78212-0301

ACTIVITY SKU QTY RATE AMOUNT

system by attaching a mechanical gimbal 
collar/yoke and weighted base to the post of 
the gimbal. This allows a spring arm and vest to 
connect and assist the stabilizer, greatly 
improving the overall functionality and reducing 
operator fatigue.

Blackmagic Design - Blackmagic Camera Fiber 
Converter
Blackmagic Design - Blackmagic Camera Fiber 
Converter

CINEURSANWFRCAM 1 3,245.00 3,245.00T

Blackmagic Design - Blackmagic Studio Fiber 
Converter
Blackmagic Design - Blackmagic Studio Fiber 
Converter

CINEURSANWFRSTUD 1 3,325.00 3,325.00T

Blackmagic Design 7" URSA Studio Viewfinder 
G2
Add the Blackmagic Design 7" URSA Studio 
Viewfinder G2 to your URSA Studio G2 or 
URSA Mini camera to provide high-resolution 
monitoring. The 7" viewfinder/monitor features 
a high-resolution 1920 x 1200 TFT LCD screen

CINEURSANSVF2 1 1,515.00 1,515.00T

Blackmagic Design - ATEM Camera Control 
Panel
Blackmagic Design - ATEM Camera Control 
Panel

SWPANELCCU4 1 3,079.00 3,079.00T

19″ PTZ SDI TELEPROMPTER, PEDESTAL & 
DOLLY TURNKEY W/ TALENT MONITOR
19-Inch Teleprompter Designed for PTZ 
Cameras
Teleprompter and Talent Monitors Include 3G-
SDI, HDMI, and VGA Inputs
Hood Completely Encloses PTZ Camera 
Allowing it to Move Freely
Includes 1000-Nit High-bright Monitors
Compatible with Most PTZ Cameras
Easy Balancing with Adjustable Base

PT4900S-PTZ-TM-
PEDESTAL

1 6,499.00 6,499.00T

1.9mm Pixel Pitch Panel LED Wall
16 ft by 10 ft including spare parts

1 163,201.12 163,201.12T

Primetime Lighting System
Lights and equipment for lighting grid

1 19,819.00 19,819.00T

ETC CS20 20-Fader Color Source Lighting 
Console (40-Channel/Device)
The CS20 20-Fader ColorSource Lighting 
Console from ETC is a touchscreen enabled 20 
fader DMX 512 lighting control console. The 
twenty faders can support controlling up to forty 
fixtures, and each fader has its own individual 
programmable bump button

ETCCS20 1 1,985.00 1,985.00T

Misc Lighting Cables 1 1,000.00 1,000.00T

Studio Design
Studio design

Studio Design 1 25,000.00 25,000.00T

Nelco Media Installation Install 4 5,400.00 21,600.00T



Remittance Address:

Nelco Media, Inc. 

PO Box 12301 

SA TX 78212-0301

ACTIVITY SKU QTY RATE AMOUNT

Nelco Media Installation and Commissioning

WAR ROOM AND WORKFLOW 1 0.00 0.00T

Panasonic - UHD 4K 20x PTZ Camera (White)
Panasonic - UHD 4K 20x PTZ Camera (White)
This pro PTZ camera outputs up to UHD 4K 
60p over a variety of 4K connections including 
12G-SDI, HDMI, optical fiber, and IP streaming. 
*Requires POE++ or separate 12V Power 
supply, not included

AW-UE150WPJ 2 11,400.00 22,800.00T

Panasonic - Wall mount for white AW-UE150 & 
HE/HN130 (*Replaced with FEC-150GMK*)
Panasonic - Wall mount for white AW-UE150 & 
HE/HN130

FEC-150WMW 2 243.00 486.00T

NewTek - Panasonic NDI Upgrade
Upgrade your current Panasonic PTZ camera 
or camcorder with NewTek NDI®|HX 
    Allows your Panasonic PTZ camera or 
camcorder to serve as a live video input for any 
NDI® compatible hardware or software from 
anywhere on your network
    PoE+ for Power, Ultra Low Latency 
Audio/Video, Tally & Control via a single 
ethernet cable (PTZ cameras)
    Enables automatic camera discovery on the 
network via NDI®
    Upgrade available for the following 
Panasonic PTZ cameras: AW-UE150, AW-
HE130, AW-UE70, AW-HE40, AW-HE38, AG-
CX350

PPTZUCC 2 300.00 600.00T

ClearOne Ceiling Microphone Array Kit for 
INTERACT AT Mixers (XLR Male Breakout, 
White)
The white Ceiling Microphone Array Kit (XLR 
Male Breakout) from ClearOne is an array of 
three cardioid condenser microphones 
designed to provide 360-degree coverage of 
sources in convention and learning centers, 
meeting rooms, conference rooms, and more

910-001-014-W 2 625.00 1,250.00T

Shure BLX188/CVL Dual-Channel Wireless 
Cardioid Lavalier Microphone System H10 542 
to 572 MHz
The Shure BLX188/CVL is a cost-effective 
wireless lavalier microphone system for two 
presenters, teachers, or lecturers, which offers 
quality sound, simple setup, and dependable 
performance right out of the box.

BLX188/CVL-H10 1 629.00 629.00T

Nelco Media Installation
Nelco Media Installation

Install 1 5,400.00 5,400.00T

CHAMBER AND CONTROL ROOM 1 0.00 0.00T



Remittance Address:

Nelco Media, Inc. 

PO Box 12301 

SA TX 78212-0301

ACTIVITY SKU QTY RATE AMOUNT

Panasonic - UHD 4K 20x PTZ Camera (White)
Panasonic - UHD 4K 20x PTZ Camera (White)
This pro PTZ camera outputs up to UHD 4K 
60p over a variety of 4K connections including 
12G-SDI, HDMI, optical fiber, and IP streaming. 
*Requires POE++ or separate 12V Power
supply, not included

AW-UE150WPJ 3 11,400.00 34,200.00T

NewTek - Panasonic NDI Upgrade
Upgrade your current Panasonic PTZ camera 
or camcorder with NewTek NDI®|HX 
    Allows your Panasonic PTZ camera or 
camcorder to serve as a live video input for any 
NDI® compatible hardware or software from 
anywhere on your network
    PoE+ for Power, Ultra Low Latency 
Audio/Video, Tally & Control via a single 
ethernet cable (PTZ cameras)
    Enables automatic camera discovery on the 
network via NDI®
    Upgrade available for the following 
Panasonic PTZ cameras: AW-UE150, AW-
HE130, AW-UE70, AW-HE40, AW-HE38, AG-
CX350

PPTZUCC 3 300.00 900.00T

Panasonic - Wall mount for white AW-UE150 & 
HE/HN130 (*Replaced with FEC-150GMK*)
Panasonic - Wall mount for white AW-UE150 & 
HE/HN130

FEC-150WMW 3 243.00 729.00T

Wohler iAM-12G-SDI 2 RU Audio/Video 
Monitoring and Metering with 2x 12G SDI on 
BNC and Loudness/Phas
Wohler Technologies is extending its ground 
breaking iAM Series of products with a multi-
channel audio and 12G video monitor that 
accepts 2 x 12G/3G/HD/SD-SDI signals over 
BNC. 4 SFP cages allow for a variety of 
additional monitoring options, including 2110, 
2022-6, as well as additional SDI inputs in a 
variety of combinations. Their Dolby® ATMOS 
option allows decoding of Dolby® Atmos 
content, along with the familiar Dolby® D, 
Dolby® D+, and Dolby® E content.

IAM-12G-SDI 1 10,029.00 10,029.00T

Ross SNS EVO 128TB
The Studio Network Solutions EVO Expansion 
Chassis is ideal for DSLR workflows, 
mobile/field artists, and studios with limited rack 
space. It accommodates sixteen 12 TB drives.

Ross SNS EVO 128TB 1 42,999.00 42,999.00T

Ross SNS Commissioning EVO-COM-ONLINE-
1DAY

1 1,612.00 1,612.00T

Belden 10GXS12 CAT6A Cable
1000 ft roll, cat6a network cable

3 554.00 1,662.00T

Hollyland Solidcom C1-8S Full-Duplex Wireless 
DECT Intercom System with 8 Headsets (1.9 
GHz)

HL-SOLIDCOM C1-8S 1 1,949.00 1,949.00T



Remittance Address:

Nelco Media, Inc. 

PO Box 12301 

SA TX 78212-0301

ACTIVITY SKU QTY RATE AMOUNT

The Hollyland Solidcom C1-8S is a full-duplex 
wireless DECT intercom system engineered to 
provide clear audio and all-day wearing comfort 
in a true-wireless design with no bodypack or 
hub required. This configuration includes 8 
single-sided headsets, 1 master and 7 remote 
units, along with rechargeable batteries, a 
charger

Denon DN-300RMKII Solid-State SD/USB 
Audio Recorder
The DN-300RMKII records to both SD and 
USB media simultaneously - perfect for 
recording conferences where the client needs a 
copy of the recording after the event. With 
outstanding ease-of-use and simple operation, 
anyone can use the DN-300RMKII right out of 
the box and record to SD, USB or both

DN-300RMKII 1 329.00 329.00T

Nelco Media Installation
Nelco Media Installation

Install 2 5,400.00 10,800.00T

ROOM 201 A CONFERENCE 1 0.00 0.00T

Panasonic - UHD 4K 20x PTZ Camera (White)
Panasonic - UHD 4K 20x PTZ Camera (White)
This pro PTZ camera outputs up to UHD 4K 
60p over a variety of 4K connections including 
12G-SDI, HDMI, optical fiber, and IP streaming. 
*Requires POE++ or separate 12V Power 
supply, not included

AW-UE150WPJ 3 11,400.00 34,200.00T

Panasonic - Wall mount for white AW-UE150 & 
HE/HN130 (*Replaced with FEC-150GMK*)
Panasonic - Wall mount for white AW-UE150 & 
HE/HN130

FEC-150WMW 3 243.00 729.00T

NewTek - Panasonic NDI Upgrade
Upgrade your current Panasonic PTZ camera 
or camcorder with NewTek NDI®|HX 
    Allows your Panasonic PTZ camera or 
camcorder to serve as a live video input for any 
NDI® compatible hardware or software from 
anywhere on your network
    PoE+ for Power, Ultra Low Latency 
Audio/Video, Tally & Control via a single 
ethernet cable (PTZ cameras)
    Enables automatic camera discovery on the 
network via NDI®
    Upgrade available for the following 
Panasonic PTZ cameras: AW-UE150, AW-
HE130, AW-UE70, AW-HE40, AW-HE38, AG-
CX350

PPTZUCC 3 300.00 900.00T

6 Fiber Indoor Distribution Fiber Optic Cable, 
Singlemode, 9/125, Yellow, Riser Rated, Spool, 
1000 f
This yellow 1000-foot spool of fiber optic 

115028-1000 1 295.00 295.00T



Remittance Address:

Nelco Media, Inc. 

PO Box 12301 

SA TX 78212-0301

ACTIVITY SKU QTY RATE AMOUNT

distribution cable is intended to use for long-
distance indoor runs at high data transfer 
speeds which is necessary to power today's 
advanced networks and current - as well as 
future - infrastructure needs

Netgear 8x1G Ultra90 PoE++ 802.3bt 720W 
2x1G and 2xSFP+ Managed Switch
Designed with input from industry 
professionals, the AV Line M4250 
GSM4212UX 8-Port Gigabit PoE++ Compliant 
Managed AV Switch from Netgear is 
engineered for 1G AV over IP

GSM4212UX 1 1,199.00 1,199.00T

SMF LC
Cost to make SMF LC Connector

12 150.00 1,800.00T

QSC-NV21HU Network Video Endpoints
The Q-SYS NV Series NV-21-HU is the next 
evolution for native video distribution on the Q-
SYS Platform. The NV-21-HU is a software 
configurable endpoint offering a comprehensive 
single-cable solution for audio and video 
distribution, AV bridging and device charging 
via USB-C. The NV-21-HU’s compact size and 
reduced I/O make it ideal for supporting 
meeting rooms, learning spaces, hospitality 
and entertainment installations. The NV-21-HU 
can be used alongside other Q-SYS NV Series 
video endpoints, providing system design 
flexibility. Like all Q-SYS products, the NV-21-
HU offers native integration and control, 
simplifying configuration and operation.

QSC-NV21HU 8 2,250.00 18,000.00T

QSC NV-21-PSU Q-SYS External Power 
Supply for NV-21-HU

QSC-NV21PSU 8 240.00 1,920.00T

QSC Core 8 Flex - CORE 8 FLEX
Introducing the Q-SYS Core 8 Flex audio, 
video and control (AV&C) processor, which 
extends the applications of the Q-SYS 
Ecosystem into a wider range of smaller-scale 
installations across corporate, higher 
education, healthcare and beyond. Built on the 
same foundational technology as the rest of the 
Q-SYS processor portfolio, including the best-
in-class Q-SYS Core 110f, the Core 8 Flex is
designed for applications with lower network
channel capacity and/or targeted processing
requirements.

QSC-CORE8FLEX 1 2,930.00 2,930.00T

QSC Collaboration Scaling license Bundle for 
Core Nano/Core 8 Flex
Q-SYS Collaboration Bundle scaling license for
Core Nano and Core 8 Flex that doubles the
networked audio capacity to 128x128, doubles
the maximum number of next-generation AEC
processors to 16, doubles the maximum
number of Softphone instances to 4, and

QSC-SLCOL8NP 1 1,275.00 1,275.00T



Remittance Address:

Nelco Media, Inc. 

PO Box 12301 

SA TX 78212-0301

ACTIVITY SKU QTY RATE AMOUNT

doubles the general purpose processing 
capacity, Perpetual.

QSC Q-SYS Scripting Engine Software, 
Perpetual
Q-SYS™ has no equal as an integrated, 
scalable audio, video and control solution. Built 
from the ground up on a powerful, open, IT-
friendly foundation, the Q-SYS platform 
transcends the limitations in scope, 
performance, and usability that have kept 
previous networked audio, video and control 
systems from satisfying and exceeding the 
customer and project requirements:

QSC-SLQSE8NP 1 234.00 234.00T

QSC Dante Licenses QSC-SLDAN32P 1 920.00 920.00T

QSC AV Bridging QSC-SLQBRP 8 670.00 5,360.00T

QSC Q-SYS UCI Deployment Software 
License, Perpetual

QSC-SLQUD8NP 1 116.00 116.00T

QSC Camera
QSC Cameras

QSC-NC12X80 2 4,625.00 9,250.00T

QSC High Definition Touch Screen Controller 
(Black)
The Q-SYS TSC Series Gen 3 are high-
performance network touch screen controllers 
native to Q-SYS. Available in three sizes (5-
inch, 7-inch, 10-inch), these PoE-capable 
(power over Ethernet) devices support a wide 
range of applications needing a 
fullycustomizable user control interface (UCI). 
Like all Q-SYS products, the TSC Series Gen 3 
integrate seamlessly into a system design and 
take full advantage of drag-and-drop integration 
and robust control engine within Q-SYS to 
provide users with intuitive AV controls for any 
space.

QSC TSC 101-G3 2 3,170.00 6,340.00T

MaxHub ND98CMA
A 4K commercial display, equipped with non-
glare technology and conformal coating - ideal 
for meeting rooms and commercial settings.

ND98CMA 2 7,899.00 15,798.00T

Sennheiser TeamConnect Ceiling 2 - Kit - 
microphone
Clear speech intelligibility has become an 
essential part of modern work styles, especially 
when conferencing with remote participants. 
TeamConnect Ceiling 2's unmistakable 
technology transmits your voice crystal clear to 
remote participants as if they were on the spot.

Sennheiser 
TeamConnect Ceiling 2 

- Kit - microphone

3 4,889.00 14,667.00T

Logitech Tap IP Touch Controller (10.1", 
Graphite)
The graphite Logitech Tap IP Touch Controller 
integrates a one-touch join seamless meeting 
controller into your office conference room for 
easy content sharing. Its 10.1" touchscreen 

952-000085 2 699.00 1,398.00T



Remittance Address:

Nelco Media, Inc. 

PO Box 12301 

SA TX 78212-0301

ACTIVITY SKU QTY RATE AMOUNT

display features an anti-fingerprint, oleophobic 
coating and motion sensor for always-on 
readiness

RCI Wiermold Floor box plates Wiermold Floor box 
plates

1 600.00 600.00T

Spark Plus™ I/O 4K Converter (HDMI)
Spark Plus™ I/O 4K Converter (HDMI)

NSP4KIO 2 995.00 1,990.00T

Chief Proximity Lever Lock Plate for PAC526 & 
PAC527L In-Wall Storage Boxes
Secure your A/V equipment within your 
PAC526 or PAC527L in-wall storage box with 
the Chief Proximity Lever Lock Plate. Its 
universal hole pattern lets you mount small 
devices easily, and it can be snapped in two to 
further customize your mounting options.

PACL2 2 63.20 126.40T

Netgear AV Line M4250 GSM4248UX 40-Port 
Gigabit PoE++ Compliant Managed AV Switch 
with SFP+ (2880W)
Designed with input from industry 
professionals, the AV Line M4250 
GSM4248UX 40-Port Gigabit PoE++ Compliant 
Managed AV Switch from Netgear is 
engineered for 1G AV over IP. Enjoy 40 PoE++ 
compliant rear-facing ports with a 2880W 
budget and pre-configuration for out-of-the-box 
functionality

GSM4248UX-100NAS 1 4,689.00 4,689.00T

Netgear AGM732F GBIC SFP Ethernet 
Transceiver Module
Netgear's AGM732F is a hot pluggable 3.3V 
Small-Form-Factor transceiver module 
designed expressly for high-speed 
communication applications. This RoHS 
Compliant Small Form Factor Pluggable 
Transceiver for Gigabit Ethernet and Fiber 
Channel is able to handle rates of up to 
1.25Gbit/sec. - and it is compliant with the 
Gigabit Ethernet standards, as well as the SFP 
Multisource Agreement (MSA).

AGM732F 2 321.00 642.00T

MIDDLE ATLANTIC UTR1
1SP UNIVERSAL HALF-RACK TRAY

UTR1 2 59.00 118.00T

Belden 10GXW12 Category 6A Cable 500MHz 
4 Pair U/UTP - Black - 1000 Foot
Belden 10GXW12 is the industry's smallest-
diameter Category 6A cable, designed for 
Smart building applications 1000 ft

10GXW12 0101000 2 545.00 1,090.00T

Nelco Media Installation
Nelco Media Installation

Install 12 5,400.00 64,800.00T

Q-SYS Programming
Ricky Q-SYS programming per day

Q-SYS Programming 10 1,995.00 19,950.00T

Nelco Media Workflow Commissioning
Workflow Commissioning, Mike on site for 
Nversion Automation

NMWC 3 1,500.00 4,500.00T



Remittance Address:

Nelco Media, Inc. 

PO Box 12301 

SA TX 78212-0301

ACTIVITY SKU QTY RATE AMOUNT

Travel 1 9,200.00 9,200.00

NMESC 1 60,000.00 60,000.00T

Travel
Travel and Lodging for Team of 4 Engineers for 
12 Days

Nelco Media Extended Service Contract 
Nelco Media Extended Service Contract 
Includes 2 visits per year, for 5 years from 
completion of scope work, to update 
firmware, check workflow and troubleshoot any 
connections. Phone
troubleshooting available 9am-6pm Monday 
through Friday and will be responded
to within an hour during those business hours. 
Also 30 hours will be allotted per
year for any onsite work outside of the 2 
scheduled visits. Any hours beyond that
will be assessed at $150 per hour

4967 TIPS Contract 230105 1 0.00 0.00T

Terms: Pre-Pay 50%, balance due upon completion

Acceptance of Estimate: No work will begin without signed estimate or 

company purchase order

Late Payment: Interest accrues at the rate of 1.5 percent per month or 

18 percent annually on overdue payments.

Ownership: All equipment remains property of Nelco Media, Inc until 

full payment including any late fees are paid in full

SUBTOTAL 809,680.33
DISCOUNT  3% -24,290.41
TAX 0.00
TOTAL $785,389.92

Accepted By Accepted Date



 AI# 12742 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 6. 2. 
08/13/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Budget Ordinance Amendment 1st Reading - Finance: Consider Budget Ordinance Amendment 45,
amending the FY 2023-24 Budget for municipal purposes respecting the Information Technology
Capital Project Fund and the Health Benefits Operating Fund; providing for filing; and providing for a
savings clause.

Item Summary
I. Amend Capital Improvement Project 92578, Enterprise Resource Planning System, and reduce
funding in the amount of $193,806, from $2,500,000 to $2,306,194. Funding will be Health
Benefits Cash.

II. Increase the transfer from the IT Capital Project Fund to the Health Benefits Operating Fund by
$193,806.

Capital Improvement Project 92578 was first appropriated in FY 2018-19 to propose an Enterprise
Resource Planning System (ERP) for employee self-service software to include Human Capital
Management, Timekeeping, Leave Management, Payroll, Finance, and Purchasing. This project was
intended to replace the city's current outdated ERP system. 

Fiscal Impact
This project was originally partially funded with a transfer from the Health Benefits fund.  The
remaining $193,806 will be transferred back to the Health Benefits fund.

Staff/Board Recommending
Cheryl Brock, Interim Chief Financial Officer

Attachments
Budget Amendment 45 







 AI# 12758 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 6. 3. 
08/13/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Ordinance 1st Reading - Right-of-Way: Consider an ordinance abandoning and closing portions of an
underground streetlight cable easement located in Lot 334, Lincoln 16 Addition, City of Lubbock,
Lubbock County, Texas, south of Princeton Street and east of North Clinton Avenue.

Item Summary
The City of Lubbock is in receipt of a request to abandon and close an underground streetlight cable
easement located in Lot 334, Lincoln 16 Addition, south of Princeton Street.
 
The total area of the easement being closed is 189.45 square feet. The proponent desires to close the
easement due to a change in the development of this property. The easement, which is not currently in
use, is no longer needed. There is no charge to close an easement. 
 
All City departments and franchise utility companies are in agreement with the closure.

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager
Michael Keenum, P.E., Division Director of Engineering/City Engineer

Attachments
Ordinance - Section 6, Block JS Lot 334 
GIS Map - Section 6, Block JS Lot 334 







45

320

216

319351

354

334

46

353

335

TR B

333

51

348 332

352 336

331

217

337 321

350

40

349

322347 338

As required by Chapter 2051, Geospatial Data Products of the Government Code, this product is for informational purposes
and may not have been prepared for or be suitable for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes. It does not represent an
on-the-ground survey and represents only the approximate relative location of property boundaries.

Proposed Closure of an
Underground Street Light Cable Easement

Located within Section 6, Block JS

Digital Orthophotography - May 2023

N
 C

LI
N

TO
N

 A
V

E

QUEENS ST

LYNNWOODN
 D

U
RA

N
T 

A
V

E

SPRIN
GFIELD

APARTMENTS

0 100 200 30050
Feet

N ENG
LEW

O
O

D AVE

N
 D

O
V

ER
 A

V
E

LEHIGH ST

PRINCETON ST

Proposed Closure of an
Underground Street Light Cable Easement

~189.45 sq ft

MARSHAL ST

N
 C

O
LT

O
N

 A
V

E

N
 C

H
IC

A
G

O
 A

V
E

LIN
COLN 16

N
 C

LI
N

TO
N

 A
V

E

N
 C

H
IC

A
G

O
 A

V
E

KEMPER ST



 AI# 12759 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 6. 4. 
08/13/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Right-of-Way: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to accept, for and on behalf of
the City of Lubbock, one (1) street, public use, and right-of-way deed, and all related documents, in
connection with certain real property located in Section 10, Block JS, Lubbock County, Texas (Parcel
20), on the east side of Upland Avenue, north of 19th Street and south of 18th Street, to be utilized for
the Upland Avenue: 4th Street to 19th Street 2022 Road Bond Project.

Item Summary
The Lubbock Area Baptist Association is dedicating right-of-way to the City of Lubbock to be utilized
for roadway improvements on the Upland Avenue: 4th Street to 19th Street Capital Improvements 2022
Bond Project on the east side of Upland Avenue, north of 19th Street, south of 18th Street.
 
The proponents will dedicate a 3,150 square feet tract of land for street right-of-way purpose, subject to
final approval by the City Council and approval of title.

Fiscal Impact
The cost of the land acquisition is $28,350 plus closing costs. This acquisition is funded in Capital
Improvements Project 92812, Upland Avenue: 4th Street to 19th Street – 22B.

Staff/Board Recommending
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager
Michael G. Keenum, P.E., Division Director of Engineering/City Engineer 

Attachments
Parcel 20 - Resolution 
Parcel 20 - Dedication Deed 
Parcel 20 - GIS Map 
CIP Detail 
Budget Detail 













As required by Chapter 2051, Geospatial Data Products of the Government Code, this product is for informational purposes
and may not have been prepared for or be suitable for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes. It does not represent an
on-the-ground survey and represents only the approximate relative location of property boundaries.

Proposed Street Deed Dedication
Located within Section 10, Block JS

Digital Orthophotography - May 2023

SPRIN
GFIELD

APARTMENTS

0 100 20050
Feet

CARAVAN

CARAVAN

Proposed Street Deed Dedication
3,150 sq ft

U
PL

A
N

D
 A

V
E

U
PL

A
N

D
 A

V
E

19TH ST

FALCON



Project Scope

Upland Avenue from 4th Street to 19th Street is currently  a two-lane paved road and is designated in the  2018
Thoroughfare  Master Plan to become a five - lane modified principal ar terial roadway.  Continued growth in northwest
Lubbock has increased traffic demands along the  north Upland Avenue street corridor from 4th Street to 19th Street.  The
roadway contract will design and build three-lanes at  the  ult imate  configurat ion of the  fully  designed five  lane
thoroughfare .

Project Justi�cation

On November 8, 2022, Lubbock voters approved issuance of a $200 million street improvements bond
package for the purpose of providing permanent public improvements. The funding will acquire,
construct and reconstruct street improvements, including but not limited to sidewalks, utility line
relocations and traffic signalization, necessary and related storm drainage facilities, and the
acquisition of land and rights-of-way for the full width dedication.

Project Highlights Project History

Council Priorities Addressed:
Public Safety
Community Improvement
Growth and Development

FY 2022-23 $3,200,000 was appropriated by
Ord. 2022-O0169

Project Dates Project Location

Design Start Date: 02/2023
Design Completion: 08/2025
Bid for Constuction:10/2025
Award Construction: 12/2025
Project Completion: 06/2027

Upland Ave - 4th Street to 19th Street

Project Appropriations

Appropriation to Date 2024 - 25 Budget 2025 - 26 Budget 2026 - 27 Budget 2027 - 28 Budget 2028 - 29 Budget 2029 - 30 Budget

Construction $3,200,000 $11,500,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL $3,200,000 $11,500,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Project Funding

Funding to Date 2024 - 25 Budget 2025 - 26 Budget 2026 - 27 Budget 2027 - 28 Budget 2028 - 29 Budget 2029 - 30 Budget

General Obligation Bonds $3,200,000 $11,500,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL $3,200,000 $11,500,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Operating Budget Impacts

Description 2024-25 2025-26 2026-27 2027-28 2028-29 2029-30 Total

No Impact Anticipated $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

CIP 92812CIP 92812 Upland Avenue from 4th Street to Upland Avenue from 4th Street to
19th Street - 22B19th Street - 22B

New Roadway InfrastructureNew Roadway Infrastructure

Project Manager: Project Manager: Bailey RatcliffeBailey Ratcliffe - Engineering - Engineering



Capital Project Number:
Capital Project Name:

Encumbered/Expended Budget
COL Staff Time 12,163$                    
Contract 17113 with Half Associates, Inc. for Design Services 949,700                    
Parcel 6 - Land Acquisition 24,740                      
Parcel 7 - Land Acquisition 13,633                      
Parcel 8 - Land Acquisition 54,487                      
Parcel 13 - Land Acquisition 51,018                      
Parcel 16 - Land Acquisition 63,785                      
Parcel 21 - Land Acquisition 36,621                      

Agenda Item August 13, 2024
Parcel 20 - Land Acquisition 28,350                      

Encumbered/Expended To Date 1,234,497                 

Estimated Cost for Remaining Appropriation
Upland Avenue: 4th St to 19th St - 22B Construction 1,965,503                 

Remaining Appropriation 1,965,503                 

Total Appropriation 3,200,000$               

City of Lubbock

92812
Upland Avenue: 4th St to 19th St - 22B

Capital Project 
Project Cost Detail

August 13, 2024



 AI# 12746 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 6. 5. 
08/13/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Right-of-Way: Consider a resolution authorizing the mayor to execute a Street Use
License and/or City Public Grounds Monitor Well Permit, and all related documents, by and between the
City of Lubbock and the Air Force Civil Engineer Center, and located in the right-of-way of 25th
Street, west of Inler Avenue.

Item Summary
The Air Force Civil Engineer Center (AFCEC) is requesting a Street Use License for the purpose of a
Groundwater Monitoring Well in the right-of-way of 25th Street west of Inler Avenue.
 
The term of the license is for 5 years and shall be automatically extended for successive 5-year terms not
to exceed 20 years, unless either party shall give written notice of termination to the other party. The
AFCEC is granted this license at no cost, because the AFCEC is a government entity and provides public
benefit to the citizens of the City of Lubbock.

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager
Michael G. Keenum, P.E., Division Director of Engineering/City Engineer 

Attachments
Res - 25th St. and Inler Ave. 
SUL - 25th St. and Inler Ave. 
GIS Map - 25th St. and Inler Ave. 

















17 12

11D 11E 11F

As required by Chapter 2051, Geospatial Data Products of the Government Code, this product is for informational purposes
and may not have been prepared for or be suitable for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes. It does not represent an
on-the-ground survey and represents only the approximate relative location of property boundaries.

Proposed Groundwater Monitoring License/ Permit
Located within Section 6, Block D6

Digital Orthophotography - May 2023

SPRIN
GFIELD

APARTMENTS

0 100 200 300 400 50050
Feet

CYPRESS

RANCH

ENERGY CIR
CLE

ENERGY CIR
CLE

K
EN

W
O

O
D

 A
V

E

Proposed Groundwater Monitoring
License/ Permit

IN
LE

R 
A

V
E

IN
LE

R 
A

V
E

19TH AND

MACKEY

25TH ST

25TH ST

CYPRESS

RANCH

26TH ST

16TH ST

G
A

RL
A

N
D

 A
V

E

K
EL

SE
Y

 A
V

E

JA
SO

N
 A

V
E



 AI# 12737 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 6. 6. 
08/13/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Ordinance 1st Reading - Engineering: Consider an ordinance amending Articles 39.04 and 39.07 of
the Code of Ordinances of the City of Lubbock, by adding Articles 39.07.046, and amending Sections
39.04.012, 39.04.013, and 39.07.020, to allow for certain building permits to be approved while required
infrastructure is constructed in parallel. 

Item Summary
The Code of Ordinances of the City of Lubbock, Section 39.04, prohibits the City from approving a
Building Permit prior to completion and acceptance of all required infrastructure. This proposed
amendment would allow Building Permits for certain commercial projects to be released while
infrastructure is completed in parallel with other building activities. In lieu of requiring the infrastructure
to be built, a bond can be provided, allowing construction of both the building and infrastructure to occur
simultaneously.  This amendment would apply to developments with four (4) or fewer commercial
tracts.  Ultimately, this amendment allows for more efficient construction sequencing. 

 

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager
Michael G. Keenum, P.E., CFM, Division Director of Engineering/City Engineer

Attachments
Ordinance 



ORDINANCE NO.___________

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT CODE
(ORDINANCE NO. 2023-00054), AMENDING SECTIONS 39.04.012.f, 39.04.013.g, AND
39.07.020.d.3.D, AND ADDING SECTION 39.07.046 REGARDING BUILDING PERMIT
ISSUANCE IN CONJUNCTION WITH PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT AND TO
ALLOW PARALLEL CONSTRUCTION OF CERTAIN IMPROVEMENTS;
PROVIDING A PENALTY; PROVIDING A SAVINGS CLAUSE; AND PROVIDING
FOR PUBLICATION.

WHEREAS, since the adoption of the Unified Development Code (“UDC”) of the City
of Lubbock, Ordinance No. 2023-00054, city staff has been receiving feedback from the
community regarding various changes that were adopted as part of the UDC and the effect some
of the changes have in practice as new development under the UDC is taking place; and

WHEREAS, city staff finds that for certain commercial construction projects, there
should be an option to obtain a building permit at the same time infrastructure improvements to
support the development are being constructed; and

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Lubbock finds it in best interest of the
citizens of Lubbock to adopt the following amendments to the UDC herein to allow for parallel
construction of certain improvements; NOW THEREFORE:

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LUBBOCK:

SECTION 1. THAT Section 39.04.012.f of the UDC, City of Lubbock, Texas is hereby
amended as follows:

f. Building Permit. A building permit shall not be issued on a platted lot or tract, until such time
as the City Engineer issues notification described in Section 39.07.020.d, Platting, or a Waiver,
Delay, or Parallel Construction has been authorized by the City Engineer in accordance with
Section 39.07.044, Waiver of Improvements, Section 39.07.045, Delay of Improvements, or
Section 39.07.046, Parallel Construction Alternative.

SECTION 2. THAT Section 39.04.013.g of the UDC, City of Lubbock, Texas is hereby
amended as follows:

g. Building Permit. A Building Permit shall not be issued on a platted lot or tract, until such
time as the City Engineer issues notification described in Section 39.07.020.d, Platting, or a
Waiver, Delay, or Parallel Construction has been authorized by the City Engineer in accordance
with Section 39.07.044, Waiver of Improvements, Section 39.07.045, Delay of Improvements.,
or Section 39.07.046, Parallel Construction Alternative

SECTION 3. THAT Section 39.07.020.d.3.D of the UDC, City of Lubbock, Texas is
hereby amended as follows:



D. Unless an exception to platting is authorized by Section 39.04.002, Applicability, or
unless relief is granted in accordance with Section 39.07.044, Waiver of Improvements,
or Section 3 9.07.045, Delay of Improvements, or Section 39.07.046, Parallel Construction
Alternative, the Building Official shall not issue a Building Permit, as required by the
City’s Building Code, for any principal structure unless:

1. The subject property is part of a plat recorded with the Lubbock County Clerk;

2. The required impact fee has been paid; and

3. A notification from the City Engineer has been issued stating:

a. Water and wastewater

i. Water and Wastewater infrastructure have been accepted by City
for maintenance and the subdivider has submitted accurate as-built
drawings of such infrastructure; or

ii. A valid letter of credit or bond is on file for the required water and
sewer infrastructure if a request for a Parallel Construction
Alternative has been granted in accordance with Section 39.07.046,
Parallel Construction Alternative; and

b. Curb and gutter

i. Curb and gutter have been constructed and completed according to
the City’s Engineering Minimum Design Standards and
Specifications; or

ii. A valid letter of credit or bond is on file for the required paving and
drainage infrastructure if a request for a Parallel Construction
Alternative has been granted in accordance with Section 3 9.07.046,
Parallel Construction Alternative; and

c. An all-weather road has been constructed that meets the City’s Fire Code; and

d. The applicant has provided a letter of credit to the City Engineer in an amount
adequate to complete the required paving work, should the applicant fail to do
so.

SECTION 4. THAT the UDC, City of Lubbock, Texas is hereby amended by adding a section
that shall read as follows:

Section 39.07.046 Parallel Construction Alternative

Page 2 of 5



a. Generally. In addition to the applicable required procedures in Division 7.1, Purpose,
Applicability, and Common Review Procedures, the following shall apply to the Parallel
Construction Alternative.

b. Purpose. Parallel construction of water, wastewater, or paving may be requested, subject to
the requirements of this Section. The purpose of a Parallel Construction Alternative is to allow
more efficient construction of infrastructure installation required in Sections 39.04.005, Street
Network and Design, 39.04.012, Public Water Systems, and 39.04.013, Public Wastewater
Systems, specifically as such Sections relate to extending new or improving existing water or
wastewater lines or streets. A Parallel Construction Alternative request may only be
considered concurrently with a Preliminary Plat, or Final Plat, or Replat. The subdivider shall
include as part of the Plat application the reason(s) they should be eligible for the Alternative
in accordance with this Section. Failure to submit such information shall render the Plat
application incomplete.

c. Eligibility. A subdivider may only request the Parallel Construction Alternative for:

1. A Plat application that was filed on or after October 1, 2023;

2. Plats that contain only commercial tracts, and only contain four commercial tracts
or less; and

3. Granting of the Parallel Construction Alternative would not otherwise negatively
impact the design of the subdivision or the ability to subdivide adjacent sites in the
future.

d. Bond-in-Lieu of Required Improvements.

1. Installation Guarantee. If the subdivider receives approval of the Parallel
Construction Alternative request, he or she shall provide an installation guarantee
in the form of a letter of credit or bond for the amount of the improvement(s) and
in a form approved by the City Attorney. The letter of credit or bond must be
received and accepted by the City prior to issuance of Building Permit.

2. Calling the Installation Guarantee. If the subdivider does not install, or the City
does not accept, the infrastructure that is the subject of the Parallel Construction
Alternative within two years after approval of the Final Plat recording date, then
the City Engineer may request the installation guarantee from the guarantor so that
the improvements may be paid for and installed. An extension may be granted at
the discretion of the City Engineer.

e. Specific Decision Criteria. In determining whether to approve or deny a request for the
Parallel Construction Alternative, the applicable review bodies shall consider the applicable
common decision criteria in Section 39.07.006, Common Decision Criteria, and the
following:

Page 3 of 5



1. Eligibility. The subject property is eligible for a Parallel Construction Alternative
based on the provisions in Subsection c., Eligibility, above; and

2. Negative Impact. Granting of the Parallel Construction Alternative would not
otherwise negatively impact the design of the subdivision or the ability to
subdivide adjacent sites in the future.

f. Affirmative Findings. In order to approve a request for the Parallel Construction Alternative,
the City Engineer shall make affirmative findings on all of the applicable decision criteria.

g. Building Permit. If a request for the Parallel Construction Alternative is granted, a building
permit may be issued prior to the infrastructure being accepted by the City. If at any time the
subdivider abandons work on infrastructure required in Sections 39.04.005, Street Network
and Design, 39.04.012, Public Water Systems, and 39.04.013, Public Wastewater Systems,
requests for Building Permit Inspections will be denied until the subdivider resumes work on
infrastructure. Under no circumstances shall a Temporary or Final Certificate of Occupancy
be granted until such time as all infrastructure required in Sections 39.04.005, Street Network
and Design, 39.04.012, Public Water Systems, and 39.04.013, Public Wastewater Systems
has been accepted by the City.

h. Appeal. Any party aggrieved by or alleging error in the final decision of a Parallel Construction
Alternative request may appeal to the Planning and Zoning Commission.

SECTION 5. THAT a violation of any provision of this Ordinance shall be deemed a
misdemeanor punishable in accordance with state law and Section 1.01.004 of the Code of
Ordinances of the City of Lubbock.

SECTION 6. THAT should any paragraph, sentence, clause, phrase or word of this
Ordinance be declared unconstitutional or invalid for any reason, the remainder of this Ordinance
shall not be affected thereby.

SECTION 7. THAT the City Secretary is hereby authorized to cause publication of the
descriptive caption of this Ordinance as an alternative method provided by law.

AND IT IS SO ORDERED.

Passed by the City Council on first reading on

_________________________________

Passed by the City Council on second reading on

____________________________

MARK W. MCBRAYER, MAYOR

Page 4 of 5



ATTEST:

Courtney Paz, City Secretary

APPROVED AS TO CONTENT:

Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

clii Leisure, Senior Assistant City Attorney

Ccdocs ://Ordinance Amending UDC Parafl ci Construction
7.30.24

PageS of 5



 AI# 12744 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 6. 7. 
08/13/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Engineering: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute Professional Services
Agreement, Contract 18233, with Freese and Nichols, Inc., for final design, bid, and construction phase
services for the 66th Street Drainage Channel Improvements Project.

Item Summary
The intersection of 66th Street and Upland Avenue has historically flooded during small rain events.
This project will over excavate an existing Playa Lake and improve and widen the channel along
66th Street, ultimately removing several properties from the existing floodplain.  

Staff conducted contract negotiations with Freese and Nichols, Inc., after establishing them as qualified
for providing construction phase engineering services for the 66th Street Drainage Channel
Improvements Project. Fair and reasonable hourly rates were agreed upon for a total contract amount of
$492,003, with a 540-calendar day contract duration.

Fiscal Impact
Contract 18233 in the amount of $492,003, is funded in Capital Improvements Project 92654, Upland
Ave and 66th St Playa Drainage Improvements.

Staff/Board Recommending
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager
Michael G. Keenum, P.E., Division Director of Engineering/City Engineer

Attachments
Resolution 
Contract 18233 
Location Map 
CIP Spreadsheet 
CIP Detail 





Page 1 of 11 

 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 

 

STATE OF TEXAS § 

COUNTY OF LUBBOCK § 

This Professional Service Agreement (“Agreement”) Contract No. 18233 is entered into this ___ 

day of _______________, 2024, is by and between the City of Lubbock (the "City"), a Texas home rule 

municipal corporation, and Freese and Nichols, Inc. (the” Engineer”), a Texas corporation. 

WITNESSETH 

WHEREAS, The City desires to contract with the Engineer to provide professional services for 

Final Design, Bid and Construction Phase Services for 66th Street Drainage Channel Project, (the 

“Activities”); and 

WHEREAS, the Engineer has a professional staff experienced and is qualified to provide 

professional engineering services related to Activities, and will provide the services, as defined below, for 

the price provided herein, said price stipulated by the City and the Engineer to be a fair and reasonable 

price; and 

WHEREAS, the City desires to contract with the Engineer to provide professional services 

related to the Activities, and Engineer desires to provide the Services related to same. 

NOW THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the terms, covenants and conditions set forth in 

this Agreement, the City and the Engineer hereby agree as follows: 

ARTICLE I. TERM 

The term of this Agreement commences on the Effective Date and continues without interruption 

for a term of _540_ calendar days. If the Engineer determines that additional time is required to complete 

the Services, the City Engineer, may, but is not obligated to, in his or her discretion, execute an agreement 

to grant up to an additional six (6) months of time so long as the amount of the consideration does not 

increase. An amendment to this Agreement resulting in an increase in the amount of the consideration must 

be approved by the City acting through its governing body. 

 

 



Page 2 of 11 

 

 

ARTICLE II. SERVICES AND COMPENSATION 

A. The Engineer shall conduct all activities, and within such timeframes, as set forth on Exhibit 

“A”, attached hereto (the “Services”). 

B. The Engineer shall receive as consideration to be paid for the performance of the Services, in 

an amount not to exceed $492,003, as set forth in Exhibit “B”. 

ARTICLE III. TERMINATION 

A. General. The City may terminate this Agreement, for any reason or convenience, upon thirty 

(30) days written notice to the Engineer. In the event this Agreement is so terminated, the City shall only 

pay the Engineer for services actually performed by the Engineer up to the date the Engineer is deemed to 

have received notice of termination, as provided herein. 

B. Termination and Remedies. In the event the Engineer breaches any term and/or provision of this 

Agreement, the City shall be entitled to exercise any right or remedy available to it by this Agreement, at 

law, equity, or otherwise, including without limitation, termination of this Agreement and assertion of an 

action for damages and/or injunctive relief. The exercise of any right or remedy shall not preclude the 

concurrent or subsequent exercise of any right or remedy and all rights and remedies shall be cumulative. 

ARTICLE IV. NON - ARBITRATION 

The City reserves the right to exercise any right or remedy available to it by law, contract, equity, 

or otherwise, including without limitation, the right to seek any and all forms of relief in a court of 

competent jurisdiction. Further, the City shall not be subject to any arbitration process prior to exercising 

its unrestricted right to seek judicial remedy. The remedies set forth herein are cumulative and not exclusive, 

and may be exercised concurrently. To the extent of any conflict between this provision and another 

provision in, or related to, this Agreement, this provision shall control. 

ARTICLE V. REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES 

A. Existence. The Engineer is a corporation duly organized, validly existing, and in good standing 

under the laws of the State of Texas and is qualified to carry on its business in the State of Texas. 

B. Corporate Power. The Engineer has the corporate power to enter into and perform this 

Agreement and all other activities contemplated hereby.  



Page 3 of 11 

 

C. Authorization. Execution, delivery, and performance of this Agreement and the activities 

contemplated hereby have been duly and validly authorized by all the requisite corporate action on the part 

of the Engineer. This Agreement constitutes legal, valid, and binding obligations of the Engineer and is 

enforceable in accordance with the terms thereof. 

D. Engineer. The Engineer maintains a professional staff and employs, as needed, other qualified 

specialists experienced in providing the Services, and is familiar with all laws, rules, and regulations, both 

state and federal, including, without limitation the applicable laws, regarding the Activities contemplated 

hereby.  

E. Performance. The Engineer will and shall conduct all activities contemplated by this Agreement 

in accordance with the standard of care, skill and diligence normally provided by a professional person in 

performance of similar professional services, and comply with all applicable laws, rules, and regulations, 

both state and federal, relating to professional services, as contemplated hereby. 

F. Use of Copyrighted Material. The Engineer warrants that any materials provided by the Engineer 

for use by City pursuant to this Agreement shall not contain any proprietary material owned by any other 

party that is protected under the Copyright Act or any other law, statute, rule, order, regulation, ordinance 

or contractual obligation relating to the use or reproduction of materials. The Engineer shall be solely 

responsible for ensuring that any materials provided by the Engineer pursuant to this Agreement satisfy this 

requirement and the Engineer agrees to indemnify and hold City harmless from all liability or loss caused 

to City or to which City is exposed on account of the Engineer’s failure to perform this duty. 

ARTICLE VI. SCOPE OF WORK 

The Engineer shall accomplish the following: Professional Services related to the Services, as 

provided in Exhibit “A”, attached hereto and made a part hereof. 

ARTICLE VII. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR STATUS 

The Engineer and the City agree that the Engineer shall perform the duties under this Agreement 

as an independent contractor and shall be considered as independent contractor under this Agreement and/or 

in its activities hereunder for all purposes. The Engineer has the sole discretion to determine the manner in 

which the Services are to be performed. During the performance of the Services under this Agreement, the 

Engineer and the Engineer’s employees and/or sub-consultants, will not be considered, for any purpose, 

employees or agents of the City within the meaning or the application of any federal, state or local law or 

regulation, including without limitation, laws, rules or regulations regarding or related to unemployment 

insurance, old age benefits, workers compensation, labor, personal injury or taxes of any kind. 

 



Page 4 of 11 

 

 

ARTICLE VIII. INSURANCE 

The Engineer shall procure and carry, at its sole cost and expense through the life of this Agreement, 

except as otherwise provided herein, insurance protection as hereinafter specified, in form and substance 

satisfactory to the City, carried with an insurance company authorized to transact business in the state of 

Texas, covering all aspects and risks of loss of all operations in connection with this Agreement, including 

without limitation, the indemnity obligations set forth herein. The Engineer shall obtain and maintain in 

full force and effect during the term of this Agreement, and shall cause each approved subcontractor or sub-

consultant of the Engineer to obtain and maintain in full force and effect during the term of this Agreement, 

commercial general liability, professional liability and automobile liability coverage for non-owned and 

hired vehicles with insurance carriers admitted to do business in the state of Texas. The insurance 

companies must carry a Best’s Rating of A-VII or better. Except for Professional Liability, the policies will 

be written on an occurrence basis, subject to the following minimum limits of liability: 

Commercial General Liability: 

Per Occurrence Single Limit: $1,000,000 

General Aggregate Limit: $2,000,000 

Professional Liability: 

Combined Single Limit: $2,000,000 

Automobile Liability: 

Combined Single Limit for any auto: $1,000,000 Per Occurrence 

Employer’s Liability: 

Per Occurrence Single Limit: $1,000,000 

Worker’s Compensation 

Per Occurrence Single Limit: $500,000 

The Engineer shall further cause any approved subcontractor or sub-consultant to procure and 

carry, during the term of this Agreement, the insurance coverage required of Engineer herein, including 

without limitation, Professional Liability coverage, protecting the City against losses caused by the 

professional negligence of the approved subcontractor or sub-consultant. The City shall be listed as a 

primary and noncontributory additional insured with respect to the Automobile Liability and Commercial 

General Liability and shall be granted a waiver of subrogation under those policies. The Engineer shall 

provide a Certificate of Insurance to the City as evidence of coverage.  

The Certificate shall provide 30 days’ notice of cancellation. A copy of the additional insured 

endorsement and waiver of subrogation attached to the policy shall be included in the Certificate. The 

Engineer shall elect to obtain worker’s compensation coverage pursuant to Section 406.002 of the Texas 



Page 5 of 11 

 

Labor Code. Further, the Engineer shall maintain said coverage throughout the term of this Agreement and 

shall comply with all provisions of Title 5 of the Texas Labor Code to ensure that the Engineer maintains 

said coverage. The Engineer may maintain Occupational Accident and Disability Insurance in lieu of 

Worker’s Compensation. In either event, the policy must be endorsed to include a waiver of subrogation in 

favor of the City. If at any time during the life of the Agreement or any extension hereof, the Engineer fails 

to maintain the required insurance in full force and effect, the Engineer shall be in breach hereof and all 

work under the Agreement shall be discontinued immediately. 

Notwithstanding anything contained herein to the contrary, the professional liability policy shall be 

maintained at the Engineer’s sole cost and expense. The retroactive date shall be no later than the 

commencement of the performance of this Agreement and the discovery period (possibly through tail 

coverage) shall be no less than 10 years after the completion of the Services provided for in this Agreement. 

The provisions of this Article VIII shall survive the termination or expiration of this Agreement. 

ARTICLE IX. EMPLOYMENT OF AGENTS/RETAINING OF CONSULTANTS 

The Engineer may employ or retain consultants, contractors, or third parties (any of which are 

referred to herein as “Sub-consultant”), to perform certain duties of Engineer, as set forth on Exhibit [insert 

correct value], attached hereto, under this Agreement, provided that the City approves the retaining of Sub-

consultants. The Engineer is at all times responsible to the City to perform the Services as provided in this 

Agreement and the Engineer is in no event relieved of any obligation under this Agreement upon retainage 

of any approved Sub-consultant. Any agent and/or Sub-consultant retained and/or employed by the 

Engineer shall be required by the Engineer to carry, for the protection and benefit of the City and the 

Engineer and naming said third parties as additional insureds, insurance as described above required to be 

carried by the Engineer in this Agreement.   

The Engineer represents that such services are either under applicable value thresholds or are 

otherwise exempt from notice and/or bid requirements under Texas Law. 

ARTICLE X. CONFIDENTIALITY 

The Engineer shall retain all information received from or concerning the City and the City's 

business in strictest confidence and shall not reveal such information to third parties without prior written 

consent of the City, unless otherwise required by law. 

ARTICLE XI. INDEMNITY 

THE ENGINEER SHALL INDEMNIFY AND SAVE HARMLESS THE CITY OF LUBBOCK 

AND ITS ELECTED OFFICIALS, OFFICERS, AGENTS, AND EMPLOYEES FROM ALL SUITS, 

ACTIONS, LOSSES, DAMAGES, CLAIMS, OR LIABILITY OF ANY KIND, CHARACTER, TYPE, 



Page 6 of 11 

 

OR DESCRIPTION, INCLUDING WITHOUT LIMITING THE GENERALITY OF THE FOREGOING, 

ALL EXPENSES OF LITIGATION, COURT COSTS, AND ATTORNEY'S FEES, FOR INJURY OR 

DEATH TO ANY PERSON, OR INJURY TO ANY PROPERTY, RECEIVED OR SUSTAINED BY 

ANY PERSON OR PERSONS OR PROPERTY, TO THE EXTENT ARISING OUT OF, RELATED TO 

OR OCCASIONED BY, THE NEGLIGENT ACTS OF THE ENGINEER, ITS AGENTS, EMPLOYEES, 

AND/OR SUBCONSULTANTS, RELATED TO THE PERFORMANCE, OPERATIONS OR 

OMISSIONS UNDER THIS AGREEMENT AND/OR THE USE OR OCCUPATION OF CITY OWNED 

PROPERTY. THE INDEMNITY OBLIGATION PROVIDED HEREIN SHALL SURVIVE THE 

EXPIRATION OR TERMINATION OF THIS AGREEMENT. 

ARTICLE XII. COMPLIANCE WITH APPLICABLE LAWS 

The Engineer shall comply with all applicable federal, state and local laws, statutes, ordinances, 

rules and regulations relating, in any way, manner or form, to the activities under this Agreement, and any 

amendments thereto. 

ARTICLE XIII. NOTICE 

 A. General. Whenever notice from the Engineer to the City or the City to the Engineer is required 

or permitted by this Agreement and no other method of notice is provided, such notice shall be given by 

(1) actual delivery of the written notice to the other party by hand (in which case such notice shall be 

effective upon delivery); (2) facsimile (in which case such notice shall be effective upon delivery); or (3) 

by depositing the written notice in the United States mail, properly addressed to the other party at the 

address provided in this article, registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, in which case such 

notice shall be effective on the third business day after such notice is so deposited. 

B.  Engineer’s Address.  The Engineer’s address and numbers for the purposes of notice are: 

Freese and Nichols, Inc. 
Heather R. Keister, P.E., CFM 
1500 Broadway Street, Suite 1150 
Lubbock, Texas 79401 
Telephone: 806.686.2706 
Email: Heather.Keister@freese.com 
 
 C. City's Address. The City's address and numbers for the purposes of notice are: 

Zoltan Fekete, P.E. 
City of Lubbock 
P.0. Box 2000 
1314 Avenue K  
Lubbock, Texas 79457 
Telephone: 806.775.3317 
Email: zfekete@mylubbock.us 
 



Page 7 of 11 

 

 
 

D. Change of Address. Either party may change its address or numbers for purposes of notice by 

giving written notice to the other party as provided herein, referring specifically to this Agreement, and 

setting forth such new address or numbers. The address or numbers shall become effective on the 15th day 

after such notice is effective. 

ARTICLE XIV. CITY-PROVIDED DATA AND RESPONSIBILITIES 

 Provision of Data.  The City shall furnish the Engineer non-confidential studies, reports and other 

available data in the possession of the City pertinent to the Engineer’s Services, so long as the City is 

entitled to rely on such studies, reports and other data for the performance of the Engineer’s Services under 

this Agreement (the “Provided Data”). The Engineer shall be entitled to use and rely, so long as such 

reliance is reasonable, upon all such Provided Data. 

ARTICLE XV. MISCELLANEOUS 

A. Captions. The captions for the articles and sections in this Agreement are inserted in this 

Agreement strictly for the parties' convenience in identifying the provisions to this Agreement and shall not 

be given any effect in construing this Agreement. 

B. Audit. The Engineer shall provide access to its corporate books and records to the City. The City 

may audit, at its expense and during normal business hours, the Engineer’s books and records with respect 

to this Agreement between the Engineer and the City. 

C. Records. The Engineer shall maintain records that are necessary to substantiate the services 

provided by the Engineer. 

D. Assignability. The Engineer may not assign this Agreement without the prior written approval 

of the City. 

E. Successor and Assigns. This Agreement binds and inures to the benefit of the City and the 

Engineer, and in the case of the City, its respective successors, legal representatives, and assigns, and in the 

case of the Engineer, its permitted successors and assigns. 

F. Construction and Venue.  

THIS AGREEMENT SHALL BE GOVERNED BY AND CONSTRUED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE 

LAWS OF THE STATE OF TEXAS. THIS AGREEMENT IS PERFORMABLE IN LUBBOCK 

COUNTY, TEXAS. THE PARTIES HERETO HEREBY IRREVOCABLY CONSENT TO THE SOLE 

AND EXCLUSIVE JURISDICTION AND VENUE OF THE COURTS OF COMPETENT 



Page 8 of 11 

 

JURISDICTION OF THE STATE OF TEXAS, COUNTY OF LUBBOCK, FOR THE PURPOSES OF 

ALL LEGAL PROCEEDINGS ARISING OUT OF OR RELATING TO THIS AGREEMENT OR THE 

ACTIONS THAT ARE CONTEMPLATED HEREBY. 

G. Severability. If any provision of this Agreement is ever held to be invalid or ineffective by any 

court of competent jurisdiction with respect to any person or circumstance, the remainder of this Agreement 

and the application of such provision to persons and/or circumstances other than those with respect to which 

it is held invalid or ineffective shall not be affected thereby. 

H. Amendment. No amendment, modification, or alteration of the terms of this Agreement shall be 

binding unless such amendment, modification, or alteration is in writing, dated subsequent to this 

Agreement, and duly authorized and executed by the Engineer and the City. 

I. Entire Agreement. This Agreement, including Exhibits “A” through “B” attached hereto, contains 

the entire agreement between the City and the Engineer, and there are no other written or oral promises, 

conditions, warranties, or representations relating to or affecting the matters contemplated herein.  

J. No Joint Enterprise. Nothing contained herein shall be construed to imply a joint venture, joint 

enterprise, partnership or principal – agent relationship between the Engineer and the City. 

K. Documents Owned by City. Any and all documents, drawings and specifications prepared by 

Engineer as part of the Services hereunder, shall become the property of the City when the Engineer has 

been compensated as set forth in Article II, above. The Engineer shall make copies of any and all work 

products for its files.  

L. Notice of Waiver. A waiver by either the City or the Engineer of a breach of this Agreement 

must be in writing and duly authorized to be effective. In the event either party shall execute and deliver 

such waiver, such waiver shall not affect the waiving party’s rights with respect to any other or subsequent 

breach. 

M. Third Party Activities. Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed to provide any rights or 

benefits whatsoever to any party other than the City and the Engineer. 

N. Non-Appropriation. All funds for payment by the City under this Agreement are subject to the 

availability of an annual appropriation for this purpose by the City.  In the event of non-appropriation of 

funds by the City Council of the City of Lubbock for the services provided under the Agreement, the City 

will terminate the Agreement, without termination charge or other liability, on the last day of the then-

current fiscal year or when the appropriation made for the then-current year for the services covered by this 

Agreement is spent, whichever event occurs first (the “Non-Appropriation Date”).  If at any time funds are 

not appropriated for the continuance of this Agreement, cancellation shall be accepted by the Engineer on 



Page 9 of 11 

 

thirty (30) days prior written notice, but failure to give such notice shall be of no effect and the City shall 

not be obligated under this Agreement beyond the Non-Appropriation Date. 

O. Contracts with Companies Engaged in Business with Iran, Sudan, or Foreign Terrorist 

Organization Prohibited.  Pursuant to Section 2252.152 of the Texas Government Code, prohibits the City 

from entering into a contract with a vendor that is identified by The Comptroller as a company known to 

have contracts with or provide supplies or service with Iran, Sudan or a foreign terrorist organization 

P. No Boycott of Israel.  Pursuant to Section 2271.002 of the Texas Government Code, a) This 

section applies only to a contract that: (1) is between a governmental entity and a company with 10 or more 

full-time employees; and (2) has a value of $100,000 or more that is to be paid wholly or partly from public 

funds of the governmental entity. (b) A governmental entity may not enter into a contract with a company 

for goods or services unless the contract contains a written verification from the company that it: (1) does 

not boycott Israel; and (2) will not boycott Israel during the term of the contract. 

Q. Texas Government Code 2274. By entering into this Agreement, Contractor verifies that: (1) it 

does not, and will not for the duration  of  the  contract,  have  a  practice,  policy,  guidance,  or  directive  

that  discriminates against a firearm entity or firearm trade association or (2) the verification required by 

Section 2274.002 of the Texas Government Code does not apply to the contract.  If Contractor is a company 

with 10 or more full-time employees and if this Agreement has a value of at least $100,000 or more, 

Contractor verifies that, pursuant to Texas Government Code Chapter 2274, it does not have a practice, 

policy, guidance, or directive that discriminates against a firearm entity or firearm trade association; and 

will not discriminate during the term of the contract against a firearm entity or firearm trade association. 

R. Contractor represents and warrants that: (1) it does not, and will not for the duration of the 

contract, boycott energy companies or (2) the verification required by Section 2274.002 of the Texas 

Government Code does not apply to the contract.  If Contractor is a company with 10 or more full-time 

employees and if this Agreement has a value of at least $100,000 or more, Contractor verifies that, pursuant 

to Texas Government Code Chapter 2274, it does not boycott energy companies; and will not boycott 

energy companies during the term of the Agreement. This verification is not required for an agreement 

where a governmental entity determines that these requirements are inconsistent with the governmental 

entity’s constitutional or statutory duties related to the issuance, incurrence, or management of debt 

obligations or the deposit, custody, management, borrowing, or investment of funds. 

S. Texas Public Information Act.  The requirements of Subchapter J, Chapter 552, Government 

Code, may apply to this contract and the contractor or vendor agrees that the contract can be terminated if 

the contractor or vendor knowingly or intentionally fails to comply with a requirement of that subchapter. 

To the extent Subchapter J, Chapter 552, Government Code applies to this agreement, Contractor agrees 

to:  (1) preserve all contracting information related to the contract as provided by the records retention 



Page 10 of 11 

 

requirements applicable to the governmental body for the duration of the contract; (2) promptly provide to 

the governmental body any contracting information related to the contract that is in the custody or 

possession of the entity on request of the governmental body; and (3) on completion of the contract, either: 

(A) provide at no cost to the governmental body all contracting information related to the contract that is in 

the custody or possession of the entity; or (B) preserve the contracting information related to the contract 

as provided by the records retention requirements applicable to the governmental body. 

T. Professional Responsibility.  All architectural or engineering services to be performed shall be 

done with the professional skill and care ordinarily provided by competent architects or engineers practicing 

under the same or similar circumstances and professional license. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 





 

                Page 1 of 13 

EXHIBIT A 

SCOPE OF SERVICES FOR: 

FOR 66TH STREET CHANNEL IMPROVEMENTS 

FINAL DESIGN, BID AND CONSTRUCTION PHASE SERVICES 

 

GENERAL: 

This proposal is for final design, bid and construction phase services for playa excavation to Playa 100 and 
channel improvements for Playa 100 overflow near 66th Street, from Playa 100 west of Upland east along 
Marsha Sharp Freeway to Playa 039A.  The Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) floodplain map 
shows that the subject area has a defined floodplain noted as Zone AE on the FIRM.  These major 
improvements are needed to reduce playa overflow within allowable flow depths at the 66th & Upland 
intersection, provide connectivity to the proposed culvert to be constructed as part of the Upland Avenue, 
Segment 1 project, and provide conveyance to Playa 039A .   

The work to be performed shall consist of providing project management and engineering services for the 
final development of Plans, Specifications, Estimate (PS&E), landowner coordination, bid and construction 
phase services for the planned 200,000 cubic yards of soil excavation from Playa 100 and the construction 
of drainage channel from Playa 100 to Playa 39A. 

This contract will include: 

1. Final design of the 66th Street Channel Improvements plans, specifications and cost estimate. 

2. Bid phase services. 

3. General and Resident project representation for the construction phase.  

 

BASIC SERVICES:  The Basic Services include the project administration, preparation of final construction 

documents, bid phase services and construction phase services as set forth herein.  ENGINEER sometimes 

referred to as “FNI” shall render the following professional services in connection with the development of 

the Project: 

 

A. GENERAL SCOPE OF SERVICES TASKS:  ENGINEER will provide the following as part of the final design 

phase of The Project: 

1. Provide administration and management of The Project.  Review ongoing activities.  Monitor 

schedule and budget.  Review progress with OWNER on a regular basis.  Discuss issues with the 

OWNER as they are noted.  Attend coordination meetings with the OWNER in addition to various 

meetings mentioned in the following sections.  Prepare and distribute minutes of the meetings.  

All meetings provided for in this Agreement shall occur at the offices of the ENGINEER or the 



 

                Page 2 of 13 

OWNER, or other location determined by the OWNER. 

2. Provide monthly update reports which include the following: 

• Status of the work 

• Major tasks to be completed in the next month 

• Discussion of major issues 

• Scope changes to project scope or Engineer’s scope 

• Project budget update (if major changes since the last update) 

• Project schedule update (if major changes since the last update) 

• Status of deliverables 

3. FINAL DESIGN PHASE: FNI shall provide final construction documents for the proposed 

improvements, incorporating City comments and revisions based on comments received at the 

public meeting.  These revisions include adjusting the channel from Playa 100 to Playa 039A to 

avoid existing structures, landscaping, and other citizen requested items.  These revisions also 

included remodeling the channel to ensure proper conveyance to accommodate the requested 

changes.   

 

B. BID OR NEGOTIATION PHASE.  Upon completion of the design services and approval of Final drawings and 

specifications by Owner, FNI will proceed with the performance of services in this phase as follows: 

1. Assist OWNER in securing bids, issuing notice to bidders and notifying selected plan rooms.  The 

notice to bidders will be furnished to OWNER for publication in the local news media.  The cost 

for publications shall be paid by OWNER. 

2. Distribute plans to bidders using the web-based CivCast utilized by Freese and Nichols for bidding 

projects.  Cost for any bidder’s requests for hard copies of bid documents will be paid for by 

bidder. Keep a record of prospective bidders and plan rooms and other parties to whom the 

bidding documents have been distributed.  Advertise for bids on FNI’s website, and keep the 

website updated with addenda information, plan holder lists, and bidding information. 

3. Attend one (1) pre-bid conference. 

4. Issue Addenda as appropriate to clarify, correct, or change the bidding documents. 

5. Assist OWNER in the opening, tabulation, and analysis of the bids received and furnish 

recommendations on the award of contract as appropriate. 

6. Assist OWNER in the preparation of documents for execution of the construction contract.  FNI 

will conform the contract documents, make four (4) original copies for execution.  FNI will also 

make ten (10) conformed copies of the plans and specifications for use by the Contractor and 



 

                Page 3 of 13 

OWNER and Engineer.  The ten (10) copies will include five (5) full size copies, five (5) half size 

copies, and electronic PDF copy. 

7. The Bid and Award phase will be considered complete upon execution of the construction 

contracts and distribution of the conformed copies of the plans and specifications.   

C. CONSTRUCTION PHASE:  Upon completion of the bid or negotiation phase services, FNI will proceed with 

the performance of construction phase services as described below.  FNI will endeavor to protect Owner 

in providing these services however, it is understood that FNI does not guarantee the Contractor’s 

performance, nor is FNI responsible for supervision of the Contractor’s operation and employees.  FNI 

shall not be responsible for the means, methods, techniques, sequences or procedures of construction 

selected by the Contractor, or any safety precautions and programs relating in any way to the condition 

of the premises, the work of the Contractor or any Subcontractor.  FNI shall not be responsible for the 

acts or omissions of any person (except its own employees or agents) at the Project site or otherwise 

performing any of the work of the Project. 

 

1. Assist Owner in conducting pre-construction conference with the Contractor, review 

construction schedules prepared by the Contractor pursuant to the requirements of the 

construction contract and prepare a proposed estimate of monthly cash requirements of the 

Project from information provided by the Construction Contractor. 

2. Establish communication procedures with the Owner and contractor.  Submit monthly reports 

of construction progress.  Reports will describe construction progress in general terms and 

summarize project costs, cash flow, construction schedule and pending and approved contract 

modifications. 

3. Establish and maintain a project documentation system consistent with the requirements of the 

construction contract documents.  Monitor the processing of contractor’s submittals and 

provide for filing and retrieval of project documentation.  Produce monthly reports indicating 

the status of all submittals in the review process.  It’s anticipated to review eight (8) contractor’s 

submittals, two (2) requests for information, two (2) modification requests, one (3) shop 

drawings, twelve (12) schedules on per month, and other submittals in accordance with the 

requirements of the construction contract documents for the projects.  Monitor the progress of 

the contractor in sending and processing submittals to see that documentation is being 

processed in accordance with schedules. 

4. Based on FNI’s observations as an experienced and qualified design professional and review of 

the Payment Requests and supporting documentation submitted by Contractor, determine the 



 

                Page 4 of 13 

amount that FNI recommends Contractor be paid on monthly and final estimates, pursuant to 

the General Conditions of the Construction Contract. 

5. Site Visits - General Representative to make one site visit per month for a total of twelve months 

to observe the progress and the quality of work and to attempt to determine in general if the 

work is proceeding in accordance with the Construction Contract Documents.  In this effort FNI 

will endeavor to protect the Owner against defects and deficiencies in the work of Contractors 

and will report any observed deficiencies to Owner.  Visits to the site in excess of the specified 

number are an additional service. 

6. Notify the contractor of non-conforming work observed on site visits.  Review quality related 

documents provided by the contractor such as test reports, equipment installation reports or 

other documentation required by the Construction contract documents. 

7. Coordinate the work of testing laboratories and inspection bureaus required for the testing or 

inspection of materials, witnessed tests, factory testing, etc. for quality control of the Project.   

8. Interpret the drawings and specifications for Owner and Contractor(s).  Investigations, analyses, 

and studies requested by the Contractor(s) and approved by Owner, for substitutions of 

equipment and/or materials or deviations from the drawings and specifications is an additional 

service. 

9. Establish procedures for administering constructive changes to the construction contracts.  

Process contract modifications and negotiate with the contractor on behalf of the Owner to 

determine the cost and time impacts of these changes.  Prepare change order documentation 

for approved changes for execution by the Owner.  Documentation of field orders, where cost 

to Owner is not impacted, will also be prepared.  Investigations, analyses, studies or design for 

substitutions of equipment or materials, corrections of defective or deficient work of the 

contractor or other deviations from the construction contract documents requested by the 

contractor and approved by the Owner are an additional service.  Substitutions of materials or 

equipment or design modifications requested by the Owner are an additional service. 

10. Prepare documentation for contract modifications required to implement modifications in the 

design of the project.  Receive and evaluate notices of contractor claims and make 

recommendations to the Owner on the merit and value of the claim on the basis of information 

submitted by the contractor or available in project documentation.  Endeavor to negotiate a 

settlement value with the Contractor on behalf of the Owner if appropriate.  Providing these 

services to review or evaluate construction contractor(s) claim(s), supported by causes not 

within the control of FNI are an additional service. 



 

                Page 5 of 13 

11. Assist in the transfer of and acceptance by the construction contractor of any Owner furnished 

equipment or materials. 

12. Conduct, in company with Owner’s representative, a final review of the Project for conformance 

with the design concept of the Project and general compliance with the Construction Contract 

Documents.  Prepare a list of deficiencies to be corrected by the contractor before 

recommendation of final payment.  Assist the City in obtaining legal releases, permits, 

warranties, spare parts, and keys from the contractor.  Review and comment on the certificate 

of completion and the recommendation for final payment to the Contractor(s). Visiting the site 

to review completed work in excess of one trip are an additional service. 

13. Revise the construction drawings in accordance with the information furnished by construction 

Contractor(s) reflecting changes in the Project made during construction.  Five (5) half-sized sets 

and Two (2) full-sized sets of prints of “Record Drawings” shall be provided by FNI to Owner. 

 

D. TIME OF COMPLETION:  FNI is authorized to commence work on the Project upon execution of this 

AGREEMENT and agrees to complete the services for one bid packages in accordance with the following 

schedule: 

1. Final Design Submittal – 30 calendar days from Notice to Proceed 

2. If FNI’s services are delayed through no fault of FNI, FNI shall be entitled to adjust contract 

schedule consistent with the number of days of delay.  In the event FNI asserts that it is entitled 

to additional time, it shall provide notice to the OWNER as soon as reasonably practicable after 

the event allegedly causing such delay shall occur (“Delay Event”), but in no event to exceed five 

(5) business days after the occurrence of the Delay Event.  FNI shall use and exercise all diligence 

to promptly remove or remediate such Delay Event.  In the event notice of the Delay Event shall 

not be provided as prescribed herein, FNI shall not be entitled to relief from schedule as 

provided in this AGREEMENT.  These delays may include but are not limited to delays in OWNER 

or regulatory reviews, delays on the flow of information to be provided to FNI, except any delays 

occasioned by subcontracts or sub consultants of FNI, and governmental approvals.  These 

delays may result in an adjustment to compensation.  



 

                Page 6 of 13 

EXHIBIT A, PART 2, ADDITIONAL SERVICES 

FOR 66TH STREET CHANNEL IMPROVEMENTS 

FINAL DESIGN, BID AND CONSTRUCTION PHASE SERVICES 

ADDITIONAL SERVICES: Additional project administration and design services to be performed by FNI, if 

authorized by Owner, which are not included in the above described General Service, Basic Services, and 

Special Services, are, except as may otherwise be provided by FNI, described as follows: 

A. Field layouts or the furnishing of construction line and grade surveys. 

B. Making revisions to drawings, specifications or other documents. 

C. Preparing data and reports for assistance to Owner in preparation for hearings before regulatory 

agencies, courts, arbitration panels or any mediator, giving testimony, personally or by deposition, 

and preparations therefore before any regulatory agency, court, arbitration panel or mediator. 

D. Assisting Owner in preparing for, or appearing at litigation, mediation, arbitration, dispute review 

boards, or other legal and/or administrative proceedings in the defense or prosecution of claims 

disputes with Contractor(s). 

E. Performing investigations, studies and analyses of substitutions of equipment and/or materials or 

deviations from the drawings and specifications. 

F. Assisting Owner in the defense or prosecution of litigation in connection with or in addition to those 

services contemplated by this AGREEMENT. Such services, if any, shall be furnished by FNI on a fee 

basis negotiated by the respective parties outside of and in addition to this AGREEMENT. This 

provision shall not apply to any expense related to a legal action to which FNI is a party. 

G. Providing environmental support services including preparation of a Jurisdictional Determination 

(JD) Report, preparation of a JD Request, preparation of a Pre-application Meeting Request Form 

or conducting a meeting with the USACE, preparation of a Pre-Construction Notification or an 

Individual Section 404 permit application for submittal to the USACE, conducting function or 

condition assessments (e.g., TXRAM) of waters of the U.S. potentially impacted by the proposed 

project, conducting presence/absence surveys for federally listed threatened/endangered species, 

conducting cultural resources studies or surveys, conducting Phase I/II Environmental Site 

Assessment; and other environmental services not specifically defined in this scope of services. 

H. Design, contract modifications, studies or analysis required to comply with local, State, Federal or 

other regulatory agencies that become effective after the date of this agreement. 

I. Services required to resolve bid protests or to rebid the projects for any reason other than fault of 

any type or degree of FNI. 



 

                Page 7 of 13 

J. Providing services made necessary because of unforeseen, concealed, or differing site conditions 

or due to the presence of hazardous substances in any form, except as noted in the scope of 

services. 

K. Providing value engineering studies or reviews of cost savings proposed by others. 
  



 

                Page 8 of 13 

EXHBIT A, PART 3, RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE OWNER 

FOR 66TH STREET CHANNEL IMPROVEMENTS 

GENERAL AND RESIDENT REPRESENTATION 

 

A.  The ENGINEER will provide the following construction phase staff for construction the 66th Street 

Channel Improvements as follows: 

Project Manager  8 hours per month for 12 months 

Project Engineer  4 hours per month for 12 months 

Construction Manager  8 hours per month for 12 months 

Construction Inspection  25 hours per week for 12 months 

B.  The ENGINEER will have a Resident Project Representative on the Site.  The duties, responsibilities 

and the limitations of authority of the Resident Project Representative, and designated assistants, 

are as follows: 

1. Resident Project Representative is ENGINEER’s agent at the site, will act as directed by 

and under the supervision of ENGINEER, and will confer with ENGINEER regarding 

Resident Project Representative’s actions.  Resident Project Representative’s dealings in 

matters pertaining to the on-site Work shall in general be with ENGINEER and 

CONTRACTOR, keeping Owner advised as necessary.  Resident Project Representative’s 

dealings with Subcontractors shall only be through or with full knowledge and approval 

of CONTRACTOR.  Resident Project Representative shall generally communicate with 

Owner with the knowledge of and under the direction of ENGINEER. 

C.  Duties and Responsibilities of Resident Project Representative: 

1. Schedules:  Review the progress schedule, schedule of Shop Drawing submittals and 

schedules of values prepared by CONTRACTOR and consult with ENGINEER concerning 

acceptability. 

2. Conferences and Meetings:  Attend meetings with CONTRACTOR, such as 

preconstruction conferences, progress meetings, job conferences and other project-

related meetings, and prepare and circulate copies of minutes thereof. 

3. Liaison: 

a. Serve as ENGINEER’s liaison with CONTRACTOR, working principally through 

CONTRACTOR’s superintendent and assist in understanding the intent of Contract 



 

                Page 9 of 13 

Documents; and assist ENGINEER in serving as Owner’s liaison with CONTRACTOR 

when CONTRACTOR’s operations affect Owner’s on-site operations. 

b. Assist in obtaining from Owner additional details or information, when required for 

proper execution of the Work. 

4. Shop Drawings and Samples: 

a. Receive Samples which are furnished at the Site by CONTRACTOR, and notify 

ENGINEER of availability of Samples for examination. 

b. Advise ENGINEER and CONTRACTOR of the commencement of any Work requiring 

a Shop Drawing or Sample if the submittal has not been approved by ENGINEER. 

5. Review of Work, Rejection of Defective Work, Inspections and Tests: 

a. Conduct on-site observations of the Work in progress to determine if the Work is in 

general proceeding in accordance with the Contract Documents. 

b. Report to ENGINEER whenever Resident Project Representative believes that any 

Work will not produce a completed Project that conforms generally to the Contract 

Documents or will prejudice the integrity of the design concept of the completed 

Project as a functioning whole as indicated in the Contract Documents, or has been 

damaged, or does not meet the requirements of any inspection, test or approval 

required to be made; and advise ENGINEER of Work the Resident Project 

Representative believes should be corrected or rejected or should be uncovered for 

observation, or requires special testing, inspection or approval. 

c. Verify that tests, equipment and systems start-up and operating and maintenance 

training are conducted in the presence of appropriate personnel, and the 

CONTRACTOR maintains adequate records thereof; and observe record and report 

to ENGINEER appropriate details relative to the test procedures and start-ups. 

d. Accompany visiting inspectors representing public or other agencies having 

jurisdiction over the Project, record the results of these inspections and report to 

ENGINEER. 

6. Interpretation of Contract Documents:  Report to ENGINEER when clarifications and 

interpretations of the Contract Documents are needed and transmit to CONTRACTOR 

clarifications and interpretations as issued by ENGINEER. 

7. Request for Revisions:  Consider and evaluate CONTRACTOR’s suggestions for revisions 

to Drawings or Specifications and report with Resident Project Representative’s 



 

                Page 10 of 13 

recommendations to ENGINEER.  Transmit to CONTRACTOR in writing decisions as issued 

by ENGINEER. 

8. Records: 

a. Maintain at the job site orderly files for correspondence, reports of job conferences, 

Shop Drawings and Samples, reproductions of original Contract Documents, 

including all Work Change Directives, Addenda, Change Orders, Field Orders, 

Written Amendments, additional Drawings issued subsequent to the execution of 

the Contract, ENGINEER’s clarifications and interpretations of the Contract 

Documents, progress reports, submittals and correspondence received from and 

delivered to CONTRACTOR and other Project related documents. 

9. Reports: 

a. Furnish to ENGINEER periodic reports as required of progress of the work and of 

CONTRACTOR’s compliance with the progress schedule and schedule of Shop 

Drawings and Sample submittals. 

b. Consult with ENGINEER in advance of scheduled major tests, inspections or start of 

important phases of the Work. 

c. Draft proposed Written Amendments, Change Orders and Work Change Directives, 

obtaining backup material from CONTRACTOR and recommend to ENGINEER 

Written Amendments, Change Orders, Work Change Directives, and Field Orders. 

d. Report immediately to ENGINEER and Owner the occurrence of any accident. 

10. Payment Requests:  Review Applications for Payment with CONTRACTOR for compliance 

with the established procedure for their submission and forward with recommendations 

to Owner, noting particularly the relationship of the payment requested to the schedule 

of values, Work completed and materials and equipment at the Site but not incorporated 

in the Work. 

11. Certificates, Maintenance and Operation Manuals:  During the course of the Work, verify 

that certificates, maintenance and operation manuals and other data required to be 

assembled and furnished by CONTRACTOR are applicable to the items actually installed 

and in accordance with the Contract Documents, and have this material delivered to 

ENGINEER for review and forwarding to Owner prior to final payment for the Work. 

 

 



 

                Page 11 of 13 

12. Completion: 

a. Before ENGINEER issues a Certificate of Substantial Completion, submit to 

CONTRACTOR a list of observed items requiring completion or correction. 

b. Observe whether CONTRACTOR has performed inspections required by laws or 

regulations, ordinances, codes or order applicable to the Work, including but not 

limited to those to be performed by public agencies having jurisdiction over the 

Work. 

c. Conduct a final inspection in the company of ENGINEER, Owner and CONTRACTOR 

and prepare a final list of items to be completed or corrected. 

d. Observe whether all items on final list have been completed or corrected and make 

recommendations to ENGINEER concerning acceptance. 

D. Limitations of Authority of Resident Project Representative: 

1. Shall not authorize any deviation from the Contract Documents or substitution of 

materials or equipment (including "or-equal" items), unless authorized by ENGINEER. 

2. Shall not exceed limitations of ENGINEER’s authority as set forth in Agreement or the 

Contract Documents. 

3. Shall not undertake any of the responsibilities of CONTRACTOR, Subcontractor, Suppliers, 

or CONTRACTOR’s superintendent. 

4. Shall not advise on, issue directions relative to or assume control over any aspect of the 

means, methods, techniques, sequences or procedures of construction unless such 

advice or directions are specifically required by the Contract Documents. 

5. Shall not advise on, issue directions regarding or assume control over safety precautions 

and programs in connection with the Work or any activities or operations of Owner or 

CONTRACTOR. 

6. Shall not accept shop drawing or sample submittals from anyone other than the 

CONTRACTOR. 

7. Shall not participate in specialized field or laboratory tests or inspections conducted by 

others, except as specifically authorized by ENGINEER. 

  



 

                Page 12 of 13 

EXHIBIT B, PART 1 – BUDGET 

FOR 66TH STREET CHANNEL IMPROVEMENTS 

FINAL DESIGN, BID AND CONSTRUCTION PHASE SERVICES 

 

CITY and ENGINEER have established a not-to-exceed budget of $492,003 for Engineer Services for the 66th 

Street Channel Improvements to complete all services under this AGREEMENT. This amount will not be 

exceeded without a contract amendment agreed upon and executed by both parties to this agreement. CITY 

will pay the ENGINEER hourly, for services identified in Exhibit “A, Part 1”, based on ENGINEERS Fee Schedule 

presented as EXHIBITS B, Parts 1-2.  Subconsultant services will be billed at cost to ENGINEER with a 10 

percent handling fee.  The Budget is presented for the services of ENGINEER under this AGREEMENT is 

provided in this Exhibit B.  CITY and ENGINEER agree to allow redistribution of funds between Activities and 

tasks as appropriate to allow flexibility in providing the needed services within the not-to-exceed budget.    

 

ENGINEER agrees to complete these services as delineated above.  Should there be a Change in Scope of 

Work or Time of Performance, then this can result in an amendment or modification for extension on time 

to this AGREEMENT which shall be negotiated at that time.   

 

The budget assumes that all work will be completed within 18 months from the Notice to Proceed. 

 

 

  



 

                Page 13 of 13 

EXHIBIT B, PART 2 - HOURLY RATE SCHEDULE COMPENSATION 

FOR 66TH STREET CHANNEL IMPROVEMENTS 

FINAL DESIGN, BID AND CONSTRUCTION PHASE SERVICES 

 

 

 

Position
Principal  / Group Manager

Rate
305

Technical  Professional  - 6 293
Technical  Professional  - 5 234
Technical  Professional  - 4 200
Technical  Professional  - 3 173
Technical  Professional  - 2 152
Technical  Professional  - 1 125
CAD Technician/Designer - 3 168
CAD Technician/Designer - 2 126
CAD Technician/Designer - 1 100
Senior CAD Technician/Designer 207
Construction Manager - 4 165
Construction Manager - 3 135
Construction Manager - 2 128
Construction Manager - 1 100
Corporate Project Support - 3 140
Corporate Project Support - 2 126
Corporate Project Support - 1 96
Intern/ Coop 65

Rates for In-House Services 
Technology Charge
$8.50 per hour

Bulk Printing and Reproduction

B&W Color

Travel
Small  Format (per copy)
Large Format (per sq. ft.)

$0.10 $0.25

Standard IRS Rates Bond $0.25 $0.75
Glossy / Mylar $0.75 $1.25
Vinyl  / Adhesive $1.50 $2.00

Mounting (per sq. ft.) $2.00

Binding (per binding) $0.25
OTHER DIRECT EXPENSES:
Other  direct  expenses  are  reimbursed  at  actual   cost  times  a  multiplier  of  1.10.   They  include  outside  printing  and  
reproduction expense, communication expense, travel, transportation and subsistence away from the FNI office and other 
miscellaneous expenses directly related to the work, including costs of laboratory analysis, test, and other work required to be done by 
independent persons other than staff members. For Resident Representative services performed by non-FNI employees and CAD services 
performed In- house by non-FNI employees where FNI provides workspace and equipment to perform such services, these services will  
be billed at cost  times a multiplier of 2.0.  This markup approximates the cost  to FNI if an FNI employee was performing the same  or 
similar services.



SPUR 327

66TH ST

M
IL

W
A

U
K

E
E

 A
V

E

U
P

L
A

N
D

 A
V

E
MARSHA SHARP FW

Y

±

66th Street Drainage Channel Improvements
Contract 92654

Proposed Drainage Channel

Proposed Playas

Playas

Lubbock City Limits 0 500 1,000 1,500 2,000250
Feet

As required by Chapter 2051, Geospatial Data Products of the
Government Code, this product is for informational purposes and may
not have be prepared for or be suitable for legal, engineering, or
surveying purposes. It does not represent an on-the-ground survey and
represents only the approximate relative location of property boundaries.

Playa Lake 100

Proposed Playa Lake 100
Excavation



City of Lubbock
Capital Project

Project Cost Detail
August 13, 2024

Capital Project Number: 92654
Capital Project Name: Upland Ave 66th Street Playa Drainage Imp.

Encumbered/Expended Budget
Contract with FNI for Design Services                      292,455
Land Acquisition Cost Parcel 75-A                        19,950
COL Staff time                        31,429
Land Acquisition Cost Parcel 74 and 74-A                      574,675

Agenda Item August 13, 2024
Contract 18233 with FNI, construction phase services                      492,003
Contract 18190 with Lone Star Dirt and Paving, Ltd.                   4,302,677

Encumbered/Expended To Date                   5,713,189

Estimated Cost for Remaining Appropriation
Remaining Appropriation                   2,436,811

9
Total Appropriation  $               8,150,000



Project Scope

This project will over excavate  an exist ing Playa Lake and improve and widen the  channel along 66th Street.  At  the
complet ion of the  construction,  the  floodplain will be  studied and remapped to remove homes and businesses from the
floodplain in Pine  Grove Estates.

Project Justi�cation

The intersection of 66th and Upland has historically flooded during small rain events. Playa Lake
Improvements and drainage structure improvements are needed to allow improved drainage within the
area. This project will also allow the buildout of the Upland Avenue Arterial sections at the 66th Street
intersection.

Project Highlights Project History

Council Priorities Addressed:
Community Improvements
Redevelopment
Growth and Development

FY 2019-20 $300,000 was appropriated by Ord.
2019-O0129
FY 2020-21 $1,000,000 was appropriated by
Ord. 2020-O0123
FY 2021-22 $4,000,000 was appropriated by
Ord. 2021-O0126
FY 2023-24 $2,850,000 was appropriated by
Ord. 2020-O0108

Project Dates Project Location

Design: Completed
Land Acquisition Complete – 10/2023
Bid Date - Construction: 05/2024
Award Date for Bid - Construction: 07/2024
Project Start Date - Construction: 08/2024
Project End Date - Construction: 08/2025

Upland Ave and 66th Street

Project Appropriations

Appropriation to Date 2024 - 25 Budget 2025 - 26 Budget 2026 - 27 Budget 2027 - 28 Budget 2028 - 29 Budget 2029 - 30 Budget

Design $300,000 $0 $500,000 $0 $0 $0 $0

Construction $7,050,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Acquisition $800,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL $8,150,000 $0 $500,000 $0 $0 $0 $0

CIP 92654CIP 92654 Upland Ave and 66th St Playa Upland Ave and 66th St Playa
Drainage ImprovementsDrainage Improvements

Infrastructure ImprovementsInfrastructure Improvements

Project Manager: Bailey RatcliffeProject Manager: Bailey Ratcliffe  - Engineering- Engineering



Project Funding

Funding to Date 2024 - 25 Budget 2025 - 26 Budget 2026 - 27 Budget 2027 - 28 Budget 2028 - 29 Budget 2029 - 30 Budget

Stormwater Fund Cash $5,054,079 $0 $500,000 $0 $0 $0 $0

Stormwater Fund Bonds $3,095,921 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL $8,150,000 $0 $500,000 $0 $0 $0 $0

Operating Budget Impacts

Description 2024-25 2025-26 2026-27 2027-28 2028-29 2029-30 Total

No Impact Anticipated $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Powered by OpenGov

https://opengov.com/


 AI# 12745 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 6. 8. 
08/13/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Engineering: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute Public Works
Contract 18190, with Lone Star Dirt & Paving, LTD, for the 66th Street Channel Drainage Improvements
Project, along 66th Street to Playa. Lake 039.

Item Summary
A Request for Proposal (RFP) was issued for the project that will over excavate Playa Lake 100, and
improve and widen a drainage channel along 66th Street to Playa Lake 039.  This project will also
ultimately result in the removal of several properties from the floodplain.  

In response to RFP 24-18190-TF, the following bids were received and opened on June 20, 2024.
  

Contractor Amount
Lone Star Dirt & Paving, LTD., Lubbock, Texas $4,302,677.00
Casta 3 Construction, LLC., Colleyville, Texas $4,566,951.10
West Texas Paving, Inc., Lubbock, Texas $5,073,765.00
Doug Holmes Construction, LLC., Lubbock, Texas $4,905,542.50
MH Civil Constructors, Inc., Amarillo, Texas $6,479,028.00

 
The proposals were evaluated using the following criteria: 60 Points for Price, 30 Points for Contractor
Qualifications, and 10 Points for Construction Time. The maximum point value is 100 points. After the
proposals were evaluated, the following ranking was obtained.
  

Contractor Total/100 points
Lone Star Dirt & Paving, LTD., Lubbock, Texas 85.83
Casta 3 Construction, LLC., Colleyville, Texas 77.61
West Texas Paving, Inc., Lubbock, Texas 76.21
Doug Holmes Construction, LLC., Lubbock, Texas 73.96
MH Civil Constructors, Inc., Amarillo, Texas 62.78

 
Staff recommends award of the contract to the highest ranked proposer, Lone Star Dirt & Paving, LTD.
of Lubbock, Texas, in the amount of $4,302,677.00.  Time for substantial completion is 280 calendar
days from the Notice to Proceed. This contract is awarded by the unit price and actual expenditures may
be more or less depending on field conditions.

Fiscal Impact
Contract 18190 for $4,302,677.00, is funded in Capital Improvement Project 92654, Upland Avenue and



Contract 18190 for $4,302,677.00, is funded in Capital Improvement Project 92654, Upland Avenue and
66th Street Playa Lake Drainage Improvements.

Staff/Board Recommending
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager
Michael G. Keenum, P.E., Division Director of Engineering/City Engineer

Attachments
Resolution 
Contract 18190 
Location Exhibit 
CIP Spreadsheet 
CIP Detail 
Project Summary Sheet 







City of Lubbock, TX

Public Works

RFP 24-18190-TF

66th Street Channel Drainage Improvements

# Items

QTY

+/-
U/M

Unit

Price

Extended

Cost

#1-1 PROJECT MOBILIZATION 1 LS $200,000.00 200,000.00     

#1-2 PREP ROW (CLEARING AND GRUBBING) 30 AC 7,500.00      225,000.00     

#1-3 SWPPP 6 MO 8,500.00      51,000.00       

#1-4 TRAFFIC CONTROL 6 MO 10,000.00    60,000.00       

#1-5 ASPHALT REMOVAL 710 SY 50.00           35,500.00       

#1-6 CONCRETE REMOVAL 55 SY 50.00           2,750.00         

#1-7 FENCE REMOVAL 1789 LF 45.00           80,505.00       

#1-8 EXCAVATION (PLAYA LAKE) 198769 CY 9.00             1,788,921.00  

#1-9 EXCAVATION (CHANNEL) 31596 CY 9.00             284,364.00     

#1-10 EMBANKMENT 392 CY 12.00           4,704.00         

#1-11 CONCRETE RIPRAP (4") 757 CY 600.00         454,200.00     

#1-12 30" RCP CULVERT 64 LF 300.00         19,200.00       

#1-13 SET Type II 30" 4 EA 6,000.00      24,000.00       

#1-14 YARD HYDRANT REMOVAL AND RELOCATION 1 EA 2,500.00      2,500.00         

#1-15 SEPTIC SYSTEM REPLACEMENT 1 EA 15,000.00    15,000.00       

#1-16 SEPTIC SYSTEM LEACH LINE FIELD 

RELOCATION
5 EA 10,000.00    50,000.00       

#1-17 SEEDING FOR EROSION CONTROL 37066 SY 2.00             74,132.00       

#1-18 FENCE REPLACEMENT (PIPE FENCE) 1123 LF 125.00         140,375.00     

#1-19 ARTICULATED CONCRETE BLOCK MATTRESS 

AND GEOTEXTILE FABRIC
10839 SF 27.00           292,653.00     

#1-20 CONCRETE PAVEMENT (6") 431 SY 90.00           38,790.00       

#1-21 ASPHALT PAVEMENT (2") 614 SY 43.00           26,402.00       

#1-22 CONCRETE DRIVEWAY 148 SY 95.00           14,060.00       

#2-1 SEEDING FOR EROSION CONTROL (DEDUCT) 4793 SY (3.00)            (14,379.00)      

#2-2 10' CONCRETE VALLEY GUTTER 4330 LF $100 $433,000.00

   3,884,056.00 

      418,621.00 

   4,302,677.00 Total (Items 1-1 through 2-2):

Total (Items 1-1 through 1-22):

Total (Items 2-1 through 2-2):

Lone Star Dirt & Paving, LTD of Lubbock, TX

Base Bid

Add Alternate Bid





SPUR 327

66TH ST

M
IL

W
A

U
K

E
E

 A
V

E

U
P

L
A

N
D

 A
V

E
MARSHA SHARP FW

Y

±

66th Street Drainage Channel Improvements
Contract 92654

Proposed Drainage Channel

Proposed Playas

Playas

Lubbock City Limits 0 500 1,000 1,500 2,000250
Feet

As required by Chapter 2051, Geospatial Data Products of the
Government Code, this product is for informational purposes and may
not have be prepared for or be suitable for legal, engineering, or
surveying purposes. It does not represent an on-the-ground survey and
represents only the approximate relative location of property boundaries.

Playa Lake 100

Proposed Playa Lake 100
Excavation



City of Lubbock
Capital Project

Project Cost Detail
August 13, 2024

Capital Project Number: 92654
Capital Project Name: Upland Ave 66th Street Playa Drainage Imp.

Encumbered/Expended Budget
Contract with FNI for Design Services                      292,455
Land Acquisition Cost Parcel 75-A                        19,950
COL Staff time                        31,429
Land Acquisition Cost Parcel 74 and 74-A                      574,675

Agenda Item August 13, 2024
Contract 18233 with FNI, construction phase services                      492,003
Contract 18190 with Lone Star Dirt and Paving, Ltd.                   4,302,677

Encumbered/Expended To Date                   5,713,189

Estimated Cost for Remaining Appropriation
Remaining Appropriation                   2,436,811

9
Total Appropriation  $               8,150,000



Project Scope

This project will over excavate  an exist ing Playa Lake and improve and widen the  channel along 66th Street.  At  the
complet ion of the  construction,  the  floodplain will be  studied and remapped to remove homes and businesses from the
floodplain in Pine  Grove Estates.

Project Justi�cation

The intersection of 66th and Upland has historically flooded during small rain events. Playa Lake
Improvements and drainage structure improvements are needed to allow improved drainage within the
area. This project will also allow the buildout of the Upland Avenue Arterial sections at the 66th Street
intersection.

Project Highlights Project History

Council Priorities Addressed:
Community Improvements
Redevelopment
Growth and Development

FY 2019-20 $300,000 was appropriated by Ord.
2019-O0129
FY 2020-21 $1,000,000 was appropriated by
Ord. 2020-O0123
FY 2021-22 $4,000,000 was appropriated by
Ord. 2021-O0126
FY 2023-24 $2,850,000 was appropriated by
Ord. 2020-O0108

Project Dates Project Location

Design: Completed
Land Acquisition Complete – 10/2023
Bid Date - Construction: 05/2024
Award Date for Bid - Construction: 07/2024
Project Start Date - Construction: 08/2024
Project End Date - Construction: 08/2025

Upland Ave and 66th Street

Project Appropriations

Appropriation to Date 2024 - 25 Budget 2025 - 26 Budget 2026 - 27 Budget 2027 - 28 Budget 2028 - 29 Budget 2029 - 30 Budget

Design $300,000 $0 $500,000 $0 $0 $0 $0

Construction $7,050,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Acquisition $800,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL $8,150,000 $0 $500,000 $0 $0 $0 $0

CIP 92654CIP 92654 Upland Ave and 66th St Playa Upland Ave and 66th St Playa
Drainage ImprovementsDrainage Improvements

Infrastructure ImprovementsInfrastructure Improvements

Project Manager: Bailey RatcliffeProject Manager: Bailey Ratcliffe  - Engineering- Engineering



Project Funding

Funding to Date 2024 - 25 Budget 2025 - 26 Budget 2026 - 27 Budget 2027 - 28 Budget 2028 - 29 Budget 2029 - 30 Budget

Stormwater Fund Cash $5,054,079 $0 $500,000 $0 $0 $0 $0

Stormwater Fund Bonds $3,095,921 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL $8,150,000 $0 $500,000 $0 $0 $0 $0

Operating Budget Impacts

Description 2024-25 2025-26 2026-27 2027-28 2028-29 2029-30 Total

No Impact Anticipated $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Powered by OpenGov

https://opengov.com/


 
 

 

 

Purchasing and Contract Management  

 

Project Summary 

 
RFP 24-18190-TF  

66th Street Channel Drainage Improvements 

 

Notice was published in the Lubbock Avalanche Journal on June 30 & July 7, 2024. 

Notice was published on the Purchasing Web Site under Bid Opportunities. 

Notice was published on the State of Texas Electronic State Business Daily.  

Notice was published on Bonfire.com from June 30 to July 23, 2024. 

7 individuals attended the pre-proposal meeting. 

52 vendors downloaded the documents using Bonfire.com. 

15 vendors were notified separately.  

5 vendors submitted proposals. 

 



 AI# 12762 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 6. 9. 
08/13/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Engineering: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute Amendment No. 1 to
Professional Services Agreement, Contract 17087, with HDR Engineering, Inc., for engineering services
for the reconstruction of Milwaukee Avenue from 4th Street to the City of Lubbock north city limits,
2022 Road Bond Project.

Item Summary
On February 14, 2023, the City Council authorized Contract 17087, with HDR, Inc., for professional
engineering and design services for the Milwaukee Street Bond Improvements Project. The project
included preparation of plans, technical specifications, and final design, for the reconstruction of
Milwaukee Avenue from 4th Street to the north city limits.

Amendment No. 1 to Contract 17087 will extend the contract duration by 365 calendar days for
additional drainage design, utility relocation design, and driveway design. Staff recommends the award
of Amendment No. 1 to Contract 17087, with HDR Engineering, Inc.

Fiscal Impact
Amendment No. 1 for $132,710, is funded in Capital Improvements Project 92819, Milwaukee Avenue
from 4th Street to the north city limits.

Staff/Board Recommending
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager
Michael G. Keenum, P.E., Division Director of Engineering/City Engineer

Attachments
Resolution 
Amendment 1 
Contract 17087 
Location Exhibit 
CIP Spreadsheet 
CIP Detail 

















Resolution No. 2023- R0060

Item No. 5. 13

February 14, 2023

RESOLUTION

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LUBBOCK: 

THAT the Mayor of the City of Lubbock is hereby authorized and directed to execute
and on behalf of the City of Lubbock, Professional Services Agreement Contract No. 17087
professional services for the reconstruction of Milwaukee Avenue from 4th Street to the C
limits, by and between the City of Lubbock and HDR Engineering, Inc., a Nebraska corporati

duly licensed in the State of Texas and related documents. Said Contract is attached hereto a

incorporated in this resolution as if fully set forth herein and shall be included in the minutes
the City Council. 

Passed by the City Council on February 14, 2023

ATTEST: 

Rebec a Garza, City SecretkrJy

APPROVED AS TO CONTENT: 

Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

hzeiL-( 
elli Leisure, Assistant City Attorney

ccdocs/ RES. PSA- No. 17087 - HDR Milwaukee 41 to City limits
01. 19. 23



Resolution No. 2023- R0060

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT

STATE OF TEXAS § 

COUNTY OF LUBBOCK § 

This Professional Service Agreement (" Agreement") Contract No. 17087 is entered into this

l hday of February , 2023, is by and between the City of Lubbock ( the " City"), a Texas home

rule municipal corporation, and HDR Engineering, Inc., ( the" Engineer"), a Nebraska corporation duly

licensed in the State of Texas. 

WITNESSETH

WHEREAS, The City desires to contract with the Engineer to provide professional services for
the reconstruction of Milwaukee Ave. from 4 h Street to the city limits, ( the " Activities"); and

WHEREAS, the Engineer has a professional staff experienced and is qualified to provide

professional engineering services related to Activities, and will provide the services, as defined below, for

the price provided herein, said price stipulated by the City and the Engineer to be a fair and reasonable

price; and

WHEREAS, the City desires to contract with the Engineer to provide professional services

related to the Activities, and Engineer desires to provide the Services related to same. 

NOW THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the terms, covenants and conditions set forth in

this Agreement, the City and the Engineer hereby agree as follows: 

ARTICLE I. TERM

The tern of this Agreement commences on the Effective Date and continues without interruption

for a term of 12 months. If the Engineer determines that additional time is required to complete the

Services, the City Engineer, may, but is not obligated to, in his or her discretion, execute an agreement to

grant up to an additional six (6) months of time so long as the amount of the consideration does not increase. 

An amendment to this Agreement resulting in an increase in the amount of the consideration must be

approved by the City acting through its governing body. 

Page 1 of 11



ARTICLE II. SERVICES AND COMPENSATION

A. The Engineer shall conduct all activities, and within such timeframes, as set forth on Exhibit

A", attached hereto ( the " Services") 

B. The Engineer shall receive as consideration to be paid for the performance of the Services, in

an amount not to exceed $ 1, 403, 292. 00, as set forth in Exhibit ` B". 

ARTICLE III. TERMINATION

A. General. The City may terminate this Agreement, for any reason or convenience, upon thirty

30) days written notice to the Engineer. In the event this Agreement is so terminated, the City shall only

pay the Engineer for services actually performed by the Engineer up to the date the Engineer is deemed to

have received notice of termination, as provided herein. 

B. Termination and Remedies. In the event the Engineer breaches any term and/ or provision of this

Agreement, the City shall be entitled to exercise any right or remedy available to it by this Agreement, at

law, equity, or otherwise, including without limitation, termination of this Agreement and assertion of an

action for damages and/ or injunctive relief. The exercise of any right or remedy shall not preclude the

concurrent or subsequent exercise of any right or remedy and all rights and remedies shall be cumulative. 

ARTICLE IV. NON - ARBITRATION

The City reserves the right to exercise any right or remedy available to it by law, contract, equity, 

or otherwise, including without limitation, the right to seek any and all forms of relief in a court of

competent jurisdiction. Further, the City shall not be subject to any arbitration process prior to exercising
its unrestricted right to seekjudicial remedy. The remedies set forth herein are cumulative and not exclusive, 

and may be exercised concurrently. To the extent of any conflict between this provision and another

provision in, or related to, this Agreement, this provision shall control. 

ARTICLE V. ACKNOWLEDGMENTS

A. Existence. The Engineer is a corporation duly organized, validly existing, and in good standing

under the laws of the State of Texas and is qualified to carry on its business in the State of Texas. 

B. Corporate Power. The Engineer has the corporate power to enter into and perform this

Agreement and all other activities contemplated hereby. 

Page 2 of 11



C. Authorization. Execution, delivery, and performance of this Agreement and the activities

contemplated hereby have been duly and validly authorized by all the requisite corporate action on the part

of the Engineer. This Agreement constitutes legal, valid, and binding obligations of the Engineer and is

enforceable in accordance with the terms thereof. 

D. Engineer. The Engineer maintains a professional staff and employs, as needed, other qualified

specialists experienced in providing the Services, and is familiar with all applicable laws, rules, and

regulations, both state and federal, including, without limitation the applicable laws, regarding the Activities

contemplated hereby. 

E. Performance. The Engineer will and shall conduct all activities contemplated by this Agreement

in accordance with the standard of care, skill and diligence normally provided by a professional person in

performance of similar professional services, and comply with all applicable laws, rules, and regulations, 

both state and federal, relating to professional services, as contemplated hereby. 

F. Use of Copyrighted Material. The Engineer acknowledges that any materials provided by the

Engineer for use by City pursuant to this Agreement shall not contain any proprietary material owned by

any other party that is protected under the Copyright Act or any other law, statute, rule, order, regulation, 

ordinance or contractual obligation relating to the use or reproduction of materials. The Engineer shall be

solely responsible for ensuring that any materials provided by the Engineer pursuant to this Agreement

satisfy this requirement and the Engineer agrees to indemnify and hold City harmless from all liability or

loss caused to City or to which City is exposed on account of the Engineer' s failure to perform this duty. 

ARTICLE VI. SCOPE OF WORK

The Engineer shall accomplish the following: Professional Services related to the Services, as

provided in Exhibit " A", attached hereto and made a part hereof. 

ARTICLE VII. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR STATUS

The Engineer and the City agree that the Engineer shall perform the duties under this Agreement

as an independent contractor and shall be considered as independent contractor under this Agreement and/ or

in its activities hereunder for all purposes. The Engineer has the sole discretion to determine the manner in

which the Services are to be performed. During the performance of the Services under this Agreement, the

Engineer and the Engineer' s employees and/or sub -consultants, will not be considered, for any purpose, 

employees or agents of the City within the meaning or the application of any federal, state or local law or

regulation, including without limitation, laws, rules or regulations regarding or related to unemployment

insurance, old age benefits, workers compensation, labor, personal injury or taxes of any kind. 

Page 3 of 11



ARTICLE VIII. INSURANCE

The Engineer shall procure and carry, at its sole cost and expense through the life of this Agreement, 

except as otherwise provided herein, insurance protection as hereinafter specified, in form and substance

satisfactory to the City, carried with an insurance company authorized to transact business in the state of

Texas, covering all aspects and risks of loss of all operations in connection with this Agreement, including

without limitation, the indemnity obligations set forth herein. The Engineer shall obtain and maintain in

full force and effect during the term of this Agreement, and shall cause each approved subcontractor or sub - 

consultant of the Engineer to obtain and maintain in full force and effect during the term of this Agreement, 

commercial general liability, professional liability and automobile liability coverage for non -owned and

hired vehicles with insurance carriers admitted to do business in the state of Texas. The insurance

companies must carry a Best' s Rating of A-VII or better. Except for Professional Liability, the policies will

be written on an occurrence basis, subject to the following minimum limits of liability: 

Commercial General Liability: 

Per Occurrence Single Limit: $ 1, 000,000

General Aggregate Limit: $ 2, 000, 000

Professional Liability: 

Per Claim/ Annual Aggregate: $ 2, 000, 000

Automobile Liability: 

Combined Single Limit for any auto: $ 1, 000,000 Per Occurrence

Employer' s Liability: 

Per Occurrence Single Limit: $ 1, 000,000

Worker' s Compensation

Per Occurrence Single Limit: $ 500, 000

The Engineer shall further cause any approved subcontractor or sub -consultant to procure and

carry, during the term of this Agreement, the insurance coverage required of Engineer herein, including

without limitation, Professional Liability coverage, protecting the City against losses caused by the

professional negligence of the approved subcontractor or sub -consultant. The City shall be listed as a

primary and noncontributory additional insured with respect to the Automobile Liability and Commercial

General Liability and shall be granted a waiver of subrogation under those policies. The Engineer shall

provide a Certificate of Insurance to the City as evidence of coverage. 

The Certificate shall provide 30 days' notice of cancellation. A copy of the additional insured

endorsement and waiver of subrogation attached to the policy shall be included in the Certificate. The

Engineer shall elect to obtain worker' s compensation coverage pursuant to Section 406. 002 of the Texas

Page 4 of 11



Labor Code. Further, the Engineer shall maintain said coverage throughout the term of this Agreement and

shall comply with all provisions of Title 5 of the Texas Labor Code to ensure that the Engineer maintains

said coverage. The Engineer may maintain Occupational Accident and Disability Insurance in lieu of

Worker' s Compensation. In either event, the policy must be endorsed to include a waiver of subrogation in

favor of the City. If at any time during the life of the Agreement or any extension hereof, the Engineer fails

to maintain the required insurance in full force and effect, the Engineer shall be in breach hereof and all

work under the Agreement shall be discontinued immediately. 

Notwithstanding anything contained herein to the contrary, the professional liability policy shall be

maintained at the Engineer' s sole cost and expense. The retroactive date shall be no later than the

commencement of the performance of this Agreement and the discovery period ( possibly through tail

coverage) shall be no less than 10 years after the completion of the Services provided for in this Agreement. 

The provisions of this Article VIII shall survive the termination or expiration of this Agreement. 

ARTICLE IX. EMPLOYMENT OF AGENTS/ RETAINING OF CONSULTANTS

The Engineer may employ or retain consultants, contractors, or third parties ( any of which are

referred to herein as " Sub - consultant"), to perform certain duties of Engineer, as set forth on Exhibit A, if

applicable and attached hereto, under this Agreement, provided that the City approves the retaining of Sub - 

consultants. The Engineer is at all times responsible to the City to perform the Services as provided in this

Agreement and the Engineer is in no event relieved of any obligation under this Agreement upon retainage

of any approved Sub -consultant. Any agent and/ or Sub -consultant retained and/ or employed by the

Engineer shall be required by the Engineer to carry, for the protection and benefit of the City and the

Engineer and naming said third parties as additional insureds, insurance as described above required to be

carried by the Engineer in this Agreement. 

The Engineer acknowledges that such services are either under applicable value thresholds or are

otherwise exempt from notice and/ or bid requirements under Texas Law. 

ARTICLE X. CONFIDENTIALITY

The Engineer shall retain all information received from or concerning the City and the City' s

business in strictest confidence and shall not reveal such information to third parties without prior written

consent of the City, unless otherwise required by law. 

Page 5 of 11



ARTICLE XI. INDEMNITY

THE ENGINEER SHALL INDEMNIFY AND SAVE HARMLESS THE CITY OF LUBBOCK

AND ITS ELECTED OFFICIALS, OFFICERS, AGENTS, AND EMPLOYEES FROM ALL SUITS, 

ACTIONS, LOSSES, DAMAGES, CLAIMS, OR LIABILITY OF ANY KIND, CHARACTER, TYPE, 

OR DESCRIPTION, INCLUDING WITHOUT LIMITING THE GENERALITY OF THE FOREGOING, 

ALL EXPENSES OF LITIGATION, COURT COSTS, AND REASONABLE ATTORNEY' S FEES, FOR

INJURY OR DEATH TO ANY PERSON, OR INJURY TO ANY PROPERTY, RECEIVED OR

SUSTAINED BY ANY PERSON OR PERSONS OR PROPERTY, TO THE EXTENT ARISING OUT

OF, RELATED TO OR OCCASIONED BY, THE NEGLIGENT ACTS OF THE ENGINEER, ITS

AGENTS, EMPLOYEES, AND./OR SUBCONSULTANTS, RELATED TO THE PERFORMANCE, 

OPERATIONS OR OMISSIONS UNDER THIS AGREEMENT AND OR THE USE OR OCCUPATION

OF CITY OWNED PROPERTY. THE INDEMNITY OBLIGATION PROVIDED HEREIN SHALL

SURVIVE THE EXPIRATION OR TERMINATION OF THIS AGREEMENT. 

ARTICLE XII. COMPLIANCE WITH APPLICABLE LAWS

The Engineer shall comply with all applicable federal, state and local laws, statutes, ordinances, 

rules and regulations relating, in any way, manner or form, to the activities under this Agreement, and any
amendments thereto. 

ARTICLE XIII. NOTICE

A. General. Whenever notice from the Engineer to the City or the City to the Engineer is required

or permitted by this Agreement and no other method of notice is provided, such notice shall be given by

1) actual delivery of the written notice to the other party by hand ( in which case such notice shall be
effective upon delivery); ( 2) facsimile ( in which case such notice shall be effective upon delivery); or ( 3) 

by depositing the written notice in the United States mail, properly addressed to the other party at the

address provided in this article, registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, in which case such

notice shall be effective on the third business day after such notice is so deposited. 

B. Engineer' s Address. The Engineer' s address and numbers for the purposes of notice are: 

HDR Engineering, Inc. 

J. M. Gonzalez, P. E. 

613 NW Loop 410
San Antonio, Texas 78216

Telephone: 210- 841- 2904

Email: i. m.gonzalez6dhdrinc. com

Page 6 of 11



C. City' s Address. The City's address and numbers for the purposes of notice are: 

James Dean

City of Lubbock
P. O. Box 2000

1314 Avenue K

Lubbock, Texas 79457

Telephone: 806- 775- 3254

Email: jdean@MyLubbock.us

D. Change of Address. Either party may change its address or numbers for purposes of notice by

giving written notice to the other party as provided herein, referring specifically to this Agreement, and

setting forth such new address or numbers. The address or numbers shall become effective on the 15th day
after such notice is effective. 

ARTICLE XIV. CITY -PROVIDED DATA AND RESPONSIBILITIES

Provision of Data. The City shall furnish the Engineer non -confidential studies, reports and other

available data in the possession of the City pertinent to the Engineer' s Services, and the Engineer is entitled

to rely on such studies, reports and other data for the performance of the Engineer' s Services under this

Agreement ( the " Provided Data"). The Engineer shall be entitled to use and rely, so long as such reliance
is reasonable, upon all such Provided Data. 

ARTICLE XV. MISCELLANEOUS

A. Captions. The captions for the articles and sections in this Agreement are inserted in this

Agreement strictly for the parties' convenience in identifying the provisions to this Agreement and shall not

be given any effect in construing this Agreement. 

B. Audit. The Engineer shall provide access to its corporate books and records to the City. The City
may audit, at its expense and during normal business hours, the Engineer' s books and records with respect

to this Agreement between the Engineer and the City. 

C. Records. The Engineer shall maintain records that are necessary to substantiate the services

provided by the Engineer. 

D. Assignability. The Engineer may not assign this Agreement without the prior written approval

of the City. 

E. Successor and Assigns. This Agreement binds and inures to the benefit of the City and the

Engineer, and in the case of the City, its respective successors, legal representatives, and assigns, and in the

case of the Engineer, its permitted successors and assigns. 

Page 7 of 11



F. Construction and Venue. 

THIS AGREEMENT SHALL BE GOVERNED BY AND CONSTRUED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE

LAWS OF THE STATE OF TEXAS. THIS AGREEMENT IS PERFORMABLE IN LUBBOCK

COUNTY, TEXAS. THE PARTIES HERETO HEREBY IRREVOCABLY CONSENT TO THE SOLE
AND EXCLUSIVE JURISDICTION AND VENUE OF THE COURTS OF COMPETENT

JURISDICTION OF THE STATE OF TEXAS, COUNTY OF LUBBOCK, FOR THE PURPOSES OF

ALL LEGAL PROCEEDINGS ARISING OUT OF OR RELATING TO THIS AGREEMENT OR THE

ACTIONS THAT ARE CONTEMPLATED HEREBY. 

G. Severability. If any provision of this Agreement is ever held to be invalid or ineffective by any
court of competent jurisdiction with respect to any person or circumstance, the remainder of this Agreement

and the application of such provision to persons and/ or circumstances other than those with respect to which

it is held invalid or ineffective shall not be affected thereby. 

H. Amendment. No amendment, modification, or alteration of the terms of this Agreement shall be

binding unless such amendment, modification, or alteration is in writing, dated subsequent to this

Agreement, and duly authorized and executed by the Engineer and the City. 

I. Entire Agreement. This Agreement, including Exhibits " A" through `B" attached hereto, contains

the entire agreement between the City and the Engineer, and there are no other written or oral promises, 

conditions, or acknowledgments relating to or affecting the matters contemplated herein. 

J. No Joint Enterprise. Nothing contained herein shall be construed to imply a joint venture, joint
enterprise, partnership or principal — agent relationship between the Engineer and the City. 

K. Documents Owned by City. Any and all documents, drawings and specifications prepared by
Engineer as part of the Services hereunder, shall become the property of the City when the Engineer has

been compensated as set forth in Article II, above. The Engineer shall make copies of any and all work
products for its files. 

L. Notice of Waiver. A waiver by either the City or the Engineer of a breach of this Agreement

must be in writing and duly authorized to be effective. In the event either party shall execute and deliver

such waiver, such waiver shall not affect the waiving party' s rights with respect to any other or subsequent
breach. 

M. Third Party Activities. Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed to provide any rights or
benefits whatsoever to any party other than the City and the Engineer. 

Page 8 of 11



N. Non -Appropriation. All funds for payment by the City under this Agreement are subject to the

availability of an annual appropriation for this purpose by the City. In the event of non -appropriation of

funds by the City Council of the City of Lubbock for the services provided under the Agreement, the City

will terminate the Agreement, without termination charge or other liability, on the last day of the then - 

current fiscal year or when the appropriation made for the then -current year for the services covered by this
Agreement is spent, whichever event occurs first ( the " Non -Appropriation Date'). If at any time funds are

not appropriated for the continuance of this Agreement, cancellation shall be accepted by the Engineer on

thirty (30) days prior written notice, but failure to give such notice shall be of no effect and the City shall

not be obligated under this Agreement beyond the Non -Appropriation Date. 

O. Contracts with Companies Engaged in Business with Iran, Sudan, or Foreign Terrorist

Organization Prohibited. Pursuant to Section 2252. 152 of the Texas Government Code, prohibits the City

from entering into a contract with a vendor that is identified by The Comptroller as a company known to

have contracts with or provide supplies or service with Iran, Sudan or a foreign terrorist organization

P. No Boycott of Israel. Pursuant to Section 2271. 002 of the Texas Government Code, a) This

section applies only to a contract that: ( 1) is between a governmental entity and a company with 10 or more

full- time employees; and ( 2) has a value of $100, 000 or more that is to be paid wholly or partly from public

funds of the governmental entity. (b) A governmental entity may not enter into a contract with a company
for goods or services unless the contract contains a written verification from the company that it: ( 1) does

not boycott Israel; and ( 2) will not boycott Israel during the term of the contract. 

Q. Texas Government Code 2274. By entering into this Agreement, Engineer verifies that: ( 1) it

does not, and will not for the duration of the contract, have a practice, policy, guidance, or directive

that discriminates against a firearm entity or firearm trade association or ( 2) the verification required by

Section 2274. 002 of the Texas Government Code does not apply to the contract. If Engineer is a company
with 10 or more full- time employees and if this Agreement has a value of at least $ 100, 000 or more, 

Engineer verifies that, pursuant to Texas Government Code Chapter 2274, it does not have a practice, 

policy, guidance, or directive that discriminates against a firearm entity or firearm trade association; and

will not discriminate during the term of the contract against a firearm entity or firearm trade association. 

R. Engineer represents and warrants that: ( 1) it does not, and will not for the duration of the contract, 

boycott energy companies or ( 2) the verification required by Section 2274. 002 of the Texas Government

Code does not apply to the contract. If Engineer is a company with 10 or more full-time employees and if
this Agreement has a value of at least $ 100,000 or more, Engineer verifies that, pursuant to Texas

Government Code Chapter 2274, it does not boycott energy companies; and will not boycott energy
companies during the term of the Agreement. This verification is not required for an agreement where a

governmental entity determines that these requirements are inconsistent with the governmental entity' s
Page 9 of 11



constitutional or statutory duties related to the issuance, incurrence, or management of debt obligations or

the deposit, custody, management, borrowing, or investment of funds. 

S. Texas Public Information Act. The requirements of Subchapter J, Chapter 552, Government

Code, may apply to this contract and the Engineer or vendor agrees that the contract can be terminated if

the Engineer or vendor knowingly or intentionally fails to comply with a requirement of that subchapter. 

To the extent Subchapter J, Chapter 552, Government Code applies to this agreement, Contractor agrees

to: ( 1) preserve all contracting information related to the contract as provided by the records retention

requirements applicable to the governmental body for the duration of the contract; ( 2) promptly provide to

the governmental body any contracting information related to the contract that is in the custody or

possession of the entity on request of the governmental body; and (3) on completion of the contract, either: 

A) provide at no cost to the governmental body all contracting information related to the contract that is in

the custody or possession of the entity; or (B) preserve the contracting information related to the contract

as provided by the records retention requirements applicable to the governmental body. 

T. Professional Responsibility. All architectural or engineering services to be performed shall be

done with the professional skill and care ordinarily provided by competent architects or engineers practicing

under the same or similar circumstances and professional license. 

Page 10 of 11



EXECUTED as of the Effective Date hereof. 

CITY OF LUBBOCK

ATTEST: 

Rebec a Garza, City Secre

APPROVED AS TO CONTENT: 

Mic el G. eenum, P. E., CFM

Division Director of Engineering/ City Engineer

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

I K - 
elli Leisure, Assistant City Attorney

Firm

HDR Engineering, Inc. /

J

By: 
ULS t —in Word, P. E. 

Vice President

Page 11 of 11



CONCORD

SHADOW HILLS

TERRA ESTATES NORTH

NORTHWEST ACRES

TERRA ESTATES NORTH

SHADOW HILLS

SIERRA VISTA ESTATES

SHADOW HILLS

WILSHIRE ESTATES

RESID
ENCES AT

SHADOW HILLS

SHADOW HILLS ESTATES

CROSSROADS

UNITED

METHODIST

UNITED 552

SHADOW

HILLS

BAPTIST

TERRA ESTATES NORTH

SHADOW HILLS ESTATES

SPANISH BIT COURT

SHADOW HILLS

VILLAS

WILSHIRE PLACE

K
LI

N
E

A
V

ERSKINE ST

PR
 1

73
0

W
ILSH

IR
E

BD

PR
 1

72
0

ITASCA ST

G
EN

O
A

A
V

DUKE

ST

3RD ST

N
 M

IL
W

A
U

K
EE

 A
V

DU

K E ST

PR 6440

2ND
ST

PR 6460

2ND
ST

A
M

ES
BU

RY
C

T

IO
LA

A
V

N

H
U

RO
N

A
V

N
 G

RO
V

ER
 A

V

N
 K

IR
BY

A
V

N
G

EN
O

A
A

V

O
A

K
RI

D
G

E
A

V

PR 17
25

PR 17
30

PR 17
35

4TH ST

N
 M

O
N

TI
C

EL
LO

A
V

HO
M

ESTEA
D

A
V

HARVARD ST

PR
 1

73
5

M
IL

W
A

U
K

EE
 A

V

H
Y

D
EN

A
V

LEHIGH ST

HANOVER ST

N
G

RO
V

ER
A

V
N

G
RA

N
BY

A
V

G
RO

VER

A
V

N
IN

V
ER

N
ES

S
A

V

N
G

A
RD

N
ER

A
V

PR
 1

74
0

N
K

LI
N

E
A

V

N
 H

Y
D

EN
 A

V

PR 6470

N
IO

LA
A

VN JU
N

EA
U

A
V

MARSHALL ST

As required by Chapter 2051, Geospatial Data Products of the Government Code, this product is for informational purposes
and may not have been prepared for or be suitable for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes. It does not represent an
on-the-ground survey and represents only the approximate relative location of property boundaries.

³ Milwaukee Ave from 4th St to
N Lubbock City Limits (1.6 miles)

0 1,000 2,000 3,000 4,000 5,000500
Feet

Digital Orthophotography - May 2021

M
IL

W
A

U
K

EE
 A

V
E

C
IT

Y
 L

IM
IT

S

CITY LIMITS

CITY LIMITS IN

CITY LIMITS OUT

CITY LIMITS

SPANISH BIT

COURT

4TH ST

M
IL

W
A

U
K

EE
 A

V
E

CITY LIMITS IN

CITY LIMITS OUT

C
IT

Y
 L

IM
IT

S 
IN

C
IT

Y
 L

IM
IT

S 
O

U
T

WHILS
HIRE PLACE

SHADOW HILLS

ESTATES

WHILS
HIRE

ESTATES

SHADOW HILLS

UPTO
WN

WEST

NORTHWEST

ACRES

RESIDENCES AT

SHADOW HILLS

SHADOW HILLS

VILLA
S

SHADOW HILLS

RIVIER

FARM

TERRA ESTATES

NORTH

WESTCHESTER

PARK
CONCORD

19TH ST

34TH ST MARSH
A SH

ARP FW
Y

IN
LE

R 
A

V
E

LO
OP 289



City of Lubbock, TX
Capital Project

Project Cost Detail
August 13, 2024

Capital Project Number: 92819
Capital Project Name: Milwaukee Avenue from 4th Street to the North City Limits - 22B

Encumbered/Expended Budget
City of Lubbock Staff Time  $                        18,371
Contract 17087 Milwaukee Reconstruction Design & ROW with HDR, Inc.                       1,403,292
Land Acquisition to Date                          157,708
Traffic System Improvements                            24,494

Agenda Items, August 13th, 2024
Amendment 1 to Contract 17087 with HDR, Inc.                          132,710

Encumbered/Expended To Date                       1,736,575

Estimated Costs for Remaining Appropriation
Property Acquisition, Utility Adjustments, and Roadway Construction                     15,263,425

Remaining Appropriation                                      -

Total Appropriation  $                 17,000,000



Project Scope

Milwaukee Ave from 4th Street to the  North City  L imits is currently  a two-lane paved road and is designated in the  2018
Thoroughfare  Master Plan to become a five - lane Principal Arterial (Modified).  Continued growth in west Lubbock has
increased traffic demands along Milwaukee Avenue from 4th Street to the  North City  L imits.  This thoroughfare  will include
the ult imate  design of a five - lane undiv ided thoroughfare  with curb and gutter,  drainage ,  streetlights,  sidewalk
improvements,  ut ility  adjustment and right of way  acquisit ion services.

Project Justi�cation

On November 8, 2022, Lubbock voters approved issuance of a $200 million street improvements bond
package for the purpose of providing permanent public improvements. The funding will acquire,
construct and reconstruct street improvements, including but not limited to sidewalks, utility line
relocations and traffic signalization, necessary and related storm drainage facilities, and the
acquisition of land and rights-of-way for the full width dedication.

Project Highlights Project History

Council Priorities Addressed:
Public Safety
Community Improvement
Growth and Development

FY 2022-23 $3,500,000 was appropriated by
Ord. 2022-O0169
FY 2023-24 $13,000,000 was appropriated by
Ord. 2023-O0108
FY 2023-24 $500,000 was appropriated by BCR
2024-21

Project Dates Project Location

Design Start Date: 02/2023
Design Completion: 05/2024
Bid for Constuction:08/2024
Award Construction: 10/2024
Project Completion: 04/2026

Milwaukee Ave - North City Limits to 4th Street

Project Appropriations

Appropriation to Date 2024 - 25 Budget 2025 - 26 Budget 2026 - 27 Budget 2027 - 28 Budget 2028 - 29 Budget 2029 - 30 Budget

Construction $17,000,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL $17,000,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Project Funding

Funding to Date 2024 - 25 Budget 2025 - 26 Budget 2026 - 27 Budget 2027 - 28 Budget 2028 - 29 Budget 2029 - 30 Budget

General Obligation Bonds $17,000,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL $17,000,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

CIP 92819CIP 92819 Milwaukee Avenue: North City Milwaukee Avenue: North City
Limits to 4th Street - 22BLimits to 4th Street - 22B

New Roadway InfrastructureNew Roadway Infrastructure

Project Manager: Mike Keenum - EngineeringProject Manager: Mike Keenum - Engineering



Operating Budget Impacts

Description 2024-25 2025-26 2026-27 2027-28 2028-29 2029-30 Total

No Impact Anticipated $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Powered by OpenGov

https://opengov.com/


 AI# 12747 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 6. 10. 
08/13/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Engineering: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute Amendment No. 2 to
Professional Services Agreement, Contract 17074, with Freese and Nichols, Inc., for the design of the
Upland Avenue from 34th Street to 50th Street 2022 Road Bond Project, and street bond management.  

Item Summary
On November 8, 2022, Lubbock voters approved issuance of a $200 million street improvements bond
package for the purpose of providing permanent public improvements.  The funding provides for street
improvements, including but not limited to sidewalks, utility line relocations and traffic signals,
necessary and related storm drainage facilities, and the acquisition of land and rights-of-way (ROW) for
the full width dedication.

On January 10, 2023, the City Council awarded Contract 17074 to Freese and Nichols, Inc., (FNI), for
providing design services, including surveying, drainage design, traffic control and signalization plans,
utility coordination, and bid phase services. The original contract also included street bond management
assistance.

Amendment No. 1 to Contract 17074 was awarded to FNI on July 25, 2023, for street bond program
management assistance efforts, with a 12-month time extension. The scope of work included website
management, ROW acquisition and utility coordination for all bond road projects.

Amendment No. 2 will include the cost of the licensing renewal for the project management software
(PMIS), additional design services, bond program management services, bid phase assistance, and
surveying and land acquisition services.

Fiscal Impact
Amendment No. 2 in the amount of $620,141, is funded in Capital Improvements Project 92815, Upland
Avenue: 34th Street to 50th Street – 22B.

Staff/Board Recommending
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager
Michael G. Keenum, P.E., Division Director of Engineering/City Engineer

Attachments
Resolution 
Amendment 2 
Amendment 1 
Contract 17074 



Location Exhibit 
CIP Spreadsheet 
CIP Detail 





Page 1 of 2 
 

Amendment 2 

To Agreement Between  

The City of Lubbock, TX 

And  

Freese and Nichols, Inc. 

 

 

THIS IS THE SECOND AMENDMENT TO THE AGREEMENT Contract No. 17074 dated and entered 

into the 10th day of January 2023 by and between the City of Lubbock (“City”) and Freese and Nichols, 

Inc. (“Engineer”), a Texas Professional Corporation, for providing engineering services for the design of 

Upland Avenue from 34th Street to 50th Street and Bond Management Assistance (“Project”). 

 

WITNESSETH: 

 

WHEREAS, the City and Engineer entered into Amendment No. 1 to the Agreement on July 25, 2023 for 

the provision of additional services to be performed by the Engineer.   

WHEREAS, the City and Engineer have determined additional time and compensation are needed to 

complete ongoing work on the Project, the details of which are as set forth in “Exhibit A”, attached hereto 

and incorporated herein. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, the City and Engineer agree to the terms of this SECOND AMENDMENT: 

 

THAT,  the Parties agree the Engineer shall provide services as set forth in “Exhibit A”, and the 

compensation for those services shall be provided at an amount not to exceed six hundred twenty thousand 

one hundred forty-one dollars and NO/100 ($620,141.00).  The term of the Agreement is hereby extended 

an additional twelve (12) months.  All remaining terms of the Agreement and previous Amendment are 

unaltered by this Amendment No. 2. 

 

 

 IN WITNESS HEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement as of this ____ day of ______ 

2024. 

 

CITY OF LUBBOCK     

__________________________    

Mark W. McBrayer, Mayor     

 

 

 

ATTEST:      

   

___________________________    

Courtney Paz, City Secretary   

  

 

 

 





City of Lubbock Upland Avenue 
Attachment A From 34th Street to 50th Street, Additional Survey and Land Acquisition 
Page 1 of 5 Amendment #2 

 EXHIBIT A 

Scope for Engineering Design Related Services for 

Upland Avenue (from 34th Street to 50th Street),  

Additional Survey and Land Acquisition  

AMENDMENT #2 

PROJECT UNDERSTANDING 

As the City of Lubbock (City) roadway bond program advances with projects, the City 
identified a need for land acquisition uniformity and coordination. Freese and Nichols (FNI) 
and team will provide services related to coordinating and overseeing overall land 
acquisition efforts. Article 1 Term of the contract will be amended and extended an 
additional 12 months for the program management task effective from the date this 
amendment is executed. The design tasks will not be impacted by the schedule extension.  

 

WORK TO BE PERFORMED 

ENGINEERING DESIGN: 

TASK 1. DESIGN MANAGEMENT AND QA/QC 

ENGINEER will provide design management and QA/QC services in accordance with the 
original executed contract and extend these services for the additional 12 months of contract 
time and scope. 

TASK 4. BOND MANAGEMENT SERVICES AND VAULT MODIFICATION DESIGN  

ENGINEER will provide support the CITY in the management of the overall bond program 
by providing program management services and staff augmentation for the schedule 
duration of this contract shown in Exhibit B. ENGINEER will provide design services along 
the Low Head C pipeline. As needed by the CITY, ENGINEER will provide the following 
additional items, up to the maximum contract value: 

 
4.8 Design for water and sewer improvements package 

• Engineer will develop plans, specifications and OPCC for vault modifications 
along the Low Head C pipeline.  The design will include modification details for 
15 vaults between 19th Street and 66th Street. 

• Include City designed waterline package as part of bid documents and bid 
package. 

• Include City designed sewer line package as part of bid documents and bid 
package. 

ASSUMPTIONS 

• Electronic copy (PDF) of the plans, project manual, and OPCC for 100% Design. 

DELIVERABLES 



City of Lubbock Upland Avenue 
Exhibit A From 34th Street to 50th Street and Bond Management 
Page 2 of 5 Amendment #2 

A. Final Design Plans (100%) 

B. Final Design Specifications (100%) 

C. Opinion of Probable Construction Cost (100%) 

TASK 5. BID PHASE SERVICES. 

ENGINEER will provide bid phase services in accordance with the original executed contract 
and extend these services to cover the new design scope of the water line vault 
modifications and corresponding bid process. 

TASK 6. ROW/EASEMENT SERVICES. 

ENGINEER will provide ROW/Easement services in accordance with the original executed 
contract and extend these services to account for 10 additional individual appraisals. 

TASK 7. SURVEY AND SUBSURFACE UTILITY ENGINEERING SERVICES. 
 
ENGINEER will provide survey and subsurface utility engineering in accordance with the 
original executed contract and extend these services on account of ongoing development 
and changes to the project, specifically at 34th Street and 50th Street. 

PROGRAM MANAGEMENT: 

TASK 10. PROJECT MANAGEMENT INFORMATION SYSTEM (PMIS) 
EVALUATION, SELECTION, AND IMPLEMENTATION. 

10.3 Renewal of PMIS Software License  

• At the direction of the CITY, ENGINEER shall engage with selected PMIS 
software vendor to renew the CITY license for one additional year (Calendar year 
2024) 

 

TASK 11. ROAD BOND PROGRAM MANAGEMENT SERVICES 

ENGINEER will provide support to the CITY in the management of the overall bond program 
by providing program management services for the schedule duration of this contract shown 
in Exhibit B. As needed by the CITY, ENGINEER will provide the following items, up to the 
maximum contract value: 

 
11.5 Program Progress Reporting (Reports, Data, Analysis, and Information intended for 

staff consumption) 
• Develop a written monthly status report with abbreviated status update on each 

project, photos updates, snapshots from the Power BI/PMIS dashboards, 
schedule and financial summaries, and other information requested by the CITY. 

 
11.6 Stakeholder Analysis, Public Engagement, and Communication Plan (Project 

updates and information intended for public consumption) 
• Provide and update content for public facing roadway bond website. 



City of Lubbock Upland Avenue 
Exhibit A From 34th Street to 50th Street and Bond Management 
Page 3 of 5 Amendment #2 

• Develop and deliver stakeholder presentations with an overall bond perspective, 
coordinate with individual project teams for content. 

11.7 Land Acquisition  

• FNI and team will provide legal support for the CITY for land acquisition up to but 
not including condemnation. These services include: 

• Review of form documents to be used in the acquisition process. 

• General title assistance. 

• Limited legal support regarding projects, as needed.  

• FNI and team will develop, coordinate, and manage a uniform approach for land 
acquisition. These services include:  

• Coordinate, review and approve title, appraisals, market studies, legal 
descriptions, and right of way plans and all documentation prepared for 
parcel acquisition, relocation, and condemnation for accuracy and 
completeness for each project in the roadway bond. 

• Update land acquisition standard templates and forms being used on all 
bond projects, as needed.   

• Coordinate, review and approve letters on behalf of the City on all bond 
projects, as needed. 

• Review initial offers, counteroffers, and settlements on all bond projects.  

• Support the city in the development of documents, maps, or exhibits 
needed for City Council consideration of payment requests, closing, and 
final payment to landowner.  

• Conduct status meetings with right of way consultants supporting each 
project in the bond and ensure status tracking sheets are updated and 
current.  

• Monitor program schedules to ensure that the work is completed on time 
and within parameters.  

• Provide oversight and management of land acquisition efforts to ensure 
the projects follow the uniform act, state law, and City of Lubbock 
guidelines.  

• Maintain and update the SharePoint Site for land acquisition and utility 
coordination.  

 
ASSUMPTIONS 

Road Bond Program Management Services are to be provided for a duration of one 
year. Future Program Management Services may be authorized later if desired by 
the CITY. 

 



City of Lubbock Upland Avenue 
Exhibit A From 34th Street to 50th Street and Bond Management 
Page 4 of 5 Amendment #2 

DELIVERABLES 

A. Monthly program reports and/or program presentations 

B. Monthly program schedule updates  

C. Monthly website updates 

D. Weekly updates to the project tracking dashboards 

 

11.8 Owners Advisory Services During Construction 
• FNI will provide the CITY with program construction management support, as 

needed to assist the CITY with change management, issues resolution, and 
claims negotiations and resolution.   

  



City of Lubbock Upland Avenue 
Exhibit A From 34th Street to 50th Street and Bond Management 
Page 5 of 5 Amendment #2 

EXHIBIT A, PART 2, ADDITIONAL SERVICES 

Upland Avenue (from 34th Street to 50th Street) and  

Program Management Services for Management of the Road Bond 

 

Additional Services not included in the existing Scope of Services – CITY and 
ENGINEER agree that the following services are beyond the Scope of Services described in 
the tasks above.  However, ENGINEER can provide these services, if needed, upon the 
CITY’s written request.  Any additional amounts paid to the ENGINEER as a result of any 
material change to the Scope of the Project shall be agreed upon in writing by both parties 
before the services are performed.  These additional services include the following: 

• Services related to Design Management, Final Design, Bid Phase, or PMIS Evaluation 
and Implementation that exceed the maximum effort specified by the contract and 
amendments. 

 



EXHIBIT B 

Budget for Engineering Design Related Services for 

Upland Avenue (from 34th Street to 50th Street) and  

Program Management Services for Management of the Road Bond 

AMENDMENT #2 

 

CITY and ENGINEER have established a not-to-exceed budget of $620,141 to complete all engineering 

design services and program management services as directed under this AGREEMENT. This amount will 

not be exceeded without a contract amendment. CITY will pay the ENGINEER hourly, for services identified 

in Exhibit A, based on ENGINEERS Fee Schedule presented as EXHIBITS B, Parts 1-2.  Subconsultant services 

will be billed at cost to ENGINEER with a 10 percent handling fee.  The Budget is presented for the services 

of ENGINEER under this AGREEMENT are provided in this Exhibit B.  CITY and ENGINEER agree to allow 

redistribution of funds between Tasks as appropriate to allow flexibility in providing the needed services 

within the not-to-exceed budget.    

ENGINEER agrees to complete these services as delineated above.  Should there be a Change in Scope of 

Work or Time of Performance, then this can result in an amendment to this contract which shall be 

negotiated at that time.   

The budget assumes that all work will be completed in in accordance within the proposed project schedule 

of 12 months from execution of this amendment.  The schedule may be extended by six months if the 

CITY and ENGINEER mutually agree. 

 



EXHIBIT B, PART 2 HOURLY RATE SCHEDULE COMPENSATION  

FOR ENGINEERING DESIGN RELATED SERVICES FOR 

UPLAND AVENUE (FROM 34TH STREET TO 50TH STREET) AND  

PROGRAM MANAGEMENT SERVICES FOR MANAGEMENT OF THE ROAD BOND 

AMENDMENT #2 

 

 



Fr
ee

se
 a

nd
 N

ic
ho

ls
, I

nc
.

Pr
oj

ec
t F

ee
 S

um
m

ar
y

U
pl

an
d 

Av
e 

34
th

 to
 5

0t
h 

- A
m

en
dm

en
t #

2
7/

3/
20

24
D

et
ai

le
d 

C
os

t B
re

ak
do

w
n

Ta
sk

s
La

bo
r

Ke
vi

n 
M

or
ris

D
av

id
 G

re
en

M
at

th
ew

 R
os

s
Ka

yc
ee

 W
el

ch
Fa

bi
an

 A
m

al
la

N
ic

k 
Le

st
er

M
ic

ha
el

 M
cB

ee
Ji

llia
n 

N
av

a
R

ya
n 

O
pg

en
or

th
Aa

ro
n 

Li
tte

ke
n

Ja
ne

 J
en

ks
M

is
ty

 B
al

la
rd

C
hu

ck
 G

ilm
an

PM
AP

M
EI

T
EI

T
C

AD
Se

ni
or

 A
dv

is
or

U
til

 T
L

U
til

 S
up

po
rt

U
til

 Q
C

C
AD

Bi
d 

Su
pp

or
t

O
pe

r. 
An

al
ys

t
Pr

og
ra

m
 M

gr

$2
34

$2
00

$1
52

$1
52

$1
00

$2
93

$2
00

$1
73

$2
00

$1
68

$1
26

$1
40

$2
93

1.
 D

es
ig

n 
M

gm
t a

nd
 Q

C
/Q

A
PM

 / 
Pr

od
uc

tio
n

Ba
si

c
O

ng
oi

ng
 P

ro
je

ct
 M

an
ag

em
en

t
12

16
8

2
2

2
PM

 / 
Pr

od
uc

tio
n

Ba
si

c
U

til
ity

 P
la

n 
Se

t C
oo

rd
in

at
io

n 
an

d 
C

lie
nt

 M
ee

tin
gs

2
4

4
4

4
Q

ua
lit

y 
C

on
tro

l
Ba

si
c

Q
ua

lit
y 

C
on

tro
l U

til
ity

 P
la

ns
 (C

ity
 a

nd
 F

N
I)

4
4

12
SA

 / 
Q

A
Ba

si
c

Q
ua

lit
y 

As
su

ra
nc

e 
R

ev
ie

w
s

2
2

2

4.
 F

in
al

 D
es

ig
n

PM
 / 

Pr
od

uc
tio

n
Ba

si
c

FN
I V

au
lt 

D
es

ig
n 

Ad
ju

st
m

en
ts

1
8

16
40

48
PM

 / 
Pr

od
uc

tio
n

Ba
si

c
C

ity
 D

es
ig

n 
Ad

ju
st

m
en

ts
 - 

FN
I C

oo
rd

in
at

io
n

1
2

2
4

8
8

PM
 / 

Pr
od

uc
tio

n
Ba

si
c

R
oa

dw
ay

 p
ac

ka
ge

 d
es

ig
n 

up
da

te
s

4
8

16
16

40

5.
 B

id
 P

ha
se

 S
er

vi
ce

s
PM

 / 
Pr

od
uc

tio
n

Ba
si

c
Ad

di
tio

na
l b

id
 p

ac
ka

ge
 fo

r u
til

ity
 im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
2

2
12

24
4

6.
 R

O
W

/E
AS

EM
EN

T 
SE

R
VI

C
ES

PM
 / 

Pr
od

uc
tio

n
Ba

si
c

R
O

W
/E

as
em

en
t (

Ap
pr

ai
sa

ls
)

2
4

8

7.
 S

ur
ve

y 
an

d 
Su

bs
ur

fa
ce

 U
til

ity
 E

ng
in

ee
rin

g 
Se

rv
ic

es
PM

 / 
Pr

od
uc

tio
n

Ba
si

c
Ad

di
tio

na
l D

es
ig

n 
Su

rv
ey

 
2

4

10
. P

M
IS

 E
VA

LU
AT

IO
N

, S
EL

EC
TI

O
N

, A
N

D
 IM

PL
EM

EN
TA

TI
O

N
PM

 / 
Pr

od
uc

tio
n

Ba
si

c
Ka

hu
a 

Li
ce

ns
e 

R
en

ew
al

PM
 / 

Pr
od

uc
tio

n
Ba

si
c

11
. R

oa
d 

B
on

d 
M

an
ag

em
en

t S
er

vi
ce

s
48

32
0

18
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

32
 

   
   

   
   

   
   

86
 

   
   

   
   

   
   

36
 

   
   

   
   

   
 3

36
 

   
   

   
   

   
   

48
 

   
   

   
   

   
   

10
 

   
   

   
   

   
   

40
 

   
   

   
   

   
   

78
 

   
   

   
   

   
   

12
 

   
   

   
   

   
   

48
 

   
   

   
   

   
   

  4
 

   
   

   
   

   
   

  8
 

   
   

   
   

   
 1

82
 

 $
   

   
   

 7
,4

88
 

 $
   

   
  1

7,
20

0 
 $

   
   

   
 5

,4
72

 
 $

   
   

  5
1,

07
2 

 $
   

   
   

 4
,8

00
 

 $
   

   
   

 2
,9

30
 

 $
   

   
   

 8
,0

00
 

 $
   

   
  1

3,
49

4 
 $

   
   

   
 2

,4
00

 
 $

   
   

   
 8

,0
64

 
 $

   
   

   
   

 5
04

 
 $

   
   

   
 1

,1
20

 
 $

   
   

  5
3,

32
6 

B
as

ic
 S

er
vi

ce
s

62
0,

14
1

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

Sp
ec

ia
l S

er
vi

ce
s

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   

Ta
sk

To
ta

l P
ro

je
ct

62
0,

14
1

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

Ac
tiv

ity
B

as
ic

 o
r 

Sp
ec

ia
l

Ta
sk

 D
es

cr
ip

tio
n

To
ta

l E
ffo

rt
To

ta
l H

ou
rs

 / 
Q

ua
nt

ity

1 
of

 4
L:

\C
lie

nt
\O

LC
R

\L
\L

ub
bo

ck
\2

02
2 

Bo
nd

 P
ro

gr
am

\U
pl

an
d 

Av
en

ue
 3

4t
h-

50
th

\A
m

en
dm

en
t 2

\B
oo

k1
.x

lsx
7/

3/
20

24



Fr
ee

se
 a

nd
 N

ic
ho

ls
, I

nc
.

 
 

U
pl

an
d 

Av
e 

34
th

 to
 5

0t
h 

- A
m

en
dm

en
t #

2
7/

3/
20

24
D

et
ai

le
d 

C
os

t B
re

ak
do

w
n

Ta
sk

s

1.
 D

es
ig

n 
M

gm
t a

nd
 Q

C
/Q

A
PM

 / 
Pr

od
uc

tio
n

Ba
si

c
O

ng
oi

ng
 P

ro
je

ct
 M

an
ag

em
en

t
PM

 / 
Pr

od
uc

tio
n

Ba
si

c
U

til
ity

 P
la

n 
Se

t C
oo

rd
in

at
io

n 
an

d 
C

lie
nt

 M
ee

tin
gs

Q
ua

lit
y 

C
on

tro
l

Ba
si

c
Q

ua
lit

y 
C

on
tro

l U
til

ity
 P

la
ns

 (C
ity

 a
nd

 F
N

I)
SA

 / 
Q

A
Ba

si
c

Q
ua

lit
y 

As
su

ra
nc

e 
R

ev
ie

w
s

4.
 F

in
al

 D
es

ig
n

PM
 / 

Pr
od

uc
tio

n
Ba

si
c

FN
I V

au
lt 

D
es

ig
n 

Ad
ju

st
m

en
ts

PM
 / 

Pr
od

uc
tio

n
Ba

si
c

C
ity

 D
es

ig
n 

Ad
ju

st
m

en
ts

 - 
FN

I C
oo

rd
in

at
io

n
PM

 / 
Pr

od
uc

tio
n

Ba
si

c
R

oa
dw

ay
 p

ac
ka

ge
 d

es
ig

n 
up

da
te

s

5.
 B

id
 P

ha
se

 S
er

vi
ce

s
PM

 / 
Pr

od
uc

tio
n

Ba
si

c
Ad

di
tio

na
l b

id
 p

ac
ka

ge
 fo

r u
til

ity
 im

pr
ov

em
en

ts

6.
 R

O
W

/E
AS

EM
EN

T 
SE

R
VI

C
ES

PM
 / 

Pr
od

uc
tio

n
Ba

si
c

R
O

W
/E

as
em

en
t (

Ap
pr

ai
sa

ls
)

7.
 S

ur
ve

y 
an

d 
Su

bs
ur

fa
ce

 U
til

ity
 E

ng
in

ee
rin

g 
Se

rv
ic

es
PM

 / 
Pr

od
uc

tio
n

Ba
si

c
Ad

di
tio

na
l D

es
ig

n 
Su

rv
ey

 

10
. P

M
IS

 E
VA

LU
AT

IO
N

, S
EL

EC
TI

O
N

, A
N

D
 IM

PL
EM

EN
TA

TI
O

N
PM

 / 
Pr

od
uc

tio
n

Ba
si

c
Ka

hu
a 

Li
ce

ns
e 

R
en

ew
al

PM
 / 

Pr
od

uc
tio

n
Ba

si
c

11
. R

oa
d 

B
on

d 
M

an
ag

em
en

t S
er

vi
ce

s

Ta
sk

Ac
tiv

ity
B

as
ic

 o
r 

Sp
ec

ia
l

Ta
sk

 D
es

cr
ip

tio
n

To
ta

l E
ffo

rt
To

ta
l H

ou
rs

 / 
Q

ua
nt

ity

 
 

Je
ne

lle
 O

st
ro

w
sk

i
Ad

am
 P

ay
ne

Br
oo

ki
n 

W
at

so
n

Pr
oj

ec
t C

on
tro

ls
C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

M
gr

W
eb

 M
as

te
r

$2
34

$3
05

$6
5

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

42
8,

55
6

$ 
   

   
   

   
18

3,
36

8
$ 

   
   

   
   

20
4,

50
8

$ 
   

   
   

   
6

1,
45

4
$ 

   
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 -

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
11

3
19

,2
18

$ 
   

   
   

 
25

4,
52

4
$ 

   
   

   
   

84
11

,4
00

$ 
   

   
   

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 -
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

44
8,

11
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 -
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

14
2,

48
4

$ 
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 -
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

6
1,

26
8

$ 
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 -
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 -

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 -
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

28
0

32
0

12
1,

16
0

27
4,

88
0

$ 
   

   
  

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 -

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 -
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

   
   

   
   

   
 2

80
 

   
   

   
   

   
 3

20
 

   
   

   
   

   
   

12
 

1,
53

2
   

   
   

   
 

 $
   

   
  6

5,
52

0 
 $

   
   

  9
7,

60
0 

 $
   

   
   

   
 7

80
 

33
9,

77
0

$ 
   

   
  

To
ta

l H
ou

rs
To

ta
l L

ab
or

 
Ef

fo
rt

2 
of

 4
L:

\C
lie

nt
\O

LC
R

\L
\L

ub
bo

ck
\2

02
2 

Bo
nd

 P
ro

gr
am

\U
pl

an
d 

Av
en

ue
 3

4t
h-

50
th

\A
m

en
dm

en
t 2

\B
oo

k1
.x

lsx
7/

3/
20

24



Fr
ee

se
 a

nd
 N

ic
ho

ls
, I

nc
.

 
 

U
pl

an
d 

Av
e 

34
th

 to
 5

0t
h 

- A
m

en
dm

en
t #

2
7/

3/
20

24
D

et
ai

le
d 

C
os

t B
re

ak
do

w
n

Ta
sk

s

1.
 D

es
ig

n 
M

gm
t a

nd
 Q

C
/Q

A
PM

 / 
Pr

od
uc

tio
n

Ba
si

c
O

ng
oi

ng
 P

ro
je

ct
 M

an
ag

em
en

t
PM

 / 
Pr

od
uc

tio
n

Ba
si

c
U

til
ity

 P
la

n 
Se

t C
oo

rd
in

at
io

n 
an

d 
C

lie
nt

 M
ee

tin
gs

Q
ua

lit
y 

C
on

tro
l

Ba
si

c
Q

ua
lit

y 
C

on
tro

l U
til

ity
 P

la
ns

 (C
ity

 a
nd

 F
N

I)
SA

 / 
Q

A
Ba

si
c

Q
ua

lit
y 

As
su

ra
nc

e 
R

ev
ie

w
s

4.
 F

in
al

 D
es

ig
n

PM
 / 

Pr
od

uc
tio

n
Ba

si
c

FN
I V

au
lt 

D
es

ig
n 

Ad
ju

st
m

en
ts

PM
 / 

Pr
od

uc
tio

n
Ba

si
c

C
ity

 D
es

ig
n 

Ad
ju

st
m

en
ts

 - 
FN

I C
oo

rd
in

at
io

n
PM

 / 
Pr

od
uc

tio
n

Ba
si

c
R

oa
dw

ay
 p

ac
ka

ge
 d

es
ig

n 
up

da
te

s

5.
 B

id
 P

ha
se

 S
er

vi
ce

s
PM

 / 
Pr

od
uc

tio
n

Ba
si

c
Ad

di
tio

na
l b

id
 p

ac
ka

ge
 fo

r u
til

ity
 im

pr
ov

em
en

ts

6.
 R

O
W

/E
AS

EM
EN

T 
SE

R
VI

C
ES

PM
 / 

Pr
od

uc
tio

n
Ba

si
c

R
O

W
/E

as
em

en
t (

Ap
pr

ai
sa

ls
)

7.
 S

ur
ve

y 
an

d 
Su

bs
ur

fa
ce

 U
til

ity
 E

ng
in

ee
rin

g 
Se

rv
ic

es
PM

 / 
Pr

od
uc

tio
n

Ba
si

c
Ad

di
tio

na
l D

es
ig

n 
Su

rv
ey

 

10
. P

M
IS

 E
VA

LU
AT

IO
N

, S
EL

EC
TI

O
N

, A
N

D
 IM

PL
EM

EN
TA

TI
O

N
PM

 / 
Pr

od
uc

tio
n

Ba
si

c
Ka

hu
a 

Li
ce

ns
e 

R
en

ew
al

PM
 / 

Pr
od

uc
tio

n
Ba

si
c

11
. R

oa
d 

B
on

d 
M

an
ag

em
en

t S
er

vi
ce

s

Ta
sk

Ac
tiv

ity
B

as
ic

 o
r 

Sp
ec

ia
l

Ta
sk

 D
es

cr
ip

tio
n

To
ta

l E
ffo

rt
To

ta
l H

ou
rs

 / 
Q

ua
nt

ity

Pr
oj

ec
t F

ee
 S

um
m

ar
y

 
 

Ex
pe

ns
es

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

42
35

7
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
18

15
3

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

20
17

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
6

51
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  -

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 -
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

11
3

1,
28

0
1,

81
8

$ 
   

   
   

   
25

21
3

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

84
71

4
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 -
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

44
64

0
80

3
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 -
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

14
11

9
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 -
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

6
51

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  -
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 -

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
85

,0
00

93
,5

00
$ 

   
   

   
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

1,
16

0
9,

86
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 -
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 -

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
1,

53
2

   
   

   
   

 
1,

92
0

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

  
85

,0
00

   
   

   
  

13
,0

22
$ 

   
   

  
1,

28
6

$ 
   

   
   

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
93

,5
00

$ 
   

   
  

10
7,

80
8

$ 
   

   
  

B
as

ic
 S

er
vi

ce
s

62
0,

14
1

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 62

0,
14

1
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
Sp

ec
ia

l S
er

vi
ce

s
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

To
ta

l P
ro

je
ct

Te
ch

 C
ha

rg
e

M
ile

s
M

ea
ls

H
ot

el
Ka

hu
a 

Li
ce

ns
e

To
ta

l E
xp

en
se

 
Ef

fo
rt

3 
of

 4
L:

\C
lie

nt
\O

LC
R

\L
\L

ub
bo

ck
\2

02
2 

Bo
nd

 P
ro

gr
am

\U
pl

an
d 

Av
en

ue
 3

4t
h-

50
th

\A
m

en
dm

en
t 2

\B
oo

k1
.x

lsx
7/

3/
20

24



Fr
ee

se
 a

nd
 N

ic
ho

ls
, I

nc
.

 
 

U
pl

an
d 

Av
e 

34
th

 to
 5

0t
h 

- A
m

en
dm

en
t #

2
7/

3/
20

24
D

et
ai

le
d 

C
os

t B
re

ak
do

w
n

Ta
sk

s

1.
 D

es
ig

n 
M

gm
t a

nd
 Q

C
/Q

A
PM

 / 
Pr

od
uc

tio
n

Ba
si

c
O

ng
oi

ng
 P

ro
je

ct
 M

an
ag

em
en

t
PM

 / 
Pr

od
uc

tio
n

Ba
si

c
U

til
ity

 P
la

n 
Se

t C
oo

rd
in

at
io

n 
an

d 
C

lie
nt

 M
ee

tin
gs

Q
ua

lit
y 

C
on

tro
l

Ba
si

c
Q

ua
lit

y 
C

on
tro

l U
til

ity
 P

la
ns

 (C
ity

 a
nd

 F
N

I)
SA

 / 
Q

A
Ba

si
c

Q
ua

lit
y 

As
su

ra
nc

e 
R

ev
ie

w
s

4.
 F

in
al

 D
es

ig
n

PM
 / 

Pr
od

uc
tio

n
Ba

si
c

FN
I V

au
lt 

D
es

ig
n 

Ad
ju

st
m

en
ts

PM
 / 

Pr
od

uc
tio

n
Ba

si
c

C
ity

 D
es

ig
n 

Ad
ju

st
m

en
ts

 - 
FN

I C
oo

rd
in

at
io

n
PM

 / 
Pr

od
uc

tio
n

Ba
si

c
R

oa
dw

ay
 p

ac
ka

ge
 d

es
ig

n 
up

da
te

s

5.
 B

id
 P

ha
se

 S
er

vi
ce

s
PM

 / 
Pr

od
uc

tio
n

Ba
si

c
Ad

di
tio

na
l b

id
 p

ac
ka

ge
 fo

r u
til

ity
 im

pr
ov

em
en

ts

6.
 R

O
W

/E
AS

EM
EN

T 
SE

R
VI

C
ES

PM
 / 

Pr
od

uc
tio

n
Ba

si
c

R
O

W
/E

as
em

en
t (

Ap
pr

ai
sa

ls
)

7.
 S

ur
ve

y 
an

d 
Su

bs
ur

fa
ce

 U
til

ity
 E

ng
in

ee
rin

g 
Se

rv
ic

es
PM

 / 
Pr

od
uc

tio
n

Ba
si

c
Ad

di
tio

na
l D

es
ig

n 
Su

rv
ey

 

10
. P

M
IS

 E
VA

LU
AT

IO
N

, S
EL

EC
TI

O
N

, A
N

D
 IM

PL
EM

EN
TA

TI
O

N
PM

 / 
Pr

od
uc

tio
n

Ba
si

c
Ka

hu
a 

Li
ce

ns
e 

R
en

ew
al

PM
 / 

Pr
od

uc
tio

n
Ba

si
c

11
. R

oa
d 

B
on

d 
M

an
ag

em
en

t S
er

vi
ce

s

Ta
sk

Ac
tiv

ity
B

as
ic

 o
r 

Sp
ec

ia
l

Ta
sk

 D
es

cr
ip

tio
n

To
ta

l E
ffo

rt
To

ta
l H

ou
rs

 / 
Q

ua
nt

ity

Pr
oj

ec
t F

ee
 S

um
m

ar
y

Su
bc

on
su

lta
nt

s
To

ta
l

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

8,
91

3
$ 

   
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

3,
52

1
$ 

   
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

4,
67

8
$ 

   
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

1,
50

5
$ 

   
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

21
,0

36
$ 

   
   

   
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

4,
73

7
$ 

   
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

12
,1

14
$ 

   
   

   
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

8,
91

3
$ 

   
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

35
,2

00
38

,7
20

$ 
   

   
   

 
41

,3
23

$ 
   

   
   

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
13

,6
75

15
,0

43
$ 

   
   

   
 

16
,3

62
$ 

   
   

   
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

93
,5

00
$ 

   
   

   
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

10
8,

00
0

11
8,

80
0

$ 
   

   
  

40
3,

54
0

$ 
   

   
  

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

14
3,

20
0

$ 
   

   
  

13
,6

75
$ 

   
   

   
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

15
7,

52
0

$ 
   

   
  

15
,0

43
$ 

   
   

   
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

17
2,

56
3

$ 
   

   
  

62
0,

14
1

$ 
   

   
  

B
as

ic
 S

er
vi

ce
s

To
ta

l P
ro

je
ct

62
0,

14
1

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  62
0,

14
1

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
Sp

ec
ia

l S
er

vi
ce

s
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

Pi
nn

ac
le

 
(A

cq
ui

si
tio

n)
To

ta
l S

ub
 

Ef
fo

rt
To

ta
l E

ffo
rt

C
ob

b 
Fe

nd
le

y 
(S

ur
ve

y)
Su

b 
N

am
e 

3
Su

b 
N

am
e 

4

4 
of

 4
L:

\C
lie

nt
\O

LC
R

\L
\L

ub
bo

ck
\2

02
2 

Bo
nd

 P
ro

gr
am

\U
pl

an
d 

Av
en

ue
 3

4t
h-

50
th

\A
m

en
dm

en
t 2

\B
oo

k1
.x

lsx
7/

3/
20

24



Resolution No. 2023- R0359

Item No. 5. 13

July 25, 2023

RESOLUTION

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LUBBOCK: 

THAT the Mayor of the City of Lubbock is hereby authorized and directed to execute for
and on behalf of the City of Lubbock, Amendment No. 1 to that certain Agreement Contract No. 
17074 for the design of Upland Avenue from 34th Street to SOth Street and street bond

management assistance, by and between the City of Lubbock and Freese and Nichols, Inc., and

related documents. Said Amendment is attached hereto and incorporated in this resolution as if

fully set forth herein and shall be included in the minutes of the City Council. 

Passed by the City Coi ncil on July 25, 2023

i- - PAY ,, MAYOR

ATTEST: 

Courtney Paz, City Secr t

APPROVED AS TO CONTENT: 

Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

K lli Leisure, Senior Assistant City Attorney

ccdocslRES. Amend # I PSA- No. 17074— Upland 34'' to 50`h

7. 18. 23



Resolution No. 2023- R0359

Amendment 1

To Agreement Behveen

The City of Lubbock, TX
And

Freese and Nichols, Inc. 

THIS IS THE FIIZST AMENDMENT TO THE AGREEMENT, Contract No. 17074, dated and entered

into the l Oth day of January, 2023 by and between the City of Lubbock (" City") and Freese and Nichols, 

Inc. (" Engineer"), a Texas Professional Corporation, for the design of Upland Avenue from 34th Street to

SOth Street and street bond management assistance (" Project"). 

WITNESSETH: 

WHEREAS, the City desires to increase the scope of the work to be performed by Engineer on the Project. 

NOW, THEREFORE, the City and Engineer agree to the terms of this FIRST AMENDMENT: 

The new scope shall include right- of-way land acquisition services, the details of work to be performed are
set forth in Exhibit " A", attached to and incorporated herein. The additional services shall be provided for
an amount not exceed $ 393, 388. 00 as set forth and incorporated herein as Exhibit " B". The term of the

contract shall be extended an additional twelve ( 12) months for the performance of these additional services. 

WHEREAS, all other portions of the original Agreement shall remain in place and are not altered by this
amendment. 

IN WITNESS HEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement as of this 25 day of July
2023. 

A TEST: 

Co rtney Paz, City Se etary

Amendment 1 — Contract 17074



APPROVED AS TO CONTENT: 

L-.,. 
Michael G. Keenum, P.E., Division Director of Engineering/ City Engineer

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

lli eisu e, Senior Assistant City Attorney

FREESE AND NICHOLS, INC. 

John Dey var, P. E., Vice President/ Principal

Amendment 1 - Contract 17074



EXHIBIT A

Scope for Enqineerinq Desiqn Related Services for

Upland Avenue ( from 34th Street to 50th Street) and

Proqram Manaqement Services for Manaqement of the Road Bond

AMENDMENT # 1

PROJECT UNDERSTANDING

As the City of Lubbock (City) roadway bond program advances with projects, the City
identified a need for land acquisition uniformity and coordination. Freese and Nichols ( FNI) 
and team will provide services related to coordinating and overseeing overall land
acquisition efforts. FNI and team will provide legal services to assist in the review of all
documents and processes and provide legal advice to the City up to but not including
condemnation. Article 1 Term of the contract will be amended and extended an additional 12

months for the program management task effective from the date this amendment is
executed. The design tasks will not be impacted by the schedule extension. 

WORK TO BE PERFORMED

PROGRAM MANAGEMENT: 

TASK 11. ROAD BOND PROGRAM MANAGEMENT AND STAFF AUGMENTATION

SERVICES

ENGINEER will provide support to the CITY in the management of the overall bond program
by providing program management services and staff augmentation for the schedule
duration of this contract shown in Exhibit B. As needed by the CITY, ENGINEER will provide
the following items, up to the maximum contract value: 

11. 5 Program Progress Reporting ( Reports, Data, Analysis, and Information intended for
staff consumption) 

Develop a written monthly status reports with abbreviated status update on each
project, photos updates, snapshots from the Power BI/ PMIS dashboards, 
schedule and financial summaries, and other information requested by the CITY. 

11. 6 Stakeholder Analysis, Public Engagement, and Communication Plan ( Project

updates and information intended for public consumption) 

Provide and update content for public facing roadway bond website. 

Develop and deliver stakeholder presentations with an overall bond perspective, 
coordinate with individual project teams for content. 

11. 9 Land Acquisition

City of Lubbock Upland Avenue

Attachment A From 34`" Street to 50`" Street and Bond Management

Page 1 of 4 Amendment # 1



FNI and team will provide with legal guidance for land acquisition up to but not
including condemnation. These services include: 

Reviewing form documents to be used in the acquisition process. 

Providing general title assistance. 

Providing limited legal counsel regarding projects as needed. 

FNI and team will develop, coordinate, and manage a uniform approach for land
acquisition. These services include: 

Reviewing the City' s acquisition process and developing a flowchart and
guidelines to be used for all bond projects. 

Establishing the QA/ QC plan to coordinate, review and approve title, 
appraisals, legal descriptions, and right of way plans and all
documentation prepared for parcel acquisition, relocation, and
condemnation for accuracy. 

Developing uniform templates to be used for all bond projects, and
conducting training on right of way acquisition. 

Coordinating, reviewing and approving letters on behalf of the City. 

Establishing guidelines for counteroffers and settlements. 

Establishing guidelines for submission to and approval by City Council for
all payment requests, closing, and final payment to landowner. 

Developing a file and document management process from initial setup to
final audit and transmittal to City of Lubbock. 

Coordinating status meetings with right of way consultants. 

Monitoring program schedules to ensure that the work is completed on
time and within parameters. 

Providing project management of right of way efforts ensuring the projects
follow the uniform act, state law, and City of Lubbock guidelines. 

Maintaining and updating the SharePoint Site for land acquisition and utility
coordination. 

ASSUMPTIONS

Road Bond Program Management and Staff Augmentation Services are to be

provided for a duration of one year. Future Program Management Services may
be authorized at a later date if desired by the CITY. 

DELIVERABLES

A. Monthly and Quarterly Reports

City of Lubbock Upland Avenue

Exhibit A From 341h Street to 50`h Street and Bond Management
Page 2 of 4 Amendment # 1



B. Land acquisition guidance documents and flow charts. 

C. Uniform templates for acquisition process. 

D. Monthly website updates

E. Monthly program reports and/ or program presentations

F. Monthly program schedule updates

City of Lubbock Upland Avenue

Exhibit A From 34`" Street to 50'" Street and Bond Management

Page 3 of 4 Amendment # 1



EXHIBIT A, PART 2, ADDITIONAL SERVICES

Upland Avenue ( from 34' Street to 50' h Street) and

Proaram Manaqement Services for ManaQement of the Road Bond

Additional Services not included in the existina Scope of Services — CITY and

ENGINEER agree that the following services are beyond the Scope of Services described in
the tasks above. However, ENGINEER can provide these services, if needed, upon the
CITY' s written request. Any additional amounts paid to the ENGINEER as a result of any
material change to the Scope of the Project shall be agreed upon in writing by both parties
before the services are performed. These additional services include the following: 

Services related to Program Management that exceed the maximum effort specified by
the contract and amendments. 

City of Lubbock Upland Avenue

Exhibit A From 34'" Street to 50' 6 Street and Bond Management
Page 4 of 4 Amendment # 1



E

g
g

o
VV

69  
Cp
m

O

N



E

g
qa

m

H

O

N



E

a

o
6  

om

N

























As required by Chapter 2051, Geospatial Data Products of the Government Code, this product is for informational purposes
and may not have been prepared for or be suitable for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes. It does not represent an
on-the-ground survey and represents only the approximate relative location of property boundaries.

³ Upland Avenue from 34th Street to 50th Street

0 1,000 2,000 3,000 4,000 5,000500
Feet

Digital Orthophotography - May 2021

34TH ST

M
IL

W
A

U
K

EE
 A

V
E

58TH ST

50TH ST

MILW
AUKEE

RIDGE

50TH ST
A

LC
O

V
E 

A
V

E

U
PL

A
N

D
 A

V
E

C
IT

Y
 L

IM
IT

S

CITY LIMITS

UPLAND

CROSSIN
G

C
IT

Y
 L

IM
IT

S 
IN

C
IT

Y
 L

IM
IT

S 
O

U
T

C
IT

Y
 L

IM
IT

S 
IN

C
IT

Y
 L

IM
IT

S 
O

U
T

WESTMONT

VIN
EYARDS A

T

ESCONDID
O

RANCH

MARSH
A SH

ARP FW
Y

US 6
2/8

2

W
 LO

O
P 289

SPUR 327

66TH ST

FR
A

N
K

FO
RD

 A
V

E

SL
ID

E 
RD

19TH ST

12TH ST
9TH ST

19TH ST SH 114

IN
LE

R 
A

V
E 

   
 F

M
 1

79

C
H

IC
A

G
O

 A
V

E

M
IL

W
A

U
K

EE
 A

V
E

26TH ST

RE
SE

A
RC

H
 B

LV
D

73RD ST

C
IT

Y
 L

IM
IT

S

CITY LIMITS

MILWAUKEE

RIDGE

43RD ST

A
LC

O
V

E 
A

V
E

ZA
D

A
R 

A
V

E

Y
O

N
K

ER
S 

A
V

E

47TH ST

46TH ST

45TH ST

42ND ST

38TH ST

43RD ST

PR
IM

RO
SE

 A
V

E

PR
EN

TI
SS

 A
V

E

O
A

K
RI

D
G

E 
A

V
EQ
U

IN
C

Y
 A

V
E

RO
C

H
ES

TE
R 

A
V

E

SA
RA

TO
G

A
A

V
E

TU
RN

ER
 A

V
E

TI
FF

IN
 A

V
E

34TH ST

36TH ST

35TH ST

RI
DG

EL
Y 

AVE

34TH PL

35TH ST

36TH ST

37TH ST

PO
N

TI
A

C
 A

V
E

N
O

RW
IC

H
A

V
E

36TH ST

39TH ST

40TH ST

35TH ST

RAIDER

RANCH

UPLAND

CROSSING

FRENSHIP

EAST

L S

FARMS

VINEYARDS AT

ESCONDIDO

RANCH

WEST

MILW
AUKEE

RIDGE

U
PL

A
N

D
 A

V
E

43RD ST

C
H

IC
A

G
O

 A
V

E

SL
ID

E 
RD

50TH ST

U
PL

A
N

D
 A

V
EA
LC

O
V

E 
A

V
E



City of Lubbock
Capital Project

Project Cost Detail
August 13, 2024

Capital Project Number: 92815
Capital Project Name: Upland Ave: 34th to 50th Street - 22B

Encumbered/Expended Budget
Staff time  $                    30,777
Contract 17074 with Freese and Nichols for Design Services                   1,639,143
Contract 17074 Amendment 1 with Freese and Nichols                      393,388
Parcel 1 - ROW Acquisition                        13,874
Parcel 3 - ROW Acquisition                        10,347
Parcel 4 - ROW Acquisition                        15,482
Parcel 13 - ROW Acquisition                        74,031
Parcel 19 - ROW Acquisition                        44,249
Parcel 20 - ROW Acquisition                          1,721
Parcel 8 - ROW Acquisition                        36,507
Parcel 9 - ROW Acquisition                        82,662
Parcel 10 - ROW Acquisition                      122,146
Parcel 11 - ROW Acquisition                        22,064
Parcel 22 - ROW Acquisition                        55,385
Parcel 14 - ROW Acquisition                        25,711
Parcel 15 - ROW Acquisition                          3,984
Parcel 2 - ROW Acquisition                        13,121
Parcel 6 - ROW Acquisition                        12,360
Parcel 7 - ROW Acquisition                        95,666
Parcel 17 - ROW Acquisition                          1,125
Parcel 18 - ROW Acquisition                        28,405
Parcel 21 - ROW Acquisition                        44,115

Agenda Item August 13, 2024
Contract 17074 Amendment 2 with Freese and Nichols                      620,141

Encumbered/Expended To Date                   3,386,405

Estimated Cost for Remaining Appropriation
Construction Upland Ave 34th to 50th                 14,113,595

Remaining Appropriation                                  -

Total Appropriation  $             17,500,000



Project Scope

Upland Avenue from 34th Street to 50th Street is currently  a two-lane paved road and is designated in the  2018
Thoroughfare  Master Plan to become a five - lane Principal Arterial (Modified).  Continued growth in west Lubbock has
increased traffic demands along the  Upland Avenue corridor from 34th Street to 50th Street.  This thoroughfare  will include
the ult imate  design of a five - lane undiv ided thoroughfare  with curb and gutter,  drainage ,  streetlights,  sidewalk
improvements,  ut ility  adjustment and right of way  acquisit ion services.

Project Justi�cation

On November 8, 2022, Lubbock voters approved issuance of a $200 million street improvements bond
package for the purpose of providing permanent public improvements. The funding will acquire,
construct and reconstruct street improvements, including but not limited to sidewalks, utility line
relocations and traffic signalization, necessary and related storm drainage facilities, and the
acquisition of land and rights-of-way for the full width dedication.

Project Highlights Project History

Council Priorities Addressed:
Public Safety
Community Improvement
Growth and Development

FY 2022-23 $4,000,000 was appropriated by
Ord. 2022-O0169
FY 2023-24 $13,500,000 was appropriated by
Ord. 2023-O0108

Project Dates Project Location

Design Start Date: 01/2023
Design Completion: 01/2024
Bid for Constuction:10/2024
Award Construction: 12/2024
Project Completion: 06/2026

Upland Ave - 34th to 50th St

Project Appropriations

Appropriation to Date 2024 - 25 Budget 2025 - 26 Budget 2026 - 27 Budget 2027 - 28 Budget 2028 - 29 Budget 2029 - 30 Budget

Construction $17,500,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL $17,500,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Project Funding

Funding to Date 2024 - 25 Budget 2025 - 26 Budget 2026 - 27 Budget 2027 - 28 Budget 2028 - 29 Budget 2029 - 30 Budget

General Obligation Bonds $17,500,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL $17,500,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Operating Budget Impacts

Description 2024-25 2025-26 2026-27 2027-28 2028-29 2029-30 Total

No Impact Anticipated $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

CIP 92815CIP 92815 Upland Ave from 34th Street to Upland Ave from 34th Street to
50th Street - 22B50th Street - 22B

New Roadway InfrastructureNew Roadway Infrastructure

Project Manager: Mike Keenum - EngineeringProject Manager: Mike Keenum - Engineering



 AI# 12775 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 6. 11. 
08/13/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Engineering: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute Public Works
Contract 18109, with Winston Electric Inc., dba Acme Electric Company, Texas, for the West Lubbock
Water System Expansion early procurement.

Item Summary
The City will need major infrastructure upgrades to maintain an appropriate level of service to West
Lubbock, including a new pump station, ground storage tank (GST), elevated storage tank (EST), and
transmission pipelines. All of this infrastructure is necessary together in order to maintain the Texas
Commission on Environmental Quality (TCEQ)minimum requirements in the west Lubbock area in the
near future. 

In order to expedite the West Lubbock Pump Station Project, City staff recommends procuring longer
lead time items ahead of the pump station bid. An Invitation to Bid (IBT) was issued to supply the
electrical equipment needed for the new pump station in West Lubbock, including a generator,
switchboards, Variable Frequency Drives (VFD), and other long lead-time equipment.

In response to ITB 24-18109-KM, the following bids were received and opened on June 25, 2024.
  

Contractor Amount
***The Reynolds Company, Fort Worth, Texas $397,500
Winston Electric, Inc. dba Acme Electric Company, Lubbock, Texas     $2,449,900

***The Reynolds Company’s bid did not include a generator, enclosures, or an Automatic Transfer
Switch. Due to their choice to not submit a bid on these critical path lead-time items, their bid was not
considered.

Staff recommends award to the lowest responsible bidder, Winston Electric, Inc. dba Acme Electric
Company of Lubbock, Tx, for $2,449,900.

The contract will be for a term of 700 consecutive calendar days with final completion of the project
within 730 consecutive calendar days. The equipment will be stored by the contractor upon delivery and
installed with the construction of the proposed new pump station.

Fiscal Impact
This contract for $2,449,900, is funded in Capital Improvement Project 92806, West Lubbock Water
System Expansion.
 

Staff/Board Recommending



Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager
Michael G. Keenum, PE, Division Director of Engineering/City Engineer

Attachments
Resolution 
Contract 
Location Map 
CIP Spreadsheet 
CIP Detail 
Project Summary Sheet 





robby
Text Box
No Transformers will be included in this proposal

robby
Text Box
Square D 

robby
Text Box
No Panelboards will be included in this proposal

robby
Text Box
Danfoss 

robby
Text Box
Cummins/ASCO

robby
Text Box
Cummins

robby
Text Box
Due to generator lead times exceeding the 730 calendar days Acme takes exception to the bid requirements above.  Acme excludes any liquidated damages.

robby
Line

robby
Line

robby
Line

robby
Line

robby
Line

robby
Line

robby
Line



City of Lubbock, TX

Public Works

ITB 24-18109-KM

West Lubbock Water System Expansion Early Procurement

# Items

QTY

+/-
U/M

Unit

Price

Extended

Cost

#1-1 Furnish, test, deliver and provide competent 

service technician for Low Voltage Distribtuion 

Transformers, complete as specified herein.

1 LS No Bid No Bid

#1-2 Furnish, test, deliver and provide competent 

service technician for Low Voltage Switchboards, 

complete as specified herein.

1 LS $118,000.00 $118,000.00 

#1-3 Furnish, test, deliver and provide competent 

service technician for Panelboards, complete as 

specified herein.

1 LS No Bid No Bid

#1-4 Furnish, test, deliver and provide competent 

service technician for three low voltage variable 

frequency drives fully compatible with the 

proposed pumping units PS17-P1 through PS17-

P3 with a guaranteed efficiency greater than 95% 

at 100% speed and 100% load and 94% at 75% 

speed complete as specified herein.

3 EA $130,900.00 $392,700.00

#1-5 Cost for witnessed tests of Variable frequency 

drives for by two representatives of the Owner

1 LS $28,700.00 $28,700.00 

#1-6 Furnish, test, deliver and provide competent 

service technician for one three phase generator 

with a rated capacity of 1500 kW/1875kVA and a 

power factor of 0.80, complete as specified herein.

1 LS $1,117,700.00 $1,117,700.00 

#1-7 Furnish, test and deliver one sound enclosure 

compatible with Pay Item 6 with noise attenuation 

to 70dB at 23 feet, complete as specified herein.

1 LS $575,600.00 $575,600.00 

#1-8 Cost for witnessed tests of Packaged Engine 

Generator for Pump Station 17 by two 

representatives of the Owner

1 LS $63,300.00 $63,300.00 

Winston Electric, Inc. dba Acme Electric Company of Lubbock, TX

Base Bid



City of Lubbock, TX

Public Works

ITB 24-18109-KM

West Lubbock Water System Expansion Early Procurement

# Items

QTY

+/-
U/M

Unit

Price

Extended

Cost

Winston Electric, Inc. dba Acme Electric Company of Lubbock, TX

#1-9 Furnish, test, deliver and provide competent 

service technician for Low Voltage Automatic 

Transfer Switches, complete as specified herein.

1 LS $90,600.00 $90,600.00 

#1-10 Equipment procurement package completely as 

shown in the plans and specifications excluding 

Pay Items: 1-9.

1 LS $63,300.00 $63,300.00 

#1-11 Add (+) or Deduct (-)  1 Provision is made for 

Offeror to include an addition or deduction in his 

proposal, if he wishes, to reflect any last-minute 

adjustments in price. This addition or subtraction 

will be applied to pay item 10.

1 LS No Bid No Bid

$2,449,900.00 Total (Items 1-1 through 1-11):



robby
Text Box
Clarifications:1.  Acme is only including the equipment (1 - Switchboard, 3 - VFDs, 1 - ATS, and 1 - Generator) delivery and testing as per specs.  No labor is included to install, unload, set in-place, etc.2.  Fuel for generator is excluded.  3.  Generator lead times are 4-6 weeks for submittal and 104+ weeks after submittals are approved.  These are estimated and subject to change.Notes:1.  Value Engineering options are available if owner/engineer would be interested.2.  There may be options to shorten lead times of generator.  We can get with the sales reps for more information.





PO
N

TI
A

C
 A

V

30TH ST

U
PL

A
N

D
 A

V

U
RB

A
N

A
 P

L

9TH
ST

V
IO

LA
 A

V

FA
IR

H
O

PE
AV

H
A

LL
 A

V

26TH ST

18TH ST

7TH ST

RO
C

H
ES

TE
R 

AV

27TH
ST

32
ND

STW
IN

FI
EL

D
 A

V

30TH ST

34TH ST

10TH PL

YU
K

O
N AV

U
RB

A
N

A
 P

L

32ND ST

29TH
ST

15
TH D

R

13TH
ST

22ND
PL

VA
LE

N
C

IA AV

U
RBANA AV

32ND ST

VIO
LA AV

6TH ST

G
AT

LA
N

D
 A

V

PR
EN

TI
SS

 A
V10TH

ST

W
AU

SAU
 AV

4TH ST
G

A
RL

A
N

D
 A

V

8TH ST

FA
IR

BA
N

K
 A

V

22ND ST

PR
IM

RO
SE

 A
V

22ND PL

PR
IM

RO
SE

 A
V

O
SH

K
O

SH
 A

V

5TH ST

FA
IR

BA
N

K
 A

V

O
A

K
RI

D
G

E
AV

EA
TO

N
 A

V

O
SH

K
O

SH
 A

V
O

SH
K

O
SH

 A
V

RO
SS

 A
V

Q
U

IN
C

Y 
AV

18TH ST

Q
U

IT
M

A
N

 A
V

V
IO

LA
 A

V

Q
U

IN
C

Y 
AV

TR
EN

TO
N

AV

29TH ST

19TH ST

33RD
ST

18TH ST

SA
R

AT
O

G
A

AV

Q
U

IN
C

Y 
AV

28TH ST

U
RB

A
N

A
 P

L

30TH ST

22ND ST

24TH ST

VA
LE

N
C

IA
 A

V

V
EN

IT
A

 A
V

YU
M

A
 A

V

33RD ST

Q
U

IN
C

Y 
AV

25TH ST

N
O

RW
IC

H
AV

V
EN

IT
A

 A
V

M
O

N
TI

C
EL

LO
AV

O
A

K
RI

D
G

E
AVA

LC
O

V
E 

AV

14TH
ST

33RD PL

25TH STV
EN

ITA
 AV

23RD ST

14TH ST

W
AU

SA
U

 A
V

H
A

RM
O

N
Y 

AV

31ST
ST

PR
IM

RO
SE

 A
V

PR
EN

TI
SS

AV

22ND ST

O
SH

K
O

SH
AV

W
AV

ER
LY

 A
V

V
IO

LA
 A

V

22ND PL

W
AU

SA
U

 A
V

24TH ST

VO
LN

EY AV

28TH ST

V
EN

IT
A

 A
V

O
A

K
RI

D
G

E 
AV10TH ST

11TH ST

17TH ST

W
AV

ER
LY

AV
W

AV
ER

LY
 A

V

21ST ST

V
O

LN
EY

 A
V

20TH ST

U
RB

A
N

A
 A

V O
A

K
RID

G
E AV

V
EN

IT
A

 A
V

O
A

K
RI

D
G

E 
AV

SA
R

AT
O

G
A

AV

31ST PL 31ST ST

M
O

N
TI

C
EL

LO
 A

V

PR
O

SP
EC

T 
AV

16TH ST

12TH ST

18TH PL

V
IR

G
IN

IA
 A

V

VA
LE

N
C

IA
 A

V

27TH ST

28TH ST

30TH ST

VIRGIN
IA AV

TR
EN

TO
N

 A
V

8TH ST

29TH ST

32ND ST

15TH ST

13TH ST

14TH ST

8TH ST

6TH ST

9TH ST

3RD ST

U
RB

A
N

A
AV

11TH
ST

25TH ST

21ST ST

11TH ST

28TH ST

20TH ST

SA
R

AT
O

G
A

 A
V

29TH ST

N
O

RW
IC

H
 A

V

12TH ST

West Lubbock PS/GST
Site

West Lubbock Water Expansion Map

As required by Chapter 2051, Geospatial Data Products of the Government Code, this product is for
informational purposes and may not have be prepared for or be suitable for legal, engineering, or
surveying purposes. It does not represent an on-the-ground survey and represents only the approximate
relative location of property boundaries.

±
0 750 1,500 2,250 3,000

Feet

Proposed 24"/30" Pipeline
West Lubbock PS/GST Site



City of Lubbock, TX
Capital Project

Project Cost Detail
August 7th, 2024

Capital Project Number: 92806
Capital Project Name: West Lubbock Water System Expansion

Encumbered/Expended
       CIP Number 92806

City of Lubbock Staff Time  $                             14,848
Contract 16854 with FNI for Professional Services                            1,775,295
Amendment 1 to Contract 16854 with FNI for EST Design                            1,206,982

Agenda Item August 13th, 2024
Contract 18109 with Acme Electric Company for Electrical Equipment                            2,449,900

Encumbered/Expended to Date                            5,447,025

Estimated Costs for Remaining Appropriation
Amendment 1 to Contract 15977 with Freese and
Nichols, Inc. for Construction Phase Services                                           -

Pump Station 17 & EST Improvements                            5,846,892
Remaining Appropriation                                           -

Total Appropriation To Date  $                      11,293,917



Project Scope

The area surrounding and near Reese Center indicate  current model results show future  pressure  be low the regulatory
minimum average of 35 PSI due to anticipated growth and lack of municipal infrastructure .

Project Justi�cation

The area surrounding Reese Center has seen substantial growth and annexations. This growth area
has exceeded expectations of the water master plan. The City will need major infrastructure upgrades
to maintain an appropriate level of service to West Lubbock, including a new pump station, ground
storage tank (GST), elevated storage tank (EST), and transmission pipelines. All of this infrastructure
is necessary together in order to maintain TCEQ minimum requirements in the west Lubbock area in
the near future. 

Project Highlights Project History

Council Priorities Addressed:
Community Improvement
Growth and Development

FY 2022-23 $1,875,000 was appropriated by
Ord. 2022-O0136
FY 2023-24 $5,500,000 was moved from CIP
92804 by BCR 2024-09
FY 2023-24 $3,918,917 ARPA was appropriated
by Ord. 2024-O0037

CIP 92806CIP 92806 West Lubbock Water System West Lubbock Water System
ExpansionExpansion

Infrastructure ImprovementsInfrastructure Improvements

Project Manager: Bailey RatcliffeProject Manager: Bailey Ratcliffe  - Engineering- Engineering



Project Dates Project Location

Bid Date for Design: 11/2023
Award Date for Design: 01/2023
Design Completion: 06/2024

Pump Station & Ground Storage Tank:
Bid Date: 10/2024
Construction Award Date: 01/2025
Construction Completion: 03/2027

Distribution Waterline Package:
Bid Date: 10/2025
Construction Award Date: 01/2026
Construction Completion: 03/2027

Elevated Storage Tank:
Bid Date: 10/2025
Construction Award Date: 01/2026
Construction Completion: 01/2028

Transmission Pipeline Package:
Bid Date: 10/2026
Construction Award Date: 01/2027
Construction Completion: 01/2028

West Lubbock

Project Appropriations

Appropriation to Date 2024 - 25 Budget 2025 - 26 Budget 2026 - 27 Budget 2027 - 28 Budget 2028 - 29 Budget 2029 - 30 Budget

Design $11,293,917 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Construction $0 $28,000,000 $31,000,000 $5,000,000 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL $11,293,917 $28,000,000 $31,000,000 $5,000,000 $0 $0 $0

Project Funding

Funding to Date 2024 - 25 Budget 2025 - 26 Budget 2026 - 27 Budget 2027 - 28 Budget 2028 - 29 Budget 2029 - 30 Budget

Water/Wastewater Fund Revenue Bonds $7,375,000 $28,000,000 $31,000,000 $5,000,000 $0 $0 $0

ARPA Funding $3,918,917 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL $11,293,917 $28,000,000 $31,000,000 $5,000,000 $0 $0 $0

Operating Budget Impacts

Description 2024-25 2025-26 2026-27 2027-28 2028-29 2029-30 Total

No Impact Anticipated $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Powered by OpenGov

https://opengov.com/


 
 

 

 

Purchasing and Contract Management  

 

Project Summary 

 
ITB 24-18109-KM  

West Lubbock Water System Expansion Early Procurement 

 

Notice was published in the Lubbock Avalanche Journal on May 15 and May 22, 2024. 

Notice was published on the Purchasing Web Site under Bid Opportunities. 

Notice was published on the State of Texas Electronic State Business Daily.  

Notice was published on Bonfire.com from May 15 to June 18, 2024. 

80 vendors downloaded the documents using Bonfire.com. 

25 vendors were notified separately.  

2 vendors submitted bids. 

 



 AI# 12736 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 6. 12. 
08/13/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Public Works Solid Waste: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute
Contract 18166, with MJE, LLC, for the West Texas Region Disposal Facility Cell 6 Construction.

Item Summary
An Invitation to Bid (ITB) was issued for the excavation of materials and the installation of the liner
system and associated items, for the West Texas Region Disposal Facility Cell 6.

The ITB included the following bid alternatives: 
1) Allowing concrete road repair;
2) Installing a new metal building to replace one in the way of construction; and
3) Using permanent metal poles for the required litter fencing.

This project will ensure that sufficient disposal capacity is available for the safe disposal of our waste and
that of the region.

In response to ITB 24-18166-TF, four contractors submitted the following bids:
  

Contractor Location Amount (with Bid Alternates)
MJE, LLC Montezuma, Kansas $5,752,393.75
4X Construction Group, LLC Mansfield, Texas $6,090,705.00
Hammett Excavation, Inc. Dodd City, Texas $6,874,035.03
D.E. Rice Construction Company, Inc. Borger, Texas $8,749,257.72
 
The City's Engineering Consultant, Parkhill, also evaluated these bids and performed reference checks. 
We recommend awarding the contract to the lowest, responsive and responsible bidder, MJE, LLC of
Montezuma, Kansas, in the amount of $5,752,393.75, including the bid alternates.

Time for substantial completion is 270 consecutive calendar days from the Notice to Proceed.  This
contract is awarded by the unit price and actual expenditures may be more or less depending on field
conditions.

Fiscal Impact
Contract 18166 for $5,752,303.75 is funded in Capital Improvement Project 92797.

Staff/Board Recommending
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager
L. Wood Franklin, P.E. Division Director of Public Works



Attachments
Resolution 
Contract - MJE, LLC - Cell 6 
Budget Detail 
CIP Detail 
Project Summary 







City of Lubbock, TX

Solid Waste

ITB 24-18166-TF

West Texas Region Disposal Facility Cell 6 Construction

#

QTY

+/- U/M

Unit

Cost

Extended

Cost

#1-1 Mobilization 1 LS        220,000.00           220,000.00 

#1-2 Excavation 949750 CY                   2.40        2,279,400.00 

#1-3 Embankment Fill 71065 CY                   0.60             42,639.00 

#1-4 Subgrade Preparation Floor 776750 SF                   0.20           155,350.00 

#1-5 Subgrade Preparation Slopes 104500 SF                   0.20             20,900.00 

#1-6 Concrete Access Road Demo 1200 SY                   5.00               6,000.00 

#1-7 Asphalt Access Road Demo 5150 SY                   3.00             15,450.00 

#1-8 Asphalt Access Road 3150 SY                 32.00           100,800.00 

#1-9 Asphalt Millings Access Ramp 9400 SY                   2.00             18,800.00 

#1-10 Seeding 1 LS          35,000.00             35,000.00 

#1-11 Landfill Markers 1 LS               685.00                  685.00 

#1-12 Erosion Control (SW3P) 1 LS            3,000.00               3,000.00 

#1-13 Litter Control Barrier Fence (Wood) 5620 LF                 65.00           365,300.00 

#1-14 Barb Wire Fence 4715 LF                 11.65             54,929.75 

#1-15 Metal Building Relocation 1 EA          57,000.00             57,000.00 

#1-16 Retaining Walls 58 LF               200.00             11,600.00 

#1-17 Rock Gabion Targets 14 EA            1,250.00             17,500.00 

#1-18 Gabion Baskets 60 LF               180.00             10,800.00 

#1-19 Geosynthetic Clay Liner - Floor 776750 SF                   0.40           310,700.00 

#1-20 Geosynthetic Clay Liner - Slopes 104500 SF                   0.60             62,700.00 

#1-21 Geomembrane Smooth 776750 SF                   0.52           403,910.00 

#1-22 Geomembrane Textured 104500 SF                   0.75             78,375.00 

#1-23 Geocomposite Drainage Layer 881250 SF                   0.54           475,875.00 

#1-24 Protective Cover - Floor 776750 SF                   0.40           310,700.00 

#1-25 Protective Cover - Slope 104500 SF                   0.40             41,800.00 

#1-26 Geotextile Fabric (8 oz) 20700 SF                   0.70             14,490.00 

#1-27 Gravel Drainage Material 630 CY               140.00             88,200.00 

#1-28 6-Inch Leachate Collection Pipe 1750 LF                 38.00             66,500.00 

#1-29 12-Inch Riser Pipe 240 LF                 90.00             21,600.00 

#1-30 Sump Pump, Control Panel, Wiring 1 LS          55,000.00             55,000.00 

#1-31 Sump Access Structure 1 LS          22,000.00             22,000.00 

#1-32 Dual Containment Force Main 540 LF                 45.00             24,300.00 

#1-33 Electrical Power to Sump 1 LS            5,000.00               5,000.00 

#1-34 Install City Provided Flow Meters 5 EA            1,200.00               6,000.00 

#2-1 Concrete Access Road 3150 SY               112.00           352,800.00 

#2-2 [DEDUCT] Asphalt Access Road 3150 SY               (32.00)          (100,800.00)

MJE, LLC of Montezuma, KS

Construction Base Bid 

Additive Alternate No. 1



City of Lubbock, TX

Solid Waste

ITB 24-18166-TF

West Texas Region Disposal Facility Cell 6 Construction

#3-1 New Metal Building Installation 1 EA          65,000.00             65,000.00 

#3-2 [DEDUCT] Metal Building Relocation 1 EA        (57,000.00)            (57,000.00)

#4-1 Litter Control Barrier Fence (Metal) 600 LF               150.00             90,000.00 

 $    5,402,303.75 

 $       252,000.00 

 $           8,000.00 

 $         90,000.00 

 $    5,752,303.75 Total (Items 1-1 and 4-1):

Total (Item 3-1 through 3-2):

Total (Item 1-1 through 1-34):

Total (Item 2-1 through 2-2):

Additive Alternate No. 2

Additive Alternate No. 3

Total (Item 4-1):





Capital Project Number:
Capital Project Name:

Budget
Encumbered/Expended

Parkhill 238,500$               

Agenda Items August 13, 2024
MJE, LLC 5,752,304              

Encumbered/Expended to Date 5,990,804              

Estimated Costs for Remaining Appropriation
Construction 1,009,196              

Remaining Appropriation 1,009,196              

Total Appropriation To Date 7,000,000$            

92797
WTRDF Cell Construction

City of Lubbock, TX

August 13, 2024

Capital Project 
Project Cost Detail



Project Scope

Design,  construct ,  oversee construction and TCEQ submittals.

Project Justi�cation

The existing constructed capacity for below grade volume at the West Texas Regional Disposal Facility
has less than 2 years remaining capacity.

Project Highlights Project History

Council Priorities Addressed: Growth and
Development, Community Improvement

The last cell for disposal capacity was
constructed in 2018. This cell will provide
additional waste disposal capacity to serve the
City and other customers for several more years.

FY 2023-24 $7,000,000 was appropriated by
Ord. 2023-O0108

Project Dates Project Location

Design Completion:  May 2024
Bid Date for Construction: June 2024
Award date for Construction: July 2024
Begin Construction : July/August 2024
Construction Completion: April 2025

West Texas Regional Disposal Facility

Project Appropriations

Appropriation to Date 2024 - 25 Budget 2025 - 26 Budget 2026 - 27 Budget 2027 - 28 Budget 2028 - 29 Budget 2029 - 30 Budget

Construction $7,000,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL $7,000,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Project Funding

Funding to Date 2024 - 25 Budget 2025 - 26 Budget 2026 - 27 Budget 2027 - 28 Budget 2028 - 29 Budget 2029 - 30 Budget

General Fund CO Bonds $7,000,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL $7,000,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Operating Budget Impacts

Description 2024-25 2025-26 2026-27 2027-28 2028-29 2029-30 Total

No Impact Anticipated $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

CIP 92797CIP 92797 WTRDF Cell Construction WTRDF Cell Construction
Infrastructure ImprovementsInfrastructure Improvements

Project Manager: Brenda Haney - Solid Waste DisposalProject Manager: Brenda Haney - Solid Waste Disposal



 
 

 

 

Purchasing and Contract Management  

 

Project Summary 

 
ITB 24-18166-TF  

West Texas Region Disposal Facility Cell 6 Construction 

 

Notice was published in the Lubbock Avalanche Journal on June 30 & July 7, 2024. 

Notice was published on the Purchasing Web Site under Bid Opportunities. 

Notice was published on the State of Texas Electronic State Business Daily.  

Notice was published on Bonfire.com from June 30 to July 18, 2024. 

12 individuals attended the pre-bid meeting. 

59 vendors downloaded the documents using Bonfire.com. 

48 vendors were notified separately.  

4 vendors submitted bids. 

 



 AI# 12709 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 6. 13. 
08/13/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Public Health Services: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute
Amendment No. 4 to the Health and Human Services Commission Contract No. HHS000779500003,
and all related documents, under the Substance Use Prevention, Treatment and Recovery Services Block
Grant, by and between the City of Lubbock, and the State of Texas' Health and Human Services
Commission, to provide Treatment for Youth (TRY) funding.

Item Summary
This is an existing grant. The Substance Use Prevention, Treatment and Recovery Services Block Grant
was initially awarded to the Public Health Department in 2020, to facilitate substance use treatment
services for youth in Region 1. This is to include residential, intensive outpatient, and other services as
needed. This grant will fund the provision of treatment services for youth in Region 1, as well as case
management to help improve treatment outcomes.

Amendment No. 4 revises the termination date to August 31, 2025. The budget is amended to add
$57,497. The contract also amends and modifies Attachment B - Program Services and Unit Rates,
Attachment C - Contract Affirmations, Attachment D - Uniform Terms and Conditions, and Attachment
H - Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act. 

This Amendment will be effective on August 31, 2024.  This document requires an electronic signature. 

Fiscal Impact
Amendment No. 4 adds $57,490 to the contract for Fiscal Year 2025.

Staff/Board Recommending
Bill Howerton, Deputy City Manager
Katherine Wells, Director of Public Health Services

Attachments
Resolution TRY 
Contract TRY 















































































































 AI# 12691 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 6. 14. 
08/13/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Aviation: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to accept a Federal Aviation Grant
Agreement for the Mechanical Equipment Replacement Project at Lubbock Preston Smith International
Airport.

Item Summary
Lubbock Preston Smith International Airport is eligible to receive funds from the Federal Aviation
Administration (FAA) under the Bipartisan Infrastructure Law (BIL) Airport Terminal Program (ATP).

Funds under this program are available for terminal reconstruction, development, and accessibility;
improving energy efficiency for terminals, and other purposes. The grant is for the Mechanical
Equipment Replacement Project at Lubbock Preston Smith International Airport.

The grant offer is $5,294,745 and funds approximately 89% of eligible project costs.

Fiscal Impact
The notice of grant award from the Federal Aviation Administration is a total allocation is $5,294,745.

Staff/Board Recommending
Bill Howerton, Deputy City Manager
Kelly Campbell, Executive Director of Aviation
Airport Advisory Board

Attachments
Resolution for FAA Grant Mechanical Equipment 
FAA Grant Agreement for Mechanical Equipment 













































































 AI# 12688 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 6. 14. 1. 
08/13/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Aviation: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute Contract 17935, with
Anthony Mechanical, Inc., for the Mechanical Equipment Replacement Project at Lubbock Preston
Smith International Airport.

Item Summary
Lubbock Preston Smith International Airport (LPSIA) issued an Invitation to Bid (ITB) for Mechanical
Equipment Replacement. The Base Bid Project consists of replacing multiple existing pieces of terminal
building HVAC mechanical equipment and existing air handlers on top of the terminal structure.
Additive Alternate 1 consists of replacing 9 boilers. Additive Alternate 2 is a unit cost for 1 boiler
replacement.
 
In response to ITB 24-17935-TF, bids were received from the following companies.
            

Contractor Anthony
Mechanical, Inc.

Armstrong
Mechanical Co., Inc.

Accurate Air
Solutions

Location Lubbock, Texas Lubbock, Texas Abilene, Texas
Base Bid $5,500,000 $6,453,035 $8,015,366

Additive Alternate 1: $637,500 $893,190 $791,008
Additive Alternate 2: $80,500 $109,345 $106,072

           
The Mechanical Equipment Replacement will take 365 consecutive calendar days for substantial
completion and 30 additional consecutive calendar days to final completion. The liquidated damages for
each consecutive calendar day after substantial completion is $1,500 and liquidated damages for each
consecutive calendar day after completion is $1,500.
 
Airport Staff and the Airport Advisory Board recommend a contract award for the Base Bid plus
Additive Alternate 2, to Anthony Mechanical, Inc. of Lubbock, Texas for $5,580,500.

Fiscal Impact
Contract 17935 for $5,580,500, with Anthony Mechanical, Inc., is funded in Capital Improvement
Project 92839, Mechanical Equipment Replacement Project.

Staff/Board Recommending
Bill Howerton, Deputy City Manager
Kelly Campbell, Executive Director of Aviation
Airport Advisory Board

Attachments



Attachments
Resolution 17935 Anthony Mechanical, Inc. 
Contract 17935 - Anthony Mechanical. Inc. 
Capital Project 92839 Spreadsheet 
17935 - Project Summary 







City of Lubbock, TX

Airport

ITB 24-17935-TF 

Lubbock Preston Smith Int'l Airport Mechanical Equipment Replacement

#

QTY

+/- U/M

Unit

Cost

Extended

Cost

#1-1

Replacement of Air Handling Units, Water Cooled 

Chillers, Cooling Towers, Fan Coil Units, Chilled water 

hydronic pumps, Condenser water hydronic pumps, and 

secondary loop Heating hot water hydronic pumps, and 

accessories, as well as associated piping and sheet metal 

work, along with building automation system updates.

1 LS     5,500,000.00        5,500,000.00 

#2-1

Replacement of nine (9) hydronic heating boilers, 

primary circulating pumps, and accessories as well as 

associated piping and flue work as indicated on the 

drawings for Alternate Bid #1.

1 LS        637,500.00           637,500.00 

#3-1

Replacement of one (1) hydronic heating boiler, primary 

circulating pump, and accessories as well as associated 

piping and flue work as indicated on the drawings for 

Alternate Bid #2.

1 LS          80,500.00             80,500.00 

 $    5,500,000.00 

 $       637,500.00 

 $         80,500.00 

 $    5,580,500.00 Total (Items 1-1 and 3-1):

Total (Item 3-1):

Anthony Mechanical, Inc. of Lubbock, TX

Base Bid 

Total (Item 1-1):

Additive Alternate Bid #1

Total (Item 2-1):

Additive Alternate Bid #2

152279
Line

152279
Line

152279
Line





City of Lubbock, TX
Capital Project

Project Cost Detail
August 13, 2024

Capital Project Number: 92839
Capital Project Name: Mechanical Systems Improvements

Budget
Encumbered/Expended

RS&H, Inc. Amendment 15  - Contract 15200 (Design)                    255,965

Agenda Item August 13, 2024

RS&H, Inc. Amendment 16  - Contract 15200 (Construction Administration)                    496,301
Anthony Mechanical Contract 17935                 5,580,500
Anthony Mechanical Contract 17935 Change Order #1                    161,000

  Encumbered/Expended To Date                 6,493,766

Estimated Costs for Remaining Appropriation
                   283,247

  Remaining Appropriation                    283,247

Total Appropriation  $             6,777,013

*Budget Amendment 1st read July 9, 2024
*Budget Amendment 2nd read July 23, 2024



 
 

 

 

Purchasing and Contract Management  

 

Project Summary 

 
ITB 24-17935-TF   

Lubbock Preston Smith Int'l Airport Mechanical Equipment Replacement 

 

Notice was published in the Lubbock Avalanche Journal on April 21 & April 28, 2024. 

Notice was published on the Purchasing Web Site under Bid Opportunities. 

Notice was published on the State of Texas Electronic State Business Daily.  

Notice was published on Bonfire.com from April 21 to June 5, 2024. 

16 individuals attended the pre-bid meeting. 

49 vendors downloaded the documents using Bonfire.com. 

38 vendors were notified separately.  

3 vendors submitted bids. 

 



 AI# 12689 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 6. 14. 2. 
08/13/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Aviation: Consider resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute Change Order No. 1 to
Contract 17935, with Anthony Mechanical, Inc., for the Mechanical Equipment Replacement Project at
Lubbock Preston Smith International Airport.

Item Summary
Change Order No. 1 consists of replacing 2 additional boilers and first time costs for payment and
performance bonds.  Due to the age and condition of the existing boilers and the lower than expected
unit pricing for one replacement boiler, the airport has opted to begin phased replacement of the aging
existing boilers.

The award of Alternate 2, along with the change order for 2 additional boilers, will allow for
replacement of 3 of the 9 boilers.

The additional cost for the payment and performance bonds is a first cost item omitted from the original
bid that does not affect the outcome of the bidding results.
  

Contractor - Anthony Mechanical, Inc., Lubbock, Texas Cost
Unit Price of Alternate 2 ($80,500 per boiler X 2) $161,000
Additional Costs for Payment & Performance Bonds $3,220
TOTAL $164,220

Airport Staff and the Airport Advisory Board recommend Change Order No. 1 be awarded to Anthony
Mechanical, Inc. of Lubbock, Texas, for $164,220.

Fiscal Impact
Change Order No. 1 to Contract 17935 with Anthony Mechanical, Inc., for $164,220, is funded in
Capital Improvement Project 92839, Mechanical Systems Improvements.

Staff/Board Recommending
Bill Howerton, Deputy City Manager
Kelly Campbell, Executive Director of Aviation
Airport Advisory Board

Attachments
Resolution - Change Order 1 Anthony Mechanical 
Change Order #1 Anthony Mechanical 



Capital Project 92839 Spreadsheet 
CIP 92753-Detail 









City of Lubbock, TX
Capital Project

Project Cost Detail
August 13, 2024

Capital Project Number: 92839
Capital Project Name: Mechanical Systems Improvements

Budget
Encumbered/Expended

RS&H, Inc. Amendment 15  - Contract 15200 (Design)                    255,965

Agenda Item August 13, 2024

RS&H, Inc. Amendment 16  - Contract 15200 (Construction Administration)                    496,301
Anthony Mechanical Contract 17935                 5,580,500
Anthony Mechanical Contract 17935 Change Order #1                    161,000

  Encumbered/Expended To Date                 6,493,766

Estimated Costs for Remaining Appropriation
                   283,247

  Remaining Appropriation                    283,247

Total Appropriation  $             6,777,013

*Budget Amendment 1st read July 9, 2024
*Budget Amendment 2nd read July 23, 2024



Project Scope

The airport terminal building consists of various mechanical systems including air handling equipment,
chilled water system, condenser water system, heating hot water system, and HVAC system controls.
Many components of the buildings systems have been addressed as necessary or through the 2007
HVAC improvements project or the recent terminal building improvements project. However, some aging
infrastructure remains. In 2023, RS&H was contracted to provide a mechanical systems assessment.
This project addresses the report recommendations including but not limited to:

Replace existing Greenheck exhaust fan and curb that serves the boiler flue stack with an
exhaust system specifically designed for boiler flue systems, such as Exhausto.

1.

Replace all three primary chilled water pump2.
Replace all three condenser water pump3.
Replace HCFC-123 chillers4.
Install refrigerant leak detection system and ASHRAE 15 accessories5.
Remove sand filter from chilled water loop6.
Replace Cooling Towers7.
Replace condenser water sand filter with basin sweep system8.
Integrate chilled water and condenser water controls system into the Automated Logic Building
Management System

9.

Replace all three hot water secondary pumps10.
Replace AHU-02511.
Replace AHU-02612.
Replace AHU-03113.
Replace AHU-03214.
Replace AHU-02715.
Install dust mitigation items in cooling tower pump rooms16.
Replace AHU’s-013 thru -017, & -02017.

Boiler Repairs/Replacement18.

Project Justi�cation

Maintaining the building mechanical systems is essential to ensuring the comfort and safety of airport
patrons. The cooling for the building is provided by three water cooled chillers. These chillers operate
on HCFC-123 refrigerant. HCFC refrigerants were phased out in 2020 in new equipment, with a 90%
decrease in refrigerant production for service use. HCFC-123 will be entirely phased out of production
in 2030. By seeking funding through the ATP/BIL program, the airport has the opportunity to advance
our mechanical systems and reduce future costs.
Further, existing mechanical systems within the building are energy inefficient and consume additional
power using older technologies. Replacement equipment will be considerably more efficient and
distribute usage in a more efficient manner resulting in reduced energy usage and heat.
While much of the aging infrastructure is operable, it is past useful life. The project allows the airport
to modernize equipment, eliminate concerns with the refrigerant, ensure patron comfort and safety,
and reduce future airport financial impacts.

CIP 92839CIP 92839 Mechanical Systems Mechanical Systems
ImprovementsImprovements

Upgrade/Major MaintenanceUpgrade/Major Maintenance

Kelly Campbell - Aviation - Building MaintenanceKelly Campbell - Aviation - Building Maintenance



Project Highlights Project History

Council Priorities Addressed: Growth and
Development

FY 2023-24 $370,000 was appropriated by Ord.
2023-O0108
FY 2023-24 $127,267 was appropriated by BCR
2024 - 18

Project Dates Project Location

Consultant Selection: RS&H, selected through 5
year master A/E contact May 2020
Design Services Negotiation: July – September
2023
Design Contract Award: October 2023
Project Design Start Date: January 2024
Project Design End Date: May 2024
Bid: June 2024
Construction award/grant acceptance: TBD - upon
BIL ATP grant offer
Project Construction Start Date: TBD - upon BIL
ATP grant offer
Project Construction End Date: TBD - upon BIL
ATP grant offer

Lubbock International Airport Terminal Building

Project Appropriations

Appropriation to Date 2024 - 25 Budget 2025 - 26 Budget 2026 - 27 Budget 2027 - 28 Budget 2028 - 29 Budget 2029 - 30 Budget

Design $497,267 $7,020,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL $497,267 $7,020,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Project Funding

Funding to Date 2024 - 25 Budget 2025 - 26 Budget 2026 - 27 Budget 2027 - 28 Budget 2028 - 29 Budget 2029 - 30 Budget

Airport Fund Cash $497,267 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

BIL Grant $0 $7,020,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL $497,267 $7,020,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Operating Budget Impacts

2024 - 25 Budget 2025 - 26 Budget 2026 - 27 Budget 2027 - 28 Budget 2028 - 29 Budget 2029 - 30 Budget

Facilities Maint & Custodial $100 $100 $100 $100 $100 $100

TOTAL $100 $100 $100 $100 $100 $100

Powered by OpenGov

https://opengov.com/


 AI# 12690 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 6. 14. 3. 
08/13/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Aviation: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute Amendment No.16 to
Contract 15200, with RS&H, Inc., for Construction Administration and Resident Project Representative
Services, for the Mechanical Equipment Replacement Project at Lubbock Preston Smith International
Airport.

Item Summary
The City of Lubbock (Airport) has requested RS&H, Inc., under the on-call professional architectural
and engineering agreement, to provide a scope and fee for Construction Administration and Resident
Project Representative Services for the Mechanical Equipment Replacement Project at Lubbock Preston
Smith International Airport. Proposed Amendment No. 16 services are summarized as follows:
              

Scope/Task Title Total
Task 1 - Construction Administration (CA) $276,598.82
Task 2 - Resident Project Representative (RPR) $167,952.00
Reimbursable Expenses (Not-to-Exceed) $51,750.00
Total for CA and RPR Services $496,300.82
 
Airport Staff and the Airport Advisory Board recommend Amendment No. 16 to Contract 15200, with
RS&H, Inc, of Jacksonville, Florida, for $496,300.82, for Construction Administration and Resident
Project Representative Services for the Mechanical Equipment Replacement Project at Lubbock Preston
Smith International Airport.

Fiscal Impact
Amendment No. 16 to Contract 15200 with RS&H, Inc., for $496,300.82, is funded in Capital
Improvement Project 92839, Mechanical System Improvements.

Staff/Board Recommending
Bill Howerton, Deputy City Manager
Kelly Campbell, Executive Director of Aviation
Airport Advisory Board

Attachments
Resolution Amendment 16 RS&H, Inc. 
Amendment 16 RS&H, Inc. 
Capital Project 92839 Spreadsheet 
CIP 92753 Detail 

































City of Lubbock, TX
Capital Project

Project Cost Detail
August 13, 2024

Capital Project Number: 92839
Capital Project Name: Mechanical Systems Improvements

Budget
Encumbered/Expended

RS&H, Inc. Amendment 15  - Contract 15200 (Design)                    255,965

Agenda Item August 13, 2024

RS&H, Inc. Amendment 16  - Contract 15200 (Construction Administration)                    496,301
Anthony Mechanical Contract 17935                 5,580,500
Anthony Mechanical Contract 17935 Change Order #1                    161,000

  Encumbered/Expended To Date                 6,493,766

Estimated Costs for Remaining Appropriation
                   283,247

  Remaining Appropriation                    283,247

Total Appropriation  $             6,777,013

*Budget Amendment 1st read July 9, 2024
*Budget Amendment 2nd read July 23, 2024



Project Scope

The airport terminal building consists of various mechanical systems including air handling equipment,
chilled water system, condenser water system, heating hot water system, and HVAC system controls.
Many components of the buildings systems have been addressed as necessary or through the 2007
HVAC improvements project or the recent terminal building improvements project. However, some aging
infrastructure remains. In 2023, RS&H was contracted to provide a mechanical systems assessment.
This project addresses the report recommendations including but not limited to:

Replace existing Greenheck exhaust fan and curb that serves the boiler flue stack with an
exhaust system specifically designed for boiler flue systems, such as Exhausto.

1.

Replace all three primary chilled water pump2.
Replace all three condenser water pump3.
Replace HCFC-123 chillers4.
Install refrigerant leak detection system and ASHRAE 15 accessories5.
Remove sand filter from chilled water loop6.
Replace Cooling Towers7.
Replace condenser water sand filter with basin sweep system8.
Integrate chilled water and condenser water controls system into the Automated Logic Building
Management System

9.

Replace all three hot water secondary pumps10.
Replace AHU-02511.
Replace AHU-02612.
Replace AHU-03113.
Replace AHU-03214.
Replace AHU-02715.
Install dust mitigation items in cooling tower pump rooms16.
Replace AHU’s-013 thru -017, & -02017.

Boiler Repairs/Replacement18.

Project Justi�cation

Maintaining the building mechanical systems is essential to ensuring the comfort and safety of airport
patrons. The cooling for the building is provided by three water cooled chillers. These chillers operate
on HCFC-123 refrigerant. HCFC refrigerants were phased out in 2020 in new equipment, with a 90%
decrease in refrigerant production for service use. HCFC-123 will be entirely phased out of production
in 2030. By seeking funding through the ATP/BIL program, the airport has the opportunity to advance
our mechanical systems and reduce future costs.
Further, existing mechanical systems within the building are energy inefficient and consume additional
power using older technologies. Replacement equipment will be considerably more efficient and
distribute usage in a more efficient manner resulting in reduced energy usage and heat.
While much of the aging infrastructure is operable, it is past useful life. The project allows the airport
to modernize equipment, eliminate concerns with the refrigerant, ensure patron comfort and safety,
and reduce future airport financial impacts.

CIP 92839CIP 92839 Mechanical Systems Mechanical Systems
ImprovementsImprovements

Upgrade/Major MaintenanceUpgrade/Major Maintenance

Kelly Campbell - Aviation - Building MaintenanceKelly Campbell - Aviation - Building Maintenance



Project Highlights Project History

Council Priorities Addressed: Growth and
Development

FY 2023-24 $370,000 was appropriated by Ord.
2023-O0108
FY 2023-24 $127,267 was appropriated by BCR
2024 - 18

Project Dates Project Location

Consultant Selection: RS&H, selected through 5
year master A/E contact May 2020
Design Services Negotiation: July – September
2023
Design Contract Award: October 2023
Project Design Start Date: January 2024
Project Design End Date: May 2024
Bid: June 2024
Construction award/grant acceptance: TBD - upon
BIL ATP grant offer
Project Construction Start Date: TBD - upon BIL
ATP grant offer
Project Construction End Date: TBD - upon BIL
ATP grant offer

Lubbock International Airport Terminal Building

Project Appropriations

Appropriation to Date 2024 - 25 Budget 2025 - 26 Budget 2026 - 27 Budget 2027 - 28 Budget 2028 - 29 Budget 2029 - 30 Budget

Design $497,267 $7,020,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL $497,267 $7,020,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Project Funding

Funding to Date 2024 - 25 Budget 2025 - 26 Budget 2026 - 27 Budget 2027 - 28 Budget 2028 - 29 Budget 2029 - 30 Budget

Airport Fund Cash $497,267 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

BIL Grant $0 $7,020,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL $497,267 $7,020,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Operating Budget Impacts

2024 - 25 Budget 2025 - 26 Budget 2026 - 27 Budget 2027 - 28 Budget 2028 - 29 Budget 2029 - 30 Budget

Facilities Maint & Custodial $100 $100 $100 $100 $100 $100

TOTAL $100 $100 $100 $100 $100 $100

Powered by OpenGov

https://opengov.com/


 AI# 12693 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 6. 15. 
08/13/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Aviation: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to accept a Federal Aviation Grant
Agreement for the Taxiway Lima Extension, Taxilane Addition, and Apron Expansion Project at
Lubbock Preston Smith International Airport.

Item Summary
Lubbock Preston Smith International Airport (LPSIA) is eligible to receive funds from the Federal
Aviation Administration (FAA) under the Airport Improvement Program. Funds under this program are
restricted to safety, security, and capacity improvements.

This grant is for design services related to the Taxiway Lima Extension, Taxilane Addition, and Apron
Expansion at LPSIA, and will fund 90% of eligible costs.

Fiscal Impact
Notice of grant award from the Federal Aviation Administration is a total allocation of $2,152,184.

Staff/Board Recommending
Bill Howerton, Deputy City Manager
Kelly Campbell, Executive Director of Aviation
Airport Advisory Board

Attachments
Resolution FAA Grant Taxiway Lima Design 
FAA Grant Agreement for Taxiway Lima Design 







































































 AI# 12692 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 6. 15. 1. 
08/13/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Aviation: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute Amendment No. 8 to
Contract 15310, with Parkhill, for professional architectural and engineering services for the Taxiway
Lima Extension, Taxilane Addition, and Apron Expansion Project at Lubbock Preston Smith
International Airport. 

Item Summary
The City of Lubbock (Airport) has requested Parkhill, under the on-call professional architectural and
engineering agreement, to provide design and bid phase services for the Taxiway Lima Extension,
Taxilane Addition, and Apron Expansion Project.

Amendment No. 8 provides the following services.
            

Task Fee Amount
2PDS – Preliminary Design Services $644,600
3FDS – Final Design Services 440,500
4BID – Bid Phase Services (Package 1) 38,100
4BID – Bid Phase Services (Package 2) 82,000
8SSD – Sub Consultant Services for Design 1,176,115
Total $2,381,315
 
Airport staff and the Airport Advisory Board recommend Amendment No. 8 to Contract 15310, with
Parkhill of Lubbock, Texas, for $2,381,315 for the professional architectural and engineering services
for the Taxiway Lima Extension, Taxi Lane Addition, and Apron Expansion Project at Lubbock Preston
Smith International Airport.

Fiscal Impact
Amendment No. 8 to Contract 15310 with Parkhill for $2,381,315 is funded in Improvement
Project 92772, Taxiway Lima Extension, Taxilane Addition, and Apron Expansion Project.

Staff/Board Recommending
Bill Howerton, Deputy City Manager
Kelly Campbell, Executive Director of Aviation
Airport Advisory Board

Attachments
Resolution - Parkhill Amendment 8 
Contract Parkhill Amendment 8 



Exhibits Parkhill Amendment 8 
Capital Project 92772 Spreadsheet 
CIP 92772 Detail 



























































































































































City of Lubbock, TX
Capital Project

Project Cost Detail
August 13, 2024

Capital Project Number: 92772
Capital Project Name: Extend Taxiway L, Taxilane Addition, and Apron

Expansion

Budget
Encumbered/Expended

Kutchins & Groh, LLC - IFE Environmental  $                    4,300
Kutchins & Groh, LLC - IFE PE Review                        2,055
Parkill Amendment #7 - Contract 15310 Preliminary Engineering                 1,090,476
Kutchins & Groh, LLC - IFE Design Review                        5,455

Agenda Item August 13, 2024
Parkill Amendment #8 - Contract 15310 Design                 2,381,315

  Encumbered/Expended To Date                 3,483,601

Estimated Costs for Remaining Appropriation
                1,021,599

  Remaining Appropriation                 1,021,599

Total Appropriation  $             4,505,200



Project Scope

The project scope includes:
Extending TXY L to the north end of RWY 17R-35L, including two taxiway connections aligning with
TXY M and TXY T on the east side of the RWY.
Adding a new taxi lane along the east side of the cargo ramp.
Realigning TXYs S and V between TXY L and the cargo ramp to remove direct access points to the
RWY.
Expanding the cargo ramp to the north to accommodate additional aircraft parking and potentially
the reconstruction of TXYs M and T on the east side of the RWY within the Runway Safety Area.

Project Justi�cation

Extension of the taxiway will provide improved access to Runway 17R for cargo and general aviation
operations, eliminating the need for aircraft to cross Rwy 17R/35L to access Twy M, reducing taxi time,
and maximizing airfield system efficiency.
Substantial cargo operations (FedEx and UPS) exist at LBB. The existing ramp is leased
at near capacity. Expansion of the cargo ramp will provide opportunity for the use of larger aircraft and
expanded operations as well as potential increased revenue to the airport.

Project Highlights Project History

Council Priorities Addressed: Growth and
Development

FY 2022-23 $1,705,200 was appropriated by
Ord. 2022-O0136
FY 2023-24 $2,800,000 was appropriated by
Ord. 2023-O0108

CIP 92772CIP 92772 Extend Taxiway L, Taxiline Extend Taxiway L, Taxiline
Addition, and Apron ExpansionAddition, and Apron Expansion

Infrastructure ImprovementsInfrastructure Improvements

Project Manager: Kelly Campbell - Aviation Oper - Field MaintProject Manager: Kelly Campbell - Aviation Oper - Field Maint



Project Dates Project Location

Consultant Selection: Parkhill & RS&H, selected
through 5 year master A/E contact May 2020
Preliminary Engineering Design Services
Negotiation: October 2022 – April 2023
Preliminary Engineering Design Contract
Award/Grant Acceptance: August 2023
Project Design Start Date: August 2023
Project Design End Date: April 2024
Full Design Services Negotiation: January 2024 –
May 2024
Full Design Contract Award/Grant Acceptance:
July 2024
Project Design Start Date: July 2024
Project Design End Date: April 2025
Bid: TBD
Construction award/grant acceptance: TBD
Project Construction Start Date: TBD
Project Construction End Date: TBD
*Bid, construction contract award, and grant
acceptance are dependent upon FAA guidance
and available funding. It is likely the effort will be
broken into phases to accommodate funding
restrictions and/or the ability to obtain a multi-
year grant.

5402 N. Martin Luther King Boulevard, Lubbock,
TX 79403

Project Appropriations

Appropriation to Date 2024 - 25 Budget 2025 - 26 Budget 2026 - 27 Budget 2027 - 28 Budget 2028 - 29 Budget 2029 - 30 Budget

Design $4,505,200 $6,684,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Construction $0 $49,016,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL $4,505,200 $55,700,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Project Funding

Funding to Date 2024 - 25 Budget 2025 - 26 Budget 2026 - 27 Budget 2027 - 28 Budget 2028 - 29 Budget 2029 - 30 Budget

AIP Discretionary $0 $18,500,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Airport Fund Cash $450,520 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

PFC Fund Bonds $0 $5,600,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

AIP Grant $0 $16,200,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

BIL Grant $4,054,680 $15,400,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL $4,505,200 $55,700,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Operating Budget Impacts

Description 2024-25 2025-26 2026-27 2027-28 2028-29 2029-30 Total

No Impact Anticipated $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Powered by OpenGov

https://opengov.com/


 AI# 12719 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 6. 16. 
08/13/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Business Development: Consider a resolution authorizing a Commercial Revitalization
Grant Program (Facade) expenditure of Market Lubbock, Inc., to be provided to VCC Management,
LLC, dba Vogue College, located at 1712 34th Street, pursuant to Article IV, Section 5, of the Amended
and Restated Bylaws of the Market Lubbock Development Corporation. 

Item Summary
In May 2023, the City Council authorized the continuation of the Lubbock East Neighborhood
Empowerment Zone, and the establishment of the 34th Street Empowerment Zone and the North
University Empowerment Zone. This action was taken to encourage redevelopment and revitalization
within the City of Lubbock, through the promotion of economic development within the Zones. Through
the establishment of the three Zones, Market Lubbock, Inc. has geographic boundaries within which it
can implement its Commercial Revitalization Grant Program. 

VCC Management, LLC is renovating their property at 1712 34th Street, located within the 34th Street
Empowerment Zone, as designated by the City of Lubbock. The scope of the facade project includes
parking lot repair and exterior painting. The cost of the project is estimated to be $49,200, and the
requested grant amount is $24,600. The Market Lubbock, Inc. Board of Directors approved this amount
at their July 24, 2024 Board Meeting, and recommend approval by the City Council. 

Fiscal Impact
The total cost of the project is estimated to be $49,200, with $24,600 to be paid upon completion by
Market Lubbock, Inc. with the requested grant. 

Staff/Board Recommending
Bill Howerton, Deputy City Manager
Brianna Brown, Business Development Director 
Market Lubbock, Inc. Board of Directors 

Attachments
Resolution 
Market Lubbock Resolution 
Market Lubbock Support Documentation 







MARKET LUBBOCK, INC.    

COMMERCIAL REVITALIZATION GRANT PROGRAM 

 

 

1712 34th St. 

(VCC Management, LLC, dba Vogue College) 

 
TOTAL FAÇADE SCOPE OF WORK = $49,200 

FAÇADE GRANT = $24,600 



 
 

Commercial Revitalization Grant Program 
Presented to MLI Board 

July 24, 2024 
 
 

Project 1712 34th St. (Façade) 
VCC Management, LLC, dba Vogue College, is renovating their property at 1712 34th St., located within a 
Lubbock Neighborhood Empowerment Zone as designated by the City of Lubbock. 
 
Since opening their doors over 40 years ago, Vogue College of Cosmetology has trained over 50,000 
students. Known for their commitment to quality education, their cosmetology program is ranked top 10 
in New Mexico and Texas, with many of their graduates pursuing rewarding beauty careers.  
 
Façade expenses will include parking lot asphalt repair and exterior painting totaling $49,200.  
 
The MLI Board is being asked to consider a Commercial Revitalization Grant Program Façade Grant for 
VCC Management, LLC totaling $24,600 at 1712 34th St. 
 



MLI CONTACT INFORMATION
Jorge Quirino - Director of Downtown & Special Project Phone: 806.23.8241
Market Lubbock, Inc.
1500 Broadway, Sixth Floor, Lubbock, TX 79401 Email: jorge@marketlubbock.org

Date Initial Application Submitted (Due prior to start of construction or permits assigned)

Projected Project Start Date

GENERAL INFORMATION ABOUT THE COMPANY

GENERAL INFORMATION ABOUT THE COMPANY CONTACT

0

INFORMATION ABOUT THE PROJECT

Lease 
Owner Approved

Façade 

Detailed Project Summary (including projected start date) and Description of Work:

COMPANY BACKGROUND
List any person or entity that has at least 5% ownership in the Applicant Company:

Percent Percent
100%

Is the firm registered with the Secretary of State's Office to do business in Texas? Yes �
Are you in good standing with the State of Texas? Yes 

If you answered "No" to either of the above two questions, please explain

Is the firm and/or principals delinquent on any federal, state or local tax obligations? No �
Has the company or principals of the company had prior bankruptcies or lawsuits? No 

Name Name

Projected

$49,200

Betty Oates Oman

$24,600

Grant Type (May choose both if applicable): 

Skylar McCaig

Permittable 

Paint Exterior

Remove current asphalt on south and west side of building. Sawcut pot holes and replace sections.  Seal 
cracks, asphalt overlay and restripe lot.  Add 135ft x 2ft wide valley gutter from alley to street.  Add apprach to 
alley entrance. And add concrete strip on west side of lot to increase parking lot area.

$5,900

$34,000
$3,400 $1,700

TOTAL
Final bids will be used to calculate the project cost and grant amount.

Austin, TX 78746

Name
Title
Phone Number
Email

Operations
512-916-0077
smccaig@vogue.edu

Commercial Revitalization Grant - Application

Summary of Expenses (detailed bids attached)
Asphalt Repair

$11,800

MLI Approved Reimbursement 

City, State, Zip

Property Ownership: Own 

Supervising/Design of Asphalt Layout - Esparza
$17,000

The information requested on this form will be used by Market Lubbock, Inc. for analysis of your project.

1712 34th St, Lubbock, TX 79411

Company Name
Street Address

VCC Management
1101 S Capital of TX Hwy, Bld K, Suite 150

R72741
Project Property Address
Property LCAD R#

05/06/24

04/22/24

1 MLI 11.17.23

mailto:jorge@marketlubbock.org
mailto:smccaig@vogue.edu
mailto:smccaig@vogue.edu
mailto:smccaig@vogue.edu
mailto:smccaig@vogue.edu
mailto:smccaig@vogue.edu
mailto:smccaig@vogue.edu
mailto:smccaig@vogue.edu
mailto:smccaig@vogue.edu


If you answered "Yes" to either of the above two questions, please explain

Is the firm receiving tax revenue from any government agency? No 

Is the firm a non-profit entity? No 

City of Lubbock requirements:

Contact the City of Lubbock to determine the following:
Scope of work meets East Side/34th St./N. University standards and guidelines?
Are permits required for any aspect of the scope of work?
Are public improvements required?
Is there a current Certificate of Occupancy on file for this property?

Director of Downtown & Special Projects (Jorge Quirino) 806-749-4500
Application Packet:

Copies of City permits or City approval
Copy of Current Certificate of Occupancy
Detailed Construction Bids or Schedule of Values
Before Picture (prior to construction beginning)
Architectural Plans (if applicable)
Architectural Renderings (if applicable)

After completion of construction:
Certificate of Occupancy or Similar City Document Approving Completion
(Applicant responsible for final scope of work matching approved scope)
Proof of Payment:

PAID Invoices (must reference the approved project)

Overview

•         An Applicant must be a valid Owner or Tenant (Lessee) of the property needing improvements
•         Properties must fall within the East Side, 34th St., or N. Lubbock Neighborhood Empowerment Zones
•         Single-Family residences and duplexes are excluded.
•         An Applicant is eligible to receive a permittable grant and/or façade grant per property (LCAD R#  

•         Applicant is not eligible for grant program funding if delinquent in property taxes according to

•         MLI disbursements are characterized as "reimbursable grants" - Applicant pays expenses first
•         Expenses eligible for reimbursement must relate to reasonable costs or expenses.
•         Receipt of an application is not a guarantee of grant approval.

Grant Types

•         Permittable Projects
•       Improvements require a City of Lubbock permit
•       Improvements may be made to the exterior and/or interior of the property
•       Improvements must total a minimum of $5,000
•      The permittable grant reimburses 10% of approved expenses up to a $50,000 grant
•   Permittable scope of work that may be considered:

•   HVAC
•   Plumbing
•   Electrical
•   Structural
•   Any other work requring a City of Lubbock permit

•         Façade Projects
•       Improvements may or may not require a City of Lubbock permit

Date Final Documents Received:________________________

Market Lubbock, Inc. (MLI) requirements:

Initial application (page one of this document) must be received by MLI prior to 
the start of construction and/or before permits are assigned

All remaining documents must be received and an application 
packet presented to the MLI Board no more than three months after 
the initial application is received by MLI.

City of Lubbock - Planning Department 806-775-2108

APPLICANT'S RESPONSIBILITIES (PROPERTY OWNER OR LEASEE)

     or Development Lot), per enterprise, per year. Must wait one year from approval to apply again for 
     the same property. (Expenses used in one application cannot be used in another application.)

Processed Checks, Bank or Credit Card Statements matching PAID 
invoices (legible copies)

     LCAD records - includes all LCAD properties listed in the applicant's name

2 MLI 11.17.23



•       Improvements must be made to the exterior of the property facing the most prominent street
•       Improvements must total a minimum of $1,000
•      The façade grant reimburses 50% of approved expenses up to a $25,000 grant
•   Façade scope of work that may be considered:

•   Painting
•   New windows and doors
•   Signage
•   Landscaping
•   Parking lots
•   Awnings
•   Any other work that improves the appearnce of the façade

Signature (not required for electronic submittals):

Date:

3 MLI 11.17.23



 

 

 

 



 

 



 



1712 34th St. – Before Pictures 

 

 



 

 

 



 AI# 12725 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 6. 17. 
08/13/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Business Development: Consider a resolution authorizing a Downtown Grant Program
(Facade) expenditure of Market Lubbock, Inc., to be provided to Mixed Nutz Leasing, LLC, located at
1937 Texas Avenue, pursuant to Article IV, Section 5, of the Amended and Restated Bylaws of the
Market Lubbock Development Corporation. 

Item Summary
Mixed Nutz Leasing, LLC is renovating their property at 1937 Texas Avenue, which is located within
the Downtown Tax Increment Financing District Boundary, as designated by the City of Lubbock. The
scope of the facade project includes a new parking lot. 

The cost of the project is estimated to be $54,444, and the requested grant amount it $25,000. The
Market Lubbock, Inc. Board of Directors approved this amount at their July 24, 2024 Board Meeting,
and recommend approval by the City Council. 

Fiscal Impact
The total cost of the project is estimated to be $54,444, with $25,000 to be paid upon completion by
Market Lubbock, Inc. with the requested grant. 

Staff/Board Recommending
Bill Howerton, Deputy City Manager 
Brianna Brown, Business Development Director
Market Lubbock, Inc. Board of Directors 

Attachments
Resolution 
Market Lubbock Resolution 
Market Lubbock Support Documentation 







MARKET LUBBOCK, INC. – DOWNTOWN GRANT PROGRAM 

 

 

1937 Texas 

(Mixed Nutz Leasing, LLC) 

 
TOTAL FAÇADE SCOPE OF WORK = $54,444 

FAÇADE GRANT = $25,000 

 

 



 
 

Downtown Grant Program 
Presented to MLI Board 

July 24, 2024 
 
 

Project 1937 Texas (Façade) 
Mixed Nutz Leasing, LLC is making improvements to the property located at 1937 Texas Ave and within 
the Downtown TIF.  
 
Adam Vizcaino and Robbie Sanders created Mixed Nutz Leasing, L.L.C. on February 7ᵗʰ,  2022 as a 
corporation to title the property at 1941 Texas Ave. Mixed Nutz will lease the property to Schrader 
Roofing Company, another business owned by Mr. Sanders.   
 
The scope of façade work will include a new parking lot 54,444 in expenses.  
 
The MLI Board is being asked to consider a Downtown Façade Grant totaling $25,000 for Mixed Nutz 
Leasing, LLC at 1937 Texas Ave. 
 
 



MLI CONTACT INFORMATION
Jorge Quirino - Director of Downtown & Special Projects Phone: 806.749.4500
Market Lubbock, Inc.
1500 Broadway, Sixth Floor, Lubbock, TX 79401 Email: jorge@marketlubbock.org

Date Initial Application Submitted (Due prior to start of construction or permits assigned)

Projected Project Start Date

GENERAL INFORMATION
Contact

Title
Phone
Email 

INFORMATION ABOUT THE PROJECT
Property Ownership: Own Lease Permittable Façade 

Project Summary Scope 

COMPANY BACKGROUND
List any person or entity that has at least 5% ownership in the Applicant Company:

Percent
50%
50%

Is the firm registered with the Secretary of State's Office to do business in Texas? Yes �
Are you in good standing with the State of Texas? Yes 

If you answered "No" to either of the above two questions, please explain

Is the firm and/or principals delinquent on any federal, state or local tax obligations? No �
Has the company or principals of the company had prior bankruptcies or lawsuits? No 

If you answered "Yes" to either of the above two questions, please explain

Final bids will be used to calculate the project cost and grant amount.

Robbie Sanders
Adam Vizcaino

Name Name Percent

Buffalo Springs, TX 79404

Robbie Sanders
Co-owner

Pavecon $25,000$54,444

Grant Type: 

TOTAL $54,444 $25,000

134006

Mixed Nutz Leasing, LLC
248 Cowboy Lane

Summary of Expenses (detailed bids attached) Projected MLI Approved 

The information requested on this form will be used by Market Lubbock, Inc. for analysis of your project.
Downtown Grant - Application

806-319-2225
srclrobbie@gmail.com

Tear up existing pavement and replace with concrete.

Street Address

Project Property Address
Property LCAD R#

City, State, Zip

Company Name

05/21/24

06/01/24

1937 Texas Ave, Lubbock, TX 79411

1 MLI 11.17.23

mailto:jorge@marketlubbock.org
mailto:srclrobbie@gmail.com
mailto:srclrobbie@gmail.com
mailto:srclrobbie@gmail.com
mailto:srclrobbie@gmail.com


Is the firm receiving tax revenue from any government agency? No �

Is the firm a non-profit entity? No �

After Completion of Construction

PAID Invoices (must reference the approved project)

Architectural Plans (if applicable)

Copy of building's current certificate of occupancy (request at 
orr@mylubbock.us)

Copies of City permits, if applicable
Detailed/Itemized Bids
Before Pictures

Architectural Renderings (if applicable)

Initial application received by MLI prior to the start of construction and/or before permits are assigned

All remaining documents must be received and an application packet presented to the MLI Board no 
more than three months after the initial application is received by MLI.

Contact Brianna Gerardi, City Director of Development bgerardi@mylubbock.us , to determine:

Documents Required for Final Grant Application

Does the scope of work meet downtown standards and guidelines?
Are permits required for any aspect of the scope of work?
Are public improvements required?

APPLICANT'S CHECKLIST:

Date:

Signature (not required for electronic submittals):

Certificate of Occupancy or Similar City Document Approving 
Completion (Applicant responsible for final scope of work matching 
approved scope)
Proof of Payment:

Processed Checks, Bank or Credit Card Statements 
matching PAID invoices (legible copies)

2 MLI 11.17.23



 



 



 



 



 



 



 AI# 12726 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 6. 18. 
08/13/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Business Development: Consider a resolution authorizing a Downtown Grant Program
(Facade) expenditure of Market Lubbock, Inc., to be provided to Landlines, LLC, located at 1106 Main
Street, pursuant to Article IV, Section 5, of the Amended and Restated Bylaws of the Market Lubbock
Development Corporation. 

Item Summary
Landlines, LLC is renovating their property at 1106 Main Street, which is located within the Downtown
Tax Increment Financing District Boundary, as designated by the City of Lubbock. The scope of the
facade project includes new signage and windows. 

The cost of the project is estimated to be $24,559, and the requested grant amount is $12,278. The
Market Lubbock, Inc. Board of Directors approved this amount at their July 24, 2024 Board Meeting,
and recommend approval by the City Council. 

Fiscal Impact
The total cost of the project is estimated to be $24,559, with $12,278 to be paid upon completion by
Market Lubbock, Inc. with the requested grant. 

Staff/Board Recommending
Bill Howerton, Deputy City Manager 
Brianna Brown, Business Development Director 
Market Lubbock, Inc. Board of Directors

Attachments
Resolution 
Market Lubbock Resolution 
Market Lubbock Support Documentation 







MARKET LUBBOCK, INC. – DOWNTOWN GRANT PROGRAM 

 

 

1106 Main 

(Landlines, LLC) 

 
TOTAL SCOPE OF WORK = $95,370 

TOTAL GRANTS = $19,359 

 

TOTAL FAÇADE SCOPE OF WORK = $24,559 

FAÇADE GRANT = $12,278 

 

TOTAL PERMITTABLE SCOPE OF WORK = $70,811 

PERMITTABLE GRANT = $7,081 

 



 
 

Downtown Grant Program 
Presented to MLI Board 

July 24, 2024 
 
 

Project 1106 Main St. (Façade & Permittable) 
Landlines, LLC, (Dillon Land – Owner), is renovating the property at 1106 Main St., located in the 
Downtown TIF.  
 
This property was used for a bail bondsman company in the 90s and 2000s. It became an antique shop 
for a few years and has been vacant for 9 or 10 years and used for storage. Dillon Land purchased the 
building in November 2023. The new business at this property will be an upscale, walk-in tattoo studio.  
 
The scope of façade work will include signage and windows totaling $24,559 in façade expenses. 
Permittable expenses will include HVAC, plumbing, and electrical totaling $70,811 in expenses. 
 
The MLI Board is being asked to consider a Downtown Façade Grant for Landlines, LLC totaling $12,278 
and a Downtown Permittable Grant for $7,081 at 1106 Main St. 
 
 



MLI CONTACT INFORMATION
Jorge Quirino - Director of Downtown & Special Projects Phone: 806.749.4500
Market Lubbock, Inc.
1500 Broadway, Sixth Floor, Lubbock, TX 79401 Email: jorge@marketlubbock.org

Date Initial Application Submitted (Due prior to start of construction or permits assigned)

Projected Project Start Date

GENERAL INFORMATION
Contact

Title
Phone
Email 

INFORMATION ABOUT THE PROJECT
Property Ownership: Own Lease Permittable Façade 

Project Summary Scope 

COMPANY BACKGROUND
List any person or entity that has at least 5% ownership in the Applicant Company:

Percent
100%

Is the firm registered with the Secretary of State's Office to do business in Texas? Yes �
Are you in good standing with the State of Texas? Yes 

If you answered "No" to either of the above two questions, please explain

Is the firm and/or principals delinquent on any federal, state or local tax obligations? No �
Has the company or principals of the company had prior bankruptcies or lawsuits? No 

If you answered "Yes" to either of the above two questions, please explain

Final bids will be used to calculate the project cost and grant amount.

Dillon Land
Name Name Percent

Lubbock, Texas, 79401

Dillon Land
Owner

Façade $12,280$24,559

Grant Type: 

TOTAL $95,370 $19,361

R105432

LandLines, LLC
1106 Main Street

Summary of Expenses (detailed bids attached) Projected MLI Approved 

$7,081Permittable $70,811

The information requested on this form will be used by Market Lubbock, Inc. for analysis of your project.
Downtown Grant - Application

806-549-4200
dillons.land@gmail.com

New interior framing, sheetrock, paint, floors (concrete and vinyl plank), and refurbishing the awning out front with structure 
issues, fresh paint, roof tiles leaking that needed repair.  

Street Address

Project Property Address
Property LCAD R#

City, State, Zip

Company Name

01.05.2024

01.15.2024

1106 Main Street,  Lubbock, TX 79401

1 MLI 11.17.23

mailto:jorge@marketlubbock.org
mailto:dillons.land@gmail.com
mailto:dillons.land@gmail.com
mailto:dillons.land@gmail.com
mailto:dillons.land@gmail.com


Is the firm receiving tax revenue from any government agency? No �

Is the firm a non-profit entity? No �

After Completion of Construction

PAID Invoices (must reference the approved project)

Dillon Land per email

1/9/2024

Architectural Plans (if applicable)

Copy of building's current certificate of occupancy (request at 
orr@mylubbock.us)

Copies of City permits, if applicable
Detailed/Itemized Bids
Before Pictures

Architectural Renderings (if applicable)

Initial application received by MLI prior to the start of construction and/or before permits are assigned

All remaining documents must be received and an application packet presented to the MLI Board no 
more than three months after the initial application is received by MLI.

Contact Brianna Gerardi, City Director of Development bgerardi@mylubbock.us , to determine:

Documents Required for Final Grant Application

Does the scope of work meet downtown standards and guidelines?
Are permits required for any aspect of the scope of work?
Are public improvements required?

APPLICANT'S CHECKLIST:

Date:

Signature (not required for electronic submittals):

Certificate of Occupancy or Similar City Document Approving 
Completion (Applicant responsible for final scope of work matching 
approved scope)
Proof of Payment:

Processed Checks, Bank or Credit Card Statements 
matching PAID invoices (legible copies)

2 MLI 11.17.23



1106 Main – Before Picture and Rendering 

 

 



1106 Main – City Permit 
 

 



Type Area Description Expense
Façade Signage All Star Signs - Sign $14,884.38
Façade Glass CR Work - Exterior Windows $3,675.00
Façade ? SIM Construction - Exterior Renovations & Repair $6,000.00

Façade Expenses $24,559.38
Façade Grant $12,279.69

Type Area Description Expense
Permittable Bathroom Home Depot - Ceramic Tile $1,276.27
Permittable Bathroom Alejandro Pablo - Tile/Floor Installation $4,900.00
Permittable HVAC Expro Property Services - HVAC $16,400.00
Permittable Electrical Westex Power - Electrical $6,785.00
Permittable Electrical Westex Power - Electrical $11,000.00
Permittable Electrical Westex Power - Electrical $625.00
Permittable Plumbing Reece - Plumbing Supplies $254.16
Permittable Plumbing Morrison - Plumbing Supplies $1,433.43
Permittable Office SIM Construction - Drywall/Paint/Countertops $19,685.00
Permittable Interior Lowes - Electrical Supplies $326.74
Permittable Bathroom Lowes - Vanity $268.20
Permittable Bathroom Lowes - Floor and Wall Tile $986.98
Permittable Office Lowes - Paint Supplies $229.27
Permittable Office Lowes - Electrical Supplies $206.15
Permittable Office Lowes - Electrical Supplies $855.82
Permittable Office Lowes - Paint Supplies $229.27
Permittable Bathroom Faithful Hands - Cabinet Sink $5,350.00

Permittable Expenses $70,811.29
Permittable Grant $7,081.13

1106 Main - Expenses



 AI# 12727 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 6. 19. 
08/13/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Business Development: Consider a resolution authorizing a Downtown Grant Program
(Permittable) expenditure of Market Lubbock, Inc., to be provided to Landlines, LLC, located at 1106
Main Street, pursuant to Article IV, Section 5, of the Amended and Restated Bylaws of the Market
Lubbock Development Corporation. 

Item Summary
Landlines, LLC is renovating their property at 1106 Main Street, which is located within the Downtown
Tax Increment Financing District Boundary, as designated by the City of Lubbock. The scope of the
permittable project includes HVAC, plumbing and electrical improvements. 

The cost of the project is estimated to be $70,811, and the requested grant amount is $7,081. The Market
Lubbock, Inc. Board of Directors approved this amount at their July 24, 2024 Board Meeting, and
recommend approval by the City Council. 

Fiscal Impact
The total cost of the project is estimated to be $70,811, with $7,081 to be paid upon completion by
Market Lubbock, Inc. with the requested grant. 

Staff/Board Recommending
Bill Howerton, Deputy City Manager 
Brianna Brown, Business Development Director 
Market Lubbock, Inc. Board of Directors 

Attachments
Resolution 
Market Lubbock Resolution 
Market Lubbock Support Documentation 







MARKET LUBBOCK, INC. – DOWNTOWN GRANT PROGRAM 

 

 

1106 Main 

(Landlines, LLC) 

 
TOTAL SCOPE OF WORK = $95,370 

TOTAL GRANTS = $19,359 

 

TOTAL FAÇADE SCOPE OF WORK = $24,559 

FAÇADE GRANT = $12,278 

 

TOTAL PERMITTABLE SCOPE OF WORK = $70,811 

PERMITTABLE GRANT = $7,081 

 



 
 

Downtown Grant Program 
Presented to MLI Board 

July 24, 2024 
 
 

Project 1106 Main St. (Façade & Permittable) 
Landlines, LLC, (Dillon Land – Owner), is renovating the property at 1106 Main St., located in the 
Downtown TIF.  
 
This property was used for a bail bondsman company in the 90s and 2000s. It became an antique shop 
for a few years and has been vacant for 9 or 10 years and used for storage. Dillon Land purchased the 
building in November 2023. The new business at this property will be an upscale, walk-in tattoo studio.  
 
The scope of façade work will include signage and windows totaling $24,559 in façade expenses. 
Permittable expenses will include HVAC, plumbing, and electrical totaling $70,811 in expenses. 
 
The MLI Board is being asked to consider a Downtown Façade Grant for Landlines, LLC totaling $12,278 
and a Downtown Permittable Grant for $7,081 at 1106 Main St. 
 
 



MLI CONTACT INFORMATION
Jorge Quirino - Director of Downtown & Special Projects Phone: 806.749.4500
Market Lubbock, Inc.
1500 Broadway, Sixth Floor, Lubbock, TX 79401 Email: jorge@marketlubbock.org

Date Initial Application Submitted (Due prior to start of construction or permits assigned)

Projected Project Start Date

GENERAL INFORMATION
Contact

Title
Phone
Email 

INFORMATION ABOUT THE PROJECT
Property Ownership: Own Lease Permittable Façade 

Project Summary Scope 

COMPANY BACKGROUND
List any person or entity that has at least 5% ownership in the Applicant Company:

Percent
100%

Is the firm registered with the Secretary of State's Office to do business in Texas? Yes �
Are you in good standing with the State of Texas? Yes 

If you answered "No" to either of the above two questions, please explain

Is the firm and/or principals delinquent on any federal, state or local tax obligations? No �
Has the company or principals of the company had prior bankruptcies or lawsuits? No 

If you answered "Yes" to either of the above two questions, please explain

Final bids will be used to calculate the project cost and grant amount.

Dillon Land
Name Name Percent

Lubbock, Texas, 79401

Dillon Land
Owner

Façade $12,280$24,559

Grant Type: 

TOTAL $95,370 $19,361

R105432

LandLines, LLC
1106 Main Street

Summary of Expenses (detailed bids attached) Projected MLI Approved 

$7,081Permittable $70,811

The information requested on this form will be used by Market Lubbock, Inc. for analysis of your project.
Downtown Grant - Application

806-549-4200
dillons.land@gmail.com

New interior framing, sheetrock, paint, floors (concrete and vinyl plank), and refurbishing the awning out front with structure 
issues, fresh paint, roof tiles leaking that needed repair.  

Street Address

Project Property Address
Property LCAD R#

City, State, Zip

Company Name

01.05.2024

01.15.2024

1106 Main Street,  Lubbock, TX 79401

1 MLI 11.17.23

mailto:jorge@marketlubbock.org
mailto:dillons.land@gmail.com
mailto:dillons.land@gmail.com
mailto:dillons.land@gmail.com
mailto:dillons.land@gmail.com


Is the firm receiving tax revenue from any government agency? No �

Is the firm a non-profit entity? No �

After Completion of Construction

PAID Invoices (must reference the approved project)

Dillon Land per email

1/9/2024

Architectural Plans (if applicable)

Copy of building's current certificate of occupancy (request at 
orr@mylubbock.us)

Copies of City permits, if applicable
Detailed/Itemized Bids
Before Pictures

Architectural Renderings (if applicable)

Initial application received by MLI prior to the start of construction and/or before permits are assigned

All remaining documents must be received and an application packet presented to the MLI Board no 
more than three months after the initial application is received by MLI.

Contact Brianna Gerardi, City Director of Development bgerardi@mylubbock.us , to determine:

Documents Required for Final Grant Application

Does the scope of work meet downtown standards and guidelines?
Are permits required for any aspect of the scope of work?
Are public improvements required?

APPLICANT'S CHECKLIST:

Date:

Signature (not required for electronic submittals):

Certificate of Occupancy or Similar City Document Approving 
Completion (Applicant responsible for final scope of work matching 
approved scope)
Proof of Payment:

Processed Checks, Bank or Credit Card Statements 
matching PAID invoices (legible copies)

2 MLI 11.17.23



1106 Main – Before Picture and Rendering 

 

 



1106 Main – City Permit 
 

 



Type Area Description Expense
Façade Signage All Star Signs - Sign $14,884.38
Façade Glass CR Work - Exterior Windows $3,675.00
Façade ? SIM Construction - Exterior Renovations & Repair $6,000.00

Façade Expenses $24,559.38
Façade Grant $12,279.69

Type Area Description Expense
Permittable Bathroom Home Depot - Ceramic Tile $1,276.27
Permittable Bathroom Alejandro Pablo - Tile/Floor Installation $4,900.00
Permittable HVAC Expro Property Services - HVAC $16,400.00
Permittable Electrical Westex Power - Electrical $6,785.00
Permittable Electrical Westex Power - Electrical $11,000.00
Permittable Electrical Westex Power - Electrical $625.00
Permittable Plumbing Reece - Plumbing Supplies $254.16
Permittable Plumbing Morrison - Plumbing Supplies $1,433.43
Permittable Office SIM Construction - Drywall/Paint/Countertops $19,685.00
Permittable Interior Lowes - Electrical Supplies $326.74
Permittable Bathroom Lowes - Vanity $268.20
Permittable Bathroom Lowes - Floor and Wall Tile $986.98
Permittable Office Lowes - Paint Supplies $229.27
Permittable Office Lowes - Electrical Supplies $206.15
Permittable Office Lowes - Electrical Supplies $855.82
Permittable Office Lowes - Paint Supplies $229.27
Permittable Bathroom Faithful Hands - Cabinet Sink $5,350.00

Permittable Expenses $70,811.29
Permittable Grant $7,081.13

1106 Main - Expenses



 AI# 12723 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 6. 20. 
08/13/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Business Development: Consider a resolution authorizing a Commercial Revitalization
Grant Program (Facade) expenditure of Market Lubbock, Inc., to be provided to The Rolling Cones,
located at 3006 34th Street, pursuant to Article IV, Section 5, of the Amended and Restated Bylaws of
the Market Lubbock Development Corporation. 

Item Summary
In May 2023, the City Council authorized the continuation of the Lubbock East Neighborhood
Empowerment Zone, and the establishment of the 34th Street Empowerment Zone and the North
University Empowerment Zone. This action was taken to encourage redevelopment and revitalization
within the City of Lubbock, through the promotion of economic development within the Zones. Through
the establishment of the three Zones, Market Lubbock, Inc. has geographic boundaries within which it
can implement its Commercial Revitalization Grant Program. 

The Rolling Cones are renovating their property at 3006 34th Street, located within the 34th Street
Empowerment Zone, as designated by the City of Lubbock. The scope of the facade project includes
demolition, new framing, new windows and doors, and an updated storefront. The cost of the project is
estimated to be $48,420, and the requested grant amount is $24,210. The Market Lubbock, Inc. Board of
Directors approved this amount at their July 24, 2024 Board Meeting, and recommend approval by the
City Council. 

Fiscal Impact
The total cost of the project is estimated to be $48,420, with $24,210 to be paid upon completion by
Market Lubbock, Inc. with the requested grant. 

Staff/Board Recommending
Bill Howerton, Deputy City Manager
Brianna Brown, Business Development Director
Market Lubbock, Inc. Board of Directors 

Attachments
Resolution 
Market Lubbock Resolution 
Market Lubbock Support Documentation 







MARKET LUBBOCK, INC.    

COMMERCIAL REVITALIZATION GRANT PROGRAM 

 

 

3006 34th St. 

(The Rolling Cones) 

 
TOTAL SCOPE OF WORK = $79,770 

TOTAL GRANTS = $27,345 

 

SCOPE OF FAÇADE WORK = $48,420 

FAÇADE GRANT = $24,210 

 

SCOPE OF PERMITTABLE WORK = $31,350 

PERMITTABLE GRANT = $3,135 

 



 
 

Commercial Revitalization Grant Program 
Presented to MLI Board 

June 26, 2024 
 
 

Project 3006 34th St. (Façade and Permittable) 
The Rolling Cones Ice Cream Truck, LLC is renovating the property at 3006 34th, located within a Lubbock 
Neighborhood Empowerment Zone as designated by the City of Lubbock.   
 
The façade scope of work will include demolition, new framing, new windows and doors, and a new store 
front totaling $48,420 in façade expenses. The permittable scope of work will include demolition, HVAC, 
Electrical, and Plumbing totaling $31,350 in permittable expenses, with a total expense of $79,770.  
 
The MLI Board is being asked to consider a Commercial Revitalization Grant Program Façade Grant for 
The Rolling Cones Ice Cream Truck, LLC totaling $24,210 and a Commercial Revitalization Grant Program 
Permittable Grant of $3,135 at 3006 34th St. 
 



MLI CONTACT INFORMATION
Jorge Quirino - Director of Downtown & Special Projects Phone: 806.23.8241
Market Lubbock, Inc.
1500 Broadway, Sixth Floor, Lubbock, TX 79401 Email: jorge@marketlubbock.org

Date Initial Application Submitted (Due prior to start of construction or permits assigned)

Projected Project Start Date

GENERAL INFORMATION ABOUT THE COMPANY

GENERAL INFORMATION ABOUT THE COMPANY CONTACT

INFORMATION ABOUT THE PROJECT

Lease 
Owner Approved

Façade 

Detailed Project Summary (including projected start date) and Description of Work:

The information requested on this form will be used by Market Lubbock, Inc. for analysis of your project.

3006 34th Street Lubbock, Tx

Company Name
Street Address

The Rolling Cones
3501 county road 7660 

R57107
Project Property Address
Property LCAD R#

05/15/24

04/30/24

Commercial Revitalization Grant - Application

Summary of Expenses (detailed bids attached)
Façade

MLI Approved Reimbursement 

City, State, Zip

Property Ownership: Own 

Permittable
$24,210

Lubbock, Tx 79423

Name
Title
Phone Number
Email

President
575-631-6606
rollingconestx@gmail.com

Grant Type (May choose both if applicable): 

Jordan Lathram 

Permittable 

Complete Remodel of building inside and out to turn into a ice cream shop. Moving plumbing and new 
hvac/electrical if needed

$48,420
$31,350 $3,135

TOTAL
Final bids will be used to calculate the project cost and grant amount.

Projected

$79,770 $27,345

1 MLI 11.17.23

mailto:jorge@marketlubbock.org
mailto:rollingconestx@gmail.com
mailto:rollingconestx@gmail.com
mailto:rollingconestx@gmail.com
mailto:rollingconestx@gmail.com
mailto:rollingconestx@gmail.com
mailto:rollingconestx@gmail.com
mailto:rollingconestx@gmail.com
mailto:rollingconestx@gmail.com


COMPANY BACKGROUND
List any person or entity that has at least 5% ownership in the Applicant Company:

Percent Percent
100%

Is the firm registered with the Secretary of State's Office to do business in Texas? Yes �
Are you in good standing with the State of Texas? Yes 

If you answered "No" to either of the above two questions, please explain

Is the firm and/or principals delinquent on any federal, state or local tax obligations? No �
Has the company or principals of the company had prior bankruptcies or lawsuits? No 

If you answered "Yes" to either of the above two questions, please explain

Is the firm receiving tax revenue from any government agency? No 

Is the firm a non-profit entity? No 

City of Lubbock requirements:

Contact the City of Lubbock to determine the following:
Scope of work meets East Side/34th St./N. University standards and guidelines?
Are permits required for any aspect of the scope of work?
Are public improvements required?
Is there a current Certificate of Occupancy on file for this property?

Director of Downtown & Special Projects (Jorge Quirino) 806-749-4500
Application Packet:

Copies of City permits or City approval
Copy of Current Certificate of Occupancy
Detailed Construction Bids or Schedule of Values
Before Picture (prior to construction beginning)
Architectural Plans (if applicable)
Architectural Renderings (if applicable)

After completion of construction:
Certificate of Occupancy or Similar City Document Approving Completion
(Applicant responsible for final scope of work matching approved scope)
Proof of Payment:

PAID Invoices (must reference the approved project)
Processed Checks, Bank or Credit Card Statements matching PAID 
invoices (legible copies)

City of Lubbock - Planning Department 806-775-2108

APPLICANT'S RESPONSIBILITIES (PROPERTY OWNER OR LEASEE)

Jordan Lathram 

Date Final Documents Received:________________________

Market Lubbock, Inc. (MLI) requirements:

Name Name

Initial application (page one of this document) must be received by MLI prior to 
the start of construction and/or before permits are assigned

All remaining documents must be received and an application packet 
presented to the MLI Board no more than three months after the 
initial application is received by MLI.

2 MLI 11.17.23



Overview

•         An Applicant must be a valid Owner or Tenant (Lessee) of the property needing improvements
•         Properties must fall within the East Side, 34th St., or N. Lubbock Neighborhood Empowerment Zones
•         Single-Family residences and duplexes are excluded.
•         An Applicant is eligible to receive a permittable grant and/or façade grant per property (LCAD R#  

•         Applicant is not eligible for grant program funding if delinquent in property taxes according to

•         MLI disbursements are characterized as "reimbursable grants" - Applicant pays expenses first
•         Expenses eligible for reimbursement must relate to reasonable costs or expenses.
•         Receipt of an application is not a guarantee of grant approval.

Grant Types

•         Permittable Projects
•       Improvements require a City of Lubbock permit
•       Improvements may be made to the exterior and/or interior of the property
•       Improvements must total a minimum of $5,000
•      The permittable grant reimburses 10% of approved expenses up to a $50,000 grant
•   Permittable scope of work that may be considered:

•   HVAC
•   Plumbing
•   Electrical
•   Structural
•   Any other work requring a City of Lubbock permit

•         Façade Projects
•       Improvements may or may not require a City of Lubbock permit
•       Improvements must be made to the exterior of the property facing the most prominent street
•       Improvements must total a minimum of $1,000
•      The façade grant reimburses 50% of approved expenses up to a $25,000 grant
•   Façade scope of work that may be considered:

•   Painting
•   New windows and doors
•   Signage
•   Landscaping
•   Parking lots
•   Awnings
•   Any other work that improves the appearnce of the façade

     or Development Lot), per enterprise, per year. Must wait one year from approval to apply again for 
     the same property. (Expenses used in one application cannot be used in another application.)

Signature (not required for electronic submittals):

Date:

     LCAD records - includes all LCAD properties listed in the applicant's name

3 MLI 11.17.23



Estimate
Date

5/9/2024

Estimate #

565

Name / Address

Jordan Lathram
3006 34th Street
Lubbock, Texas 79410

Sanders BuildRite Construction
1502 98th Street
Lubbock, Texas 79423

Project

Ice Cream Shop

We look forward to working with you!!
Total

Description Qty Rate Total

*Demo

Demo of inside building down to the cinder block walls

Demo of wood exterior and soffit and fascia

Demo of all electrical on the exterior of building

Demolition on concrete smoker in the back of the building

Demo of front and back doors, windows and block for new storefront glass

Demo of all tile and flooring in building

8,970.00 8,970.00

*Build Out

Frame new floorplan per architectural drawings provided by licensed architect and
engineer (plans paid by customer)

Build up exterior of building 4' and prep for eifs

Frame and install new storefront doors and windows (storefront paid by customer)

Exterior of building and back freezer building to consist of metal chair rail and eifs
above around the entire project

Sheetrock throughout building and tile down east wall (tile to be paid by customer)

Wood special wall and wood slat checkout are to be custom made and installed

Level, prep and level concrete slab and install tile (tile to be paid by customer)

Level, prep and level concrete slab and install tile (tile to be paid by customer)

26,850.00 26,850.00

Page 1

jorge
Highlight

jorge
Highlight



Estimate
Date

5/9/2024

Estimate #

565

Name / Address

Jordan Lathram
3006 34th Street
Lubbock, Texas 79410

Sanders BuildRite Construction
1502 98th Street
Lubbock, Texas 79423

Project

Ice Cream Shop

We look forward to working with you!!
Total

Description Qty Rate Total

*Plumbing

Plumbing on the inside of building will be new and re-ran per floorplan

One ADA bathroom to consist of toilet, lavatory and floor drain

Kitchen area to have floor mop sink and hand was sink

Checkout area and serving bar to have water and drain for scoop cleanout

11,500.00 11,500.00

*Electrical

Electric on inside and outside of building will be new and re-ran per floorplan

Electrical to consist of can lights throughout, plugs throughout and specialty wiring
where needed

Exterior freezer to be on separate panel (freezer pumps may need to be replaced)

Exterior lighting for signage and curb appeal labor (specialty fixtures paid by
customer)

15,670.00 15,670.00

*HVAC

HVAC to be looked at and system tested

New duct work and supplies/returns per plan

New smart thermostat

4,180.00 4,180.00

Page 2



Estimate
Date

5/9/2024

Estimate #

565

Name / Address

Jordan Lathram
3006 34th Street
Lubbock, Texas 79410

Sanders BuildRite Construction
1502 98th Street
Lubbock, Texas 79423

Project

Ice Cream Shop

We look forward to working with you!!
Total

Description Qty Rate Total

*Misc

Onsite port o potty.

Onsite dumpster

Onsite signage

Commercial coverage

3,000.00 3,000.00

Project management and OHP 9,600.00 9,600.00

This bid is based off an estimate cost and unforeseens are not included.

All work is warrantied throughout the entirety of the job and BRC is and will remain
fully insured.
 
Proposal does not include provisions for any items of work that are not specifically
described.

Specialty fixtures are to be provided by the customer.

Upon approval, a 10% nonrefundable deposit is due for scheduling purposes.  

****Due to the unforeseen rise in material cost, all estimates are subject to change
based on the price of material when ordered. ****

Page 3

$79,770.00

jorge
Highlight

jorge
Highlight



���������	�
��
����� ��������� ������������������������ ���������� ������������� ���������!��������� ���������"� �������"���� ���������#�� �$���������%��������#�# ��&���%��������#�' �$���������%��������#�( ��&���%��������'�� ����������)�� �$�������'"�"��&����*���� ������%��&�������������%������� �+ ����,�������������

-./01023�4567.89:6.;<5=. -./01.>�?@<.1A;0B=023

�����

CDE�D��FG
H�I�DJKJL�CM�
N��O�P�Q���IN���RSH���T���ULVWJX��FR�Y�ZW[\Z]̂\Z[[U� �_�F�Y�̀̀ abcd̀ efghìjklbm

noppq nrstp

uvswxyzn�{v|}xupu�~��

usqp
	���QFG�����KWK̂�CDE�D��FG
H�I�DC����FG��������QM��

���������
�NF��F
G�	����D���P����������D��FG
���Q��W���E�
�Q��Y�P�_����I�G�
�H�C��Q�MF��F�
�H�E�
�Q��������J������
K������M��F�
��̂��P�R�F�
�V���I�QG��PR����D���F��Y����
�H����M��F�
�H���R�F�
���
�������F���]���D���F��[���PR���N�����
��DF�GQ�_�U������Q�D��F
��Z������Q�D��F
��L���̂��DQ��F
G�Y����_��QFRH���Q���R�FM��H�������

P�����DF�RF��F
��D��FG
���Q��	�M�QE���E�
�Q�����P�����IF��H�P�_����H�	����PN__�Q�H���R\��������Q��N������QF������C����_�
�H���
��F
GH���R\����PNQM���������F
G����E����R�
FR��	���	FMF�I���I�
��R��F
GP���P�QNR�NQ��C���CQR�F��R�NQ�������
��QF�Q�������NF�_�
������FQ���Q���R�F�
������N_�F
GD����Q�R������D�_��F�F�
H��
�������F�
���R\������R��
FR���������R�QFR������DF��QF�N�����
�QG���������R�__N
FR��F�
���������NQR�����TF��F
G�	�
�F�F�
�����NF��F
G�����X���Q�DF�RF��F
�� ���	�
�Q�R��Q���P����DQ��F
G�X���X��Q��F�
�

{tsy�¡xtp�"��� "���������"����������¢�����!����£+������+ ���
��G��EQF������Q�
R�������"��#�#�#"#�'�'�'�(�(�("(�¤�¤�¤"¤"'

���������� �¥
�¢������ �¥

�����������¥
���¢�����¥
����������¥

�
�

�
"

#� ' ( ¤

#� ' ( ¤

�
�

�
"D�P	IC������������������+ �����������������!�������+���������+���������� ������&��¢�������"�����������%���������"��k���"�"�����*��"�����£+��¢�����������������!����"�������������������"��%���"���������k	���QFG����"������*�����*�� ����*���$�*���"���¢�������������+�"����¢��������������������"��!�+k�k���"�����������������!���¢��&���"� �!�������������"+��"*�"+������"*� �"����"*���"������+��"*����&¢�������������*�&��¢�+���¢���$������&������������������"��"�����*��"k��"��&������+��¢���"���� ��"��"�����*��"�������������"��!+k�k���"�����������������!���¢���&k���������������"+������*�����"+��*�����*� �"��!*���"������+��*�����*�������*���&¢�������������*���� ��¢�������&��¢�+���¢���$������"&�������������������"��"�����*��"

��������F
G�	�
��ŴW[�̂V���P�Q����IN���RSH���T���ULVJW
I����
��Q_��F�


��¦�§̈ �v©ªª«¬�r©¬®̄�p°«̄±«¬

��������F
G�	�
��ŴW[�̂V���P�Q����IN���RSH���T���ULVJW
H���

PF������
�²��Q�³�R��
��Q_��F�

�+�"������"��¥ #��¤���������������+�"������"�#��¤������������������"��������"�#��¤�������������������!�������%�������"�#��¤���������������+ �������"�#��¤�������������� ��¢��������"�#��¤���������������+��������"�#��(�������������������"���"��¢���������"����������¢����"������"�����������+����́*��$�����!¥ +����́*���$���µ)(��+��¥ �������� �!�����"������!������������+�����¥���%����������¢����� ��������+������������¥ ����¶�·����������"���¢¥ �#����¢��&��"�����"¥ )�� �¢��������&���"¥ #��������� ����������!¥ �

�+��"�%���������+ ��� �̧����"���������� &��� ��������¢����́�����̧����£+�������� µ*̧(���£���¢!������""���� '��¹�'(gº��gahhg�������������́������������́���¢����"���������́�������"���������́+����!����� ����¶�����������·

���£+����������������+���"�����"����&¢������"��&�����¢����"��+ ����k����!�%����������¢������ �"������������"+����������+�������!��¢�������*����������������+������������&����£+���������+�����k�����£+�������������¶��¢����¢�����"������"�����·��¢�+"���������"���"��������� �������+��������!k

���"������"����� �%�������́�£+���������������� ¹µ̧��+����� ¹µ̧��¢������������� µ¹#����� �*((�
�NF��F
G�P�N�Q�������G��

��+�������� ��������£+�������� ������������������� µ¹ �¤���� µ¹ �¤	�N
��Q���
��	��F
����%������ �¥����%�������������+���"�����¢���+���"����� �&����"������������¢����� ��&���"�����������¢�������������¢��������,�������k�%���%�����¥����%�������������+���"�����¢���+���"��&��+������ �������&����"������������¢����� ��&���"����������¢��������������¢��������,�������k

�FRF
F������ CQ������



���������	
����������
������	
����

�������������������������������

�������������������������
��� ���������������
������� ��������������
���

���������
����
	�	��������� 	�	���������

	�	���������

���������
�����������������
������
�� ��������������������
������
��

����������
������������
�������������
����������
��������������������
�������

�����������������
�������

���������	
����������
������	
����

�����������������	��

�������������������������������

�������������������������
��� ���������������
������� ��������������
���

���������
����
	�	��������� 	�	���������

	�	���������

	�	���������

 !"#$#%&�'()*!+,-)!./(0!  !"#$!1�23/!$4.#50#%&

�6787

9:;�:<=>?@A�BC:DEDF�9G<@H<�I�JKL<<KBHMMNOPA�C<QR=�SFTUDVWW>O<X�YUZ[Y\][YZZS� <̂R>_X�̀̀ abcd̀ efghìjklbm

noppq nrstp

uvswxyzn�{v|}xupu�~��

usqp
�N��L>?�K���EUE]�9:;�:<=>?@A�BC:9__��>?�K=��<=<LG<�

���������{tsy��xtp

	�������
���
�������
���

������������

���������
����
����

�



�
�

�7 � � �

�7 � � �

�



�
�


7�6787
7�6787��<��J>K<��_R@=OR_<X�D��DU��U�

�������v����� �r��¡¢�p£�¢¤�� 

C�<��N__>@?��N@<=]UUZ�]TK��JKL<<K�BHMMNOPA�C<QR=�SFTDU
A���

J>K<��_R@


7�6787
7�6787¥Q>=K>@?�J>K<��_R@=OR_<X�D��DU��U�



��� ������
������

	��
� ��
������

���� ����� �
�
�����	� 
�����	�

��
�����

��������������������������� �������� ���

����� 	������ �����
� ���

��������������

��� 
��

�
�

��
 !"�# �$%%&!$�'()*+�,-.)�/�0/1/22*2�/+3�/�4-15/13�/001-/6)�.-�.)*.-72*.�/1*�01-873*39�.)*�62*/1/+6*�:)-;23�,*�/.�2*/:.<=>�?*/:;1*3�0*10*+376;2/1�41-?�.)*�1*/1�5/229�/+3=@>�?*/:;1*3�0*10*+376;2/1�41-?�.)*�:73*5/22A�B--.)*1�47C.;1*�-1�-,:.1;6.7-+�:)-;23�,*�57.)7+�.)*62*/1/+6*�/1*/A�D$BE"�=@FAGAH9�H@@IAHHA<AIAGJ�����K��L���M�������N������OOPN��� ��

���	���	�� ���

�����K��L���M�������N������P�Q�Q�P� ���N������P�Q�Q�P��RSTUVK��WXY�YXWZ�Z[R\T]�YU�̂WR_S]U]�R̀�V[U�WUXW�aXTT�X̀]�R̀V[U�ZS]UaXTT�bTRZUZV�VR�V[U�VRSTUV���[U�ZS]UaXTT�cWXY�YXW�Z[R\T]YU�XV�TUXZV�	���TR̀c�X̀]�TRbXVU]�YUVaUÙ�����X̀]��	��dWRe�V[UWUXW�aXTT���[U�WUXW�cWXY�YXW�Z[R\T]�YU�XV�TUXZV��	��TR̀cfbÙVUWU]�R̀�V[U�VRSTUV��g[UWU�ẐXbU�̂UWeSVZf�V[U�YXW�Z[R\T]YU�XV�TUXZV�
��TR̀cf�aSV[�V[U�X]]SVSR̀XT�TÙcV[�̂WR_S]U]�R̀�V[UVWX̀ZdUW�ZS]U�Rd�V[U�VRSTUV��h�����
�	��i�h]��X̀]�]�i


��

����� 	����

���� �����

���������� 	����

	�	���	���h�i�����K��L	��M������ Q�����Fj�?7+HI�?7+��
hbidWR̀V�X̂ ŴRXb[f�̂\Z[�ZS]Uf�]RRWŴR_S]U]�aSV[�YRV[�bTRZUW�X̀]�TXVb[ G=�?7+��� =@�?7+ ����h]i[S̀cU�X̂ ŴRXb[f�̂\TT�ZS]U

=@�?7+ ���� Hj�?7+		�hXidWR̀V�X̂ ŴRXb[f�̂\TT�ZS]U ����Fj�?7+

hYidWR̀V�X̂ ŴRXb[f�̂\Z[�ZS]U
	�	���	����g�������kNNP����k������f��g�������l���������������m�����nm�P��������P�������N�O�o�g������Q���	�	���	���l�����	�	���	�� &*87:7-+� /,2*B;?,*1p/.* &*87:*3�qrp*:6170.7-+

�����

stu�tvwxyz{�|}t~�~��s�vz�v������vv�|������{�}v��w�����~���x�v��������������� v��x���XXWR̀�X]cVU�XZ�bRe

����� � ¡¢�

£¤¡¥¦§̈ ��©¤ª«¦£�£�¬®

£¡��
�̄°±�xy²��³������stu�tvwxyz{�|}ts���́xy²�w�́vwv��vµ

¶·̧¹·̧¹̧ º©¢¡§�»¦¢�

OPN¼��������K
����������K

�������P���K
�P�������K
�N��P���NPK

Q
�

�
k

��  	 �

��  	 �

Q
�

�
k

��������������|x�v����v�±�½��zw���v��~¾�¿À~ÁÂ�¿ �L	�������
º̧Ã¹ÄÅ�¤ÆÇÇÈÉÊ� ÆÉËÌ��ÍÈÌÎÈÉÊ

}²v�́���xzy�̄�zvw��������²����vv��|������{�}v��w����~�
{���

|x�v����v�±�½��z

�N����N��nO�����N�k��NP�����Qn��k��� ���O�NO���N����N��nO�����N�k���P����g�������N��Nk��� �
��O�NO����P����g�k���P�Ïn�P�k��Ð�����h�������������NP�N���P�i 
����������P����OPNm�k�k �����������Ð��n�����Ng�Q����P�m���k��������h��Q���������i ���������h�N���OP�����ki�N�������P�m���k������� ���������h�N���OP�����ki��Ð��n��k��k���k�������h���������	i� ��������h�N���OP�����ki��Ð��n��k��k���k�������OPNm�k�k �������h�N���OP�����ki�N��N��O����N����P�����P�m���h��Q������
����i ���������h�N���OP�����ki�N��N��O����N����P�����P�m���OPNm�k�k ���������h�N���OP�����ki�gN��Ð�����P�Ïn�P�k�g����N��nO�����N�k�N�����O�n��h��Q�����
����i�����n���n�Q�P�N���Ð������NP�N��nO�����N�k�h��Q�����
����i����� ���Ð����������� ��Ð����NP����������� 	��Ð���

�N���Pn���N���oO�� TT�Q��Pn��nP����P��� ���NnPh�i�Ð��P�NP�Q��P����g���� ���NnPh�i����P�NP�Q��P����g���� ���NnPh�i��NNP��N���Pn���N� ���NnPh�iPNN���N���Pn���N� ���NnPh�i�Ð��P�NP�g�����h��Q���
��i���NnPh�i��oO��N����P��kNNP����P��NPP�kNP��h������i ���NnP��P�����P��OPN�����N��P�Ïn�P�������h��Q���
��i

Qn��k���KÑ����P��NP��P��Ñk�������N�k���N�� OPNm�k�kO�P�����P����Ng�k�h��ih�iO�P�����P��N����h��i�N������P��Qn��k����hOig�k���N��OnQ����g�o�NP�NO����O����hgiÒ���P�����hO�P����i�kn���N��PN������h��iN��nO���o�������������N� ����N���Pn���N���oO� ���Q��NNP��P�����P�����NNP 
���N������NNP��P�������nk����������NNP�� 
����NP��� �Qn��k���������� �����OP�����P��o�����OPNm�k�k �N�OP�����P��o������oO�
�PN��������k��P������P����� �PNnO��ÓfÒ�PNnO�PÓfÒ����N���P��f�������

���Ng�k�hQ��NP�����P����i
N��nO�����N�k�h��Q����	����iN��nO�����N�k Ô�N��O�NO�������Q�oK��	���������O�P�O�P�N� ��������K�������������O�P�O�P�N� ��N��� �O�n�Q������Ð�nP��P�Ïn�P����������O��ZZUeYTÕ��SVb[Ù� ���� n����PNn

O N��nO��� �N�k h��n���iN��nO���oK ��� �ZZUeYTÕ�SVb[Ù����P�Ïn�P�k����OPNm�k�k
k���P�O��N�K ����� � ������

g���P��N����� nP�����Ñ�QN����k�g���P�NP�g���P��NN��P�g����Q��OPNm�k�k�Qo�Ng��P�������n�N��kP��������Nn������������ �

��m��NPo
�n������NPo�����OP�����k OPNm�k�k���Ng�kÖL� �N�O������NNP��P���h�Ï���i 
�� �f��� �f��� o���������hP�����	�i �� �� 	� o��

������� � �
kP����Nn��� �����Pm��� ����

N���P



���������	
� ��������
��
�������	
� ��������

���������	
� ��������
�
������
�

�
�������	
� �
������

���������	
��
�������
������
����������	
��
������

�
�
����
�
�
�
����
� �
�����

�����
�

�����
�

�����
�

�����
�

�����
������
������
������
�

�����
������
�

�����
������
�

	�
�	�
�

	�
�	�
�

	�
�	�
�

	�
�	�
�

	���	���	�
�	�
�
	�
�	�
�

	���	���

	��
	��

	�
�	�
�

	�
�	�
�

	�
�	�
�

	�
�	�
�
	�
�	�
�

	�
�	�
�	�
�	�
�

	�
�	�
�

������� ��������� ��

���������� ���������� ���������� �������������� ��� �������� ��
��

������� ��
������ ���


��
�
������ ������ ��

������� �� ������� ��
������������������ �����������

��

�
��
�� ��

�������� ���������� ������� ����
� ������ �!"��"�

���"#�� �$��!�
���"#�� �%��""�

&'(�)* �+,+-*)./001
2(.34*'
567*)�+/*6

�89��	:989�	;<��	���8���8��	989��;��9���=�>
����<����	<;<?

���� ������ ��
����

��

����
�
�


89�9��9����	9���;��9<�98 89�9��9����;�9����98��;��9<�98��?��
���?��
�

����

���������	
� ��������
���������	
� ��������

�
�������	
� ��������
�
������
�

�
������
�

����
�������������

�
������
�
�
������
�

�
�������	
� ��������
���������	
� ��������

���������	
� ���������
�������	
��
�������
������
��
�������	
��
������
�����
������
�

�����
������
�

�����
������
�

�� ������������

�� �� �
������ ��

9�;��;<?�@9<�A��BCD;<?E9�;��;<?���;�9���8�;<A��BCD;<?E
9�;��;<?������;�<���9�9��8;������<9�

����9�����9C��;�;�<F�����9C��;�;�<�:���D99<��98��8C9���<���89@;�B���9C��;�;�<��98C;������B8���9�����D9�89C�@9���<����G9<��	<�����:9�9�;��;<?���8B��B8��9�9C9<��>����9�9��8;���H���BCD;<?H�C9�:�<;������D9�89C�@9���9�<��<���89��89�������8B��B8���B8���9�����89�9;@9�<9	��B8���9C��98;�����<�C>9>�>�?9<98���<��9�9�;��;<?�8�B����89C�;<����9�9��8;������<9��H�C9�98�D��9�HC�;<��;<9�����D9�;<��9��9���<��89B�9�	:989�����;D�9I��;���<<9����B8;<?89C��9�������BCD;<?��8�;<��<���B���=��;<9����D9�;<��9��9���<��89B�9��	:989����;D�9I��;���<<9����B8;<?�89C��9�

	������:9�B�9<BCD98 ����=CD�� 	������<��8B��;�<H�B��98	�
�� � 9��98;�8�����B���I���<���;<;�:������J��H�C9�������:����J��H�9�;��;<?��CBD���G��8B<<;<?�D�<�������J��	�
�� � 9��98;�8�����B���I���<���;<;�:������J��H�C9�������:����J��H�9�;��;<?��CBD���G��8B<<;<?�D�<�������J��H��8=	�������J���A�����E����J��	�
�� � 9��98;�8�����B���I���<���;<;�:�����J���H�C9�������:����J��H�C�;��B89D�88;98���:�B�9	8�����
�H��:99�:;<?�����D����J���H��;8��8�C;<?�K�������J��H��:99�:;<?�����D����J���H�C�;��B89�D�88;98���:�B�9	8�����
�H�C9������:����J��H�9��98;�8�����B���I���<���;<;�:�����J���	�
�� � <��?8��@9���<9�;<?����J��H�C�;��B89�D�88;98���:�B�9	8�����
�H�:99�:;<?�����D����J���H��;8��8�C;<?�K�������J��H��8=	�������J���A�����E���J��	�
�� � ��<�89�9I���B<���;�<����
��J��	�
�� � �8=	�������J���A�����E�?899<D��8�����J��H��;8��8�C;<?�K�������J��	�
�� � �8=	�������J���A�����E����J��H��;8��8�C;<?�K�������J��H��8=	�������J���A�����E���J��	�
�� � �8=	�������J���A�����E����J��H��;8��8�C;<?�K�������J��H��8=	�������J���A�����E?899<D��8�����J��	�
�� � �8=	�������J���A�����E����J��H��;8��8�C;<?�K�������J��H��8=	�������J���A�����E?899<D��8�����J��H��8����<9���B8���9����J��	��
� � �8����<9���B8���9����J��H��8=	�������J���A�����E�?899<D��8�����J��H��;8�8�C;<?�K�������J��	���� � �8=	�������J���A�����E�?899<D��8�����J��H��;8��8�C;<?�K�������J��	���� � �8=	�������J���A�����E�?899<D��8�����J��H��;8��8�C;<?�K�������J��H�8=	�������J���A�����E�?899<D��8�����J��H��8����<9���B8���9����J��
���8���:9�B�9<BCD98 L�=�;M9 �9��8;��;�< :�8�	�89�
�� �� �
�
���;< �	��	�=�:;<?9��98@;�9����8 �B�:�����9��<��G;�G�����9��<�D��:��;�9�I�	��	�=�:;<?9�
�� �� �
���8�9� 9��>�:;<?9��?������<9� ;<�98;�8��B�:�:�<��9I�9��98;�8��B��:�<��9I��8�@;�9����8�����B89���:��C99�������89LB;89���9<�;�<I�G9=���G�9��D������D��:��;�9��
�� �� �
����J8�9�9��>���BD�9:;<?9��?������<9� ;<�98;�8��B�:�:�<��9I�9��98;�8��B��:�<��9I��8�@;�9����8�����B89���:��C99�������89LB;89���9<�;�<I�G9=���G�9��D������D��:��;�9��
�� �� �
�
���;< :;<?9�����D ;<�98;�8��9@98��B�:�DB���<����G��9�I9��98;�8��9@9�������?9I��8�@;�9����8������<�	����D9:;<���9@98	;<��	���:9�B�9<BCD98 L�=�;M9 ����9��8;��;�< �;@;�9���;�9�	
�� �� ��
������� �;�9��?���� �	
�� �� ������ ��� �;�9��?���� �	
�� �� �
���� �
� �9�����;�;<? ��J��	
�� �� ������ �
� �;�9��?���� ���9LB;�C9<��<��9�
�� D9@98�?9�����98�A�8�@;�9��D=��	<98E
�� ��D�=��;<G
�� BJ��89��:�;<�����98�A�8�@;�9��D=��	<98E
�� ;�9��89�C��899M98��;����=�A�8�@;�9��D=��	<98E
�� BJ��89��:�;<��899M98�A�8�@;�9��D=��	<98E
�� :�<��	��:��;<G
�� ��;<��������9�����;�<
�� ����:����	����B<�98���B<�98I���B<�98���������>�>�
�� ��B<�98���������>�>��C����98�����89L>�
� ������B<�98�C�B<�9�������>�>��	J��<?�9�D8��G9���������>�>��� �8;@9��:8�B?:�	;<��	���B<�98� NOPQRQST�UVWXOYZ[WO\]V̂O NOPQRO_�̀a]ORb\QĉQST

���
�

+,d�,*)(e'f�gh,"!"%�+i*'j*�2�5./**.gjkk03lf�h* 6)��%m#"noo(3*p��#$q�rsq�$$�� *16(7p�ttuvwtxyz{|t}>~v�

����� �����

���������������������

����
�0��/(e4.���!#!s�+,d�,*)(e'f�gh,+77�-(e4.)�-*)*/i*�

������������������
�����
������
��*�� 700/�¡76')367*p�"¢m�£"��#�

�8�¤9���<�C9F
�:99��<�C9F

9<?;<998;<?F
�8�:;�9��F
��<�8����8F

D
�

�
�

�� � � �

�� � � �

D
�

�
�

��¥�¦§��̈ ©©ª«¬��̈ «®��̄ª®°ª«¬

h4*�-077('e��0'*)s##$�sm.4�5./**.�gjkk03lf�h* 6)��%m"#
f���

").� 700/�,(1*')(0'*� /61('e�¡76'

�����
������
�± ().('e�¢�,*10� 700/�¡76')367*p�"¢m�£"��#�

?9<98�����<��8B��;�<�<��9�����;<�98;�8��B8���9��;<;�:9���<������8�����D9��9�98C;<9��D=���;9<���<����8�;<��9��	;�:���<�8����8����	�����=�9��	;�:�?899<�D��8�����D9�;<�����9���<���BCD;<?�A	9�E��;�9���	��������;��B89�����D9�;<�����9��D=��;�9<�9���8��9��;�<��������8�;<?���C�<B����B898��;<�������;�<���9�;�;���;�<��



����������	
�
���������������������������
��� �������� ���� ���
�


���� ��

����������	
�
���������������
� ���
�

���������������������������� ���� �� �� ���� ���������� �� ������ ��������

��� �����������
�� ������!������"���������#���������$�!�$�
�� ���������� ������	������!
�� ����������$�%����������$���
�� �����������������"�����&�%"����������$�������������!�������&��������$�������'�
�� ��������$��������������	���������!��������� ����%�%���
�� ��$� �������������������� ����%���������%�����&�'
�� ���������� ������	������!�(������'���������)
�� ���������%��!�%����	����$� �!
�� ���������!�������	����$� �!���!������!����%"��$�	���*�
� ��$� ��%������!����������������� ����%�������������%��!�%��� ��$� ��	���*���!����������������� ����%������������!����(������%������������+����!���������)��� ������������!���������	��!���������$������ ��������������������$������ ��$� ��%������!����������������� ��!�� ������%��!�%�(������%����������%��!�%���+�)��� ���������%��!�%����	����$� �!���!������!����%�����$�	���* ,-./0/12�3456-7895-:;4<- ,-./0-=�>?;-0@:/A</12

���
�

BCD�CEFGHIJ�KLCMNMO�BPEIQE�R�STUEETKQVVWXYJ�LEZ[F�\O]̂M_̀ G̀XEa�b̂cdbefdbcc\� Eg[Gha�iijklminopqris'tku

vwxxy vz{|x

}~{����v��~���}x}����

}{yx
�W��UGH�T���N̂Nf�BCD�CEFGHIJ�KLCBhh��GH�TF��EFEUPE�

����������|{����|x

���#������$��
��������$��

������������
����������
�����������

	
�

�
!

�� � � �

�� � � �

	
�

�
!

�����
������
��ZGFTGIH��UWIT��hEP[TGWI���S_�L�FX[hEa�M�]��M��̂�

�����
������
��ZGFTGIH��GH�T��hEP[TGWI����BSLFX[hEa�M�]��M��̂�

�� �¡¢�~£¤¤¥¦§�z£¦̈©�xª¥©«¥¦§

L�E��WhhGIH��WIEFf̂ ĉ�f]T��STUEET�KQVVWXYJ�LEZ[F�\O]M̂
J���

�ZGFTGIH��hEP[TGWIF
��������!�$�����������������!�$��������������$�!��!������ ����!�$����������$��'���������������	���������!���!�������!����$����������	����������� ����%�����������!�$�����������������������"���$	����"�� ������	��!����������!!�����!�$����������!���������������!������!�������&����������������������$����%��*������!�$������������������&



����������	
�
������������������������������������
�����������������
���������������������������
������
� ��

��
�����
������
�

���� ��

����������	
�
����������������������������������������
������������������������
�

�� ��
���� �����
������
� ��

��

��� ����������
�� ������!�	��������������"��������� ���������������#�����������������������$����
�� �����������
�� ����������������
�� �%����������
�� 	��&������������������������	"������
�� �� ��������������������� '()*+*,-�./01(2340(56/7( '()*+(8�9:6(+;5*<7*,-

���
�

=>?�>@ABCDE�FG>HIHJ�=K@DL@�M�NOP@@OFLQQRSTE�G@UVA�WJXYHZ[[BS@\�]Ŷ_]̀a_]̂ Ŵ� @bVBc\�ddefghdijklmdnopfq

rsttu rvwxt

yzw{|}~r��z��|yty����

ywut
�R��PBC�O���IYIa�=>?�>@ABCDE�FG>=cc��BC�OA��@A@PK@�

����������xw}��|xt

����������!��
��������!��

����������
���������
�����������

	
�

�
�

�� � � �

�� � � �

	
�

�
�

�������z�������v�����t�������

G�@��RccBDC��RD@AaYŶ�aXO��NOP@@O�FLQQRSTE�G@UVA�WJXHY
E���

 @¡�¢c@KVOBRDA�����
������
��@bR�@c��BC�O�¢c@KVOBRD�£�¢=NGASVc@\�H¤X¥¦H§£Y¥

�����
������
��@bR�@c�̈PRDO�¢c@KVOBRD�£�NZ©GªASVc@\�H¤X¥¦H§£Y¥

����������� ��������������������������������������%������������������� ���������������������������������



����������	
�
���������������������������
���������������������� �� ������ ���� ������ ����

����������	
�
���������������������������
������������������������ �������� ���� �� ������ �
�
���� ����

��� �����������
�� �!�����������"���������#���������$���$�
�� �!�������� ������	�������
�� �!��������$�%����������$���
�� �!���������������"�����&�%"����������$���������������������&��������$�������'�
�� ��������$��!�����������	������������������� ����%�%���
�� ��$� �������������������� ����%���������%�����&�'
�� �!�������� ������	��������(�����!'���������)
�� �!�������%����%����	����$� ��
�� �!���������������	����$� �����������������%"��$�	���*�
� ��$� ��%������������������������ ����%�������������%����%��� ��$� ��	���*��������������������� ����%�����������������(������%������������+��������������)��� �!��������������������	������������$������ �!������������������$������ ��$� ��%������������������������ ����� ������%����%�(������%����������%����%���+�)��� �!�������%����%����	����$� �����������������%�����$�	���* ,-./0/12�3456-7895-:;4<- ,-./0-=�>?;-0@:/A</12

���
�

BCD�CEFGHIJ�KLCMNMO�BPEIQE�R�STUEETKQVVWXYJ�LEZ[F�\O]̂M_̀ G̀XEa�b̂cdbefdbcc\� Eg[Gha�iijklminopqris'tku

vwxxy vz{|x

}~{����v��~���}x}����

}{yx
�W��UGH�T���N̂Nf�BCD�CEFGHIJ�KLCBhh��GH�TF��EFEUPE�

����������|{����|x

���#������$��
��������$��

������������
����������
�����������

	
�

�
�

�� � � �

�� � � �

	
�

�
�

�����
������
��ZGFTGIH��E[U��hEP[TGWI����_�L�FX[hEa�M�]��M��̂�

�����
������
��ZGFTGIH�KÈT��hEP[TGWI�����SLFX[hEa�M�]��M��̂�

�� �¡¢�~£¤¤¥¦§�z£¦̈©�xª¥©«¥¦§

L�E��WhhGIH��WIEFf̂ ĉ�f]T��STUEET�KQVVWXYJ�LEZ[F�\O]M̂
J���

�ZGFTGIH��hEP[TGWIF
����������$�������������������$��������������$����������� ������$����������$��'���������������	��������������������������$����������	����������� ����%�������������$�����������������������"���$	����"�� ������	����������������������$�����������������������������������������&����������������������$����%��*��������$������������������&



����������������	
���������������	
��������������
���	�������������
����	��������	�
������������
�

����������������������
�
���� ���
������
���

������������
������������
��������������
�����������������������
�

���
� ��
����
���
 ���� �����
������
���

���!�������������� ����������������������"���������!����������������#������������������������$������� ���������������� �����	���������
������ �%�����	������� � ���&������	������	���������������"���������� ���!�������	������������	� '()*+*,-�./01(2340(56/7( '()*+(8�9:6(+;5*<7*,-

�
���

=>?�>@ABCDE�FG>HIHJ�=K@DL@�M�NOP@@OFLQQRSTE�G@UVA�WJXYHZ[[BS@\�]Ŷ_]̀a_]̂ Ŵ� @bVBc\�ddefghdijklmdnopfq

rsttu rvwxt

yzw{|}~r��z��|yty����

ywut
�R��PBC�O���IYIa�=>?�>@ABCDE�FG>=cc��BC�OA��@A@PK@�

����������xw}��|xt

�������������
�����������

��	�������	�
����������
�����������

�
�

�
�

�� � �  

�� � �  

�
�

�
�

�������z�������v�����t�������

G�@��RccBDC��RD@AaYŶ�aXO��NOP@@O�FLQQRSTE�G@UVA�WJXHY
E���

 @¡�¢c@KVOBRDA

���
������
����@bR�@c��@VP�¢c@KVOBRD�£� Z�G¤ASVc@\�H¥X¦§Ḧ£Y¦

���
������
����@bR�@c�F@[O�¢c@KVOBRD�£�©¢NGASVc@\�H¥X¦§Ḧ£Y¦
	����������!���������������������������������	��������%�����	�	�������������!�����������������������������������



����������������

	�
����	�
������
����������������	���� �
�
�����
��������	� 
		����
����
�������
����������	����	�����	������ �����
��������	�����
��� ���������
�� ���!!��"����������
�	��"���	���
��� ��������������������#�
		�$%���	���
��������������������������&&$$������&&$$

�� ��&&
$$

&�
 �

	���
��
����"�������
�����	���������������������	�	������������
������
��
��	��
�
�����
������	�����

�
��'��%���(�������
�
��������	������� 	��������������
�������������
������������������
���� ������������������
�
�	������
������ ��������
��
����������
��
�

�������
�������������
���%���
���
���
��
��	��������������������
��

�� �)�� ���!!
����������%����
�������
	����� �������
�����
��������%��������
�����)��&���!!��������
����
��
�����
�������������������������
�����"��������
�	�����	������
�
����
��

*+,-.-/0�1234+5673+892:+ *+,-.+;�<=9+.>8-?:-/0


����

@AB�ACDEFGH�IJAKLKM�@NCGOC�P�QRSCCRIOTTUVWH�JCXYD�ZM[\K]̂ ÊVC_�̀\ab̀cdb̀aaZ� CeYEf_�gghij)gklmnogp!qir

stuuv swxyu

z{x|}~�s��{��}zuz����

zxvu
�U��SEF�R���L\Ld�@AB�ACDEFGH�IJA@ff��EF�RD��CDCSNC�

����������yx~��}yu

��������
��'
�������
��'

�����������'

������'
����
���'

�




	

�� � & $

�� � & $

�




	


�
����
�
�����SUDD�QCVREUGDVYfC_�K�[��K��\�

�������{����� �w��¡¢�u£�¢¤�� 

J�C��UffEGF��UGCDd\\a�d[R��QRSCCR�IOTTUVWH�JCXYD�ZM[K\
H���

QCVREUGD



���������	
���������
�� ���������������������

�����

����� !"#$%�&'�()(*��+ $, �-�./0  /&,11234%�' 56!�7*89(:;;"3 <�=9>?=@A?=>>7�  B6"C<�DDEFGHDIJKLMDNOPFQ

RSTTU RVWXT

YZW[\]̂ R�_Z̀ a\YTY�bcd

YWUT
e2fg0"#h/�i�)9)A������ !"#$%�&'��CC�j"#h/!�j ! 0+ k

lmnomnonp
��������������q$/ 0"20�r 0!f 3/"+ �s" t!36C <�u2$ �v������v�����

w������w������q$/ 0"20�r 0!f 3/"+ �s" t!36C <�u2$ wv�����wv�����x02$/�y5/ 0"20�r 0!f 3/"+ �s" t!36C <�u2$ 

_XW]�z\XT

{|}~�w�������
�����������

�������|����
�|w����w��
w}��|�w�}|�

�
�

w
�

�� v � �

�� v � �

�
�

w
�

np�o���Z�������V�����T�������

'h �j2CC"$#�e2$ !A99>�A8/h�./0  /�&,11234%�' 56!�7*8(9
%���

y5/ 0"20�A���06t"$#!%q!2B /0"3�s" t!��r 0!f 3/"+ !
x02$/�y5/ 0"20�r 0!f 3/"+ �s" t!36C <�u2$ 



�������� �	 
���	
������ �	 �������� �	

������	��������	�� �������	
������	

����	������	

������ ������ ������ ������
������������������ �������

�������������������������������������������������	�������������� ���!�����"�#�������������

������

��$��$��$��$
��$��$��$��$

%��
��
%��
��

%��
��

%��
��

%��
��


%��
��
 %��
��

%��
��
 %��
��
%��
��
%��
��
 %��
��


��&��&

%��
��

%��
��


������
������
������
������

������������

������
������

������

������ ������

������
������������

������

'()*+,������ '()*+,������
+,������

����

��#����������-�����!�����-�!���������"���"����#����������-�!������"���

�����!����#�����������������"�

�-��������!��#���������!-���!��������-���� .��!���������� �������"���������!���� ���� ��� !-���/ ������	 #���� ���� �� ��������������������������! �	 #���� ���� �� ���"���������#���� �$	 #���� ���� �� "����#� ������	 #���� ���� �� #�������������#���� �$	 #���� ��� �� �������������� �$	 #���'()*+,+,'()*+,+, ��"����"0��������!�����������!-���!������� �-���� .��!���������� �������"���������!���� ��
� ��� �������!�!�#����"��� �	 ������"� ��$� �� ���!������"��1��#�������������� �	 ������"� ��&� �� �����������!��� �	 ������"%%

23456578�9:;<3=>?;3@A:B3 234563C�DEA36F@5GB578

�����

HIJ�IKLMNOP�QRISTSU�HVKOWK�X�YZ[KKZQW\\]̂_P�RK̀aL�bUcdSeffM̂Kg�hdijhkljhiib� KmaMng�oopqrsotuvwxoyz{q|

}~��� }����

�������}�������������

����
�]��[MN�Z���TdTl�HIJ�IKLMNOP�QRIHnn��MN�ZL��KLK[VK�

������������������

�������������
�����������

��"�������"�
����������
�����������

�
�

�
!

�� � � �

�� � � �

�
�

�
!

���������������M[LZ��n]][� nWm\MON� naOL̂anKg�S¡c¢£S¤¥d¢

¦§̈§©ª«�¬«®̄ °̈¦�̈±²§³́������-����"���������������!������!��"������������!���������"�������"���!������!�����������������������#����!�������������!���/�-��z����������������������������������z������������������������������������������!�#��������������������������������-��!z����!���������!�����������������-���������������z�!�-��������������������������������"����������!�!z����������������������������������/�����"���-����"����/�-������!������-������������-�������!����!��-����������������!�!�-��z�

��µ�¶·��̧ ¹¹º»¼��̧ »½¾��¿º¾Àº»¼

R�K��]nnMON��]OKLlddi�lcZ��YZ[KKZ�QW\\]̂_P�RK̀aL�bUcSd
P���

 nWm\MON¡�ÁnK̂Z[M̂an naO

��������������ÁnK̂Z[M̂an� naOL̂anKg�S¡c¢£S¤¥d¢

¦§̈§©ª«�§«§Â²©°Âª«�̈±²§³́�����������������������������!������!��"������������!���������"�������"���!������������������������������������/�����"��������������!������-������������-�������!����!��-����������������!�!�-��z�



 AI# 12724 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 6. 21. 
08/13/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Business Development: Consider a resolution authorizing a Commercial Revitalization
Grant Program (Permittable) expenditure of Market Lubbock, Inc., to be provided to The Rolling Cones,
located at 3006 34th Street, pursuant to Article IV, Section 5, of the Amended and Restated Bylaws of
the Market Lubbock Development Corporation. 

Item Summary
In May 2023, the City Council authorized the continuation of the Lubbock East Neighborhood
Empowerment Zone, and the establishment of the 34th Street Empowerment Zone and the North
University Empowerment Zone. This action was taken to encourage redevelopment and revitalization
within the City of Lubbock, through the promotion of economic development within the Zones. Through
the establishment of the three Zones, Market Lubbock, Inc. has geographic boundaries within which it
can implement its Commercial Revitalization Grant Program. 

The Rolling Cones are renovating their property at 3006 34th Street, which is located within the 34th
Street Empowerment Zone, as designated by the City of Lubbock. The scope of the permittable project
includes demolition, HVAC, electrical and plumbing repairs. The cost of the project is estimated to be
$31,350, and the requested grant amount is $3,135. The Market Lubbock, Inc. Board of Directors
approved this amount at their July 24, 2024 Board Meeting, and recommend approval by the City
Council. 

Fiscal Impact
The total cost of the project is estimated to be $31,350, with $3,135 to be paid upon completion by
Market Lubbock, Inc. with the requested grant. 

Staff/Board Recommending
Bill Howerton, Deputy City Manager
Brianna Brown, Business Development Director
Market Lubbock, Inc. Board of Directors 

Attachments
Resolution 
Market Lubbock Resolution 
Market Lubbock Support Documentation 







MARKET LUBBOCK, INC.    

COMMERCIAL REVITALIZATION GRANT PROGRAM 

 

 

3006 34th St. 

(The Rolling Cones) 

 
TOTAL SCOPE OF WORK = $79,770 

TOTAL GRANTS = $27,345 

 

SCOPE OF FAÇADE WORK = $48,420 

FAÇADE GRANT = $24,210 

 

SCOPE OF PERMITTABLE WORK = $31,350 

PERMITTABLE GRANT = $3,135 

 



 
 

Commercial Revitalization Grant Program 
Presented to MLI Board 

June 26, 2024 
 
 

Project 3006 34th St. (Façade and Permittable) 
The Rolling Cones Ice Cream Truck, LLC is renovating the property at 3006 34th, located within a Lubbock 
Neighborhood Empowerment Zone as designated by the City of Lubbock.   
 
The façade scope of work will include demolition, new framing, new windows and doors, and a new store 
front totaling $48,420 in façade expenses. The permittable scope of work will include demolition, HVAC, 
Electrical, and Plumbing totaling $31,350 in permittable expenses, with a total expense of $79,770.  
 
The MLI Board is being asked to consider a Commercial Revitalization Grant Program Façade Grant for 
The Rolling Cones Ice Cream Truck, LLC totaling $24,210 and a Commercial Revitalization Grant Program 
Permittable Grant of $3,135 at 3006 34th St. 
 



MLI CONTACT INFORMATION
Jorge Quirino - Director of Downtown & Special Projects Phone: 806.23.8241
Market Lubbock, Inc.
1500 Broadway, Sixth Floor, Lubbock, TX 79401 Email: jorge@marketlubbock.org

Date Initial Application Submitted (Due prior to start of construction or permits assigned)

Projected Project Start Date

GENERAL INFORMATION ABOUT THE COMPANY

GENERAL INFORMATION ABOUT THE COMPANY CONTACT

INFORMATION ABOUT THE PROJECT

Lease 
Owner Approved

Façade 

Detailed Project Summary (including projected start date) and Description of Work:

The information requested on this form will be used by Market Lubbock, Inc. for analysis of your project.

3006 34th Street Lubbock, Tx

Company Name
Street Address

The Rolling Cones
3501 county road 7660 

R57107
Project Property Address
Property LCAD R#

05/15/24

04/30/24

Commercial Revitalization Grant - Application

Summary of Expenses (detailed bids attached)
Façade

MLI Approved Reimbursement 

City, State, Zip

Property Ownership: Own 

Permittable
$24,210

Lubbock, Tx 79423

Name
Title
Phone Number
Email

President
575-631-6606
rollingconestx@gmail.com

Grant Type (May choose both if applicable): 

Jordan Lathram 

Permittable 

Complete Remodel of building inside and out to turn into a ice cream shop. Moving plumbing and new 
hvac/electrical if needed

$48,420
$31,350 $3,135

TOTAL
Final bids will be used to calculate the project cost and grant amount.

Projected

$79,770 $27,345

1 MLI 11.17.23

mailto:jorge@marketlubbock.org
mailto:rollingconestx@gmail.com
mailto:rollingconestx@gmail.com
mailto:rollingconestx@gmail.com
mailto:rollingconestx@gmail.com
mailto:rollingconestx@gmail.com
mailto:rollingconestx@gmail.com
mailto:rollingconestx@gmail.com
mailto:rollingconestx@gmail.com


COMPANY BACKGROUND
List any person or entity that has at least 5% ownership in the Applicant Company:

Percent Percent
100%

Is the firm registered with the Secretary of State's Office to do business in Texas? Yes �
Are you in good standing with the State of Texas? Yes 

If you answered "No" to either of the above two questions, please explain

Is the firm and/or principals delinquent on any federal, state or local tax obligations? No �
Has the company or principals of the company had prior bankruptcies or lawsuits? No 

If you answered "Yes" to either of the above two questions, please explain

Is the firm receiving tax revenue from any government agency? No 

Is the firm a non-profit entity? No 

City of Lubbock requirements:

Contact the City of Lubbock to determine the following:
Scope of work meets East Side/34th St./N. University standards and guidelines?
Are permits required for any aspect of the scope of work?
Are public improvements required?
Is there a current Certificate of Occupancy on file for this property?

Director of Downtown & Special Projects (Jorge Quirino) 806-749-4500
Application Packet:

Copies of City permits or City approval
Copy of Current Certificate of Occupancy
Detailed Construction Bids or Schedule of Values
Before Picture (prior to construction beginning)
Architectural Plans (if applicable)
Architectural Renderings (if applicable)

After completion of construction:
Certificate of Occupancy or Similar City Document Approving Completion
(Applicant responsible for final scope of work matching approved scope)
Proof of Payment:

PAID Invoices (must reference the approved project)
Processed Checks, Bank or Credit Card Statements matching PAID 
invoices (legible copies)

City of Lubbock - Planning Department 806-775-2108

APPLICANT'S RESPONSIBILITIES (PROPERTY OWNER OR LEASEE)

Jordan Lathram 

Date Final Documents Received:________________________

Market Lubbock, Inc. (MLI) requirements:

Name Name

Initial application (page one of this document) must be received by MLI prior to 
the start of construction and/or before permits are assigned

All remaining documents must be received and an application packet 
presented to the MLI Board no more than three months after the 
initial application is received by MLI.

2 MLI 11.17.23



Overview

•         An Applicant must be a valid Owner or Tenant (Lessee) of the property needing improvements
•         Properties must fall within the East Side, 34th St., or N. Lubbock Neighborhood Empowerment Zones
•         Single-Family residences and duplexes are excluded.
•         An Applicant is eligible to receive a permittable grant and/or façade grant per property (LCAD R#  

•         Applicant is not eligible for grant program funding if delinquent in property taxes according to

•         MLI disbursements are characterized as "reimbursable grants" - Applicant pays expenses first
•         Expenses eligible for reimbursement must relate to reasonable costs or expenses.
•         Receipt of an application is not a guarantee of grant approval.

Grant Types

•         Permittable Projects
•       Improvements require a City of Lubbock permit
•       Improvements may be made to the exterior and/or interior of the property
•       Improvements must total a minimum of $5,000
•      The permittable grant reimburses 10% of approved expenses up to a $50,000 grant
•   Permittable scope of work that may be considered:

•   HVAC
•   Plumbing
•   Electrical
•   Structural
•   Any other work requring a City of Lubbock permit

•         Façade Projects
•       Improvements may or may not require a City of Lubbock permit
•       Improvements must be made to the exterior of the property facing the most prominent street
•       Improvements must total a minimum of $1,000
•      The façade grant reimburses 50% of approved expenses up to a $25,000 grant
•   Façade scope of work that may be considered:

•   Painting
•   New windows and doors
•   Signage
•   Landscaping
•   Parking lots
•   Awnings
•   Any other work that improves the appearnce of the façade

     or Development Lot), per enterprise, per year. Must wait one year from approval to apply again for 
     the same property. (Expenses used in one application cannot be used in another application.)

Signature (not required for electronic submittals):

Date:

     LCAD records - includes all LCAD properties listed in the applicant's name

3 MLI 11.17.23



Estimate
Date

5/9/2024

Estimate #

565

Name / Address

Jordan Lathram
3006 34th Street
Lubbock, Texas 79410

Sanders BuildRite Construction
1502 98th Street
Lubbock, Texas 79423

Project

Ice Cream Shop

We look forward to working with you!!
Total

Description Qty Rate Total

*Demo

Demo of inside building down to the cinder block walls

Demo of wood exterior and soffit and fascia

Demo of all electrical on the exterior of building

Demolition on concrete smoker in the back of the building

Demo of front and back doors, windows and block for new storefront glass

Demo of all tile and flooring in building

8,970.00 8,970.00

*Build Out

Frame new floorplan per architectural drawings provided by licensed architect and
engineer (plans paid by customer)

Build up exterior of building 4' and prep for eifs

Frame and install new storefront doors and windows (storefront paid by customer)

Exterior of building and back freezer building to consist of metal chair rail and eifs
above around the entire project

Sheetrock throughout building and tile down east wall (tile to be paid by customer)

Wood special wall and wood slat checkout are to be custom made and installed

Level, prep and level concrete slab and install tile (tile to be paid by customer)

Level, prep and level concrete slab and install tile (tile to be paid by customer)

26,850.00 26,850.00

Page 1

jorge
Highlight

jorge
Highlight



Estimate
Date

5/9/2024

Estimate #

565

Name / Address

Jordan Lathram
3006 34th Street
Lubbock, Texas 79410

Sanders BuildRite Construction
1502 98th Street
Lubbock, Texas 79423

Project

Ice Cream Shop

We look forward to working with you!!
Total

Description Qty Rate Total

*Plumbing

Plumbing on the inside of building will be new and re-ran per floorplan

One ADA bathroom to consist of toilet, lavatory and floor drain

Kitchen area to have floor mop sink and hand was sink

Checkout area and serving bar to have water and drain for scoop cleanout

11,500.00 11,500.00

*Electrical

Electric on inside and outside of building will be new and re-ran per floorplan

Electrical to consist of can lights throughout, plugs throughout and specialty wiring
where needed

Exterior freezer to be on separate panel (freezer pumps may need to be replaced)

Exterior lighting for signage and curb appeal labor (specialty fixtures paid by
customer)

15,670.00 15,670.00

*HVAC

HVAC to be looked at and system tested

New duct work and supplies/returns per plan

New smart thermostat

4,180.00 4,180.00

Page 2



Estimate
Date

5/9/2024

Estimate #

565

Name / Address

Jordan Lathram
3006 34th Street
Lubbock, Texas 79410

Sanders BuildRite Construction
1502 98th Street
Lubbock, Texas 79423

Project

Ice Cream Shop

We look forward to working with you!!
Total

Description Qty Rate Total

*Misc

Onsite port o potty.

Onsite dumpster

Onsite signage

Commercial coverage

3,000.00 3,000.00

Project management and OHP 9,600.00 9,600.00

This bid is based off an estimate cost and unforeseens are not included.

All work is warrantied throughout the entirety of the job and BRC is and will remain
fully insured.
 
Proposal does not include provisions for any items of work that are not specifically
described.

Specialty fixtures are to be provided by the customer.

Upon approval, a 10% nonrefundable deposit is due for scheduling purposes.  

****Due to the unforeseen rise in material cost, all estimates are subject to change
based on the price of material when ordered. ****

Page 3

$79,770.00

jorge
Highlight

jorge
Highlight



���������	�
��
����� ��������� ������������������������ ���������� ������������� ���������!��������� ���������"� �������"���� ���������#�� �$���������%��������#�# ��&���%��������#�' �$���������%��������#�( ��&���%��������'�� ����������)�� �$�������'"�"��&����*���� ������%��&�������������%������� �+ ����,�������������

-./01023�4567.89:6.;<5=. -./01.>�?@<.1A;0B=023

�����

CDE�D��FG
H�I�DJKJL�CM�
N��O�P�Q���IN���RSH���T���ULVWJX��FR�Y�ZW[\Z]̂\Z[[U� �_�F�Y�̀̀ abcd̀ efghìjklbm

noppq nrstp

uvswxyzn�{v|}xupu�~��

usqp
	���QFG�����KWK̂�CDE�D��FG
H�I�DC����FG��������QM��

���������
�NF��F
G�	����D���P����������D��FG
���Q��W���E�
�Q��Y�P�_����I�G�
�H�C��Q�MF��F�
�H�E�
�Q��������J������
K������M��F�
��̂��P�R�F�
�V���I�QG��PR����D���F��Y����
�H����M��F�
�H���R�F�
���
�������F���]���D���F��[���PR���N�����
��DF�GQ�_�U������Q�D��F
��Z������Q�D��F
��L���̂��DQ��F
G�Y����_��QFRH���Q���R�FM��H�������

P�����DF�RF��F
��D��FG
���Q��	�M�QE���E�
�Q�����P�����IF��H�P�_����H�	����PN__�Q�H���R\��������Q��N������QF������C����_�
�H���
��F
GH���R\����PNQM���������F
G����E����R�
FR��	���	FMF�I���I�
��R��F
GP���P�QNR�NQ��C���CQR�F��R�NQ�������
��QF�Q�������NF�_�
������FQ���Q���R�F�
������N_�F
GD����Q�R������D�_��F�F�
H��
�������F�
���R\������R��
FR���������R�QFR������DF��QF�N�����
�QG���������R�__N
FR��F�
���������NQR�����TF��F
G�	�
�F�F�
�����NF��F
G�����X���Q�DF�RF��F
�� ���	�
�Q�R��Q���P����DQ��F
G�X���X��Q��F�
�

{tsy�¡xtp�"��� "���������"����������¢�����!����£+������+ ���
��G��EQF������Q�
R�������"��#�#�#"#�'�'�'�(�(�("(�¤�¤�¤"¤"'

���������� �¥
�¢������ �¥

�����������¥
���¢�����¥
����������¥

�
�

�
"

#� ' ( ¤

#� ' ( ¤

�
�

�
"D�P	IC������������������+ �����������������!�������+���������+���������� ������&��¢�������"�����������%���������"��k���"�"�����*��"�����£+��¢�����������������!����"�������������������"��%���"���������k	���QFG����"������*�����*�� ����*���$�*���"���¢�������������+�"����¢��������������������"��!�+k�k���"�����������������!���¢��&���"� �!�������������"+��"*�"+������"*� �"����"*���"������+��"*����&¢�������������*�&��¢�+���¢���$������&������������������"��"�����*��"k��"��&������+��¢���"���� ��"��"�����*��"�������������"��!+k�k���"�����������������!���¢���&k���������������"+������*�����"+��*�����*� �"��!*���"������+��*�����*�������*���&¢�������������*���� ��¢�������&��¢�+���¢���$������"&�������������������"��"�����*��"

��������F
G�	�
��ŴW[�̂V���P�Q����IN���RSH���T���ULVJW
I����
��Q_��F�


��¦�§̈ �v©ªª«¬�r©¬®̄�p°«̄±«¬

��������F
G�	�
��ŴW[�̂V���P�Q����IN���RSH���T���ULVJW
H���

PF������
�²��Q�³�R��
��Q_��F�

�+�"������"��¥ #��¤���������������+�"������"�#��¤������������������"��������"�#��¤�������������������!�������%�������"�#��¤���������������+ �������"�#��¤�������������� ��¢��������"�#��¤���������������+��������"�#��(�������������������"���"��¢���������"����������¢����"������"�����������+����́*��$�����!¥ +����́*���$���µ)(��+��¥ �������� �!�����"������!������������+�����¥���%����������¢����� ��������+������������¥ ����¶�·����������"���¢¥ �#����¢��&��"�����"¥ )�� �¢��������&���"¥ #��������� ����������!¥ �

�+��"�%���������+ ��� �̧����"���������� &��� ��������¢����́�����̧����£+�������� µ*̧(���£���¢!������""���� '��¹�'(gº��gahhg�������������́������������́���¢����"���������́�������"���������́+����!����� ����¶�����������·

���£+����������������+���"�����"����&¢������"��&�����¢����"��+ ����k����!�%����������¢������ �"������������"+����������+�������!��¢�������*����������������+������������&����£+���������+�����k�����£+�������������¶��¢����¢�����"������"�����·��¢�+"���������"���"��������� �������+��������!k

���"������"����� �%�������́�£+���������������� ¹µ̧��+����� ¹µ̧��¢������������� µ¹#����� �*((�
�NF��F
G�P�N�Q�������G��

��+�������� ��������£+�������� ������������������� µ¹ �¤���� µ¹ �¤	�N
��Q���
��	��F
����%������ �¥����%�������������+���"�����¢���+���"����� �&����"������������¢����� ��&���"�����������¢�������������¢��������,�������k�%���%�����¥����%�������������+���"�����¢���+���"��&��+������ �������&����"������������¢����� ��&���"����������¢��������������¢��������,�������k

�FRF
F������ CQ������



���������	
����������
������	
����

�������������������������������

�������������������������
��� ���������������
������� ��������������
���

���������
����
	�	��������� 	�	���������

	�	���������

���������
�����������������
������
�� ��������������������
������
��

����������
������������
�������������
����������
��������������������
�������

�����������������
�������

���������	
����������
������	
����

�����������������	��

�������������������������������

�������������������������
��� ���������������
������� ��������������
���

���������
����
	�	��������� 	�	���������

	�	���������

	�	���������

 !"#$#%&�'()*!+,-)!./(0!  !"#$!1�23/!$4.#50#%&

�6787

9:;�:<=>?@A�BC:DEDF�9G<@H<�I�JKL<<KBHMMNOPA�C<QR=�SFTUDVWW>O<X�YUZ[Y\][YZZS� <̂R>_X�̀̀ abcd̀ efghìjklbm

noppq nrstp

uvswxyzn�{v|}xupu�~��

usqp
�N��L>?�K���EUE]�9:;�:<=>?@A�BC:9__��>?�K=��<=<LG<�

���������{tsy��xtp

	�������
���
�������
���

������������

���������
����
����

�



�
�

�7 � � �

�7 � � �

�



�
�


7�6787
7�6787��<��J>K<��_R@=OR_<X�D��DU��U�

�������v����� �r��¡¢�p£�¢¤�� 

C�<��N__>@?��N@<=]UUZ�]TK��JKL<<K�BHMMNOPA�C<QR=�SFTDU
A���

J>K<��_R@


7�6787
7�6787¥Q>=K>@?�J>K<��_R@=OR_<X�D��DU��U�



��� ������
������

	��
� ��
������

���� ����� �
�
�����	� 
�����	�

��
�����

��������������������������� �������� ���

����� 	������ �����
� ���

��������������

��� 
��

�
�

��
 !"�# �$%%&!$�'()*+�,-.)�/�0/1/22*2�/+3�/�4-15/13�/001-/6)�.-�.)*.-72*.�/1*�01-873*39�.)*�62*/1/+6*�:)-;23�,*�/.�2*/:.<=>�?*/:;1*3�0*10*+376;2/1�41-?�.)*�1*/1�5/229�/+3=@>�?*/:;1*3�0*10*+376;2/1�41-?�.)*�:73*5/22A�B--.)*1�47C.;1*�-1�-,:.1;6.7-+�:)-;23�,*�57.)7+�.)*62*/1/+6*�/1*/A�D$BE"�=@FAGAH9�H@@IAHHA<AIAGJ�����K��L���M�������N������OOPN��� ��

���	���	�� ���

�����K��L���M�������N������P�Q�Q�P� ���N������P�Q�Q�P��RSTUVK��WXY�YXWZ�Z[R\T]�YU�̂WR_S]U]�R̀�V[U�WUXW�aXTT�X̀]�R̀V[U�ZS]UaXTT�bTRZUZV�VR�V[U�VRSTUV���[U�ZS]UaXTT�cWXY�YXW�Z[R\T]YU�XV�TUXZV�	���TR̀c�X̀]�TRbXVU]�YUVaUÙ�����X̀]��	��dWRe�V[UWUXW�aXTT���[U�WUXW�cWXY�YXW�Z[R\T]�YU�XV�TUXZV��	��TR̀cfbÙVUWU]�R̀�V[U�VRSTUV��g[UWU�ẐXbU�̂UWeSVZf�V[U�YXW�Z[R\T]YU�XV�TUXZV�
��TR̀cf�aSV[�V[U�X]]SVSR̀XT�TÙcV[�̂WR_S]U]�R̀�V[UVWX̀ZdUW�ZS]U�Rd�V[U�VRSTUV��h�����
�	��i�h]��X̀]�]�i


��

����� 	����

���� �����

���������� 	����

	�	���	���h�i�����K��L	��M������ Q�����Fj�?7+HI�?7+��
hbidWR̀V�X̂ ŴRXb[f�̂\Z[�ZS]Uf�]RRWŴR_S]U]�aSV[�YRV[�bTRZUW�X̀]�TXVb[ G=�?7+��� =@�?7+ ����h]i[S̀cU�X̂ ŴRXb[f�̂\TT�ZS]U

=@�?7+ ���� Hj�?7+		�hXidWR̀V�X̂ ŴRXb[f�̂\TT�ZS]U ����Fj�?7+

hYidWR̀V�X̂ ŴRXb[f�̂\Z[�ZS]U
	�	���	����g�������kNNP����k������f��g�������l���������������m�����nm�P��������P�������N�O�o�g������Q���	�	���	���l�����	�	���	�� &*87:7-+� /,2*B;?,*1p/.* &*87:*3�qrp*:6170.7-+

�����

stu�tvwxyz{�|}t~�~��s�vz�v������vv�|������{�}v��w�����~���x�v��������������� v��x���XXWR̀�X]cVU�XZ�bRe

����� � ¡¢�

£¤¡¥¦§̈ ��©¤ª«¦£�£�¬®

£¡��
�̄°±�xy²��³������stu�tvwxyz{�|}ts���́xy²�w�́vwv��vµ

¶·̧¹·̧¹̧ º©¢¡§�»¦¢�

OPN¼��������K
����������K

�������P���K
�P�������K
�N��P���NPK

Q
�

�
k

��  	 �

��  	 �

Q
�

�
k

��������������|x�v����v�±�½��zw���v��~¾�¿À~ÁÂ�¿ �L	�������
º̧Ã¹ÄÅ�¤ÆÇÇÈÉÊ� ÆÉËÌ��ÍÈÌÎÈÉÊ

}²v�́���xzy�̄�zvw��������²����vv��|������{�}v��w����~�
{���

|x�v����v�±�½��z

�N����N��nO�����N�k��NP�����Qn��k��� ���O�NO���N����N��nO�����N�k���P����g�������N��Nk��� �
��O�NO����P����g�k���P�Ïn�P�k��Ð�����h�������������NP�N���P�i 
����������P����OPNm�k�k �����������Ð��n�����Ng�Q����P�m���k��������h��Q���������i ���������h�N���OP�����ki�N�������P�m���k������� ���������h�N���OP�����ki��Ð��n��k��k���k�������h���������	i� ��������h�N���OP�����ki��Ð��n��k��k���k�������OPNm�k�k �������h�N���OP�����ki�N��N��O����N����P�����P�m���h��Q������
����i ���������h�N���OP�����ki�N��N��O����N����P�����P�m���OPNm�k�k ���������h�N���OP�����ki�gN��Ð�����P�Ïn�P�k�g����N��nO�����N�k�N�����O�n��h��Q�����
����i�����n���n�Q�P�N���Ð������NP�N��nO�����N�k�h��Q�����
����i����� ���Ð����������� ��Ð����NP����������� 	��Ð���

�N���Pn���N���oO�� TT�Q��Pn��nP����P��� ���NnPh�i�Ð��P�NP�Q��P����g���� ���NnPh�i����P�NP�Q��P����g���� ���NnPh�i��NNP��N���Pn���N� ���NnPh�iPNN���N���Pn���N� ���NnPh�i�Ð��P�NP�g�����h��Q���
��i���NnPh�i��oO��N����P��kNNP����P��NPP�kNP��h������i ���NnP��P�����P��OPN�����N��P�Ïn�P�������h��Q���
��i

Qn��k���KÑ����P��NP��P��Ñk�������N�k���N�� OPNm�k�kO�P�����P����Ng�k�h��ih�iO�P�����P��N����h��i�N������P��Qn��k����hOig�k���N��OnQ����g�o�NP�NO����O����hgiÒ���P�����hO�P����i�kn���N��PN������h��iN��nO���o�������������N� ����N���Pn���N���oO� ���Q��NNP��P�����P�����NNP 
���N������NNP��P�������nk����������NNP�� 
����NP��� �Qn��k���������� �����OP�����P��o�����OPNm�k�k �N�OP�����P��o������oO�
�PN��������k��P������P����� �PNnO��ÓfÒ�PNnO�PÓfÒ����N���P��f�������

���Ng�k�hQ��NP�����P����i
N��nO�����N�k�h��Q����	����iN��nO�����N�k Ô�N��O�NO�������Q�oK��	���������O�P�O�P�N� ��������K�������������O�P�O�P�N� ��N��� �O�n�Q������Ð�nP��P�Ïn�P����������O��ZZUeYTÕ��SVb[Ù� ���� n����PNn

O N��nO��� �N�k h��n���iN��nO���oK ��� �ZZUeYTÕ�SVb[Ù����P�Ïn�P�k����OPNm�k�k
k���P�O��N�K ����� � ������

g���P��N����� nP�����Ñ�QN����k�g���P�NP�g���P��NN��P�g����Q��OPNm�k�k�Qo�Ng��P�������n�N��kP��������Nn������������ �

��m��NPo
�n������NPo�����OP�����k OPNm�k�k���Ng�kÖL� �N�O������NNP��P���h�Ï���i 
�� �f��� �f��� o���������hP�����	�i �� �� 	� o��

������� � �
kP����Nn��� �����Pm��� ����

N���P



���������	
� ��������
��
�������	
� ��������

���������	
� ��������
�
������
�

�
�������	
� �
������

���������	
��
�������
������
����������	
��
������

�
�
����
�
�
�
����
� �
�����

�����
�

�����
�

�����
�

�����
�

�����
������
������
������
�

�����
������
�

�����
������
�

	�
�	�
�

	�
�	�
�

	�
�	�
�

	�
�	�
�

	���	���	�
�	�
�
	�
�	�
�

	���	���

	��
	��

	�
�	�
�

	�
�	�
�

	�
�	�
�

	�
�	�
�
	�
�	�
�

	�
�	�
�	�
�	�
�

	�
�	�
�

������� ��������� ��

���������� ���������� ���������� �������������� ��� �������� ��
��

������� ��
������ ���


��
�
������ ������ ��

������� �� ������� ��
������������������ �����������

��

�
��
�� ��

�������� ���������� ������� ����
� ������ �!"��"�

���"#�� �$��!�
���"#�� �%��""�

&'(�)* �+,+-*)./001
2(.34*'
567*)�+/*6

�89��	:989�	;<��	���8���8��	989��;��9���=�>
����<����	<;<?

���� ������ ��
����

��

����
�
�


89�9��9����	9���;��9<�98 89�9��9����;�9����98��;��9<�98��?��
���?��
�

����

���������	
� ��������
���������	
� ��������

�
�������	
� ��������
�
������
�

�
������
�

����
�������������

�
������
�
�
������
�

�
�������	
� ��������
���������	
� ��������

���������	
� ���������
�������	
��
�������
������
��
�������	
��
������
�����
������
�

�����
������
�

�����
������
�

�� ������������

�� �� �
������ ��

9�;��;<?�@9<�A��BCD;<?E9�;��;<?���;�9���8�;<A��BCD;<?E
9�;��;<?������;�<���9�9��8;������<9�

����9�����9C��;�;�<F�����9C��;�;�<�:���D99<��98��8C9���<���89@;�B���9C��;�;�<��98C;������B8���9�����D9�89C�@9���<����G9<��	<�����:9�9�;��;<?���8B��B8��9�9C9<��>����9�9��8;���H���BCD;<?H�C9�:�<;������D9�89C�@9���9�<��<���89��89�������8B��B8���B8���9�����89�9;@9�<9	��B8���9C��98;�����<�C>9>�>�?9<98���<��9�9�;��;<?�8�B����89C�;<����9�9��8;������<9��H�C9�98�D��9�HC�;<��;<9�����D9�;<��9��9���<��89B�9�	:989�����;D�9I��;���<<9����B8;<?89C��9�������BCD;<?��8�;<��<���B���=��;<9����D9�;<��9��9���<��89B�9��	:989����;D�9I��;���<<9����B8;<?�89C��9�

	������:9�B�9<BCD98 ����=CD�� 	������<��8B��;�<H�B��98	�
�� � 9��98;�8�����B���I���<���;<;�:������J��H�C9�������:����J��H�9�;��;<?��CBD���G��8B<<;<?�D�<�������J��	�
�� � 9��98;�8�����B���I���<���;<;�:������J��H�C9�������:����J��H�9�;��;<?��CBD���G��8B<<;<?�D�<�������J��H��8=	�������J���A�����E����J��	�
�� � 9��98;�8�����B���I���<���;<;�:�����J���H�C9�������:����J��H�C�;��B89D�88;98���:�B�9	8�����
�H��:99�:;<?�����D����J���H��;8��8�C;<?�K�������J��H��:99�:;<?�����D����J���H�C�;��B89�D�88;98���:�B�9	8�����
�H�C9������:����J��H�9��98;�8�����B���I���<���;<;�:�����J���	�
�� � <��?8��@9���<9�;<?����J��H�C�;��B89�D�88;98���:�B�9	8�����
�H�:99�:;<?�����D����J���H��;8��8�C;<?�K�������J��H��8=	�������J���A�����E���J��	�
�� � ��<�89�9I���B<���;�<����
��J��	�
�� � �8=	�������J���A�����E�?899<D��8�����J��H��;8��8�C;<?�K�������J��	�
�� � �8=	�������J���A�����E����J��H��;8��8�C;<?�K�������J��H��8=	�������J���A�����E���J��	�
�� � �8=	�������J���A�����E����J��H��;8��8�C;<?�K�������J��H��8=	�������J���A�����E?899<D��8�����J��	�
�� � �8=	�������J���A�����E����J��H��;8��8�C;<?�K�������J��H��8=	�������J���A�����E?899<D��8�����J��H��8����<9���B8���9����J��	��
� � �8����<9���B8���9����J��H��8=	�������J���A�����E�?899<D��8�����J��H��;8�8�C;<?�K�������J��	���� � �8=	�������J���A�����E�?899<D��8�����J��H��;8��8�C;<?�K�������J��	���� � �8=	�������J���A�����E�?899<D��8�����J��H��;8��8�C;<?�K�������J��H�8=	�������J���A�����E�?899<D��8�����J��H��8����<9���B8���9����J��
���8���:9�B�9<BCD98 L�=�;M9 �9��8;��;�< :�8�	�89�
�� �� �
�
���;< �	��	�=�:;<?9��98@;�9����8 �B�:�����9��<��G;�G�����9��<�D��:��;�9�I�	��	�=�:;<?9�
�� �� �
���8�9� 9��>�:;<?9��?������<9� ;<�98;�8��B�:�:�<��9I�9��98;�8��B��:�<��9I��8�@;�9����8�����B89���:��C99�������89LB;89���9<�;�<I�G9=���G�9��D������D��:��;�9��
�� �� �
����J8�9�9��>���BD�9:;<?9��?������<9� ;<�98;�8��B�:�:�<��9I�9��98;�8��B��:�<��9I��8�@;�9����8�����B89���:��C99�������89LB;89���9<�;�<I�G9=���G�9��D������D��:��;�9��
�� �� �
�
���;< :;<?9�����D ;<�98;�8��9@98��B�:�DB���<����G��9�I9��98;�8��9@9�������?9I��8�@;�9����8������<�	����D9:;<���9@98	;<��	���:9�B�9<BCD98 L�=�;M9 ����9��8;��;�< �;@;�9���;�9�	
�� �� ��
������� �;�9��?���� �	
�� �� ������ ��� �;�9��?���� �	
�� �� �
���� �
� �9�����;�;<? ��J��	
�� �� ������ �
� �;�9��?���� ���9LB;�C9<��<��9�
�� D9@98�?9�����98�A�8�@;�9��D=��	<98E
�� ��D�=��;<G
�� BJ��89��:�;<�����98�A�8�@;�9��D=��	<98E
�� ;�9��89�C��899M98��;����=�A�8�@;�9��D=��	<98E
�� BJ��89��:�;<��899M98�A�8�@;�9��D=��	<98E
�� :�<��	��:��;<G
�� ��;<��������9�����;�<
�� ����:����	����B<�98���B<�98I���B<�98���������>�>�
�� ��B<�98���������>�>��C����98�����89L>�
� ������B<�98�C�B<�9�������>�>��	J��<?�9�D8��G9���������>�>��� �8;@9��:8�B?:�	;<��	���B<�98� NOPQRQST�UVWXOYZ[WO\]V̂O NOPQRO_�̀a]ORb\QĉQST

���
�

+,d�,*)(e'f�gh,"!"%�+i*'j*�2�5./**.gjkk03lf�h* 6)��%m#"noo(3*p��#$q�rsq�$$�� *16(7p�ttuvwtxyz{|t}>~v�

����� �����

���������������������

����
�0��/(e4.���!#!s�+,d�,*)(e'f�gh,+77�-(e4.)�-*)*/i*�

������������������
�����
������
��*�� 700/�¡76')367*p�"¢m�£"��#�

�8�¤9���<�C9F
�:99��<�C9F

9<?;<998;<?F
�8�:;�9��F
��<�8����8F

D
�

�
�

�� � � �

�� � � �

D
�

�
�

��¥�¦§��̈ ©©ª«¬��̈ «®��̄ª®°ª«¬

h4*�-077('e��0'*)s##$�sm.4�5./**.�gjkk03lf�h* 6)��%m"#
f���

").� 700/�,(1*')(0'*� /61('e�¡76'

�����
������
�± ().('e�¢�,*10� 700/�¡76')367*p�"¢m�£"��#�

?9<98�����<��8B��;�<�<��9�����;<�98;�8��B8���9��;<;�:9���<������8�����D9��9�98C;<9��D=���;9<���<����8�;<��9��	;�:���<�8����8����	�����=�9��	;�:�?899<�D��8�����D9�;<�����9���<���BCD;<?�A	9�E��;�9���	��������;��B89�����D9�;<�����9��D=��;�9<�9���8��9��;�<��������8�;<?���C�<B����B898��;<�������;�<���9�;�;���;�<��



����������	
�
���������������������������
��� �������� ���� ���
�


���� ��

����������	
�
���������������
� ���
�

���������������������������� ���� �� �� ���� ���������� �� ������ ��������

��� �����������
�� ������!������"���������#���������$�!�$�
�� ���������� ������	������!
�� ����������$�%����������$���
�� �����������������"�����&�%"����������$�������������!�������&��������$�������'�
�� ��������$��������������	���������!��������� ����%�%���
�� ��$� �������������������� ����%���������%�����&�'
�� ���������� ������	������!�(������'���������)
�� ���������%��!�%����	����$� �!
�� ���������!�������	����$� �!���!������!����%"��$�	���*�
� ��$� ��%������!����������������� ����%�������������%��!�%��� ��$� ��	���*���!����������������� ����%������������!����(������%������������+����!���������)��� ������������!���������	��!���������$������ ��������������������$������ ��$� ��%������!����������������� ��!�� ������%��!�%�(������%����������%��!�%���+�)��� ���������%��!�%����	����$� �!���!������!����%�����$�	���* ,-./0/12�3456-7895-:;4<- ,-./0-=�>?;-0@:/A</12

���
�

BCD�CEFGHIJ�KLCMNMO�BPEIQE�R�STUEETKQVVWXYJ�LEZ[F�\O]̂M_̀ G̀XEa�b̂cdbefdbcc\� Eg[Gha�iijklminopqris'tku

vwxxy vz{|x

}~{����v��~���}x}����

}{yx
�W��UGH�T���N̂Nf�BCD�CEFGHIJ�KLCBhh��GH�TF��EFEUPE�

����������|{����|x

���#������$��
��������$��

������������
����������
�����������

	
�

�
!

�� � � �

�� � � �

	
�

�
!

�����
������
��ZGFTGIH��UWIT��hEP[TGWI���S_�L�FX[hEa�M�]��M��̂�

�����
������
��ZGFTGIH��GH�T��hEP[TGWI����BSLFX[hEa�M�]��M��̂�

�� �¡¢�~£¤¤¥¦§�z£¦̈©�xª¥©«¥¦§

L�E��WhhGIH��WIEFf̂ ĉ�f]T��STUEET�KQVVWXYJ�LEZ[F�\O]M̂
J���

�ZGFTGIH��hEP[TGWIF
��������!�$�����������������!�$��������������$�!��!������ ����!�$����������$��'���������������	���������!���!�������!����$����������	����������� ����%�����������!�$�����������������������"���$	����"�� ������	��!����������!!�����!�$����������!���������������!������!�������&����������������������$����%��*������!�$������������������&



����������	
�
������������������������������������
�����������������
���������������������������
������
� ��

��
�����
������
�

���� ��

����������	
�
����������������������������������������
������������������������
�

�� ��
���� �����
������
� ��

��

��� ����������
�� ������!�	��������������"��������� ���������������#�����������������������$����
�� �����������
�� ����������������
�� �%����������
�� 	��&������������������������	"������
�� �� ��������������������� '()*+*,-�./01(2340(56/7( '()*+(8�9:6(+;5*<7*,-

���
�

=>?�>@ABCDE�FG>HIHJ�=K@DL@�M�NOP@@OFLQQRSTE�G@UVA�WJXYHZ[[BS@\�]Ŷ_]̀a_]̂ Ŵ� @bVBc\�ddefghdijklmdnopfq

rsttu rvwxt

yzw{|}~r��z��|yty����

ywut
�R��PBC�O���IYIa�=>?�>@ABCDE�FG>=cc��BC�OA��@A@PK@�

����������xw}��|xt

����������!��
��������!��

����������
���������
�����������

	
�

�
�

�� � � �

�� � � �

	
�

�
�

�������z�������v�����t�������

G�@��RccBDC��RD@AaYŶ�aXO��NOP@@O�FLQQRSTE�G@UVA�WJXHY
E���

 @¡�¢c@KVOBRDA�����
������
��@bR�@c��BC�O�¢c@KVOBRD�£�¢=NGASVc@\�H¤X¥¦H§£Y¥

�����
������
��@bR�@c�̈PRDO�¢c@KVOBRD�£�NZ©GªASVc@\�H¤X¥¦H§£Y¥

����������� ��������������������������������������%������������������� ���������������������������������



����������	
�
���������������������������
���������������������� �� ������ ���� ������ ����

����������	
�
���������������������������
������������������������ �������� ���� �� ������ �
�
���� ����

��� �����������
�� �!�����������"���������#���������$���$�
�� �!�������� ������	�������
�� �!��������$�%����������$���
�� �!���������������"�����&�%"����������$���������������������&��������$�������'�
�� ��������$��!�����������	������������������� ����%�%���
�� ��$� �������������������� ����%���������%�����&�'
�� �!�������� ������	��������(�����!'���������)
�� �!�������%����%����	����$� ��
�� �!���������������	����$� �����������������%"��$�	���*�
� ��$� ��%������������������������ ����%�������������%����%��� ��$� ��	���*��������������������� ����%�����������������(������%������������+��������������)��� �!��������������������	������������$������ �!������������������$������ ��$� ��%������������������������ ����� ������%����%�(������%����������%����%���+�)��� �!�������%����%����	����$� �����������������%�����$�	���* ,-./0/12�3456-7895-:;4<- ,-./0-=�>?;-0@:/A</12

���
�

BCD�CEFGHIJ�KLCMNMO�BPEIQE�R�STUEETKQVVWXYJ�LEZ[F�\O]̂M_̀ G̀XEa�b̂cdbefdbcc\� Eg[Gha�iijklminopqris'tku

vwxxy vz{|x

}~{����v��~���}x}����

}{yx
�W��UGH�T���N̂Nf�BCD�CEFGHIJ�KLCBhh��GH�TF��EFEUPE�

����������|{����|x

���#������$��
��������$��

������������
����������
�����������

	
�

�
�

�� � � �

�� � � �

	
�

�
�

�����
������
��ZGFTGIH��E[U��hEP[TGWI����_�L�FX[hEa�M�]��M��̂�

�����
������
��ZGFTGIH�KÈT��hEP[TGWI�����SLFX[hEa�M�]��M��̂�

�� �¡¢�~£¤¤¥¦§�z£¦̈©�xª¥©«¥¦§

L�E��WhhGIH��WIEFf̂ ĉ�f]T��STUEET�KQVVWXYJ�LEZ[F�\O]M̂
J���

�ZGFTGIH��hEP[TGWIF
����������$�������������������$��������������$����������� ������$����������$��'���������������	��������������������������$����������	����������� ����%�������������$�����������������������"���$	����"�� ������	����������������������$�����������������������������������������&����������������������$����%��*��������$������������������&



����������������	
���������������	
��������������
���	�������������
����	��������	�
������������
�

����������������������
�
���� ���
������
���

������������
������������
��������������
�����������������������
�

���
� ��
����
���
 ���� �����
������
���

���!�������������� ����������������������"���������!����������������#������������������������$������� ���������������� �����	���������
������ �%�����	������� � ���&������	������	���������������"���������� ���!�������	������������	� '()*+*,-�./01(2340(56/7( '()*+(8�9:6(+;5*<7*,-

�
���

=>?�>@ABCDE�FG>HIHJ�=K@DL@�M�NOP@@OFLQQRSTE�G@UVA�WJXYHZ[[BS@\�]Ŷ_]̀a_]̂ Ŵ� @bVBc\�ddefghdijklmdnopfq

rsttu rvwxt

yzw{|}~r��z��|yty����

ywut
�R��PBC�O���IYIa�=>?�>@ABCDE�FG>=cc��BC�OA��@A@PK@�

����������xw}��|xt

�������������
�����������

��	�������	�
����������
�����������

�
�

�
�

�� � �  

�� � �  

�
�

�
�

�������z�������v�����t�������

G�@��RccBDC��RD@AaYŶ�aXO��NOP@@O�FLQQRSTE�G@UVA�WJXHY
E���

 @¡�¢c@KVOBRDA

���
������
����@bR�@c��@VP�¢c@KVOBRD�£� Z�G¤ASVc@\�H¥X¦§Ḧ£Y¦

���
������
����@bR�@c�F@[O�¢c@KVOBRD�£�©¢NGASVc@\�H¥X¦§Ḧ£Y¦
	����������!���������������������������������	��������%�����	�	�������������!�����������������������������������



����������������

	�
����	�
������
����������������	���� �
�
�����
��������	� 
		����
����
�������
����������	����	�����	������ �����
��������	�����
��� ���������
�� ���!!��"����������
�	��"���	���
��� ��������������������#�
		�$%���	���
��������������������������&&$$������&&$$

�� ��&&
$$

&�
 �

	���
��
����"�������
�����	���������������������	�	������������
������
��
��	��
�
�����
������	�����

�
��'��%���(�������
�
��������	������� 	��������������
�������������
������������������
���� ������������������
�
�	������
������ ��������
��
����������
��
�

�������
�������������
���%���
���
���
��
��	��������������������
��

�� �)�� ���!!
����������%����
�������
	����� �������
�����
��������%��������
�����)��&���!!��������
����
��
�����
�������������������������
�����"��������
�	�����	������
�
����
��

*+,-.-/0�1234+5673+892:+ *+,-.+;�<=9+.>8-?:-/0


����

@AB�ACDEFGH�IJAKLKM�@NCGOC�P�QRSCCRIOTTUVWH�JCXYD�ZM[\K]̂ ÊVC_�̀\ab̀cdb̀aaZ� CeYEf_�gghij)gklmnogp!qir

stuuv swxyu

z{x|}~�s��{��}zuz����

zxvu
�U��SEF�R���L\Ld�@AB�ACDEFGH�IJA@ff��EF�RD��CDCSNC�

����������yx~��}yu

��������
��'
�������
��'

�����������'

������'
����
���'

�




	

�� � & $

�� � & $

�




	


�
����
�
�����SUDD�QCVREUGDVYfC_�K�[��K��\�

�������{����� �w��¡¢�u£�¢¤�� 

J�C��UffEGF��UGCDd\\a�d[R��QRSCCR�IOTTUVWH�JCXYD�ZM[K\
H���

QCVREUGD



���������	
���������
�� ���������������������

�����

����� !"#$%�&'�()(*��+ $, �-�./0  /&,11234%�' 56!�7*89(:;;"3 <�=9>?=@A?=>>7�  B6"C<�DDEFGHDIJKLMDNOPFQ

RSTTU RVWXT

YZW[\]̂ R�_Z̀ a\YTY�bcd

YWUT
e2fg0"#h/�i�)9)A������ !"#$%�&'��CC�j"#h/!�j ! 0+ k

lmnomnonp
��������������q$/ 0"20�r 0!f 3/"+ �s" t!36C <�u2$ �v������v�����

w������w������q$/ 0"20�r 0!f 3/"+ �s" t!36C <�u2$ wv�����wv�����x02$/�y5/ 0"20�r 0!f 3/"+ �s" t!36C <�u2$ 

_XW]�z\XT

{|}~�w�������
�����������

�������|����
�|w����w��
w}��|�w�}|�

�
�

w
�

�� v � �

�� v � �

�
�

w
�

np�o���Z�������V�����T�������

'h �j2CC"$#�e2$ !A99>�A8/h�./0  /�&,11234%�' 56!�7*8(9
%���

y5/ 0"20�A���06t"$#!%q!2B /0"3�s" t!��r 0!f 3/"+ !
x02$/�y5/ 0"20�r 0!f 3/"+ �s" t!36C <�u2$ 



�������� �	 
���	
������ �	 �������� �	

������	��������	�� �������	
������	

����	������	

������ ������ ������ ������
������������������ �������

�������������������������������������������������	�������������� ���!�����"�#�������������

������

��$��$��$��$
��$��$��$��$

%��
��
%��
��

%��
��

%��
��

%��
��


%��
��
 %��
��

%��
��
 %��
��
%��
��
%��
��
 %��
��


��&��&

%��
��

%��
��


������
������
������
������

������������

������
������

������

������ ������

������
������������

������

'()*+,������ '()*+,������
+,������

����

��#����������-�����!�����-�!���������"���"����#����������-�!������"���

�����!����#�����������������"�

�-��������!��#���������!-���!��������-���� .��!���������� �������"���������!���� ���� ��� !-���/ ������	 #���� ���� �� ��������������������������! �	 #���� ���� �� ���"���������#���� �$	 #���� ���� �� "����#� ������	 #���� ���� �� #�������������#���� �$	 #���� ��� �� �������������� �$	 #���'()*+,+,'()*+,+, ��"����"0��������!�����������!-���!������� �-���� .��!���������� �������"���������!���� ��
� ��� �������!�!�#����"��� �	 ������"� ��$� �� ���!������"��1��#�������������� �	 ������"� ��&� �� �����������!��� �	 ������"%%

23456578�9:;<3=>?;3@A:B3 234563C�DEA36F@5GB578

�����

HIJ�IKLMNOP�QRISTSU�HVKOWK�X�YZ[KKZQW\\]̂_P�RK̀aL�bUcdSeffM̂Kg�hdijhkljhiib� KmaMng�oopqrsotuvwxoyz{q|

}~��� }����

�������}�������������

����
�]��[MN�Z���TdTl�HIJ�IKLMNOP�QRIHnn��MN�ZL��KLK[VK�

������������������

�������������
�����������

��"�������"�
����������
�����������

�
�

�
!

�� � � �

�� � � �

�
�

�
!

���������������M[LZ��n]][� nWm\MON� naOL̂anKg�S¡c¢£S¤¥d¢

¦§̈§©ª«�¬«®̄ °̈¦�̈±²§³́������-����"���������������!������!��"������������!���������"�������"���!������!�����������������������#����!�������������!���/�-��z����������������������������������z������������������������������������������!�#��������������������������������-��!z����!���������!�����������������-���������������z�!�-��������������������������������"����������!�!z����������������������������������/�����"���-����"����/�-������!������-������������-�������!����!��-����������������!�!�-��z�

��µ�¶·��̧ ¹¹º»¼��̧ »½¾��¿º¾Àº»¼

R�K��]nnMON��]OKLlddi�lcZ��YZ[KKZ�QW\\]̂_P�RK̀aL�bUcSd
P���

 nWm\MON¡�ÁnK̂Z[M̂an naO

��������������ÁnK̂Z[M̂an� naOL̂anKg�S¡c¢£S¤¥d¢

¦§̈§©ª«�§«§Â²©°Âª«�̈±²§³́�����������������������������!������!��"������������!���������"�������"���!������������������������������������/�����"��������������!������-������������-�������!����!��-����������������!�!�-��z�



 AI# 12721 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 6. 22. 
08/13/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Business Development: Consider a resolution authorizing a Commercial Revitalization
Grant Program (Facade) expenditure of Market Lubbock, Inc., to be provided to Elida Morin, located at
1819 E. Broadway, pursuant to Article IV, Section 5, of the Amended and Restated Bylaws of the
Market Lubbock Development Corporation. 

Item Summary
In May 2023, the City Council authorized the continuation of the Lubbock East Neighborhood
Empowerment Zone, and the establishment of the 34th Street Empowerment Zone and the North
University Empowerment Zone. This action was taken to encourage redevelopment and revitalization
within the City of Lubbock, through the promotion of economic development within the Zones. Through
the establishment of the three Zones, Market Lubbock, Inc. has geographic boundaries within which it
can implement its Commercial Revitalization Grant Program. 

Elida Morin is renovating her property at 1819 E. Broadway, located within the Lubbock East
Neighborhood Empowerment Zone, as designated by the City of Lubbock. The scope of the facade
project includes parking lot repair, exterior paint, fencing and curb repair. The cost of the project is
estimated to be $33,648, and the requested grant amount is $16,824. The Market Lubbock, Inc. Board of
Directors approved this amount at their July 24, 2024 Board Meeting, and recommend approval by the
City Council. 

Fiscal Impact
The total cost of the project is estimated to be $33,648, with $16,824 to be paid upon completion by
Market Lubbock, Inc. with the requested grant. 

Staff/Board Recommending
Bill Howerton, Deputy City Manager 
Brianna Brown, Business Development Director
Market Lubbock, Inc. Board of Directors 

Attachments
Resolution 
Market Lubbock Resolution 
Market Lubbock Support Documentation 







MARKET LUBBOCK, INC.    

COMMERCIAL REVITALIZATION GRANT PROGRAM 

 

 

1819 E. Broadway 

(Elida Morin – Property Owner) 

 
TOTAL SCOPE OF WORK = $103,627 

TOTAL GRANT = $23,822 

 

FACADE SCOPE OF WORK = $33,648 

FAÇADE GRANT = $16,824 

 

PERMITTABLE SCOPE OF WORK = $69,979 

PERMITTABLE GRANT = $6,998 

 



 
 

Commercial Revitalization Grant Program 
Presented to MLI Board 

July 24, 2024 
 
 

Project 1819 E. Broadway (Elida Morin) 
Elida Morin is renovating her property at 1819 E. Broadway, located within the East Lubbock 
Neighborhood Empowerment Zone as designated by the City of Lubbock . The vacant building will be 
converted into an event center once the project is complete.  
 
The scope of work includes renovations to the parking lot, exterior painting, fencing, curbs, roof, and a 
new fire sprinkler system totaling $103,627 in expenses.  (Façade expenses $33,648 and Permittable 
expenses $69,979). There are additional expenses not covered by the grant program (interior flooring, 
paint, etc.) totaling in excess of $30,000. 
 
The MLI Board is being asked to consider a Commercial Revitalization Grant Program Façade Grant for 
Elida Morin totaling $16,824 and a Permittable Grant of $6,998 at 1819 E. Broadway. 
 



MLI CONTACT INFORMATION
Jorge Quirino - Director of Downtown & Special Projects Phone: 806.23.8241
Market Lubbock, Inc.
1500 Broadway, Sixth Floor, Lubbock, TX 79401 Email: jorge@marketlubbock.org

Date Initial Application Submitted (Due prior to start of construction or permits assigned)

Projected Project Start Date

GENERAL INFORMATION ABOUT THE COMPANY

GENERAL INFORMATION ABOUT THE COMPANY CONTACT

INFORMATION ABOUT THE PROJECT

Lease 
Owner Approved

Façade 

Detailed Project Summary (including projected start date) and Description of Work:

The information requested on this form will be used by Market Lubbock, Inc. for analysis of your project.

1819 E. Broadway, Lubbock, TX 

Company Name
Street Address

123263
Project Property Address
Property LCAD R#

Ongoing

02/13/19

Commercial Revitalization Grant Program - Application

Permittable - Roof

Summary of Expenses (detailed bids attached)
Façade - Crushed Asphalt

$52,700

MLI Approved Reimbursement 

City, State, Zip

Property Ownership: Own 

$6,998

$1,418

Name
Title
Phone Number
Email

Property Owner
806-773-6903
efmor4@hotmail.com

Grant Type (May choose both if applicable): 

Elida Morin

Permittable 

Permittable - Fire Sprinkler System

Façade renovations include the parking lot, exterior paint, fencing, and curbs. Permittable renovations include the 
roof and a new fire sprinkler system.

$17,279
$5,270
$1,728

$2,835

$33,648 $16,824

$69,979
TOTAL

Projected

$103,627 $23,822

Façade - Exterior Paint
Façade - Fence and Gate
Façade - Front Porch & Curb
Façade - Front Wall

$11,500
$11,713
$4,800
$2,800

$5,750
$5,857
$2,400
$1,400

1 MLI 7.2.24

mailto:jorge@marketlubbock.org
mailto:efmor4@hotmail.com
mailto:efmor4@hotmail.com
mailto:efmor4@hotmail.com
mailto:efmor4@hotmail.com
mailto:efmor4@hotmail.com
mailto:efmor4@hotmail.com
mailto:efmor4@hotmail.com
mailto:efmor4@hotmail.com


COMPANY BACKGROUND
List any person or entity that has at least 5% ownership in the Applicant Company:

Percent Percent
100%

Is the firm registered with the Secretary of State's Office to do business in Texas? No �
Are you in good standing with the State of Texas? No 

If you answered "No" to either of the above two questions, please explain

Is the firm and/or principals delinquent on any federal, state or local tax obligations? No �
Has the company or principals of the company had prior bankruptcies or lawsuits? No 

If you answered "Yes" to either of the above two questions, please explain

Is the firm receiving tax revenue from any government agency? No 

Is the firm a non-profit entity? No 

City of Lubbock requirements:

Contact the City of Lubbock to determine the following:
Scope of work meets East Side/34th St./N. University standards and guidelines?
Are permits required for any aspect of the scope of work?
Are public improvements required?
Is there a current Certificate of Occupancy on file for this property?

Director of Downtown & Special Projects (Jorge Quirino) 806-749-4500
Application Packet:

Copies of City permits or City approval
Copy of Current Certificate of Occupancy
Detailed Construction Bids or Schedule of Values
Before Picture (prior to construction beginning)
Architectural Plans (if applicable)
Architectural Renderings (if applicable)

After completion of construction:
Certificate of Occupancy or Similar City Document Approving Completion
(Applicant responsible for final scope of work matching approved scope)
Proof of Payment:

PAID Invoices (must reference the approved project)
Processed Checks, Bank or Credit Card Statements matching PAID 

  

City of Lubbock - Planning Department 806-775-2108

APPLICANT'S RESPONSIBILITIES (PROPERTY OWNER OR LEASEE)

Elida Morin

Date Final Documents Received:________________________

Market Lubbock, Inc. (MLI) requirements:

Business in creation stage. Project paid for by building owner.

Name Name

Initial application (page one of this document) must be received by MLI prior to 
the start of construction and/or before permits are assigned

All remaining documents must be received and an application packet 
presented to the MLI Board no more than three months after the 
initial application is received by MLI.

2 MLI 7.2.24



Overview

•         An Applicant must be a valid Owner or Tenant (Lessee) of the property needing improvements
•         Properties must fall within the East Side, 34th St., or N. Lubbock Neighborhood Empowerment Zones
•         Single-Family residences and duplexes are excluded.
•         An Applicant is eligible to receive a permittable grant and/or façade grant per property (LCAD R#  

•         Applicant is not eligible for grant program funding if delinquent in property taxes according to

•         MLI disbursements are characterized as "reimbursable grants" - Applicant pays expenses first
•         Expenses eligible for reimbursement must relate to reasonable costs or expenses.
•         Receipt of an application is not a guarantee of grant approval.

Grant Types

•         Permittable Projects
•       Improvements require a City of Lubbock permit
•       Improvements may be made to the exterior and/or interior of the property
•       Improvements must total a minimum of $5,000
•      The permittable grant reimburses 10% of approved expenses up to a $50,000 grant
•   Permittable scope of work that may be considered:

•   HVAC
•   Plumbing
•   Electrical
•   Structural
•   Any other work requring a City of Lubbock permit

•         Façade Projects
•       Improvements may or may not require a City of Lubbock permit
•       Improvements must be made to the exterior of the property facing the most prominent street
•       Improvements must total a minimum of $1,000
•      The façade grant reimburses 50% of approved expenses up to a $25,000 grant
•   Façade scope of work that may be considered:

•   Painting
•   New windows and doors
•   Signage
•   Landscaping
•   Parking lots
•   Awnings
•   Any other work that improves the appearnce of the façade

Elida Morin per email

2/13/2019

     or Development Lot), per enterprise, per year. Must wait one year from approval to apply again for 
     the same property. (Expenses used in one application cannot be used in another application.)

         
invoices (legible copies)

Signature (not required for electronic submittals):

Date:

     LCAD records - includes all LCAD properties listed in the applicant's name

3 MLI 7.2.24



1819 E. Broadway – Crushed Asphalt 
Façade Expense: $2,835.00 

 

 
 

  



1819 E. Broadway – Exterior Paint 
Façade Expense: $11,500.00 

 

 



1819 E. Broadway – Metal Fence and Gate 
Façade Expense: $11,712.65 

 

  



1819 E. Broadway – Front Porch and Curb 
Façade Expense: $4,800.00 

 

 



1819 E. Broadway – Front Wall 
Façade Expense: $2,800.00 

 

 



1819 E. Broadway – Fire Sprinkler System 
Permittable Expense: $52,700.00 

 

 



1819 E. Broadway – Roof 
Permittable Expense: $17,278.81 

 

 
 



 AI# 12720 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 6. 23. 
08/13/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Business Development: Consider a resolution authorizing a Commercial Revitalization
Grant Program (Permittable) expenditure of Market Lubbock, Inc., to be provided to Elida Morin,
located at 1819 E. Broadway, pursuant to Article IV, Section 5, of the Amended and Restated Bylaws of
the Market Lubbock Development Corporation. 

Item Summary
In May 2023, the City Council authorized the continuation of the Lubbock East Neighborhood
Empowerment Zone, and the establishment of the 34th Street Empowerment Zone and the North
University Empowerment Zone. This action was taken to encourage redevelopment and revitalization
within the City of Lubbock, through the promotion of economic development within the Zones. Through
the establishment of the three Zones, Market Lubbock, Inc. has geographic boundaries within which it
can implement its Commercial Revitalization Grant Program. 

Elida Morin is renovating her property at 1819 E. Broadway, located within the Lubbock East
Neighborhood Empowerment Zone, as designated by the City of Lubbock. The scope of the permittable
project includes a new roof, and a new fire sprinkler system. The cost of the project is estimated to be
$69,979, and the requested grant amount is $6,998. The Market Lubbock, Inc. Board of Directors
approved this amount at their July 24, 2024 Board Meeting, and recommend approval by the City
Council.

Fiscal Impact
The total cost of the project is estimated to be $69,979, with $6,998 to be paid upon completion with the
requested grant. 

Staff/Board Recommending
Bill Howerton, Deputy City Manager 
Brianna Brown, Business Development Director 
Market Lubbock, Inc. Board of Directors 

Attachments
Resolution 
Market Lubbock Resolution 
Market Lubbock Support Documentation 







MARKET LUBBOCK, INC.    

COMMERCIAL REVITALIZATION GRANT PROGRAM 

 

 

1819 E. Broadway 

(Elida Morin – Property Owner) 

 
TOTAL SCOPE OF WORK = $103,627 

TOTAL GRANT = $23,822 

 

FACADE SCOPE OF WORK = $33,648 

FAÇADE GRANT = $16,824 

 

PERMITTABLE SCOPE OF WORK = $69,979 

PERMITTABLE GRANT = $6,998 

 



 
 

Commercial Revitalization Grant Program 
Presented to MLI Board 

July 24, 2024 
 
 

Project 1819 E. Broadway (Elida Morin) 
Elida Morin is renovating her property at 1819 E. Broadway, located within the East Lubbock 
Neighborhood Empowerment Zone as designated by the City of Lubbock . The vacant building will be 
converted into an event center once the project is complete.  
 
The scope of work includes renovations to the parking lot, exterior painting, fencing, curbs, roof, and a 
new fire sprinkler system totaling $103,627 in expenses.  (Façade expenses $33,648 and Permittable 
expenses $69,979). There are additional expenses not covered by the grant program (interior flooring, 
paint, etc.) totaling in excess of $30,000. 
 
The MLI Board is being asked to consider a Commercial Revitalization Grant Program Façade Grant for 
Elida Morin totaling $16,824 and a Permittable Grant of $6,998 at 1819 E. Broadway. 
 



MLI CONTACT INFORMATION
Jorge Quirino - Director of Downtown & Special Projects Phone: 806.23.8241
Market Lubbock, Inc.
1500 Broadway, Sixth Floor, Lubbock, TX 79401 Email: jorge@marketlubbock.org

Date Initial Application Submitted (Due prior to start of construction or permits assigned)

Projected Project Start Date

GENERAL INFORMATION ABOUT THE COMPANY

GENERAL INFORMATION ABOUT THE COMPANY CONTACT

INFORMATION ABOUT THE PROJECT

Lease 
Owner Approved

Façade 

Detailed Project Summary (including projected start date) and Description of Work:

The information requested on this form will be used by Market Lubbock, Inc. for analysis of your project.

1819 E. Broadway, Lubbock, TX 

Company Name
Street Address

123263
Project Property Address
Property LCAD R#

Ongoing

02/13/19

Commercial Revitalization Grant Program - Application

Permittable - Roof

Summary of Expenses (detailed bids attached)
Façade - Crushed Asphalt

$52,700

MLI Approved Reimbursement 

City, State, Zip

Property Ownership: Own 

$6,998

$1,418

Name
Title
Phone Number
Email

Property Owner
806-773-6903
efmor4@hotmail.com

Grant Type (May choose both if applicable): 

Elida Morin

Permittable 

Permittable - Fire Sprinkler System

Façade renovations include the parking lot, exterior paint, fencing, and curbs. Permittable renovations include the 
roof and a new fire sprinkler system.

$17,279
$5,270
$1,728

$2,835

$33,648 $16,824

$69,979
TOTAL

Projected

$103,627 $23,822

Façade - Exterior Paint
Façade - Fence and Gate
Façade - Front Porch & Curb
Façade - Front Wall

$11,500
$11,713
$4,800
$2,800

$5,750
$5,857
$2,400
$1,400

1 MLI 7.2.24

mailto:jorge@marketlubbock.org
mailto:efmor4@hotmail.com
mailto:efmor4@hotmail.com
mailto:efmor4@hotmail.com
mailto:efmor4@hotmail.com
mailto:efmor4@hotmail.com
mailto:efmor4@hotmail.com
mailto:efmor4@hotmail.com
mailto:efmor4@hotmail.com


COMPANY BACKGROUND
List any person or entity that has at least 5% ownership in the Applicant Company:

Percent Percent
100%

Is the firm registered with the Secretary of State's Office to do business in Texas? No �
Are you in good standing with the State of Texas? No 

If you answered "No" to either of the above two questions, please explain

Is the firm and/or principals delinquent on any federal, state or local tax obligations? No �
Has the company or principals of the company had prior bankruptcies or lawsuits? No 

If you answered "Yes" to either of the above two questions, please explain

Is the firm receiving tax revenue from any government agency? No 

Is the firm a non-profit entity? No 

City of Lubbock requirements:

Contact the City of Lubbock to determine the following:
Scope of work meets East Side/34th St./N. University standards and guidelines?
Are permits required for any aspect of the scope of work?
Are public improvements required?
Is there a current Certificate of Occupancy on file for this property?

Director of Downtown & Special Projects (Jorge Quirino) 806-749-4500
Application Packet:

Copies of City permits or City approval
Copy of Current Certificate of Occupancy
Detailed Construction Bids or Schedule of Values
Before Picture (prior to construction beginning)
Architectural Plans (if applicable)
Architectural Renderings (if applicable)

After completion of construction:
Certificate of Occupancy or Similar City Document Approving Completion
(Applicant responsible for final scope of work matching approved scope)
Proof of Payment:

PAID Invoices (must reference the approved project)
Processed Checks, Bank or Credit Card Statements matching PAID 

  

City of Lubbock - Planning Department 806-775-2108

APPLICANT'S RESPONSIBILITIES (PROPERTY OWNER OR LEASEE)

Elida Morin

Date Final Documents Received:________________________

Market Lubbock, Inc. (MLI) requirements:

Business in creation stage. Project paid for by building owner.

Name Name

Initial application (page one of this document) must be received by MLI prior to 
the start of construction and/or before permits are assigned

All remaining documents must be received and an application packet 
presented to the MLI Board no more than three months after the 
initial application is received by MLI.

2 MLI 7.2.24



Overview

•         An Applicant must be a valid Owner or Tenant (Lessee) of the property needing improvements
•         Properties must fall within the East Side, 34th St., or N. Lubbock Neighborhood Empowerment Zones
•         Single-Family residences and duplexes are excluded.
•         An Applicant is eligible to receive a permittable grant and/or façade grant per property (LCAD R#  

•         Applicant is not eligible for grant program funding if delinquent in property taxes according to

•         MLI disbursements are characterized as "reimbursable grants" - Applicant pays expenses first
•         Expenses eligible for reimbursement must relate to reasonable costs or expenses.
•         Receipt of an application is not a guarantee of grant approval.

Grant Types

•         Permittable Projects
•       Improvements require a City of Lubbock permit
•       Improvements may be made to the exterior and/or interior of the property
•       Improvements must total a minimum of $5,000
•      The permittable grant reimburses 10% of approved expenses up to a $50,000 grant
•   Permittable scope of work that may be considered:

•   HVAC
•   Plumbing
•   Electrical
•   Structural
•   Any other work requring a City of Lubbock permit

•         Façade Projects
•       Improvements may or may not require a City of Lubbock permit
•       Improvements must be made to the exterior of the property facing the most prominent street
•       Improvements must total a minimum of $1,000
•      The façade grant reimburses 50% of approved expenses up to a $25,000 grant
•   Façade scope of work that may be considered:

•   Painting
•   New windows and doors
•   Signage
•   Landscaping
•   Parking lots
•   Awnings
•   Any other work that improves the appearnce of the façade

Elida Morin per email

2/13/2019

     or Development Lot), per enterprise, per year. Must wait one year from approval to apply again for 
     the same property. (Expenses used in one application cannot be used in another application.)

         
invoices (legible copies)

Signature (not required for electronic submittals):

Date:

     LCAD records - includes all LCAD properties listed in the applicant's name

3 MLI 7.2.24



1819 E. Broadway – Crushed Asphalt 
Façade Expense: $2,835.00 

 

 
 

  



1819 E. Broadway – Exterior Paint 
Façade Expense: $11,500.00 

 

 



1819 E. Broadway – Metal Fence and Gate 
Façade Expense: $11,712.65 

 

  



1819 E. Broadway – Front Porch and Curb 
Façade Expense: $4,800.00 

 

 



1819 E. Broadway – Front Wall 
Façade Expense: $2,800.00 

 

 



1819 E. Broadway – Fire Sprinkler System 
Permittable Expense: $52,700.00 

 

 



1819 E. Broadway – Roof 
Permittable Expense: $17,278.81 

 

 
 



 AI# 12722 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 6. 24. 
08/13/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Business Development: Consider a resolution authorizing a Commercial Revitalization
Grant Program (Facade) expenditure of Market Lubbock, Inc., to be provided to Mags and Blades
Ventures, LLC, located at 2223 34th Street, pursuant to Article IV, Section 5, of the Amended and
Restated Bylaws of the Market Lubbock Development Corporation. 

Item Summary
In May 2023, the City Council authorized the continuation of the Lubbock East Neighborhood
Empowerment Zone, and the establishment of the 34th Street Empowerment Zone and the North
University Empowerment Zone. This action was taken to encourage redevelopment and revitalization
within the City of Lubbock, through the promotion of economic development within the Zones. Through
the establishment of the three Zones, Market Lubbock, Inc. has geographic boundaries within which it
can implement its Commercial Revitalization Grant Program. 

Mags and Blades Ventures, LLC is renovating their property at 2223 34th Street, located within the 34th
Street Empowerment Zone, as designated by the City of Lubbock. The scope of the facade project
includes new signage and parking lot repairs. The cost of the project is estimated to be $7,846, and the
requested grant amount is $3,923. The Market Lubbock, Inc. Board of Directors approved this amount at
their July 24, 2024 Board Meeting, and recommend approval by the City Council. 

Fiscal Impact
The total cost of the project is estimated to be $7,846, with $3,923 to be paid upon completion with the
requested grant. 

Staff/Board Recommending
Bill Howerton, Deputy City Manager 
Brianna Brown, Business Development Director 
Market Lubbock, Inc. Board of Directors 

Attachments
Resolution - Mags and Blades Ventures LLC 
Market Lubbock Resolution 
Market Lubbock Support Documentation 







MARKET LUBBOCK, INC.    

COMMERCIAL REVITALIZATION GRANT PROGRAM 

 

 

2223 34th St. 

(Mags and Blades Ventures, LLC) 
 

TOTAL FAÇADE SCOPE OF WORK = $7,846 

FAÇADE GRANT = $3,923 

 



 
 

Commercial Revitalization Grant Program 
Presented to MLI Board 

July 24, 2024 
 
 

Project 2223 34th St. (Façade) 
Mags and Blades Ventures, LLC, is renovating the property at 2223 34th St., located within a Lubbock 
Neighborhood Empowerment Zone as designated by the City of Lubbock. 
 
Façade expenses will include new signage and parking lot repairs totaling $7,846.  
 
The MLI Board is being asked to consider a Commercial Revitalization Grant Program Façade Grant for 
Mags and Blades Ventures, LLC totaling $3,923 at 2223 34th St. 
 



MLI CONTACT INFORMATION
Jorge Quirino - Director of Downtown & Special Projects Phone: 806.23.8241
Market Lubbock, Inc.
1500 Broadway, Sixth Floor, Lubbock, TX 79401 Email: jorge@marketlubbock.org

Date Initial Application Submitted (Due prior to start of construction or permits assigned)

Projected Project Start Date

GENERAL INFORMATION ABOUT THE COMPANY

GENERAL INFORMATION ABOUT THE COMPANY CONTACT

INFORMATION ABOUT THE PROJECT

Lease 
Owner Approved

Façade 

Detailed Project Summary (including projected start date) and Description of Work:

COMPANY BACKGROUND
List any person or entity that has at least 5% ownership in the Applicant Company:

Project Property Address
Property LCAD R#

08/01/24

06/06/24

Company Name
Street Address

Mags and Blades Ventures LLC
2223 34th St

R39208

Lubbock, TX, 79411

Name
Title
Phone Number
Email

Owner

Commercial Revitalization Grant - Application

Parking Lot

Summary of Expenses (detailed bids attached)
Mags and Blades signage

MLI Approved Reimbursement 

City, State, Zip

Property Ownership: Own 

$3,073

The information requested on this form will be used by Market Lubbock, Inc. for analysis of your project.

2223 34th St

806-281-4812
rawlinson.rob3@gmail.com

Grant Type (May choose both if applicable): 

Robert Junior Rawlinson

Permittable 

TOTAL
Final bids will be used to calculate the project cost and grant amount.

Projected

$7,846 $3,923

This project is projected to begin on August 1st, 2024. The renovations will be to help the appearance of 34th st. 
Our renovations include to building signs. 

$1,700 $850
$6,146

1 MLI 11.17.23

mailto:jorge@marketlubbock.org
mailto:rawlinson.rob3@gmail.com
mailto:rawlinson.rob3@gmail.com
mailto:rawlinson.rob3@gmail.com
mailto:rawlinson.rob3@gmail.com
mailto:rawlinson.rob3@gmail.com
mailto:rawlinson.rob3@gmail.com
mailto:rawlinson.rob3@gmail.com
mailto:rawlinson.rob3@gmail.com


Percent Percent
100%

Is the firm registered with the Secretary of State's Office to do business in Texas? Yes �
Are you in good standing with the State of Texas? Yes 

If you answered "No" to either of the above two questions, please explain

Is the firm and/or principals delinquent on any federal, state or local tax obligations? No �
Has the company or principals of the company had prior bankruptcies or lawsuits? No 

If you answered "Yes" to either of the above two questions, please explain

Is the firm receiving tax revenue from any government agency? No 

Is the firm a non-profit entity? No 

City of Lubbock requirements:

Contact the City of Lubbock to determine the following:
Scope of work meets East Side/34th St./N. University standards and guidelines?
Are permits required for any aspect of the scope of work?
Are public improvements required?
Is there a current Certificate of Occupancy on file for this property?

Director of Downtown & Special Projects (Jorge Quirino) 806-749-4500
Application Packet:

Copies of City permits or City approval
Copy of Current Certificate of Occupancy
Detailed Construction Bids or Schedule of Values
Before Picture (prior to construction beginning)
Architectural Plans (if applicable)
Architectural Renderings (if applicable)

After completion of construction:
Certificate of Occupancy or Similar City Document Approving Completion
(Applicant responsible for final scope of work matching approved scope)
Proof of Payment:

PAID Invoices (must reference the approved project)

Overview

Processed Checks, Bank or Credit Card Statements matching PAID 
invoices (legible copies)

Robert Junior Rawlinson

Date Final Documents Received:________________________

Market Lubbock, Inc. (MLI) requirements:

Name Name

Initial application (page one of this document) must be received by MLI prior to 
the start of construction and/or before permits are assigned

All remaining documents must be received and an application packet 
presented to the MLI Board no more than three months after the 
initial application is received by MLI.

City of Lubbock - Planning Department 806-775-2108

APPLICANT'S RESPONSIBILITIES (PROPERTY OWNER OR LEASEE)

2 MLI 11.17.23



•         An Applicant must be a valid Owner or Tenant (Lessee) of the property needing improvements
•         Properties must fall within the East Side, 34th St., or N. Lubbock Neighborhood Empowerment Zones
•         Single-Family residences and duplexes are excluded.
•         An Applicant is eligible to receive a permittable grant and/or façade grant per property (LCAD R#  

•         Applicant is not eligible for grant program funding if delinquent in property taxes according to

•         MLI disbursements are characterized as "reimbursable grants" - Applicant pays expenses first
•         Expenses eligible for reimbursement must relate to reasonable costs or expenses.
•         Receipt of an application is not a guarantee of grant approval.

Grant Types

•         Permittable Projects
•       Improvements require a City of Lubbock permit
•       Improvements may be made to the exterior and/or interior of the property
•       Improvements must total a minimum of $5,000
•      The permittable grant reimburses 10% of approved expenses up to a $50,000 grant
•   Permittable scope of work that may be considered:

•   HVAC
•   Plumbing
•   Electrical
•   Structural
•   Any other work requring a City of Lubbock permit

•         Façade Projects
•       Improvements may or may not require a City of Lubbock permit
•       Improvements must be made to the exterior of the property facing the most prominent street
•       Improvements must total a minimum of $1,000
•      The façade grant reimburses 50% of approved expenses up to a $25,000 grant
•   Façade scope of work that may be considered:

•   Painting
•   New windows and doors
•   Signage
•   Landscaping
•   Parking lots
•   Awnings
•   Any other work that improves the appearnce of the façade

Robert Junior Rawlinson

6/6/2024

     the same property. (Expenses used in one application cannot be used in another application.)

Signature (not required for electronic submittals):

Date:

     LCAD records - includes all LCAD properties listed in the applicant's name

     or Development Lot), per enterprise, per year. Must wait one year from approval to apply again for 

3 MLI 11.17.23



2223 34th St. – Before Pictures 

 
 

 
 

 
 



Signs On The Go, Inc.

304 County Road 7200

Lubbock, TX 79404

signs@signsonthego.com

AR kaci@signsonthego.com

Quote

QUOTE 107348

Date Jun 11, 2024

QUOTE FOR

 

Mags and Blades

TX

SHIP TO

 

Phone ✉E-Mail Terms PO No. Sales Rep

(806) 281-4967 eliza.angelita727@yahoo.com COD

Job Description QTY Price Total

1 Permit Sign Permit - ; 1 $150.00 $150.00

Description:

  City of Lubbock

2 Channel Letter Lighted Serif or Cursive - Height: 0 Ft 26 In Width: 0 Ft 18
In;

10 $389.09 $3,890.90

Add-ons:

Vinyl Added Face;

Description:

  MAGS BLADES - Channel Letter

3 Channel Letter Capsule - Height: 0 Ft 48 In Width: 0 Ft 28.5 In; 1 $641.16 $641.16

Add-ons:

Vinyl Added Face;

Accessories:

Install 1 $250.00 $250.00

Raceway Per Foot 15 $55.00 $825.00

Description:

  Capsule - Center icon

We Accept American Express, Visa, Mastercard & Discover Subtotal: $5,757.06

Tax: $388.60

Total: $6,145.66

Down Payment: $0.00

Contact: Eliza Hernandez Total Due: $6,145.66



ESTIMATE

Prepared For

Mag's

H&BPaving

PO Box 464
Slaton, Texas 79464
Phone: (806) 300-1347

Estimate # 518
Date 06/24/2024

Description Total

Patching n seal coating $1,700.00

To remove n mill out broken asphalt from all pot holes 
Then to repair with new hot mix asphalt average 2 inches rolled compact  
Then to seal coat all asphalt with TXDoT approved asphalt seal coat plus stripe new parking 
lines 

Subtotal $1,700.00

Total $1,700.00

Make all checks payable to William Mesker or Henry Mesker

Mag's

Page 1 of 1



 AI# 12738 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 6. 25. 
08/13/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Parks and Recreation: Consider a resolution authorizing Purchase Order 10027645, with
Advantage Courts Co., for the resurfacing and maintenance of park courts and court amenities at
Wheelock, Rawlings, Underwood, Charles Guy, Hoel, Whisperwood, and Higinbotham Parks.

Item Summary
The City of Lubbock Parks and Recreation Department will resurface and re-stripe courts at the
following seven (7) parks: Wheelock, Rawlings, Underwood, Charles Guy, Hoel, Whisperwood, and
Higinbotham. The project involves cleaning, applying resurfacer and color coats, striping, re-striping,
and installing new pickleball posts and nets where needed.

This purchase will be made through BuyBoard Contract 737-24 with Advantage Courts Co. of Amarillo,
Texas. BuyBoard is a local Government Purchasing Cooperative created to increase the purchasing
power of government entities and to simplify their purchasing by using a customized online purchasing
system. Its purpose is to obtain the benefits and efficiencies that can accrue to members. 

Fiscal Impact
The total cost for this project is $132,700 and will be purchased with available funding in Capital
Improvement Project 92832, Amenity Replacement Program. 

Staff/Board Recommending
Brooke Witcher, Assistant City Manager

Attachments
Resolution 
Purchase Order 
Budget Detail 
CIP Detail 





 

TO: SHIP TO: 

 INVOICE TO: CITY OF LUBBOCK  
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 
P.O. BOX 2000 
LUBBOCK, TX 79457 BY: 

Marta Alvarez, Director of Purchasing & Contract Management 

1Page    -
Date    - 7/10/2024P U R C H A S E   O R D E R
Order Number 10027645 OP000
Branch/Plant         5223

ADVANTAGE COURTS CO CITY OF LUBBOCK - CENTRAL SHOP
PO BOX 8518 308 MUNICIPAL DRIVE

LUBBOCK TX 79403AMARILLO TX 79114

Ordered .Freight7/10/2024
Taken ByRequested 8/23/2024 YBUSBY

PUR 18208/BUYBOARD 737-24Delivery PER M CHACON REQ 61905

Description/Supplier Item Ordered Unit Cost UM Extension Request Date
Wheelock Park - 12720 Sq. Ft. 1.000 22,400.0000 EA 22,400.00 8/23/2024
Rawlings Park - 12412 Sq. Ft. 1.000 20,400.0000 EA 20,400.00 8/23/2024
Underwood Park - 1600 Sq. Ft. 1.000 6,400.0000 EA 6,400.00 8/23/2024
Charles Guy Park - 4500 Sq. Ft 1.000 13,350.0000 EA 13,350.00 8/23/2024
Higinbotham Park - 1800 Sq. Ft 1.000 11,350.0000 EA 11,350.00 8/23/2024
Whisperwood Park - 14040 Sq.Ft 1.000 29,900.0000 EA 29,900.00 8/23/2024
Hoel Park - 12582 Sq. Ft. 1.000 28,900.0000 EA 28,900.00 8/23/2024

Total Order

NET 30Terms 132,700.00

This purchase order encumbers funds in the amount of $132,700.00 awarded to Advantage Courts Co. of Amarillo, 
TX, on _________________, 2024. The following is incorporated into and made part of this purchase order by reference: 
Quote dated July 15, 2024, from Advantage Courts Co. of Amarillo, TX, and BuyBoard Contract 737-24.

Resolution #____________________ 

CITY OF LUBBOCK: 

_______________________________________ 

Mark McBrayer, Mayor

ATTEST: 

______________________________________

Courtney Paz, City Secretary

If you have any questions contact Mariana Chacon:  MChacon@mylubbock.us  Phone 806-775-2664



 

TO: SHIP TO: 

 INVOICE TO: CITY OF LUBBOCK  
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 
P.O. BOX 2000 
LUBBOCK, TX 79457 BY: 

Marta Alvarez, Director of Purchasing & Contract Management 

2Page    -
Date    - 7/10/2024P U R C H A S E   O R D E R
Order Number 10027645 OP000
Branch/Plant         5223

ADVANTAGE COURTS CO CITY OF LUBBOCK - CENTRAL SHOP
PO BOX 8518 308 MUNICIPAL DRIVE

LUBBOCK TX 79403AMARILLO TX 79114

Ordered .Freight7/10/2024
Taken ByRequested 8/23/2024 YBUSBY

PUR 18208/BUYBOARD 737-24Delivery PER M CHACON REQ 61905

INSURANCE REQUIRED:

Commercial General Liability: 

$1M occurrence / $2M aggregate (can be combined with an

Excess Liability to meet requirement). CGL is required in ALL 

contracts. It is perhaps the most important of all 

insurance policies in a contractual relationship. It insures the 

Contractor has broad liability coverage for contractual activities 

and for completed operations.  

Commercial General Liability to include Products – 

Completion/OP, Personal and Advertising Injury, Contractual 

Liability, Fire Damage (any one fire), and Medical Expenses 

(any one person). 

Automotive Liability: 

$1M occurrence is needed.

Workers Compensation and Employer Liability: 

Statutory. If the vendor is an independent contractor with no 

employees and are exempt from providing Workers' 

Compensation coverage, they must sign a waiver (obtained 

from COL Purchasing) and include a copy of their driver's 

license. Employer Liability ($1M) is required with

Workers Compensation. 

Additional Policies: N/A 

*The City of Lubbock (including its officials, employees and volunteers) shall be afforded additional insured status on a primary

and non-contributory basis on all liability policies except professional liabilities and workers' comp. *Waivers of Subrogation are

required for CGL, AL, and WC. *To Include Products of Completed Operations endorsement. *Carrier will provide a 30-day

written notice of cancellation, 10-day written notice for non-payment. *Carriers must meet an A.M. Best rating of A- or better.

*Subcontractors must carry same limits as listed above. 

Professional Liability Requirements:
$1M occurrence / 2M aggregate.

177855
Rectangle



  REV. 3/2022     

    Rev. 3/2022 
 

Seller and Buyer agree as 
follows: 

PURCHASE ORDER                                                                                        
TERMS AND CONDITIONS  

STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS  

ACCEPTANCE OF THIS PURCHASE ORDER:  

CONTRACTOR ACKNOWLEDGES, by supplying any Goods or Services that the Contractor has read, fully 

understands, and will be in full compliance with all terms and conditions and the descriptive material contained herein 

and any additional associated documents and Amendments.  The City disclaims any terms and conditions provided by 

the Contractor unless agreed upon in writing by the parties.  In the event of conflict between the City’s terms and 

conditions and any terms and conditions provided by the Contractor, the terms and conditions provided herein shall 

prevail.  The terms and conditions provided herein are the final terms agreed upon by the parties, and any prior 

conflicting terms shall be of no force or effect. 

 

1. SELLER TO PACKAGE GOODS.   Seller will package goods in accordance with good commercial practice.   

Each shipping container shall be clearly and permanently marked as follows  (a)  Seller’s name and address, (b) 

Consignee’s name, address and purchase order or purchase release number and the supply agreement number if 

applicable, (c) Container number and total number of containers, e.g. box 1 of 4 boxes, and (d) the number of the 

container bearing the packing slip. Seller shall bear cost of packaging unless otherwise provided. Goods shall be 

suitably packed to secure lowest transportation costs and to conform with requirements of common carriers and any 

applicable specifications.  Buyer’s count or weight shall be final and conclusive on shipments not accompanied by 

packing lists. 

2. SHIPMENT UNDER RESERVATION PROHIBITED.  Seller is not authorized to ship the goods under 

reservation and no tender of a bill of lading will operate as a tender of goods. 

3. TITLE AND RISK OF LOSS.  The title and risk of loss of the goods shall not pass to Buyer until Buyer actually 

receives and takes possession of the goods at the point or points of delivery. 

4. NO REPLACEMENT OF DEFECTIVE TENDER.  Every tender of delivery of goods must fully comply with all 

provisions of this contract as to time of delivery, quality and the like. If a tender is made which does not fully conform, 

this shall constitute a breach and Seller shall not have the right to substitute a conforming tender, provided, where the 

time for performance has not yet expired, the Seller may reasonably notify Buyer of his intention to cure and may 

then make a conforming tender within the contract time but not afterward. 

5. INVOICES & PAYMENTS. a. S e l l e r  shall submit separate invoices, in duplicate, one each purchase order or 

purchase release after each delivery.  Invoices shall indicate the purchase order or purchase release number and 

the supply agreement number if applicable.  Invoices shall be itemized and transportation charges, if any, shall be 

listed separately.  A copy of the bill of lading, and the freight waybill when applicable, should be attached to the 

invoice. Mail To: Accounts Payable, City of Lubbock, P. O. Box 2000, Lubbock, Texas 79457.  Payment shall not 

be due until the above instruments are submitted after delivery. 

6. GRATUITIES.  The Buyer may, by written notice to the Seller, cancel this contract without liability to Seller if 

it is determined by Buyer that gratuities, in the form of entertainment, gifts or otherwise, were offered or given by the 

Seller, or any agent or representative of the Seller, to any officer or employee of the City of Lubbock with a view to 

securing a contract or securing favorable treatment with respect to the awarding or amending, or the making of any 

determinations with respect to the performing of such a contract.  In the event this contract is canceled by Buyer 

pursuant to this provision, Buyer shall be entitled, in addition to any other rights and remedies, to recover or withhold 

the amount of the cost incurred by Seller in providing such gratuities. 

7. SPECIAL TOOLS & TEST EQUIPMENT.  If the price stated on the face hereof includes the cost of any special 

tooling or special test equipment fabricated or required by Seller for the purpose of filling this order, such special 

tooling equipment and any process sheets related thereto shall become the property of the Buyer and to the extent 

feasible shall be identified by the Seller as such. 

8. WARRANTY-PRICE. a. The price to be paid by the Buyer shall be that contained in Seller’s bid which 

Seller warrants to be no higher than Seller’s current process on orders by others for products of the kind and 

specification covered by this agreement for similar quantities under similar of like conditions and methods of purchase.  

In the event Seller breaches this warranty, the prices of the  items  shall  be  reduced  to  the  Seller’s  current  prices  

on  orders  by others, or  in  the alternative.  Buyer may cancel this contract without liability to Seller for breach 

or Seller’s actual expense. b. The Seller warrants that no person or selling agency has been employed or retained to 

solicit or secure this contract upon an agreement or understanding for commission, percentage, brokerage, or contingent 

fee excepting bona fide employees of bona fide established commercial or selling agencies maintained by the Seller for 

the purpose of securing business.  For breach of viciation of this warranty the Buyer shall have the right in addition to 

any other right of rights to cancel this contract without liability and to deduct from the contract price, or otherwise 

recover without liability and to deduct from the contract price, or otherwise recover the full amount of such commission, 

percentage, brokerage or contingent fee. 

9. WARRANTY-PRODUCT.  Seller shall not limit or exclude any implied warranties and any attempt to do so shall 

render this contract voidable at the option of the Buyer.  Seller warrants that the goods furnished will conform to the 

specification, drawings, and descriptions listed in the bid invitation, and to the sample(s) furnished by the Seller, if any. 

In the event of a conflict or between the specifications, drawings, and descriptions, the specifications shall govern. 

Notwithstanding any provisions contained in the contractual agreement, the Seller represents and warrants fault-free 

performance and fault-free result in the processing date and date related data (including, but not limited to calculating, 

comparing and sequencing) of all hardware, software and firmware products delivered and services provided under 

this Contract, individually or in combination, as the case may be from the effective date of this Contract. The 

obligations contained herein apply to products and services provided by the Seller, its sub- Seller or any third party 

involved in the creation or development of the products and services to be delivered to the City of Lubbock under this 

Contract.  Failure to comply with any of the obligations contained herein, may result in the City of Lubbock 

availing itself of any of its rights under the law and under this Contract including, but not limited to, its right pertaining 

to termination or default. The warranties contained herein are separate and discrete from any other warranties 

specified in this Contract, and are not subject to any disclaimer of warranty, implied or expressed, or limitation of the 

Seller’s liability which may be specified in this Contract, its appendices, its schedules, its annexes or any document 

incorporated in this Contract by reference. 

10. SAFETY WARRANTY.  Seller warrants that the product sold to the Buyer shall conform to the standards 

promulgated by the U. S. Department of Labor under the Occupational Safety and Health Act of 1970.  In the event the 

product does not conform to OSHA standards, Buyer may return the product for correction or replacement at the 

Seller’s expense.  In the event Seller fails to make the appropriate correction within a reasonable time, correction 

made by Buyer will be at the Seller’s expense. 

11. NO WARRANTY BY BUYER AGAINST INFRINGEMENTS.  As part of this contract for sale Seller agrees 

to ascertain whether goods manufactured in accordance with the specifications attached to this agreement will give 

rise to the rightful claim of any third person by way of infringement of the like.  Buyer makes no warranty that the 

production of goods according to the specification will not give rise to such a claim, and in no event shall Buyer be 

liable to Seller for indemnification in the event that Seller is sued on the grounds of infringement of the like.  If Seller 

is of the opinion that an infringement or the like will result, he will notify the Buyer to this effect in writing within two 

weeks after the signing of this agreement.    If  Buyer  does  not  receive  notice  and  is  subsequently  held  liable  for  

the infringement or the like, Seller will save Buyer harmless.  If Seller in good faith ascertains the production of the 

goods in accordance with the specifications will result in infringement or the like, the contract shall be null and void. 

12. NON APPROPRIATION. All funds for payment by the City under this contract are subject to the availability of an 

annual appropriation for this purpose by the City.  In the event of nonappropriation of funds by the City Council of the 

City of Lubbock for the goods or services provided under the contract, the City will terminate the contract, without 

termination charge or other liability, on the last day of the then-current fiscal year or when the appropriation made for 

the then-current year for the goods or services covered by this contract is spent, whichever event occurs first.  If at any 

time funds are not appropriated for the continuance of this contract, cancellation shall be accepted by the Seller on 

thirty (30) days prior written notice, but failure to give such notice shall be of no effect and the City shall not be 

obligated under this contract beyond the date of termination. 

13. RIGHT OF INSPECTION.  Buyer shall have the right to inspect the goods at delivery before accepting them. 

14. CANCELLATION.  Buyer shall have the right to cancel for default all or any part of the undelivered portion of 

this order if Seller breaches any of the terms hereof including warranties of Seller or if the Seller becomes insolvent or 

commits acts of bankruptcy.  Such right of cancellation is in addition to and not in lieu of any other remedies which 

Buyer may have in law or equity. 

15. TERMINATION. The performance of work under this order may be terminated in whole, or in part by the Buyer 

in accordance with this provision.  Termination of work hereunder shall be effected by the delivery of the Seller of 

a “Notice of Termination” specifying the extent to which performance of work under the order is terminated and the 

date upon which such termination becomes effective. Such right or termination is in addition to and not in lieu of the 

rights of Buyer set forth in Clause 14, herein. 

16. FORCE MAJEURE.    Neither party shall be held responsible for losses, resulting if the fulfillment of any 

terms of provisions of this contract is delayed or prevented by any cause not within the control of the party whose 

performance is interfered with, and which by the exercise of reasonable diligence said party is unable to prevent. 

17. ASSIGNMENT-DELEGATION.  No right or interest in this contract shall be assigned or delegation of any 

obligation made by Seller without the written permission of the Buyer.  Any attempted assignment or delegation by 

Seller shall be wholly void and totally ineffective for all purpose unless made in conformity with this paragraph. 

18. WAIVER. No claim or right arising out of a breach of this contract can be discharged in whole or in part by a 

waiver or renunciation of the claim or right unless the waiver or renunciation is supported by consideration and is in 

writing signed by the aggrieved party. 

19. INTERPRETATION-PAROLE EVIDENCE. This writing, plus any specifications for bids and performance  

provided  by  Buyer  in  its  advertisement for  bids,  and  any  other  documents provided by Seller as part of his bid, 

is intended by the parties as a final expression of their agreement and intended also as a complete and exclusive 

statement of the terms of their agreement.   Whenever a term defined by the Uniform Commercial Code is used in this 

agreement, the definition contained in the Code is to control. 

20. APPLICABLE LAW.  This agreement shall be governed by the Uniform Commercial Code. Wherever the term 

“Uniform Commercial Code” is used, it shall be construed as meaning the Uniform Commercial Code as adopted in 

the State of Texas as effective and in force on the date of this agreement. 

21. RIGHT TO ASSURANCE.  Whenever one party to this contract in good faith has reason to question the other 

party’s intent to perform he may demand that the other party give written assurance of his intent to perform.  In the 

event that a demand is made and no assurance is given within five (5) days, the demanding party may treat this 

failure as an anticipatory repudiation of the contract. 

22. INDEMNIFICATION.  Seller shall indemnify, keep and save harmless the Buyer, its agents, officials and 

employees, against all injuries, deaths, loss, damages, claims, patent claims, suits, liabilities, judgments, costs and 

expenses, which may in anywise accrue against the Buyer in consequence of the granting of this Contract or which 

may anywise result therefrom, whether or not it shall be alleged or determined that the act was caused through 

negligence or omission of the Seller or its employees, or of the subSeller or assignee or its employees, if any, and the 

Seller shall, at his own expense, appear, defend and pay all charges of attorneys and all costs and other expenses 

arising therefrom of incurred in connection therewith, and, if any judgment shall be rendered against the Buyer in any 

such action, the Seller shall, at its own expenses, satisfy and discharge the same Seller expressly understands and 

agrees that any bond required by this contract, or otherwise provided by Seller, shall in no way limit the 

responsibility to indemnify, keep and save harmless and defend the Buyer as herein provided. 

23. TIME.   It is hereby expressly agreed and understood that time is of the essence for the performance of this 

contract, and failure by contract to meet the time specifications of this agreement will cause Seller to be in default 

of this agreement. 

24. MBE.  The City of Lubbock hereby notifies all bidders that in regard to any contract entered into pursuant to 

this request, minority and women business enterprises will be afforded equal opportunities to submit bids in response 

to this invitation and will not be discriminated against on the grounds of race, color, sex or natural origin in 

consideration for an award. 

25. NON-ARBITRATION. The City reserves the right to exercise any right or remedy to it by law, contract, equity, or 

otherwise, including without limitation, the right to seek any and all forms of relief in a court of competent 

jurisdiction. Further, the City shall not be subject to any arbitration process prior to exercising its unrestricted 

right to seek judicial remedy. The remedies set forth herein are cumulative and not exclusive, and may be exercised 

concurrently. To the extent of any conflict between this provision and another provision in, or related to, this document, 

this provision shall control. 

26. RIGHT TO AUDIT. At any time during the term of the contract, or thereafter, the City, or a duly authorized 

audit representative of the City or the State of Texas, at its expense and at reasonable times, reserves the right to 

audit Contractor's records and books relevant to all services provided to the City under this Contract. In the event such 

an audit by the City reveals any errors or overpayments by the City, Contractor shall refund the City the full amount 

of such overpayments within thirty (30) days of such audit findings, or the City, at its option, reserves the right to 

deduct such amounts owing the City from any payments due Contractor. 

27. The Contractor shall not assign or sublet the contract, or any portion of the contract, without written consent from 

the Director of Purchasing and Contract Management. 

28. Contracts with Companies Engaged in Business with Iran, Sudan, or Foreign Terrorist Organization Prohibited.  

Pursuant to Section 2252.152 of the Texas Government Code, prohibits the City from entering into a contract with a 

vendor that is identified by The Comptroller as a company known to have contracts with or provide supplies or service 

with Iran, Sudan or a foreign terrorist organization 

29. Texas Government Code. Section 2252.908 requires a business entity entering into certain contracts with a 

governmental entity or state agency to file with the governmental entity or state agency a disclosure of interested parties 

at the time the business entity submits the signed contract to the governmental entity or state agency.  Instructions for 

completing Form 1295 are available at: http://www.ci.lubbock.tx.us/departmental-

websites/departments/purchasing/vendor-information 

30. No Boycott of Israel.  Pursuant to Section 2271.002 of the Texas Government Code, Respondent certifies that 

either (i) it meets an exemption criteria under Section 2271.002; or (ii) it does not boycott Israel and will not boycott 

Israel during the term of the contract resulting from this solicitation. Respondent shall state any facts that make it 

exempt from the boycott certification in its Response.  

31. No Boycott of Energy Companies.  Pursuant to Section 2274 of the Texas Government Code, Respondent 

certifies that either (i) it meets an exemption criteria under Section 2274.002; or (ii) it does not boycott Energy 

Companies and will not boycott Energy Companies during the term of the contract resulting from this solicitation. 

Respondent shall state any facts that make it exempt from the boycott certification in its Response. 

32. No Boycott of a Firearm Entity or Firearm Trade Association.  Pursuant to Section 2274 of the Texas 

Government Code, Respondent certifies that either (i) it meets an exemption criteria under Section 2274.002; or (ii) it 

does not boycott a Firearm Entity or Firearm Trade Association and will not boycott a Firearm Entity or Firearm 

Trade Association during the term of the contract resulting from this solicitation. Respondent shall state any facts that 

make it exempt from the boycott certification in its Response. 

33.  Contracts with Companies Engaged in Business with Iran, Sudan, or Foreign Terrorist Organization Prohibited.  

Pursuant to Section 2252.152 of the Texas Government Code, prohibits the City from entering into a contract with a 

vendor that is identified by The Comptroller as a company known to have contracts with or provide supplies or 

service with Iran, Sudan or a foreign terrorist organization 

34. TEXAS PUBLIC INFORMATION ACT. The requirements of Subchapter J, Chapter 552, Government Code, 

may apply to this contract and the contractor or vendor agrees that the contract can be terminated if the contractor or 

vendor knowingly or intentionally fails to comply with a requirement of that subchapter. 

35. Pursuant to Section 552.301(c) of the Texas Government Code, the City of Lubbock has designated the following 

email address for which public information requests may be made by an emailed request: orr@mylubbock.us. Please 

send this request to this email address for it to be processed

http://www.ci.lubbock.tx.us/departmental-websites/departments/purchasing/vendor-information
http://www.ci.lubbock.tx.us/departmental-websites/departments/purchasing/vendor-information
mailto:orr@mylubbock.us


 
  

 

 
Tel: 806-356-6822 
Fax: 806-331-6822 

advantagecourts@yahoo.com 
NM Licence #90367 

P O Box 8518, Amarillo, TX 79114 

 TX BuyBoard #737-24  
July 15, 2024 
 
  
Customer: CITY OF LUBBOCK 
 
 
Project: RESURFACING OF COURTS AT PARKS 
Project Location: LUBBOCK, TX 
 
• Power wash courts removing any dirt or debris 
• Apply one coat of acrylic resurfacer with sand 
• Apply two coats of acrylic color with sand (standard colors) 
• Stripe for courts as specified 
• Clean area of all materials 
• Water must be provided at each site by the City of Lubbock 
• Installation of Pickleball Posts and Nets. Post will be welded to steel plate and bolted to concrete 
slab. 
 
 
WHEELOCK PARK – 12,720 Sq. Ft. – (1) Futsal Court and (2) Pickleball Courts 
   Installation of 2 sets of Pickleball posts and nets 
 
 Price - $22,400.00 
 
 
RAWLINGS PARK – 12,412 Sq. Ft. – (2) ½ Court Basketball and (1) Futsal Court 
 
 Price - $20,400.00 
 
 
UNDERWOOD PARK – 1,600 Sq. Ft. – (1) ½ Court Basketball  
         
 Price - $6,400.00 
 
 
CHARLES GUY PARK – 4,500 Sq. Ft. – (1) ½ Court Basketball and (1) Pickleball Court 
         Installation of 1 set of Pickleball posts and net 
 
 Price - $13,350.00 
 
 
HOEL PARK – 12,582 Sq. Ft. – (1) Tennis Court and (4) Pickleball Courts 
    Installation of 4 sets of Pickleball posts and nets 
 
 Price - $28,900.00 



 
  

 

 
Tel: 806-356-6822 
Fax: 806-331-6822 

advantagecourts@yahoo.com 
NM Licence #90367 

P O Box 8518, Amarillo, TX 79114 

 
 
WHISPERWOODS PARK – 14,040 Sq. Ft. – (1) Tennis Court and (4) Pickleball Courts 
    Installation of 4 sets of Pickleball posts and nets 
 
 Price - $29,900.00 
 
 
HIGINBOTHAM PARK – 1,800 Sq. Ft. – (1) Pickleball Court and (1) ½ Court Basketball 
         Installation of 1 set of Pickleball posts and net 
 
 Price - $11,350.00 
 
 
 
   
Color coating guaranteed for one year from completion date. Crack free surface cannot be guaranteed 
where structural cracks exist. 
 
Sales tax is not included in the above quotation.  Quotation is valid for 30 days.  
 
AGREED TO AND ACCEPTED THIS ____________ DAY OF ____________________ 2024 
 
 
BY:_____________________________ PRINT NAME:______________________________ 
 
Sincerely 
 
Chris Gross 
 
 



Capital Project Number:
Capital Project Name:

Budget
Encumbered/Expended

Pcards 798$                      
Advantage Courts 23,150                   

Agenda Items August 13, 2024
Advantage Courts 132,700                 

Encumbered/Expended to Date 156,648                 

Estimated Costs for Remaining Appropriation
Amenity Replacement Program 32,528                   

Remaining Appropriation 32,528                   

Total Appropriation To Date 189,176$               

92832
Amenity Replacement Program

City of Lubbock, TX

August 13, 2024

Capital Project 
Project Cost Detail



Project Scope

This project encompasses the  replacement and refurbishment of current park amenit ies,  including sports courts,  benches,
picnic tables,  grills,  drinking fountains,  shelters,  dog stat ions,  and trash cans.  Addit ionally,  the  project will introduce a
playground replacement program with Butler Park and Stevens Park up for replacement in FY 24-25 and Dupree Park and
Wheelock Park up for replacement in FY 25-26.  Staff will leverage Cartegraph as an asset management database to
conduct regular condit ion evaluations,  guiding the  annual replacement schedule .  

Project Justi�cation

Numerous City parks require updated amenities to enhance the overall park experience for visitors.
Previously, playground replacement was funded through a separate CIP; however, it will now be
integrated with the comprehensive amenity replacement program to streamline operations and
optimize resource allocation.

Project Highlights Project History

Council Priorities Addressed:
This project addresses Council Priorities: Public
Safety, Community Improvement and
Redevelopment as it will provide the funds needed
to replace park amenities to ensure each park is
safe, updated and ultimately up to standards.
With new and improved playgrounds and
amenities, parks will become more inviting to
visitors and the surrounding communities.

FY 2023-24 $100,000 was appropriated by Ord.
2023-O0108
FY 2023-24 $89,176 was appropriated by BCR
2024-14

Project Dates Project Location

Start Date: Oct 1, 2023
Projected Project End Date: TBD

City-wide at various parks

Project Appropriations

Appropriation to Date 2024 - 25 Budget 2025 - 26 Budget 2026 - 27 Budget 2027 - 28 Budget 2028 - 29 Budget 2029 - 30 Budget

Construction $0 $825,000 $725,000 $318,455 $343,932 $371,446 $0

Acquisition $189,176 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL $189,176 $825,000 $725,000 $318,455 $343,932 $371,446 $0

Project Funding

Funding to Date 2024 - 25 Budget 2025 - 26 Budget 2026 - 27 Budget 2027 - 28 Budget 2028 - 29 Budget 2029 - 30 Budget

General Fund Cash $189,176 $825,000 $725,000 $318,455 $343,932 $371,446 $0

TOTAL $189,176 $825,000 $725,000 $318,455 $343,932 $371,446 $0

Operating Budget Impacts

Description 2024-25 2025-26 2026-27 2027-28 2028-29 2029-30 Total

No Impact Anticipated $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

CIP 92832 Amenity Replacement ProgramCIP 92832 Amenity Replacement Program
Replacement InfrastructureReplacement Infrastructure

Project Manager: Kalee Robinson - Parks and RecreationProject Manager: Kalee Robinson - Parks and Recreation



 AI# 12710 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 6. 26. 
08/13/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Information Technology: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute
Purchase Order 33001881, with Dell Marketing LP, for the purchase of computers for the scheduled
computer replacement program.

Item Summary
This purchase from Dell Marketing, LP consists of: 

• 175 Dell OptiPlex desktop computers;
• 20 Latitude Laptops;
• 10 Mobile Precision Laptops;
• 10 Precision Workstations; and
• 40 Latitude 7230 Rugged Extreme Tablets.

This purchase is with a 4-year warranty for desktops and a 5-year warranty for laptops and tablets, for
the scheduled replacement of outdated computers. Computers replaced with this purchase have an
average age of 7 years. Information Technology replaces a scheduled portion of the City computers each
year and this purchase will continue the computer replacement program.

The purchase is made available through the State of Texas Department of Information Resources (DIR)
Contract DIR-TSO-3763. Texas Local Government Code Chapter 271.083 authorizes local governments
to acquire hardware, software and other Information Technology products through the DIR program.
Pursuant to Texas Government Code Chapter 791.025, purchases from DIR contracts meet competitive
bid requirements.

Fiscal Impact
Purchase Order 33001881, with Dell Marketing LP for $272,265, is funded in the Adopted FY 2023-24
Operating Budget in the Information Technology Equipment Capital Outlay - Computer Equipment
Account.

Staff/Board Recommending
Brooke Witcher, Assistant City Manager
James C. Brown, Chief Information Officer

Attachments
Dell Marketing Resolution _PO 33001881 
PO 33001881 - Dell Marketing, Replacement Computers 



RESOLUTION 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LUBBOCK: 

THAT the Mayor of the City of Lubbock is hereby authorized and directed to execute 
for and on behalf of the City of Lubbock, Purchase Order No. 33001881, for Dell 
OptiPlex Desktop Computers as per DIR-TSO-3763, by and between the City of Lubbock 
and Dell Marketing, LP, and related documents. Said Purchase Order is attached 
hereto and incorporated in this resolution as if fully set forth herein and shall be included in 
the minutes of the City Council. 

Passed by the City Council on _____________ _ 

MARK W. MCBRAYER, MAYOR 

ATTEST: 

Courtney Paz, City Secretary 

APPROVED AS TO CONTENT: 

� �
Brool<e Witcher, Assistant City Manager 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

ccdocs II/RES.Dell Marketing, LP-PurchaseOrd 3300181 

August 6, 2024 



 

TO: SHIP TO: 

 INVOICE TO: CITY OF LUBBOCK  
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 
P.O. BOX 2000 
LUBBOCK, TX 79457 BY: 

Marta Alvarez, Director of Purchasing & Contract Management 

1Page    -
Date    - 7/30/2024P U R C H A S E   O R D E R
Order Number 33001881 OP000
Branch/Plant         3410

DELL MARKETING LP CITY OF LUBBOCK
RR 8 BOX 8706 ONE DELL WAY INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY

1314 AVENUE K - BASEMENTROUND ROCK TX 78682
LUBBOCK TX 79401

Ordered .Freight7/30/2024
Taken ByRequested 9/13/2024 YBUSBY

Q#3000179257738.1/DIR-TSO-3763Delivery Per J Zhine / Req # 62045

Description/Supplier Item Ordered Unit Cost UM Extension Request Date
OptiPlex SFF PC i5 16G 512GB 175.000 739.0000 EA 129,325.00 9/13/2024

SI# CF3001           #210-BKWK

Dell Ltd Warr, ConnectConfig 175.000 EA 9/13/2024

#803-8583            #365-0257

Latitude Laptop i5 16GB 512GB 20.000 1,223.0000 EA 24,460.00 9/13/2024

SI# CF3001        #210-BLYZ

Dell Ltd Warr, ConnectConfig 20.000 EA 9/13/2024

#997-8317           #365-0257

Mobile Precision 3591 Intel U7 10.000 2,198.0000 EA 21,980.00 9/13/2024

32GB 512GB AT&T     #210-BGBM

Dell Ltd Warr, ADS 5Y 10.000 EA 9/13/2024

#997-1129          #980-5744

Precision 3680 Twr i7 32G 512G 10.000 1,670.0000 EA 16,700.00 9/13/2024

SI# CF3001        #210-BLLP

Dell Ltd Warr, ConnectConfig 10.000 EA 9/13/2024

#997-2808           #365-0257

If you have any questions contact Jay Zhine: JZhine@mylubbock.us  Phone 806-775-2366



 

TO: SHIP TO: 

 INVOICE TO: CITY OF LUBBOCK  
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 
P.O. BOX 2000 
LUBBOCK, TX 79457 BY: 

Marta Alvarez, Director of Purchasing & Contract Management 

2Page    -
Date    - 7/30/2024P U R C H A S E   O R D E R
Order Number 33001881 OP000
Branch/Plant         3410

DELL MARKETING LP CITY OF LUBBOCK
RR 8 BOX 8706 ONE DELL WAY INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY

1314 AVENUE K - BASEMENTROUND ROCK TX 78682
LUBBOCK TX 79401

Ordered .Freight7/30/2024
Taken ByRequested 9/13/2024 YBUSBY

Q#3000179257738.1/DIR-TSO-3763Delivery Per J Zhine / Req # 62045

Description/Supplier Item Ordered Unit Cost UM Extension Request Date
Latitude 7230 Rugged ExtTablet 40.000 1,995.0000 EA 79,800.00 9/13/2024

SI# CF3001          #210-BFQT

Dell Ltd Warr, ConnectConfig 40.000 EA 9/13/2024

#997-7015            #365-0257
Total Order

NET 30 DAYSTerms 272,265.00

This purchase order encumbers funds in the amount of $272,265.00 awarded to Dell Marketing LP of Round Rock, 

TX, on _________________, 2024. The following is incorporated into and made part of this purchase order by reference: 

Quote dated July 22, 2024, from Dell Marketing LP of Round Rock, TX, and DIR-TSO Contract 3763.

Resolution #____________________ 

CITY OF LUBBOCK: 

_______________________________________ 

Mark McBrayer, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

______________________________________

Courtney Paz, City Secretary



  REV. 3/2022     

    Rev. 3/2022 
 

Seller and Buyer agree as 
follows: 

PURCHASE ORDER                                                                                        
TERMS AND CONDITIONS  

STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS  

ACCEPTANCE OF THIS PURCHASE ORDER:  

CONTRACTOR ACKNOWLEDGES, by supplying any Goods or Services that the Contractor has read, fully 

understands, and will be in full compliance with all terms and conditions and the descriptive material contained herein 

and any additional associated documents and Amendments.  The City disclaims any terms and conditions provided by 

the Contractor unless agreed upon in writing by the parties.  In the event of conflict between the City’s terms and 

conditions and any terms and conditions provided by the Contractor, the terms and conditions provided herein shall 

prevail.  The terms and conditions provided herein are the final terms agreed upon by the parties, and any prior 

conflicting terms shall be of no force or effect. 

 

1. SELLER TO PACKAGE GOODS.   Seller will package goods in accordance with good commercial practice.   

Each shipping container shall be clearly and permanently marked as follows  (a)  Seller’s name and address, (b) 

Consignee’s name, address and purchase order or purchase release number and the supply agreement number if 

applicable, (c) Container number and total number of containers, e.g. box 1 of 4 boxes, and (d) the number of the 

container bearing the packing slip. Seller shall bear cost of packaging unless otherwise provided. Goods shall be 

suitably packed to secure lowest transportation costs and to conform with requirements of common carriers and any 

applicable specifications.  Buyer’s count or weight shall be final and conclusive on shipments not accompanied by 

packing lists. 

2. SHIPMENT UNDER RESERVATION PROHIBITED.  Seller is not authorized to ship the goods under 

reservation and no tender of a bill of lading will operate as a tender of goods. 

3. TITLE AND RISK OF LOSS.  The title and risk of loss of the goods shall not pass to Buyer until Buyer actually 

receives and takes possession of the goods at the point or points of delivery. 

4. NO REPLACEMENT OF DEFECTIVE TENDER.  Every tender of delivery of goods must fully comply with all 

provisions of this contract as to time of delivery, quality and the like. If a tender is made which does not fully conform, 

this shall constitute a breach and Seller shall not have the right to substitute a conforming tender, provided, where the 

time for performance has not yet expired, the Seller may reasonably notify Buyer of his intention to cure and may 

then make a conforming tender within the contract time but not afterward. 

5. INVOICES & PAYMENTS. a. S e l l e r  shall submit separate invoices, in duplicate, one each purchase order or 

purchase release after each delivery.  Invoices shall indicate the purchase order or purchase release number and 

the supply agreement number if applicable.  Invoices shall be itemized and transportation charges, if any, shall be 

listed separately.  A copy of the bill of lading, and the freight waybill when applicable, should be attached to the 

invoice. Mail To: Accounts Payable, City of Lubbock, P. O. Box 2000, Lubbock, Texas 79457.  Payment shall not 

be due until the above instruments are submitted after delivery. 

6. GRATUITIES.  The Buyer may, by written notice to the Seller, cancel this contract without liability to Seller if 

it is determined by Buyer that gratuities, in the form of entertainment, gifts or otherwise, were offered or given by the 

Seller, or any agent or representative of the Seller, to any officer or employee of the City of Lubbock with a view to 

securing a contract or securing favorable treatment with respect to the awarding or amending, or the making of any 

determinations with respect to the performing of such a contract.  In the event this contract is canceled by Buyer 

pursuant to this provision, Buyer shall be entitled, in addition to any other rights and remedies, to recover or withhold 

the amount of the cost incurred by Seller in providing such gratuities. 

7. SPECIAL TOOLS & TEST EQUIPMENT.  If the price stated on the face hereof includes the cost of any special 

tooling or special test equipment fabricated or required by Seller for the purpose of filling this order, such special 

tooling equipment and any process sheets related thereto shall become the property of the Buyer and to the extent 

feasible shall be identified by the Seller as such. 

8. WARRANTY-PRICE. a. The price to be paid by the Buyer shall be that contained in Seller’s bid which 

Seller warrants to be no higher than Seller’s current process on orders by others for products of the kind and 

specification covered by this agreement for similar quantities under similar of like conditions and methods of purchase.  

In the event Seller breaches this warranty, the prices of the  items  shall  be  reduced  to  the  Seller’s  current  prices  

on  orders  by others, or  in  the alternative.  Buyer may cancel this contract without liability to Seller for breach 

or Seller’s actual expense. b. The Seller warrants that no person or selling agency has been employed or retained to 

solicit or secure this contract upon an agreement or understanding for commission, percentage, brokerage, or contingent 

fee excepting bona fide employees of bona fide established commercial or selling agencies maintained by the Seller for 

the purpose of securing business.  For breach of viciation of this warranty the Buyer shall have the right in addition to 

any other right of rights to cancel this contract without liability and to deduct from the contract price, or otherwise 

recover without liability and to deduct from the contract price, or otherwise recover the full amount of such commission, 

percentage, brokerage or contingent fee. 

9. WARRANTY-PRODUCT.  Seller shall not limit or exclude any implied warranties and any attempt to do so shall 

render this contract voidable at the option of the Buyer.  Seller warrants that the goods furnished will conform to the 

specification, drawings, and descriptions listed in the bid invitation, and to the sample(s) furnished by the Seller, if any. 

In the event of a conflict or between the specifications, drawings, and descriptions, the specifications shall govern. 

Notwithstanding any provisions contained in the contractual agreement, the Seller represents and warrants fault-free 

performance and fault-free result in the processing date and date related data (including, but not limited to calculating, 

comparing and sequencing) of all hardware, software and firmware products delivered and services provided under 

this Contract, individually or in combination, as the case may be from the effective date of this Contract. The 

obligations contained herein apply to products and services provided by the Seller, its sub- Seller or any third party 

involved in the creation or development of the products and services to be delivered to the City of Lubbock under this 

Contract.  Failure to comply with any of the obligations contained herein, may result in the City of Lubbock 

availing itself of any of its rights under the law and under this Contract including, but not limited to, its right pertaining 

to termination or default. The warranties contained herein are separate and discrete from any other warranties 

specified in this Contract, and are not subject to any disclaimer of warranty, implied or expressed, or limitation of the 

Seller’s liability which may be specified in this Contract, its appendices, its schedules, its annexes or any document 

incorporated in this Contract by reference. 

10. SAFETY WARRANTY.  Seller warrants that the product sold to the Buyer shall conform to the standards 

promulgated by the U. S. Department of Labor under the Occupational Safety and Health Act of 1970.  In the event the 

product does not conform to OSHA standards, Buyer may return the product for correction or replacement at the 

Seller’s expense.  In the event Seller fails to make the appropriate correction within a reasonable time, correction 

made by Buyer will be at the Seller’s expense. 

11. NO WARRANTY BY BUYER AGAINST INFRINGEMENTS.  As part of this contract for sale Seller agrees 

to ascertain whether goods manufactured in accordance with the specifications attached to this agreement will give 

rise to the rightful claim of any third person by way of infringement of the like.  Buyer makes no warranty that the 

production of goods according to the specification will not give rise to such a claim, and in no event shall Buyer be 

liable to Seller for indemnification in the event that Seller is sued on the grounds of infringement of the like.  If Seller 

is of the opinion that an infringement or the like will result, he will notify the Buyer to this effect in writing within two 

weeks after the signing of this agreement.    If  Buyer  does  not  receive  notice  and  is  subsequently  held  liable  for  

the infringement or the like, Seller will save Buyer harmless.  If Seller in good faith ascertains the production of the 

goods in accordance with the specifications will result in infringement or the like, the contract shall be null and void. 

12. NON APPROPRIATION. All funds for payment by the City under this contract are subject to the availability of an 

annual appropriation for this purpose by the City.  In the event of nonappropriation of funds by the City Council of the 

City of Lubbock for the goods or services provided under the contract, the City will terminate the contract, without 

termination charge or other liability, on the last day of the then-current fiscal year or when the appropriation made for 

the then-current year for the goods or services covered by this contract is spent, whichever event occurs first.  If at any 

time funds are not appropriated for the continuance of this contract, cancellation shall be accepted by the Seller on 

thirty (30) days prior written notice, but failure to give such notice shall be of no effect and the City shall not be 

obligated under this contract beyond the date of termination. 

13. RIGHT OF INSPECTION.  Buyer shall have the right to inspect the goods at delivery before accepting them. 

14. CANCELLATION.  Buyer shall have the right to cancel for default all or any part of the undelivered portion of 

this order if Seller breaches any of the terms hereof including warranties of Seller or if the Seller becomes insolvent or 

commits acts of bankruptcy.  Such right of cancellation is in addition to and not in lieu of any other remedies which 

Buyer may have in law or equity. 

15. TERMINATION. The performance of work under this order may be terminated in whole, or in part by the Buyer 

in accordance with this provision.  Termination of work hereunder shall be effected by the delivery of the Seller of 

a “Notice of Termination” specifying the extent to which performance of work under the order is terminated and the 

date upon which such termination becomes effective. Such right or termination is in addition to and not in lieu of the 

rights of Buyer set forth in Clause 14, herein. 

16. FORCE MAJEURE.    Neither party shall be held responsible for losses, resulting if the fulfillment of any 

terms of provisions of this contract is delayed or prevented by any cause not within the control of the party whose 

performance is interfered with, and which by the exercise of reasonable diligence said party is unable to prevent. 

17. ASSIGNMENT-DELEGATION.  No right or interest in this contract shall be assigned or delegation of any 

obligation made by Seller without the written permission of the Buyer.  Any attempted assignment or delegation by 

Seller shall be wholly void and totally ineffective for all purpose unless made in conformity with this paragraph. 

18. WAIVER. No claim or right arising out of a breach of this contract can be discharged in whole or in part by a 

waiver or renunciation of the claim or right unless the waiver or renunciation is supported by consideration and is in 

writing signed by the aggrieved party. 

19. INTERPRETATION-PAROLE EVIDENCE. This writing, plus any specifications for bids and performance  

provided  by  Buyer  in  its  advertisement for  bids,  and  any  other  documents provided by Seller as part of his bid, 

is intended by the parties as a final expression of their agreement and intended also as a complete and exclusive 

statement of the terms of their agreement.   Whenever a term defined by the Uniform Commercial Code is used in this 

agreement, the definition contained in the Code is to control. 

20. APPLICABLE LAW.  This agreement shall be governed by the Uniform Commercial Code. Wherever the term 

“Uniform Commercial Code” is used, it shall be construed as meaning the Uniform Commercial Code as adopted in 

the State of Texas as effective and in force on the date of this agreement. 

21. RIGHT TO ASSURANCE.  Whenever one party to this contract in good faith has reason to question the other 

party’s intent to perform he may demand that the other party give written assurance of his intent to perform.  In the 

event that a demand is made and no assurance is given within five (5) days, the demanding party may treat this 

failure as an anticipatory repudiation of the contract. 

22. INDEMNIFICATION.  Seller shall indemnify, keep and save harmless the Buyer, its agents, officials and 

employees, against all injuries, deaths, loss, damages, claims, patent claims, suits, liabilities, judgments, costs and 

expenses, which may in anywise accrue against the Buyer in consequence of the granting of this Contract or which 

may anywise result therefrom, whether or not it shall be alleged or determined that the act was caused through 

negligence or omission of the Seller or its employees, or of the subSeller or assignee or its employees, if any, and the 

Seller shall, at his own expense, appear, defend and pay all charges of attorneys and all costs and other expenses 

arising therefrom of incurred in connection therewith, and, if any judgment shall be rendered against the Buyer in any 

such action, the Seller shall, at its own expenses, satisfy and discharge the same Seller expressly understands and 

agrees that any bond required by this contract, or otherwise provided by Seller, shall in no way limit the 

responsibility to indemnify, keep and save harmless and defend the Buyer as herein provided. 

23. TIME.   It is hereby expressly agreed and understood that time is of the essence for the performance of this 

contract, and failure by contract to meet the time specifications of this agreement will cause Seller to be in default 

of this agreement. 

24. MBE.  The City of Lubbock hereby notifies all bidders that in regard to any contract entered into pursuant to 

this request, minority and women business enterprises will be afforded equal opportunities to submit bids in response 

to this invitation and will not be discriminated against on the grounds of race, color, sex or natural origin in 

consideration for an award. 

25. NON-ARBITRATION. The City reserves the right to exercise any right or remedy to it by law, contract, equity, or 

otherwise, including without limitation, the right to seek any and all forms of relief in a court of competent 

jurisdiction. Further, the City shall not be subject to any arbitration process prior to exercising its unrestricted 

right to seek judicial remedy. The remedies set forth herein are cumulative and not exclusive, and may be exercised 

concurrently. To the extent of any conflict between this provision and another provision in, or related to, this document, 

this provision shall control. 

26. RIGHT TO AUDIT. At any time during the term of the contract, or thereafter, the City, or a duly authorized 

audit representative of the City or the State of Texas, at its expense and at reasonable times, reserves the right to 

audit Contractor's records and books relevant to all services provided to the City under this Contract. In the event such 

an audit by the City reveals any errors or overpayments by the City, Contractor shall refund the City the full amount 

of such overpayments within thirty (30) days of such audit findings, or the City, at its option, reserves the right to 

deduct such amounts owing the City from any payments due Contractor. 

27. The Contractor shall not assign or sublet the contract, or any portion of the contract, without written consent from 

the Director of Purchasing and Contract Management. 

28. Contracts with Companies Engaged in Business with Iran, Sudan, or Foreign Terrorist Organization Prohibited.  

Pursuant to Section 2252.152 of the Texas Government Code, prohibits the City from entering into a contract with a 

vendor that is identified by The Comptroller as a company known to have contracts with or provide supplies or service 

with Iran, Sudan or a foreign terrorist organization 

29. Texas Government Code. Section 2252.908 requires a business entity entering into certain contracts with a 

governmental entity or state agency to file with the governmental entity or state agency a disclosure of interested parties 

at the time the business entity submits the signed contract to the governmental entity or state agency.  Instructions for 

completing Form 1295 are available at: http://www.ci.lubbock.tx.us/departmental-

websites/departments/purchasing/vendor-information 

30. No Boycott of Israel.  Pursuant to Section 2271.002 of the Texas Government Code, Respondent certifies that 

either (i) it meets an exemption criteria under Section 2271.002; or (ii) it does not boycott Israel and will not boycott 

Israel during the term of the contract resulting from this solicitation. Respondent shall state any facts that make it 

exempt from the boycott certification in its Response.  

31. No Boycott of Energy Companies.  Pursuant to Section 2274 of the Texas Government Code, Respondent 

certifies that either (i) it meets an exemption criteria under Section 2274.002; or (ii) it does not boycott Energy 

Companies and will not boycott Energy Companies during the term of the contract resulting from this solicitation. 

Respondent shall state any facts that make it exempt from the boycott certification in its Response. 

32. No Boycott of a Firearm Entity or Firearm Trade Association.  Pursuant to Section 2274 of the Texas 

Government Code, Respondent certifies that either (i) it meets an exemption criteria under Section 2274.002; or (ii) it 

does not boycott a Firearm Entity or Firearm Trade Association and will not boycott a Firearm Entity or Firearm 

Trade Association during the term of the contract resulting from this solicitation. Respondent shall state any facts that 

make it exempt from the boycott certification in its Response. 

33.  Contracts with Companies Engaged in Business with Iran, Sudan, or Foreign Terrorist Organization Prohibited.  

Pursuant to Section 2252.152 of the Texas Government Code, prohibits the City from entering into a contract with a 

vendor that is identified by The Comptroller as a company known to have contracts with or provide supplies or 

service with Iran, Sudan or a foreign terrorist organization 

34. TEXAS PUBLIC INFORMATION ACT. The requirements of Subchapter J, Chapter 552, Government Code, 

may apply to this contract and the contractor or vendor agrees that the contract can be terminated if the contractor or 

vendor knowingly or intentionally fails to comply with a requirement of that subchapter. 

35. Pursuant to Section 552.301(c) of the Texas Government Code, the City of Lubbock has designated the following 

email address for which public information requests may be made by an emailed request: orr@mylubbock.us. Please 

send this request to this email address for it to be processed

http://www.ci.lubbock.tx.us/departmental-websites/departments/purchasing/vendor-information
http://www.ci.lubbock.tx.us/departmental-websites/departments/purchasing/vendor-information
mailto:orr@mylubbock.us


�����������	
��������������
����	����������	
��������	����������������
���������������������������������
���������	��������������������������������	��
��� !��"#$%&#'!�"()!* "!! +�,-.�/012234(56 ('! %&#'!�"#7 1222389:;881<73=#'(5 >:8:?:@;722��
������A BCDEBFG�������H� I����JJK�JLJEM��	��
�� N����LOK�JLJE���������P��� Q���
�R������������S�������	���T�
�����
�UQVRSTW������������� �LLLLLLLLXDEB��
������N���������A QV�RSTYQZHYOCXOR����SR BECDLEFD
Z���
�T�� ����[���\���� UDLLW�EFXYOOFFK�XBDLOOXM��	� ���][���̂ R�������_6556̀a�=# N��HbPQZ�\N�Nc[M��SQ��Hd�[bccH�e�\H�cHV�JLLL�[bccH�eK�QV�CGEFCYLLLBf!++(a!�g�#)�h#&��,(5!+�i!j\���
���
������H���������������
������������������������	����������������������������������	����������������������R����
���
������	�������������k��
�	��
��Q������������
����	����	���R�����T�����
K����[���l�# &m' ǹ 6'�l�6m! %&(̀'6'h ,&o'#'(5,-.�/01223�l�!m6+6#̀�1@<2�=#$!� >3?@82722 32 >3@?822722,-.�/01223�p!55�q('6'& !�8:12�i&aa! �rs'�!)!�=(o5!' >3?99;722 t2 >89?<22722,-.�/01223��j'6l5!s�,)(55�0#�)�0(m'#��u82:2v >819722 38; >3:9?1:;722f#o65!�l�!m6+6#̀�1;93 >:?39<722 32 >:3?9<2722,-.�/01223�p!55�q('6'& !�;;;2 >3?::1722 :2 >:t?t@2722

\����B� R����w�����	���[\��b�Z�������R����w�����	���[\��	
������������H���R����x�K�w�	��Z����DBJGK�T�����T���K�QV�CDXDJ�



����������	
��
���������������������������������������
���������������� ���������  � �  ���������  � �  � �  ���������  !"#$%&'�"(%$%)*�+&,�-#�&.&%'&-'#�/0(�12&'%/%#3�$2450+#(46�7'#&4#�$0)5&$5�,02(�89!�!&'#4�:#"(#4#)5&5%.#�/0(�3#5&%'46

7&*#�;� 8#''�<&(=#5%)*�>76�?6!6�0)',6�8#''�<&(=#5%)*�>76�%4�'0$&5#3�&5�@)#�8#''�A&,B�<&%'�!50"�CD;EB�:02)3�:0$=B�FG�HCIC;�



 AI# 12734 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 6. 27. 
08/13/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Information Technology: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute
Purchase Order 33001880, with Dell Marketing LP, for the purchase of two Dell PowerStore 1200T data
storage appliances, to replace existing data storage units, and to provide for additional data storage
capacity.

Item Summary
The purchase of the Dell PowerStore data storage appliances, with 5-year warranty and support, will
replace existing storage units purchased in 2016 that have reached the end of service life. The appliances
will increase storage capacity and function as high availability devices to improve overall network
storage redundancy and resiliency. 

The purchase of the Dell PowerStore data storage appliances is made available through the State of
Texas Department of Information Resources (DIR) Contract DIR-TSO-3763. Texas Local Government
Code Chapter 271.083 authorizes local governments to acquire hardware, software, and other
Information Technology products through the DIR program. Pursuant to the Texas Government Code.
Chapter 791.025, purchases from DIR contracts meet competitive bid requirements.

Fiscal Impact
Purchase Order 33001880 with Dell Marketing LP, for $596,000.02, for the Dell PowerStore data
storage appliances, warranty, and support, is being made from the FY2023-24 Information Technology
Operating Budget and Capital Improvement Project 92754 - Cybersecurity Infrastructure (American
Rescue Plan Act Funds).

Staff/Board Recommending
Brooke Witcher, Assistant City Manager
James C. Brown, Chief Information Officer

Attachments
Dell Marketing Resolution _PO 33001880 
PO Dell Marketing - Storage 
Budget Detail 
CIP Detail 





 

TO: SHIP TO: 

 INVOICE TO: CITY OF LUBBOCK  
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 
P.O. BOX 2000 
LUBBOCK, TX 79457 BY: 

Marta Alvarez, Director of Purchasing & Contract Management 

P U R C H A S E   O R D E R

Page    -                                            1
Date    - 7/29/2024 
Order Number 33001880 000 OP 
Branch/Plant        3410

DELL MARKETING LP CITY OF LUBBOCK
RR 8 BOX 8706 ONE DELL WAY INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY

1314 AVENUE K - BASEMENTROUND ROCK TX 78682
LUBBOCK TX 79401

Ordered .Freight7/29/2024
Taken ByRequested 9/25/2024 K MORGAN

Q#3000178582149.1/DIR-TSO-3763Delivery Per J Zhine / Req # 62073

Description/Supplier Item Ordered Unit Cost UM Extension Request Date
Total Order

Dell PowerStore 1200T 384GB $596,000.02

This purchase order encumbers funds in the amount of $596,000.02 awarded to Dell Marketing, LP of Round Rock, 
TX, on _________________, 2024. The following is incorporated into and made part of this purchase order by reference: 
Quote dated July 25, 2024, from Dell Marketing, LP of Round Rock, TX, and DIR-TSO-3736.

Resolution #____________________ 

CITY OF LUBBOCK: 

______________________________________

Mark McBrayer, Mayor

ATTEST: 

______________________________________

Courtney Paz, City Secretary

If you have any questions about this order, please contact Jay Zhine at 806-775-2366 or via email at JZhine@mylubbock.us

INSURANCE REQUIRED:

Commercial General Liability: 

$1M occurrence / $2M aggregate (can be combined with an 

Excess Liability to meet requirement). CGL is required in ALL 

contracts. It is perhaps the most important of all 

insurance policies in a contractual relationship. It insures the 

Contractor has broad liability coverage for contractual activities 

and for completed operations.  

Commercial General Liability to include Products – 

Completion/OP, Personal and Advertising Injury, Contractual 

Liability, Fire Damage (any one fire), and Medical Expenses 

(any one person). 

Automotive Liability: 

$1M occurrence is needed. 

Workers Compensation and Employer Liability: 

Statutory. If the vendor is an independent contractor with no 

employees and are exempt from providing Workers' 

Compensation coverage, they must sign a waiver (obtained 

from COL Purchasing) and include a copy of their driver's 

license. Employer Liability ($1M) is required with 

Workers Compensation. 

Additional Policies: N/A 

*The City of Lubbock (including its officials, employees and volunteers) shall be afforded additional insured status on a primary

and non-contributory basis on all liability policies except professional liabilities and workers' comp. *Waivers of Subrogation are

required for CGL, AL, and WC. *To Include Products of Completed Operations endorsement. *Carrier will provide a 30-day

written notice of cancellation, 10-day written notice for non-payment. *Carriers must meet an A.M. Best rating of A- or better.

*Subcontractors must carry same limits as listed above. 

Cyber Liability : $1M of coverage is needed. 

Technoloy Errors and Omissions: $1M of coverage is 
needed. 

170423
Rectangle



City of Lubbock
Capital Project

Project Cost Detail
August 13, 2024

Capital Project Number: 92754
Capital Project Name: Cyber Security Infrastructure

Capital Project Number: 3410
Capital Project Name: Information Technology

Budget
Encumbered/Expended 92754 3410 Total
  Sciens LLC  $         85,620  $            85,620
  Dell Marketing LP           886,068              886,068
  Computex, Inc.             46,206                46,206
  Tom's Tree Place             64,849                64,849
  Johnston Technical Services             54,160                54,160
  ThinkGard           265,914              265,914
  Newspaper Ads                  548                     548

SHI Gov Solutions - DarkTrace             52,478                52,478
Information Technology        9,540,184           9,540,184
SHI Gov Solutions - DarkTrace             52,478                52,478

Agenda Item  August 13, 2024
 Dell Marketing, LP           495,872           100,128              596,000

Encumbered/Expended To Date        2,004,193        9,640,312         11,644,506

Estimated Cost for Remaining Appropriation
Cyber Security Infrastructure           245,807              245,807
Information Technology        2,508,851           2,508,851

Remaining Appropriation           245,807        2,508,851           2,754,657

Total Appropriation  $    2,250,000      12,149,163  $     14,399,163



Project Scope

Many components that control the  crit ical infrastructures are  at  or near end of service  life .  This project will replace those
components,  and add addit ional functionality  to enhance our overall cyber security  capabilit ies.

Project Justi�cation

 
Enhance cyber security for critical infrastructures.

Project Highlights Project History

Council Priorities Addressed: FY 2021-22 $2,240,500 was appropriated by
Ord. 2022-O0001
FY 2023-24 $9,500 was appropriated by Ord.
2024-O0037

Project Dates Project Location

Internal Project

Project Appropriations

Appropriation to Date 2024 - 25 Budget 2025 - 26 Budget 2026 - 27 Budget 2027 - 28 Budget 2028 - 29 Budget 2029 - 30 Budget

Acquisition $2,250,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL $2,250,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Project Funding

Funding to Date 2024 - 25 Budget 2025 - 26 Budget 2026 - 27 Budget 2027 - 28 Budget 2028 - 29 Budget 2029 - 30 Budget

ARPA Funding $2,250,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL $2,250,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Operating Budget Impacts

Description 2024-25 2025-26 2026-27 2027-28 2028-29 2029-30 Total

No Impact Anticipated $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Powered by OpenGov

CIP 92754CIP 92754 Cyber Security Infrastructure Cyber Security Infrastructure
Infrastructure ImprovementsInfrastructure Improvements

Project Manager: James Brown - Information TechnologyProject Manager: James Brown - Information Technology

https://opengov.com/


 AI# 12732 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 6. 28. 
08/13/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Police: Consider a resolution authorizing the Chief of Police for the City of Lubbock, to
execute a Memorandum of Understanding, and all related documents, by and between the United States
Secret Service and the City of Lubbock, on behalf of the Lubbock Police Department, regarding
reimbursement of certain overtime costs and other expenses pursuant to 31 U.S.C. § 9705.

Item Summary
This Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) establishes the procedures and responsibilities of both the
Lubbock Police Department and the United States Secret Service, for the reimbursement of certain
overtime costs and other expenses pursuant to 31 U.S.C. § 9705.
 
This MOU is established pursuant to provisions of the Treasury Forfeiture Fund Act of 1992, 31 U.S.C.
§ 9705, as amended.  This act established the Department of the Treasury Forfeiture Fund and
authorized the payment of certain overtime expenditures, travel, fuel, training, equipment and other
similar costs of State and Local law enforcement officers, that are involved in joint operations, with the
Department of the Treasury law enforcement organization, as prescribed in 31 U.S.C. § 9705
(a)(1)(I)(hereinafter "overtime costs and other expenses").

Fiscal Impact
The Lubbock Police Department will remain responsible for establishing the salary and benefits,
including overtime, of the officer(s) assigned to the Cyber Fraud Task Force, (CFTF) and making all
payments due to them.  The maximum reimbursement entitlement for overtime costs to any one law
enforcement official cannot exceed $15,000 during the fiscal year.

Staff/Board Recommending
Seth Herman, Chief of Police

Attachments
Resolution - LPD & USSS reimbursement 
MOU with USSS-reimbursement 











 AI# 12708 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 6. 29. 
08/13/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Lubbock Power & Light: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute the
Eighth Amendment to the Professional Services Agreement dated May 29, 2018, by and between the
City of Lubbock, acting by and through Lubbock Power & Light, and TMG Utility Advisory Services,
Inc., expanding the scope of services to include work required to integrate with Smart Meter Texas.

Item Summary
As part of Lubbock Power & Light's (LP&L) transition to the retail market, Transmission/Distribution
Service Providers (TDSPs) are required to send certain electric meter data to Smart Meter Texas (SMT).
SMT is an interoperable information system that stores electric meter usage data. This information will
allow customers, Retail Electric Providers (REPs), and authorized market participants to access real time
and/or near real time meter usage data.

LP&L must develop custom processes to support the transfer of the following data from Cloud
Customer Service (CCS) to SMT: Premise Attributes; Meter Attributes; Retailer of Record (ROR)
Attributes; Monthly Billing Reads; 15-minute Interval and Daily Register Read Data; and On-Demand
Meter Read.

The scope of this document is limited to the development of custom data file extracts, as previously
mentioned in the custom process section, to support the interface with SMT and includes a real-time
interface with SMT to support on-demand meter reads.

Fiscal Impact
Staff recommends the Eighth Amendment to the existing PSA with TMG, to include data integration
work with Smart Meter Texas and to increase the not-to-exceed amount by $103,920 from $6,679,126 to
6,783,046. A total of $1,574,520 is appropriated and available in account number 8688 (Smart Meter
Texas Integration) for this purpose.

Staff/Board Recommending
Harvey Hall, Chief Administrative Officer of Electric Utilities
Electric Utility Board

Attachments
Resolution - CC 
TMG Executed Agreement 
Resolution - EUB 



RESOLUTION 

 
WHEREAS, Lubbock Power & Light is the municipally-owned electric utility of 

the City of Lubbock ("LP&L"); 
 
WHEREAS, by Professional Services Agreement dated effective June 14, 2018 

(the "Original Agreement"), the City of Lubbock, acting by and through Lubbock Power 
& Light, through action by the Electric Utility Board and the City Council, contracted 
with TMG Utility Advisory Services, Inc. ("TMG"), to perform professional consulting 
services related to implementation of various systems for LP&L, as more particularly 
described in the Original Agreement; 

 
WHEREAS, by First Amendment to Professional Services Agreement dated 

August 20, 2019, Resolution EUB 2019-R0054, and City Council Resolution No. 2019-
R0320 ("First Amendment"), LP&L and TMG agreed to amend the Original Agreement 
as regards certain matters relating to the TMG Utility Forum; 

 
WHEREAS, by Second Amendment to Professional Services Agreement dated 

May 19, 2020, Resolution EUB 2020-R0083, and City Council Resolution No. 2020-
R0186 ("Second Amendment"), LP&L and TMG agreed to extend the term and 
increased the not-to-exceed amount of the Original Agreement, as amended; 

 
WHEREAS, by Third Amendment to Professional Services Agreement dated 

January 19, 2021, Resolution EUB 2021-R0008 and City Council Resolution No. 2021-
R0036 ("Third Amendment"), LP&L and TMG agreed to provide for additional support 
hours necessary to complete the Services and increased the not-to-exceed amount 
provided for in the Original Agreement, as amended; 

 
WHEREAS, by Fourth Amendment to Professional Services Agreement dated 

April 20, 2021, Resolution EUB 2021-R00030 and City Council Resolution No. 2021-
R0160 ("Fourth Amendment"), the Original Agreement was amended to provide for 
additional support hours to complete the Services, extend the term, and adjust the 
compensation paid to TMG for such additional work; 

 
WHEREAS, by Fifth Amendment to Professional Services Agreement dated 

December 15, 2021, Resolution EUB 2021-R0094 and City Council Resolution No. 
2022R0026 (“Fifth Amendment”), the Original Agreement was amended to provide for 
additional hours to complete the Services, extend the term and modify the not-to-exceed 
amount provided in the Original Agreement; 

 
WHEREAS, by Sixth Amendment to Professional Services Agreement dated 

August 15, 2023, Resolution EUB 2023-R0057 and City Council Resolution No. 2023-
R0450 (“Sixth Amendment”) the Original Agreement was amended to increase the not-
to-exceed amount, adjust the rates, and to extend the term of the Original Agreement, 
as amended; 



 
WHEREAS, by Seventh Amendment to Professional Services Agreement dated 

February 20, 2024, Resolution EUB 2024-R0004 and City Council Resolution No. 
2024-R0099 (“Seventh Amendment”) the Original Agreement was amended to extend 
the term of the Original Agreement, as amended; 

 
WHEREAS, the Original Agreement, as amended, is in need of further 

amendment to increase the scope of the Services to accommodate Smart Meter Texas, 
to increase the Not-to-Exceed amount, and to provide for additional time for TMG to 
complete the Services; 

 
WHEREAS, LP&L desires to further amend the Original Agreement, as 

amended, to provide for such matters and did so by approving the Eighth Amendment 
to Professional Services Agreement dated July 16, 2024, Resolution EUB 2024-R0022, 
effective upon approval by the City Council of the City of Lubbock; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Lubbock desires to authorize the 
execution of the Eighth Amendment to TMG Advisory Services Professional 
Services Agreement by the Mayor of the City of Lubbock. NOW, THEREFORE: 

 
BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LUBBOCK: 

 
THAT the Mayor of the City of Lubbock BE and is hereby authorized and 

directed to execute for and on behalf of the City of Lubbock, that certain Eighth 
Amendment to Professional Services Agreement, by and between LP&L and TMG 
Utility Advisory Services, Inc., as attached hereto and incorporated herein as though 
set forth fully herein in detail, and any documents related thereto. 

 
Passed by the City Council this _________ day of August, 2024. 

 
 
 
 
 

 

MARK W. MCBRAYER, Mayor 
ATTEST: 

 
 
 
 
 

Courtney Paz, City Secretary 
 
 
 

 



 

















 AI# 12522 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 6. 30. 
08/13/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning (District 1): Consider Ordinance No. 2024-O0079, for Zone Case
3224-A, a request of Lone Star Suds, LLC for Centric Capital Partners, Inc., for a zone change from
Neighborhood Commercial District (NC) and Auto-Urban Commercial District (AC) to Auto-Urban
Commercial District (AC), at 2401 19th Street, located south of 19th Street and west of Avenue X,
Ellwood Place Addition, Block 1, the east 140 feet of Lot 1.

Item Summary
On May 28, 2024, the City Council approved the first reading of the ordinance unanimously.
On July 9, 2024, the second reading of the ordinance was postponed to August 13, 2024.

For detailed information on this request, please refer to the Planning Department Staff Report attached
hereto. As noted in the report, staff recommends approval of this request. The Planning and Zoning
Commission heard this case on May 2, 2024, and recommended approval of the request by a unanimous
vote of 7-0-0.

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager
Kristen Sager, Director of Planning
Planning and Zoning Commission

Attachments
Ordinance 3224-A (c) 
Staff Report 3224-A 
Documentation 3224-A 







Page 1 of 3 
 

 
Planning Department 
City of Lubbock 
 

Staff Report  Zone Case 3224-A 
City Council Meeting   May 28, 2024 

 
Applicant Lone Star Suds, LLC  
 
Property Owner  Centric Capital Partners, Inc.   
 
Council District   1 
 
Recommendations   

• Staff recommends approval of the request. 
 
Prior Board or Council Action 

• December 17, 1925, Ordinance No. 0328: The subject property was annexed into City limits. 
• March 13, 1941, Ordinance No. 0661: The subject property was zoned General Retail District (C-3). 
• April 6, 1955, Ordinance No. 1695: The subject property was rezoned from C-3 to Heavy Commercial 

District (C-4). 
• March 13, 2014, Zone Case 3224, Ordinance No. 2014-O0021: The northern portion of the subject 

property was rezoned from C-4 to Local Retail District (C-2). 
• May 9, 2023, Ordinance No. 2023-O0054 (effective October 1, 2023): The subject property was rezoned 

from C-2 and C-4 to Neighborhood Commercial District (NC) and Auto-Urban Commercial District (AC) 
with the adoption of the Unified Development Code. 

• May 2, 2024, Zone Case 2538-LL: The Planning and Zoning Commission recommended approval of a 
request to rezone the subject properties from NC and AC to AC by a vote of 7-0-0 
 

Notification Summary   
• Notifications Sent: 70 
• Received In Favor: 0 
• Received In Opposition: 2 

 
Site Conditions and History 
The subject property was platted on January 5, 1925 as Ellwood Place Addition, Block 1, Lots 1 through 4 and Lots 
33 through 36.  The subject property was replatted as Ellwood Place Addition, Block 1, Lot 1 on November 21, 
1975.  The subject property occupies the east 140 feet of Lot 1 and is currently developed with a restaurant 
(currently vacant). 
 
Adjacent Property Development  
Properties to the north, east and west are zoned NC, and are developed with various commercial businesses. To 
the south, the properties are zoned High Density Residential District (HDR), and are developed with commercial 
uses. 
 
Zoning Request and Analysis 
Item Summary 
The subject property is addressed as 2401 19th Street, located south of 19th Street and west of Avenue X. The 
applicant requests a zone change from Neighborhood Commercial District (NC) and Auto-Urban Commercial 
District (AC) to Auto-Urban Commercial District (AC).   
 
Current zoning:  Neighborhood Commercial District (NC) and Auto-Urban Commercial District 

(AC) 
 



Page 2 of 3 
 

Requested zoning:  Auto-Urban Commercial District (AC) 
 
Intent Statements 
The purpose of the current Neighborhood Commercial (NC) zoning is “…to provide for small-scale retail and 
moderate density residential uses located away from major intersections (nodes), with building and site design 
standards that are compatible and have adjacent residential uses.” 

The purpose of the current Auto-Urban Commercial (AC) zoning is “… to provide for a broad range of single-use 
and multi-tenant centers that vary in scale, and that provide for retail, service, and office uses typically with 
on-site surface parking. The district may be located along major thoroughfares or at nodes with increased 
intensity.” 

The intent of the proposed Auto-Urban Commercial (AC) zoning is “… to provide for a broad range of single-use 
and multi-tenant centers that vary in scale, and that provide for retail, service, and office uses typically with 
on-site surface parking. The district may be located along major thoroughfares or at nodes with increased 
intensity.” 

Traffic Network/Infrastructure Impacts 

The proposed zone change is along 19th Street and Avenue X. The Master Thoroughfare Plan, 2018, designates 
19th Street as a Minor Arterial and Avenue X as a Local Street. Arterial Streets are continuous routes whose 
function is to serve the high-volume needs of local traffic and regional traffic. Local Streets provide access to 
smaller, destination-oriented areas, such as neighborhoods, subdivisions or local business districts.  
 
Compatibility with Surrounding Property 
The proposed zone change is compatible with the surrounding area and will not change the character of the 
existing development.   
 
Conformance with Comprehensive Plan Principles and Future Land Use Map 
The Future Land Use Map designates this area for “Commercial Uses”. The proposed zone change to AC would be 
in conformance with the Commercial designation. This request would be appropriate next to adjacent lower 
intensity commercial land uses, and fronting along an Arterial Street.    
 
Conformance with Zoning Ordinance 
The proposed zone change is in conformance with the zoning ordinance. The properties are located along an 
arterial, and the requested zoning district is appropriate adjacent to the nearby commercial land uses. 
 
Suitability of Property for Allowed Uses 
The property is suitable for the proposed use and will not need any additional public improvements.   
 
Attachments 
A. Case Information      
B. Thoroughfare Plan Map  
C. Notification Map 
D. Aerial Map 
E.  Zoning Map 
F.  Future Land Use Map 
G.  Photos 
H.  Application and supporting documentation 
I.  Notification Replies 
 
 
Staff Contacts 
Cassie Bermea     Victor Escamilla 
Planner     Planning and Zoning Manager 
Planning Department   Planning Department 



Page 3 of 3 
 

806-775-2096    806-775-3029 
cassiebermea@mylubbock.us    vescamilla@mylubbock.us  

mailto:cassiebermea@mylubbock.us
mailto:vescamilla@mylubbock.us


Attachment A                                                                                                                                                            Page 1 of 1 
 

 

Case Information: Zone Case 3224-A 

 

Allowable Uses:   Auto-Urban Commercial (AC) 

Transportation:  The proposed development has points of access from 19th Street and Avenue X. 

Thoroughfare Existing 
Per Thoroughfare 
Development Plan 

19th Street, 
Minor Arterial  

R.O.W. 92 feet, five-lane, 
undivided, paved 

R.O.W. 100 feet, five-
lane, undivided, paved 

Avenue X, 
Local Street 

R.O.W. 40 feet, two-lane, 
undivided, paved 

R.O.W. 40 feet, two-
lane, undivided, paved 

  

Engineering Comments:  No comments. 

Public Works Comments:  No comments. 

Building Safety Comments:  No comments. 

Fire Marshal Comments:  No comments. 

Draft Planning and Zoning Commission Minutes 

District 1 

 3.2         Zone Case 3224-A: Lone Star Suds, LLC for Centric Capital Partners, Inc., request for a zone change 

from Neighborhood Commercial District (NC) and Auto-Urban Commercial District (AC) to Auto-

Urban Commercial District(AC), at:  

 

 2401 19th Street, located south of 19th Street and west of Avenue X, Ellwood Place 

Addition, Block 1, the east 140 feet of Lot 1.   

 

PLANNER CASSIE BERMEA gave a presentation and answered questions from the Planning and Zoning 

Commission.  

APPLICANT LANDON WILLIS gave comments and answered questions from the Planning and Zoning Commission. 

BRENDA BULLARD, appeared to speak in opposition.  

No one appeared to speak in favor. 
 
In the matter of Zone Case 3224-A, a motion was made by JORDAN WHEATLEY and seconded by TANNER NOBLE 
to approve the zone case as presented. The commission voted 7 (in favor) to 0 (in opposition) to approve the 
motion. The case will be forwarded to City Council for consideration. 
 

https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-viewer.aspx?secid=580&keywords=a-c%2Ca-c%27s%2Cac%27s%2Cac#secid-580












3224-A

East View.

North View. South View.

West View.



3/25/24

Landon Willess







 AI# 12658 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 6. 31. 
08/13/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning (District 3): Consider Ordinance No. 2024-O0104, Zone Case
763-D, a request of Woda Cooper Companies, Inc. for Buslon, Inc., for a zone change from Low Density
Single-Family District (SF-2) and Medium Density Residential District (MDR) to Medium Density
Residential District (MDR), at 5311 Bangor Avenue, located north of 54th Street and east of Bangor
Avenue, on approximately 5.9 acres of unplatted land out of Block E-2, Section 28.

Item Summary
On July 23, 2024, the City Council approved the first reading of the ordinance unanimously.

For detailed information on this request, please refer to the Planning Department Staff Report attached
hereto. As noted in the report, staff recommends approval of this request. The Planning and Zoning
Commission heard this case on July 8, 2024, and recommended approval of the request by a unanimous
vote of 8-0-0.

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager
Kristen Sager, Director of Planning
Planning and Zoning Commission

Attachments
Ordinance 763-D 
Staff Report 763-D 
Documentation 763-D 









 

 

EXHIBIT "A" 

 

METES AND BOUNDS DESCRIPTION of an approximate 5.9 acre tract of land located in Section 28, Block E-2, 

Lubbock County, Texas, being further described as follows: 

 

BEGINNING at a point for the Northeast corner of this tract located in the South line of a 20 foot alley and the West right-

of-way line Albany Avenue which bears N. 89°51’30” W. an approximate distance of 887.6 feet and South an approximate 

distance of 999.1 feet from the Northeast corner of Section 28, Block E-2, Lubbock County, Texas; 

 

THENCE South along the West right-of-way line of said Albany Avenue, an approximate distance of 419.4 feet to a point 

of curvature for the most Easterly Southeast corner of this tract; 

 

THENCE Southwesterly, continuing along the West right-of-way line of said Albany Avenue, along a curve to the right, 

said curve having a radius of 15.0 feet, a central angle of 90°00’00”, a chord distance of 21.2 feet, and a chord bearing of  

S. 45°00’00” W. to a point in the North right-of-way line of 54th Street and a point of tangency for the most Southerly 

Southeast corner of this tract. 

 

THENCE West along the North right-of-way line of said 54th Street, an approximate distance of 561.0 feet to a point in the 

East right-of-way line of Bangor Avenue and a point of curvature for the most Southerly Southwest corner of this tract; 

 

THENCE Northwesterly, along the East right-of-way line of said Bangor Avenue, along a curve to the right, said curve 

having a radius of 15.0 feet, a central angle of 90°00’00”, a chord distance of 21.2 feet, and a chord bearing of                   

N. 45°00’00” W. to a point of tangency for the most Westerly Southwest corner of this tract; 

 

THENCE North continuing along the East right-of-way line of said Bangor Avenue, an approximate distance of 420.8 feet 

to a point in the South line of said 20 foot alley for the Northwest corner of this tract; 

 

THENCE S. 89°51’30” E. along the South line of said 20 foot alley, an approximate distance of 591.0 feet to the Point of 

Beginning. 

 

PREPARED FOR ZONING PURPOSES ONLY. DOES NOT REPRESENT AN ACTUAL SURVEY AND SHALL NOT 

BE RECORDED FOR ANY REAL PROPERTY PURPOSES. 

 

Prepared for Woda Cooper Companies, Inc. 

June 21, 2024 



Page 1 of 2 

Planning Department 
City of Lubbock 

Staff Report Zone Case 763-D 
City Council Meeting July 23, 2024 

Applicant Woda Cooper Companies, Inc. 

Property Owner  Buslon, Inc.  

Council District  3 

Recommendations 
• Staff recommends approval of this request.

Prior Board or Council Action 
• September 11, 1958, Ordinance No. 2535: The subject property was annexed into city limits.
• April 23, 1959, Zone Case 2760, Ordinance No. 2760: The subject property was zoned Single-Family

District (R-1).
• October 14, 1971, Zone Case 1758, Ordinance No. 6177: The eastern portion of the subject property was

zoned Two-Family District (R-2).
• May 9, 2023, Ordinance No. 2023-O0054 (effective October 1, 2023): The subject property was rezoned

from R-1 and R-2 to Low Density Single Family District (SF-2) and Medium Density Residential District
(MDR), respectively, with the adoption of the Unified Development Code.

• July 8, 2024, Zone Case 763-D: The Planning and Zoning Commission recommended approval of a zone
change from SF-2 and MDR to MDR, by a vote of 8-0-0.

Notification Summary 
• Notifications Sent: 19
• Received In Favor: 0
• Received In Opposition: 0

Site Conditions and History 
The subject property consists of 5.90 acres of unplatted land out of Block, E-2, Section 28. The property has 
remained vacant since annexation.  

Adjacent Property Development  
The properties to the north and east are zoned MDR and developed with apartments. Property to the west is 
zoned MDR and High Density Residential District (HDR) and also developed with apartments. The property to the 
south is a playa lake and Buster Long Park, zoned SF-2.  

Zoning Request and Analysis 
Item Summary 
The subject property is currently addressed as 5311 Bangor Avenue, located north of 54th Street and east of 
Bangor Avenue, on 5.9 acres of unplatted land out of Block E-2, Section 28. The applicant is requesting a zone 
change from Low Density Single-Family District (SF-2) and Medium Density Residential (MDR) to MDR. 

Current zoning: Low Density Single-Family District (SF-2) and Medium Density Residential District (MDR)

Requested overlay:  Medium Density Residential District (MDR) 

Intent Statements 
The purpose of the Low Density Single-Family (SF-2) district is “to provide two types of residential subdivisions: 



Page 2 of 2 

A. Conventional. Smaller to moderately-sized lots for dwellings on public utilities. Any open space 
is located on private lots. 

B. Cluster. Clustering of smaller-sized lots for dwellings with in increased percentage of common 
open space compared to cluster developments in the SF-1 district to maintain the intended 
character of the district while providing for buffering between lower and higher density adjacent 
neighborhoods, as well as for recreational amenities and resources protection.” 

The intent of the proposed MDR District is “…to provide for a village neighborhood environment of smaller-
sized lots, to include dwellings such as duplexes, townhouses, and multiplexes.” 

Traffic Network/Infrastructure Impacts  
The location is along 54th Street and Bangor Avenue which are designated as local streets by the Master 
Thoroughfare Plan, 2018. Local streets typically provide access to smaller, destination oriented areas, such as 
neighborhoods, subdivisions or local business districts.   

Compatibility with Surrounding Property 
The proposed zone change is compatible with the surrounding area and will not change the character of the 
existing development. 

Conformance with Comprehensive Plan Principles and Future Land Use Map 
The Future Land Use Map designates this area for High Density Residential land uses. While this request is a minor 
deviation from this designation, it is appropriate in this location, adjacent to other multi-family uses and 
residential zoning districts. This request is in conformance with the Comprehensive Plan principles. 

Conformance with Zoning Ordinance 
The proposed zone change is in conformance with the zoning ordinance. The property is located adjacent to 
other apartment complexes.  

Suitability of Property for Allowed Uses 
The property is suitable for the land uses within the MDR district. It may need additional public improvements 
to support the intensity of uses described in this district, as the property is unplatted. 

Attachments 
A. 
B. 
C. 
D. 
E. 
F. 
G. 

Case Information 
Thoroughfare Plan Map  
Aerial Map 
Zoning Map 
Future Land Use Map 
Photos 
Application and supporting documentation 

Staff Contacts 
Cassie Bermea  Victor Escamilla 
Planner  Planning and Zoning Manager 
Planning Department Planning Department 
806-775-2096  806-775-3029 
cassiebermea@mylubbock.us vescamilla@mylubbock.us 

https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=950
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=860
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=1114
mailto:cassiebermea@mylubbock.us
mailto:vescamilla@mylubbock.us


Attachment A                                                                                                                                                            Page 1 of 1 

 

 

Case Information: Zone Case 763-D 

 

Allowable Uses:   Medium Density Residential District (MDR) 

Transportation:  The proposed development has points of access from 54th Street and Bangor 

Avenue. 

Thoroughfare Existing 
Per Thoroughfare 

Development Plan 

54th Street, 

Local Street 

R.O.W. 60 feet, two-

lane, undivided, paved 

R.O.W. 70 feet, two-

lane, undivided, paved 

Bangor Avenue 

Local Street 

R.O.W. 66 feet, two-

lane, undivided, paved 

R.O.W. 70 feet, two-

lane, undivided, paved 

  

Engineering Comments:  No comments. 

Public Works Comments:  No comments. 

Building Safety Comments:  No comments. 

Fire Marshal Comments:  No comments. 

Draft Planning and Zoning Commission Minutes 

District 3 

3.1   Zone Case 763-D: Woda Cooper Companies, Inc., for Buslon, Inc., request for a zone change from 

Low Density Single-Family District (SF-2) and Medium Density Residential District (MDR) to 

Medium Density Residential District (MDR), at: 

• 5311 Bangor Avenue, located north of 54th Street and east of Bangor Avenue, on 

approximately 5.9 acres of unplatted land out of Block E-2, Section 28.   

 

PLANNER CASSIE BERMEA gave a presentation and answered questions from the Planning and Zoning 

Commission. Staff recommended approval of the request. 

APPLICANT PARKER ZEE, with Woda Cooper Companies, 500 South French Street, Columbus, Ohio, gave 

comments on the 120 unit apartment complex planned for the property and answered questions from the 

Planning and Zoning Commission 

No one appeared to speak in favor or in opposition. 

In the matter of Zone Case 763-D , a motion was made by TANNER NOBLE and seconded by SUSAN TOMLINSON to 

approve the zone case as presented. The commission voted 8 (in favor) to 0 (in opposition) to approve the motion. 

The case will be forwarded to City Council for consideration. 

 











763-D

South View.

East View. —Subject PropertyWest View.

North View.



May 29, 2024



 

 
OFFICES LOCATED IN GEORGIA, INDIANA, KENTUCKY, MARYLAND, MICHIGAN, NORTH CAROLINA, OHIO, AND VIRGINIA. 

WODA COOPER COMPANIES, INC. IS AN ESOP OWNED COMPANY AND PARENT COMPANY OF WODA COOPER DEVELOPMENT, INC., WODA CONSTRUCTION, INC., AND 
WODA MANAGEMENT & REAL ESTATE, LLC.  

614.396.3200 
www.wodagroup.com 

500 South Front St  
10th Floor 

Columbus, Ohio 43215 

 
5311 Bangor Ave Rezoning Explanation 

 
 
Woda Cooper Companies, Inc. develops, designs, constructs, and manages affordable housing 
communities. We are seeking to rezone 5311 Bangor Ave to develop approximately 120 units of 
affordable housing. The location is ideal for multifamily as the surrounding uses are mostly 
multifamily, it is located across the street from Buster Long park, and is located near many amenities 
including the Soutbh Plains Mall. A portion of the property is already zoned MDR and we seek to 
have the entire parcel zoned MDR.  
 
The future land use designation is “high density residential.” The high density residential land use is 
characterized by multi-story, multifamily apartment and condominium style units. According to the 
comprehensive plan, density for this land use is between 12-25 units with newer construction having 
densities between 20 to 30 dwelling units an acre. 



 AI# 12661 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 6. 32. 
08/13/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning (District 6): Consider Ordinance No. 2024-O0105, for Zone Case
2538-MM, a request of K-9 Kennels, for a zone change from Low Density Single-Family District (SF-2)
to Heavy Commercial District (HC), at 1607 and 1715 Alcove Avenue, located north of 19th Street and
east of Alcove Avenue, on approximately 6.1 acres of unplatted land out of Block D-6, Section 1.

Item Summary
On July 23, 2024, the City Council approved the first reading of the ordinance unanimously.

For detailed information on this request, please refer to the Planning Department Staff Report attached
hereto. As noted in the report, staff recommends approval of this request. The Planning and Zoning
Commission heard this case on July 8, 2024, and recommended approval of the request by a unanimous
vote of 8-0-0.

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager
Kristen Sager, Director of Planning
Planning and Zoning Commission

Attachments
Ordinance 2538-MM 
Staff Report 2538-MM 
Documentation 2538-MM 









AMD ENGINEERING, LLC

DESCRIPTION FOR A ZONE CHANGE REQUEST IN
SECTION 1, BLOCK D6,

LUBBOCK COUNTY, TEXAS

(Sheet 1 of 2, Sketch of tract attached as Sheet 2)

METES AND BOUNDS DESCRIPTION of a 6.05-acre tract of land located in Section 5, Block 
AK, Lubbock County, Texas, prepared for Zone Change Purposes only and being further 
described as follows:

BEGINNING at a point that bears S 05° 00’ 37” W an approximate distance of 779.51 feet to the 
southeast corner of Section 1, Block D6;

THENCE N 01° 51’ 55” W an approximate distance of 553.16 feet;

THENCE S 87° 20’ 53” E an approximate distance of 477.19 feet;

THENCE S 01° 24’ 51” E an approximate distance of 545.94 feet;

THENCE S 88° 12’ 51” W an approximate distance of 481.44 feet to the Point of Beginning and 
containing approximately 6.05-acres.

This description was prepared for the purposes of a zoning request and does not represent 
a survey made upon the ground.

Prepared for: Sheri Gray
June 24, 2024

Exhibit "A"



250'0 125' 500'NOT TO SCALE
VICINITY MAP

SITE
LOCATION



•

•

•

•

•

•
•
•





Attachment A                                                                                                                                                            Page 1 of 1 
 

 

Case Information: Zone Case 2538-MM 

 

Allowable Uses: Heavy Commercial District (HC) 

Transportation:  The proposed development has a point of access from Alcove Avenue. 

Thoroughfare Existing Per Thoroughfare 
Development Plan 

Alcove Avenue, 
Principal Arterial, 

Partial 

R.O.W. 40 feet, 2 lane, 
undivided, paved. 

R.O.W. 110 feet, 5 lane, 
undivided, paved. 

  

Engineering Comments:  No comments. 

Public Works Comments:  No comments. 

Building Safety Comments:  No comments. 

Fire Marshal Comments:  No comments. 

Draft Planning and Zoning Commission Minutes 

District 6 
 

3.4        Zone Case 2538-MM: K-9 Kennels, request for a zone change from Low Density Single-Family 
District (SF-2) to Heavy Commercial District (HC), at: 

 
• 1607 and 1715 Alcove Avenue, located north of 19th Street and east of Alcove Avenue, 

on approximately 6.1 acres of unplatted land out of Block D-6, Section 1. 
 
PLANNING DIRECTOR KRISTEN SAGER gave a presentation and answered questions from the Planning and 
Zoning Commission. Staff recommended approval of the request. 

APPLICANT SHERI GRAY, 2503 Alcove Avenue, gave comments and answered questions from the Planning and 
Zoning Commission. 

No one appeared to speak in favor or in opposition. 

In the matter of Zone Case 2538-MM, a motion was made by JORDAN WHEATLEY and seconded by TERRI MORRIS 
to approve the zone case as presented. The commission voted 8 (in favor) to 0 (in opposition) to approve the 
motion. The case will be forwarded to City Council for consideration. 
 

 

https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-viewer.aspx#secid-1620












2538-MM

View east. Subject property. View north.

View south. View west.



2538-MM

 

1607 Alcove Avenue 

 

1715 Alcove Avenue









 AI# 12703 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 7. 1. 
08/13/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Board Appointments - City Secretary: Consider appointments to the Quincy Park Public Improvement
District (PID) Advisory Board.

Item Summary
The Quincy Park Public Improvement District (PID) Advisory Board consists of 5 property owners or
representatives of property owners within the Quincy Park PID, and these board members are elected by
the Quincy Park PID property owners.

Elections for the 2 eligible seats on the Quincy Park PID Advisory Board were conducted at the annual
Quincy Park PID Property Owners' meeting held on July 10, 2024. In accordance with the bylaws, each
property owner within the Quincy Park PID was given one vote, per seat, per lot owned. Quincy Park
consists of 694 total lots, and 10 ballots were received.

The newly appointed board members will each serve 3-year terms, beginning on September 1, 2024.

The two individuals with the most votes are as follows: 
Rae Lynn Hamby
Dana Hinds

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Courtney Paz, City Secretary

Attachments
No file(s) attached.



 AI# 12704 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 7. 2. 
08/13/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Board Appointments - City Secretary: Consider appointments to the Upland Crossing Public
Improvement District (PID) Advisory Board.

Item Summary
The Upland Crossing Public Improvement District (PID) Advisory Board consists of 5 property owners
or representatives of property owners within the Upland Crossing PID, and these board members are
elected by the Upland Crossing PID property owners.

Elections for the 3 eligible seats on the Upland Crossing PID Advisory Board were conducted at the
annual Upland Crossing PID Property Owners' meeting held on July 11, 2024. In accordance with the
bylaws, each property owner within the Upland Crossing PID was given one vote, per seat, per lot
owned. Upland Crossing consists of 932 total lots, and 62 ballots were received.

The newly appointed board members will each serve 3-year terms, beginning on September 1, 2024.

The three individuals with the most votes are as follows: 
Austin Lear
Darwin (Trey) Benton 
Jordan Rodgers

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Courtney Paz, City Secretary

Attachments
No file(s) attached.



 AI# 12705 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 7. 3. 
08/13/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Board Appointments - City Secretary: Consider appointments to the Valencia Public Improvement
District (PID) Advisory Board.

Item Summary
The Valencia Public Improvement District (PID) Advisory Board consists of 5 property owners or
representatives of property owners within the Valencia PID, and these board members are elected by the
Valencia PID property owners.

Elections for the 3 eligible seats on the Valencia PID Advisory Board were conducted at the annual
Valencia PID Property Owners' meeting held on July 17, 2024. In accordance with the bylaws, each
property owner within the Valencia PID was given one vote, per seat, per lot owned. Valencia consists
of 106 total lots, and 7 ballots were received.

The newly appointed board members will each serve 3-year terms, beginning on September 1, 2024.

The three individuals with the most votes are as follows: 
Corey Lusk
Jena Massie
Jon Jackson

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Courtney Paz, City Secretary

Attachments
No file(s) attached.



 AI# 12780 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 7. 4. 
08/13/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Report: City of Lubbock 2022 Street Bond Progress Report

Item Summary
City staff will be providing a progress report on the 2022 Street Bond.  

Fiscal Impact
N/A

Staff/Board Recommending
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager
Michael G. Keenum, P.E., Division Director of Engineering/City Engineer 

Attachments
No file(s) attached.



 AI# 12766 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 7. 5. 
08/13/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Ordinance Single Reading - City Secretary: Consider adoption of an Ordinance Calling a Bond
Election to be held within the City of Lubbock, Texas; making provisions for the conduct and the giving
of notice of the election; and containing other provisions related thereto.

Item Summary
This is for the purpose of calling a bond election to submit a proposition to the voters of Lubbock, as
recommended by the Citizens Advisory Committee.

The general obligation bonds would provide funding for permanent public improvements to acquire,
construct and reconstruct street improvements, including but not limited to sidewalks, utility line
relocation and traffic signalization, necessary and related storm drainage facilities and the acquisition of
and rights-of-way therefor.  As required by Section 1251.052, Texas Government Code, this Voter
Information Document (Ex. C) has been prepared for Proposition A to be submitted to voters pursuant to
an Ordinance Calling a Bond Election to be Held Within the City of Lubbock, Texas; Making Provisions
for the Conduct and the Giving of Notice of the Election; and Containing Other Provisions Related
Thereto (the “Bond Election Ordinance”). The estimates contained in this Voter Information Document
are (i) based on certain assumptions (including the major assumptions listed above and assumptions
concerning prevailing market and economic conditions at the time(s) of issuance of the bonds) and
derived from projections obtained from the City’s financial advisor, (ii) subject to change to the extent
that actual facts, circumstances and conditions prevailing at the time that the bonds are issued differ
from such assumptions and projections, (iii) provided solely in satisfaction of the requirements of
Section 1251.052, Texas Government Code, and for no other purpose, without any assurance that such
projections will be realized, and (iv) not intended to (and expressly do not) give rise to a contract with
voters or limit the authority of the City to issue bonds in accordance with Proposition A submitted by the
City’s Bond Election Ordinance.

Fiscal Impact
The aggregate principal amount of all Bonds issued pursuant to this ordinance shall not exceed
$110,000,000.

Election Related Fiscal Impact: $160,000 - $200,000 (This is a range estimate. The cost will depend on
how many government entities, and the size of other local governments who will participate in a joint
election with us.)

$350,000 has been requested to be appropriated in the FY 2024-25 Operating Budget (pending approval
by the City Council) for any special elections during the upcoming fiscal year.

Staff/Board Recommending
Courtney Paz, City Secretary



Courtney Paz, City Secretary
Cheryl Brock, Interim Chief Financial Officer

Attachments
Ordinance - Calling a Bond Election 
Ex. A - Election Day Voting Locations 
Ex. B - Early Voting Locations 
Ex. C - Voter Information Document 
Ex. D - Judges and Alternates 



























 AI# 12773 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 7. 6. 
08/13/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - City Manager: Consider a resolution declaring the intent of the City Council and its
commitment to create a contract with the voters stipulating that the proceeds from the bonds shall be
used for the projects identified in the ordinance calling the November 5, 2024 Bond Election and
directing the City Manager to implement the November 5, 2024 Bond Program, in accordance with
specific projects and programs set forth in the resolution and the propositions approved by the voters.

Item Summary
This resolution explicitly states the Lubbock City Council's intent to create a contract with Lubbock
voters regarding the use of the $110 million requested in the November, 2024 Bond Election. Should the
Bond Election pass, this resolution lists the projects that will be funded with the proceeds, including the
initial estimated cost for each proposed project. These bond funds will not be used on any other roadway
project unless all of the projects listed in this resolution are substantially complete and funds remain.

Should the listed projects be substantially complete and funds remain, the resolution requires a three-step
process to fund additional street and roadway projects. 

• First, the projects must be similar in nature to those in Exhibit A.
• Second, the projects must comply with state law related to use of the bond proceeds.
• Finally, the Lubbock City Council must approve by affirmative vote, any additional project(s).

Fiscal Impact
Passage of this resolution does not create an independent fiscal impact.

Staff/Board Recommending
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager 

Attachments
Resolution 
Exhibit A 







Exhibit A 
 

Project Recommendation for November 2024 Street Bond 
 

 

School Roadway Limits1 Limits2 District Length
Number of 

Lanes Project Cost
Broadway Avenue Q Avenue E 1 0.8 16,000,000$           

* University Avenue 50th Street S. Loop 289 2 1 7,100,000$             
* Upland Avenue 98th Street 114th Street 5 1 5 15,600,000$           
* 34th Street Upland Avenue Alcove Avenue 5/6 1 3 13,600,000$           
* 146th Street University Avenue Avenue P 4 1 3 14,600,000$           

Quaker Avenue 4th Street 19th Street 6 1 3,100,000$             
* 146th Street Slide Road Quaker Avenue 4 1 3 15,300,000$           
* Avenue P 130th Street 146th Street 4 1 2 11,200,000$           
* Alcove Avenue 50th Street Intersection 5 1 1,500,000$             

South Overton 
(Asphalt) University-Broadway-Ave Q-19th 1 N/A 2,000,000$             
5% Inflation over 
5 Years 10,000,000$           

  Total 110,000,000$         



 AI# 12740 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 7. 7. 
08/13/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Finance: Consider a resolution adopting a proposed maximum tax rate that will result in
additional revenues as outlined in Section 26.05 (d) of the Tax Code of the State of Texas, and setting
the date for the public hearing to discuss the proposed tax rate.

Item Summary
When a proposed tax rate exceeds the voter-approval rate or the no-new-revenue rate, whichever is
lower, State law requires that the City Council must vote to place a proposal to adopt the rate on the
agenda of a future meeting as an action item. The rate proposed in the FY 2024-25 Operating Budget is
$0.477402 per $100 valuation, which is higher than the 2024 no-new-revenue rate of $0.466749 and
lower than the 2024 voter-approval rate of $0.484226. The debt rate is proposed to increase from
$0.109783 to $0.112664 and the proposed maintenance and operations rate decreases from $0.370381 to
$0.364738.  This budget will raise more revenue from property taxes than last year’s budget by
$7,563,231, which is a 6.51% increase from last year’s budget. The property tax revenue to be raised
from new property added to the tax roll this year is $3,349,548.

The certified values were received from the Lubbock Central Appraisal District on July 24, 2024. The
calculated no-new-revenue rate and the voter-approval tax rate calculations were received from Lubbock
Central Appraisal District on August 2, 2024.

The approval of this resolution is not the adoption of the tax rate, but is required for the publication of a
proposed tax rate and the scheduling of a public hearing to discuss the proposed tax rate. The rate that is
formally adopted by the City Council in September 2024, will follow a public hearing, two readings of
the tax ordinance, and public discussion.

The Texas Constitution and Property Tax Code embody the concept of truth-in-taxation to require taxing
units to comply with certain steps in adopting their tax rates. The truth-in-taxation laws have two
purposes:

1. To make taxpayers aware of tax rate proposals; and

2. To allow taxpayers, in certain cases, to limit a tax increase.

The truth-in-taxation requirements are contained in the Texas Tax Code, Chapter 26.

No-New-Revenue Tax Rate:

The 2024 no-new-revenue rate is $0.466749. The no-new-revenue tax rate is a calculated rate that will
provide the City with about the same amount of revenue it received during the prior year on properties
taxed in both years.
  
 Voter-Approval Tax Rate:



 Voter-Approval Tax Rate:

The 2024 voter-approval rate is $0.484226 (without unused increment). The voter-approval rate is a
calculated maximum rate allowed by law without voter approval. The voter-approval rate provides the
City with approximately the same amount of tax revenue it spent the previous year for day-to-day
operations, plus a 3.5% increase for maintenance and operations, as well as sufficient funds to pay debts
in the coming year. If the City adopts a tax rate that is higher than the voter-approval rate, an automatic
election must be held on the next November uniform election date.

If the tax rate proposed by the City Council exceeds the no-new-revenue tax rate or voter-approval rate,
whichever is lower, the City must follow legislative guidelines for proposing and adopting a tax rate.
These guidelines include:

1. The City Council must vote to place a proposal to adopt the rate on the agenda of a future City
Council meeting as an action item. The vote must be recorded. This guideline will be fulfilled with the
passage of this agenda item.

2. The proposal must specify the desired rate. The City Council cannot vote to adopt a proposal to
increase taxes by an unspecified amount.

3. If the motion passes, the City Council must schedule one public hearing on the proposal to increase
taxes.

4. The City Council must notify the public of the date, time and place for the public hearing and publish
information about the proposed tax rate no later 5 days prior to the date of the public hearing in a local
newspaper and publish the notice continuously at least 7 days before the public hearing on the City of
Lubbock website and Channel 2.

5. After publishing the required notice, the City must hold the public hearing. Taxpayers must have the
opportunity to express their views on the increase at the public hearing. The City Council may adopt the
tax rate at the public hearing, but if they do not, they must announce at the public hearing the date and
time of the meeting that they will adopt the tax rate.

6. The Tax Code requires that City Council adopt the tax rate no more than 7 days after the public
hearing. 

The public hearing to discuss the proposed tax rate is scheduled for 2:00 p.m. on September 3, 2024, in
the City Council Chambers in Citizens Tower, at 1314 Avenue K.

Fiscal Impact
The cost of the publication of the notices is budgeted in the FY 2024-25 Operating Budget.

Staff/Board Recommending
W. Jarrett Atkinson, City Manager
Cheryl Brock, Interim Chief Financial Officer

Attachments
Tax Rate Resolution 







 AI# 12739 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 7. 8. 
08/13/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Finance: Consider a resolution suspending the effective date for ninety days, in connection
with the rate increase filing made on about July 16, 2024, by West Texas Gas, Inc.; finding that the
meeting complies with the open meetings act; making other findings and provisions related to the
subject; and declaring an effective date.

Item Summary
On about July 16, 2024, West Texas Gas Utility, LLC. (“WTG”) filed a Statement of Intent to increase
its base rate revenues by approximately $6.78 million. This equates to an increase in annual revenue of
about 35.75% including gas costs, and 51.40% excluding gas costs.  This is WTG’s first request to
increase its base rates since 2020.  Following the conclusion of its 2020 rate case (Gas Utilities Docket
No. 10998), WTG has raised its rates by means of 4 Interim Rates Adjustment (“IRA”) filings, also
known as “GRIP” filings. 
 
Cities have original jurisdiction over such cases with final outcomes decided by the Texas Railroad
Commission.  Cities must either approve, deny or suspend filing within 30 days, or it is deemed to be
approved, and the requested rates will go into effect.  This item is to suspend the effective date for 90
days to allow staff and outside counsel to review and negotiate the requested rate increase.  Additional
information is included with this item.

Fiscal Impact
Expenses incurred through a rate case are recoverable.

Staff/Board Recommending
Cheryl Brock, Interim Chief Financial Officer

Attachments
WTG Rate Case Resolution 
Information Sheet 











1 of 4 
 

West Texas Gas, Inc. 2024 Statement of Intent 

AGENDA INFORMATION SHEET 
ITEM NO. ____________________ 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
On about July 16, 2024, West Texas Gas Utility, LLC. (“WTG”) filed a Statement of 
Intent to increase its base rate revenues by approximately $6.78 million; this equates to 
an increase in annual revenue of about 35.75% including gas costs, and 51.40% 
excluding gas costs.  This is WTG’s first request to increase its base rates since 2020.  
Following the conclusion of its 2020 rate gas (Gas Utilities Docket No. 10998), WTG has 
raised its rates by means of four Interim Rates Adjustment (“IRA”) filings, also known as 
“GRIP” filings.   
 
WTG proposes an effective date of August 20, 2024 for its change in rates.  As is 
explained below, the proposed Resolution related to WTG’s application to increase its 
base rate revenues, if adopted, denies WTG’s proposed increase in rates.     
 
BILL IMPACT: 
 
WTG proposes to increase base rates for its “Domestic Customers,” i.e., residential 
customers, and its “Non-Domestic Customers,” i.e., industrial and commercial customers.  
The table below shows WTG’s current rates and its proposed rates: 
 

Domestic Customers 

 Current Proposed 

Customer Charge $23.42 per month $29.50 per month

All Consumption $4.84 per Mcf $7.68 per Mcf

Non-Domestic Customers 

 Current Proposed 

Customer Charge $43.57 per month $79.00 per month

All Consumption $2.69 per Mcf $4.89 per Mcf

DENIAL OF WEST TEXAS GAS UTILITY, LLC’S PROPOSED 
INCREASE IN RATES FILED ON ABOUT JULY 16, 2024; 
AUTHORIZING PARTICIPATION IN THE ALLIANCE OF WTG 
MUNICIPALITIES (AWM); AUTHORIZING INTERVENTION IN 
PROCEEDINGS RELATED TO WTG’S STATEMENT OF INTENT; 
REQUIRING THE REIMBURSEMENT OF MUNICIPAL RATE CASE 
EXPENSES; AUTHORIZING REPRESENTATION OF THE CITY BY 
SPECIAL COUNSEL 



2 of 4 
 

West Texas Gas, Inc. 2024 Statement of Intent 

The impact on an average bill of WTG’s proposed increase in rates is shown in the table 
below: 
 

 
NORTH GAS COST ZONE:  Cities of Amarillo, Cactus, Canadian, Canyon, Claude, Dalhart, 
Darrouzett, Farwell, Follett, Groom, Higgins, Miami, Mobeetie, Shamrock, Stratford, Texhoma, 
Texline, Wheeler and White Deer. 
 
SOUTH GAS COST ZONE:  Cities of Devine, Eden, Junction, La Vernia, Lockhart, Luling, 
Menard, Natalia, Paint Rock, Seguin, Somerset and Sonora. 
 
WEST GAS COST ZONE:  Cities of Balmorhea, Kermit, Lubbock, Van Horn, and Wolfforth. 

 
REVENUE IMPACT: 
 
Assuming WTG’s proposed increase is approved, the effect on the change in base rate 
revenue not including gas costs, for each customer class is shown below: 
 

 
Class of Customer 

 
Current Revenue 

 
Proposed Revenue 

Percentage 
Increase 

Domestic $10,183,324 $14,510,622 42.5%
Non-Domestic $3,005,044 $5,456,636 81.5%

TOTAL $13,188,368 $19,967,258 51.4%
 
Because of the substantial increase in rates to the Domestic class and Non-Domestic class 
of customers the City should closely scrutinize WTG’s proposed increase as well as its 
proposed allocation of costs to the customer classes. 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Customer 
Class and Gas 

Cost Zone  

 
 

Current 
Average 
Monthly 
Bill with 
Gas Cost 

 
 

Proposed 
Average 
Monthly 
Bill with 
Gas Cost 

 
 
 
 

Proposed 
Monthly 
Increase 

 
 
 

Percentage 
Increase 
with Gas 

Cost 

Percentage 
Increase 
without 

Gas Cost 
North Zone  
Domestic $73.96 $96.83 $22.87 30.9% 44.0%
Non-Domestic $164.10 $240.97 $76.86 46.8% 81.6%
West Zone  
Domestic $60.83 $580.67 $19.84 32.6% 42.3%
Non-Domestic $179.22 $268.22 $89.01 49.7% 81.6%
South Zone  
Domestic $42.50 $55.33 $12.83 30.2% 36.7%
Non-Domestic $184.46 $272.60 $88.14 47.8% 81.6%



3 of 4 
 

West Texas Gas, Inc. 2024 Statement of Intent 

ACTION REQUIRED BY AUGUST 20, 2024 
 
The City must take action on WTG’s Statement of Intent before August 20, 2024.  
Absent such action, WTG’s proposed rates are deemed approved by operation of law. 
 
ALLIANCE OF WTG MUNICIPALITIES 
 
The Alliance of WTG Municipalities (“AWM”) was organized by a number of 
municipalities served by WTG.  Alfred R. Herrera, with the law firm of Herrera Law & 
Associates, PLLC, has previously represented AWM in rate cases involving WTG.   
 
CITY JURISDICTION TO SET WTG’S RATES 
 
Unless a city ceded its original jurisdiction to the Railroad Commission of Texas, the Gas 
Utility Regulatory Act § 103.001 grants a city exclusive original jurisdiction over a gas 
utility’s rates, services, and operations within the city limits.  But even if a city has ceded 
its jurisdiction to the Railroad Commission, the Gas Utility Regulatory Act § 103.023 
(“GURA”), grants a city the statutory right to participate in rate proceedings before the 
Railroad Commission. 
 
RATE CASE EXPENSES 
 
Cities by statute are entitled to recover their reasonable rate case expenses from the 
utility.  See GURA § 103.022.  Legal counsel and consultants approved by AWM will 
submit monthly invoices to the coalition-designated city that will be forwarded to WTG 
for reimbursement.  No individual city’s budget is negatively affected. 
 
OPTIONS FOR CITY ACTION: 
 
The City has three options with respect to the action it takes regarding WTG’s application 
to increase rates: 
 

1. The City could take no action, and under state law, WTG’s proposed increase 
in revenue and change rates would be deemed approved by operation of law 
and go into effect on WTG’s proposed effective date, August 20, 2024; 
 

2. The City may suspend WTG’s proposed effective date of August 20, 2024, for 
its increase its, for the statutorily allowed period of 90 days, which means the 
suspension would expire on November 18, 2024.  If the City suspends WTG’s 
proposed effective date, the City will need to take final action on the merits of 
WTG’s proposed increase in revenue and rates by no later than November 18, 
2024; 

 
3. The City may deny WTG’s proposed increase in revenue and rates; if the City 

denies WTG’s proposed increase, WTG will have the right to appeal the 
City’s action to the Railroad Commission of Texas, which it would do. 



4 of 4 
 

West Texas Gas, Inc. 2024 Statement of Intent 

 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
It is recommended that the City join or continue its participation in AWM and retain the 
law firm of Herrera Law & Associates, PLLC to represent the City’s interest in matters 
related to WTG’s rate case and to advise the City with regard to WTG’s application, and 
that, if WTG either submits its application to the Railroad Commission of Texas, or 
appeals the City’s final decision to the Railroad Commission, the City intervene in the 
proceeding before the Railroad Commission of Texas, should such proceedings develop, 
and court appeals, if any. 
 
Also, WTG’s rate-filing package is complex and voluminous as it contains thousands of 
pages of data, and thus, it is unlikely that the City’s Special Counsel and consultants 
could complete their analysis and present it the City in time for the City to take final 
action before the end of the City’s statutory timeframe.  Consequently, AWM’s Special 
Counsel recommends that the City adopt a Resolution denying WTG’s proposed increase 
in revenue and rates. 
 
The City must take action no later than August 20, 2024.  If the City does not take 
action by August 20, 2024, WTG’s proposed rates will be deemed approved by 
operation of law.   



 AI# 12765 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 7. 9. 
08/13/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Planning: Consider a resolution prescribing the type of notice to be given for a joint
meeting of the City Council and the Planning and Zoning Commission, for a public hearing to consider
amendments to the Unified Development Code (UDC), as provided under Section 211.007(d) of the
Texas Local Government Code, and setting the date for the public hearing.

Item Summary
The City Council, by at least a two-thirds vote, may prescribe the type of notice to be given for the time
and place of the jointly held public hearing with the Planning and Zoning Commission (PZC), to
consider amendments to the Unified Development Code (UDC). Attached hereto is the resolution
and notice. The City Council will also be discussing and setting a date for the public hearing.

This particular alternative notificatoin related to the UDC will be focused on landscape and bufferyard
requirements. 

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager
Kristen Sager, Director of Planning

Attachments
Resolution - Alternate Notice 
Notice of Public Hearing 
Public Hearing Notice Plan 







 
NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO UNIFORM DEVELOPMENT CODE 
 
Notice is hereby given that the Planning and Zoning Commission and City Council will hold a joint public hearing 
on Thursday, September 26, 2024, at 6:00 p.m., at 1314 Avenue K, Lubbock, Texas, Council Chambers, to 
consider amending the Unified Development Code (Ordinance No. 2023-O0054) regarding proposed 
amendments to Division 3.4, related to Trees, Landscaping, and Buffering, including, but not limited to, Section 
39.03.014 General Provisions, Section 39.03.015 Development Landscaping, Section 39.03.016 Bufferyard 
Landscaping, Section 39.03.017 Tree Preservation, Section 39.03.019 Installation and Maintenance, the 
Appendices section, related to Plant Lists, Division 2.2, related to Zoning Districts and Standards, specifically 
Required Landscaping Types Summary, and Section 39.10.002, related to Definitions.  The adopted UDC and 
proposed amendments may be viewed at www.mylubbock.us/udc and are available for viewing at Citizens Tower, 
1314 Avenue K, first floor, in the lobby of the Planning Department. 
 
City of Lubbock Planning and Zoning Commission and City Council meetings are available to all persons 
regardless of disability. If you require special assistance or have questions regarding participating in the meeting, 
please contact the Planning Department at 806-775-2108 or the City Secretary’s Office at 806-775-2061 or write 
to us at cityplanning@mylubbock.us or to Post Office Box 2000, Lubbock, Texas 79457 at least 48 hours in 
advance of the meeting.  



Exhibit B 

City of Lubbock UDC Public Hearing Notice Plan 

Social Media: This notice will be in both English and Spanish and will be “pinned” to the top of social platforms from 

9/3/2024 – 9/26/2024 

 Wednesday, September 4, 2024, @ 1pm 

o Main City of Lubbock Twitter account 

o Main City of Lubbock Facebook account 

o Main City of Lubbock Instagram account 

 Wednesday, September 11, 2024, @ 10am 

o Main City of Lubbock Twitter account 

o Main City of Lubbock Facebook account 

o Main City of Lubbock Instagram account 

 Wednesday, September 18, 2024, @1pm 

o Main City of Lubbock Twitter account 

o Main City of Lubbock Facebook account 

o Main City of Lubbock Instagram account 

 Sunday, September 22, 2024, @ 2pm 

o Main City of Lubbock Twitter account 

o Main City of Lubbock Facebook account 

o Main City of Lubbock Instagram account 

 Wednesday, September 25, 2024, @ 1pm 

o Main City of Lubbock Twitter account 

o Main City of Lubbock Facebook account 

o Main City of Lubbock Instagram account 

 Thursday, September 26, 2024, @ 10am 

o Main City of Lubbock Twitter account 

o Main City of Lubbock Facebook account 

o Main City of Lubbock Instagram account 

Newspaper 

 Will run in Lubbock Avalanche Journal 

o Monday, September 9, 2024 

o Monday, September 16, 2024 

o Monday, September 23, 2024 

City’s Public Access Channel (MyLBK Connect) 

 Will be added to the programming and will run in rotation beginning September 3, 2024 @ 8am. This notice will 

be in both English and Spanish. 

City’s YouTube Channel & Next Door Platform 

 Will be added to the City of Lubbock’s YouTube channel beginning September 3, 2024 @ 8am as well as on Next 

Door. This notice will be in both English and Spanish. 

Citizens Tower Lobby Monitor Broadcast (Skykit) 

 Will be added to the programming and will run in rotation beginning September 3, 2024 @ 8am. This notice will 

be in both English and Spanish. 



Utilities Bill Onsert (Ad space) 

• Will have a printed copy of the public hearing information in every City of Lubbock Utilities bill in September 

2024. This notice will be in both English and Spanish. 

Web: Will add link to the notice/Unified Development Code to the City of Lubbock’s webpage 

 Will be added to the webpage beginning September 3, 2024 @ 8am until the public hearing on Thursday, 

September 26, 2024. The notice will be in both English and Spanish. 

Direct Mail 

 Tuesday, September 3, 2024 - Will mail notices to neighborhood associations promoting the Notice of Public 

Hearing. 

Media Releases 

 The City of Lubbock will send out media releases (in both English and Spanish) to all media partners publicizing 

the Notice of Public Hearing on the following dates: 

o Wednesday, September 4, 2024, @3pm 

o Wednesday, September 11, 2024, @3pm 

o Wednesday, September 18, 2024, @3pm 

o Wednesday, September 25, 2024, @3pm 

Media Advisories 

 The City of Lubbock will send out advisories (in both English and Spanish) to all media partners offering interview 

availability with City officials to promote and explain the value of the upcoming public hearing on: 

o Monday, September 16, 2024, @10am 

o Monday, September 23, 2024, @10am 

Flyers 

 Flyers (in both English and Spanish) of the Notice of Public Hearing will be posted at the following City of 

Lubbock facilities beginning September 3, 2024: 

o Citizens Tower 

o Utilities Customer Service Center 

o Libraries 

o Community Centers 

o Museums 

Hard Copy of Amendments Printed and Available to the Public in Lobby of Planning Department at Citizens Tower 

 Will be available beginning Tuesday, September 3, 2024 @ 8am 



 AI# 12767 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 7. 10. 
08/13/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Ordinance 1st Reading - Planning:
A. Consider and take action on the City of Lubbock Planning and Zoning Commission's final report of
August 1, 2024, to the Lubbock City Council on proposed amendments to the Unified Development
Code (Ordinance No. 2023-O0054) recommended for adoption, limited to the following: 

Section 39.02.018.c.1.A (related to Residential Uses in the SF-2, MDR, and HDR Districts)1.
Table 39.02.004.c-2 (related to SF-2 Lot Density and Dimensions)2.
Table 39.02.004.d-2 (related to MDR Lot Density and Dimensions)3.
Table 39.03.023-2 (related to Base Public and Nonresidential Districts Sign Standards)4.
Section 39.07.041 and the Final Plat Submission Checklist (related to Final Plat Document
Requirements and Applicant Responsibilities)

5.

Section 39.07.040 and the Preliminary Plat Submission Checklist (related to Preliminary Plat
Document Requirements and Applicant Responsibilities)

6.

Section 39.10.002 (related to Definitions)7.
Section 39.02.016, Table 39.02.004.c-1, Table 39.02.004.d-1, Table 39.02.004.d-3, Table
39.02.004.e-1, Table 39.02.004.e-3, Table 39.03.009-1 (related to the Land Use Matrix)

8.

Section 39.07.041.j (related to Final Plat Recording)9.
Section 39.07.041.k.3 (related to Final Plat and Preliminary Plat Renewal and Expiration)10.
Section 39.07.040.b (related to Preliminary Plat Purpose)11.
Section 39.02.004.a.7, Section 39.02.004.b.7, Section 39.02.004.c.7, Section 39.02.004.d.7, Section
39.02.004.e.7 (related to Signs in Residential Districts for Non-Residential Uses)

12.

Table 39.02.004.e-2 (related to HDR Lot Density and Dimensions)13.
Table 39.02.016-1 (related to Outdoor Storage in the Industrial Park District (IP))14.
Section 39.06.002 (related to the Planning and Zoning Commission)15.
Section 39.02.020.d.7.C (related to Nonresidential and Mixed-Use Accessory Uses and Structures)16.
Section 39.02.020.c (related to Residential Accessory Uses and Structures)17.
Section 39.07.044.b (related to Waiver of Improvements)18.
Section 39.07.045.b (related to Delay of Improvements)19.
Section 39.02.018.e (related to Limited Use Standards)20.
Table 39.03.002-1 (related to Building and Site Design Applicability)21.
Table 39.02.004.c-3 (related to SF-2 Off-Street Parking and Loading Schedule)22.
Section 39.03.023.b.8 (related to Monument Signs)23.
Table 39.04.005-3 (related to Minimum Driveway Throat Length)24.
Section 39.04.021.b (related to Recording of Plat and Dedication of Improvements)25.
Table 39.03.016-1 (related to District Bufferyard Standards)26.
Section 39.02.020.b.6 (related to Nonresidential and Mixed-Use Fences)27.
Section 39.04.012 (related to Public Water Systems)28.
Section 39.04.013 (related to Public Wastewater Systems)29.
Section 39.02.023.b.3 (related to Specific Allowances for Height Requirements)30.
Table 39.02.022-1 (related to setback measurements)31.
Section 39.02.023.d.3 (related to Contextual Rear Setbacks)32.



Section 39.02.004.a.4.A, Section 39.02.004.b.4.A, Section 39.02.004.c.4.A, Section
39.02.004.d.4.A, and Section 39.02.004.e.4.A (related to Lot Density and Dimensions)

33.

Table 39.02.006.b-2 (related to Office (OF) Lot Intensity and Dimensions)34.
Section 39.07.004.f (related to Plat Filing)35.

B. Consider and take action on the City of Lubbock Planning and Zoning Commission's final report of
August 1, 2024, to the Lubbock City Council on proposed amendments to the Unified Development
Code (Ordinance No. 2023-O0054) recommended for denial, limited to the following: 

Section 39.02.020.c.6.A.ii (related to Residential Accessory Uses and Structures - Outdoor
Swimming Pool, Spa, and Hot Tub)

1.

Item Summary
The Planning and Zoning Commission (PZC) and City Council held a joint public hearing on July 25,
2024, to discuss amending the Unified Development Code (Ordinance No. 2023-O0054). Additionally,
consideration was given to written lists of all documentation and other information the municipality
requires to be submitted with a plat application, as required by TLGC Section 212.0081.

On August 1, 2024, the PZC recommended adoption of amendments to the Unified Development Code
by a vote of 7-0-0, with the exception of proposed Amendment #23, which was recommended for
approval by a vote of 5-2-0. The PZC recommended denial of proposed Amendment #26 by a vote of
0-7-0. Both the amendments being recommended for approval and denial by the PZC are attached.

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager
Kristen Sager, Director of Planning
Planning and Zoning Commission

Attachments
UDC Amendments Ordinance 
Proposed UDC Amendments 











Proposed UDC Amendments 

1. Section 39.02.018.c (1)(A) - Residential Uses in the SF-2, MDR, and HDR Districts.    

 

a. Current Language: Housing Types. Only a single permitted housing type (Single-Family Cottage, Single-

Family Detached Dwelling (including industrialized housing), Single-Family Garden 

Home, Duplex, Multiplex, Apartment, and Townhouse) may occupy a given block face.  Newly 

constructed Duplexes, Multiplexes, Apartments, and Townhouses shall not be permitted across the 

street from existing or proposed Single-Family Cottages, Single-Family Detached Dwellings, or Single-

Family Garden Homes. 

 

b. Proposed Revision: Housing Types. If a block face contains only one or more single-family housing types, 

Only a single permitted housing type (Single-Family Cottage, Single-Family Detached Dwelling (including 

industrialized housing), Single-Family Garden Home, and townhouses), Duplex, Multiplex, Apartment, 

and Townhouse) then the block face shall only contain single-family housing. may occupy a given block 

face.  Newly constructed Duplexes, Multiplexes, and Apartments, and Townhouses shall not be 

permitted across the street from existing single-family housing, only when either the proposed 

duplexes, multiplexes and apartments, or the existing single-family houses do not face that street or 

proposed Single-Family Cottages, Single-Family Detached Dwellings, or Single-Family Garden Homes. 

 

 

2. Table 39.02.004.c-2 – SF-2 Lot Density and Dimensions – Single-Family Cottage 

 

a. Current Language: Minimum lot area is 4,000 square feet.  

b. Proposed Revision: Change to 3,500 square feet. 

 

 
 

 

3. Table 39.02.004.d-2 – MDR Lot Density and Dimensions - Duplex    

 

a. Current Language: Minimum side setback is 10 feet.  

b. Proposed Revision: Change to 5 feet. 

 

https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=1442
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=1441
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=1449
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=1714
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=1285
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=1285
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=1680
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=1680
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=1323
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=1327
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=781
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=1114
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=1376
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=1714
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=1285
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=1680
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=1323
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=1327
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=781
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=1114
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=1376
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=1376


4. Table 39.03.023-2 – Base Public and Nonresidential Districts Sign Standards – Canopy Signs    

 

a. Current Language: Limited to a maximum of 1 sign per canopy. 

b. Proposed Revision: Change to No max. 

 

 
 

 

5. Table 39.03.023-2 – Base Public and Nonresidential Districts Sign Standards – Canopy Signs    

 

a. Current Language: EMD Signs are prohibited.  

 

b. Proposed Revision: Change to Yes. 

 

 

6. Section 39.10.002 Definitions – Retail Sales    

 

a. Current Language: Retail Sales means the sale of goods, merchandise, services, and/or commodities to 

the general public. This definition includes: …….smoke shop; 

 

b. Proposed Revision: Retail Sales means the sale of goods, merchandise, services, and/or commodities to 

the general public. This definition includes: …….smoke shop; 

 

 

7. Section 39.07.041 – Final Plat – Document Requirements  

 

a. Current Language: 11. Reference by name to recorded plats of adjacent and abutting properties; 

 

a. Proposed Revision: 11. Reference by name to recorded plats of adjacent and abutting properties; The 

following property information shall be shown on all property abutting the plat boundary and all 

properties located directly north, south, east, west, and diagonally opposite from the plat boundary, 

even if separated by a street or alley :   

A. Subdivision name, Lot #, Block #, and recording information (if the property is platted); 

B. Name of ownership with deed and recording information (if the property is not platted); 

and 

C. Any recorded easements known to the surveyor at the time of submittal with recording 

information; 

https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=1382


 

8. Section 39.07.040 – Preliminary Plat – Document Requirements 

 

a. Current Language: 12. The following adjoining and abutting property information shall be shown on 

all property adjoining and abutting the plat boundary:   

 

b. Proposed Revision: 12. The following adjoining and abutting property information shall be shown on 

all property adjoining and abutting the plat boundary and all properties located directly north, south, 

east, west, and diagonally opposite from the plat boundary, even if separated by a street or alley:   



9. Section 39.07.040 – Preliminary Plat – Document Requirements 

 

a. Current Language: 21. All spelling on the plat shall be correct; and 

  

b. Proposed Revision: 21. All information and spelling on the plat shall be correct, current, and accurate at 

the time of submission; and 

 

 

10. Section 39.07.041 – Final Plat – Document Requirements 

 

c. Current Language: None 

  

d. Proposed Revision: 27. All information and spelling on the plat shall be correct, current, and accurate at 

the time the Registered Professional Land Surveyor has sealed, signed, and dated the document to be 

recorded. 

 

11. Section 39.10.002 Definitions 

 

a. Current Language: Townhouse means a house joined with other houses in a row, joined to its neighbors 

by party walls and covered by the same roof, while occupying separate lots. No townhouse structure 

shall have less than two dwelling units or an overall length exceeding 250 feet.  

  

b. Proposed Revision: Townhouse means a house joined with other houses in a row, joined to its 

neighbors by party walls and covered by the same roof, while occupying separate lots. No townhouse 

structure shall have less than two three dwelling units or an overall length exceeding 250 300 feet.  

 

 

12. Section 39.02.016 – Land Use Matrix, Table 39.02.004.c-1, Table 39.02.004.d-1, Table 39.02.004.d-3, Table 

39.02.004.e-1, Table 39.02.004.e-3, Table 39.03.009-1 – Duplex and Townhouses 

 

a. Current Language: Number of dwelling units is defined 

b. Proposed Revision: Remove both references to dwelling units and let the definitions control 

 

  

13. Section 39.07.040(c)(6) – Preliminary Plat – Applicant Responsibilities (and amend the checklist) 

 

a. Current Language: Water and sewer schematic layouts sufficient to demonstrate how the proposed lots 

will be served by public water and sewer. 

  

b. Proposed Revision: Water and sewer schematic layouts sufficient to demonstrate how the proposed 

lots will be served by public water and sewer., or an approved groundwater study as required by TLGC 

Section 212.0101. 

 

14. Section 39.07.040(c) – Preliminary Plat – Applicant Responsibilities (and amend the checklist) 

 

a. Current Language: None. 

  

b. Proposed Revision: 7. Request for waiver, delay, or parallel construction of improvements, if applicable.  



15. Section 39.07.041(e)(5) – Final Plat – Applicant Responsibilities (and amend the checklist)  

 

a. Current Language: 5. Any supplementary materials required for approval; 

6. Dedication(s) by separate instrument (as indicated on the face of the final plat to be 

recorded), if applicable.  

7. Easement or right-of-way closure ordinance, if applicable; and 

8. Street island ordinance, if applicable. 

  

b. Proposed Revision: 5. Any supplementary materials required for approval Approved Groundwater Study 

(if applicable), as required by TLGC Section 212.0101 

6. Dedication(s) by separate instrument (as indicated on the face of the final plat to be 

recorded), if applicable.  Request for waiver, delay, or parallel construction of 

improvements, if applicable. 

7. Easement or right-of-way closure ordinance, if applicable; and 

8. Street island ordinance, if applicable. 

 

16. Section 39.07.041(j) – Final Plat – Recording 

 

a. Current Language: Within 10 days of receipt and approval of the above documents, the Director of 

Planning shall record the approved Final Plat with the Lubbock County Clerk. After the plat has been 

recorded, the Director of Planning shall issue to the subdivider the necessary copies of the approved and 

signed Final Plat along with the Lubbock County filing number.  Impact fees are determined in 

accordance with Section 41.03.003 of the Lubbock Code of Ordinances. 

  

b. Proposed Revision: Before a Final Plat can be recorded, the following documents must be submitted:  

A. Dedication Deed 

B. Ownership Certificate 

C. Tax Certificate 

D. Easement or right-of-way closure ordinance, if not yet recorded, 

E. Street island ordinance, if applicable. 

F. Dedication(s) by separate instrument (as indicated on the face of the final plat 

to be recorded), if applicable.  

Within 10 days of receipt and approval of the above documents, the Director of Planning shall record 

the approved Final Plat with the Lubbock County Clerk. After the plat has been recorded, the Director of 

Planning shall issue to the subdivider the necessary copies of the approved and signed Final Plat along 

with the Lubbock County filing number.  Impact fees are determined in accordance with Section 

41.03.003 of the Lubbock Code of Ordinances. 

 

 

17. Section 39.07.041(k)(3) -  Final Plat – Preliminary Plat Renewal – Renewal and Expiration 

 

a. Current Language: Renewal and Expiration. If a Final Plat of the remaining area has not been submitted 

within the two-year time period, the portion of the Preliminary Plat for which no Final Plat has been 

submitted shall be deemed null and void. However, if at least one phase of the Preliminary Plat has 

received Final Plat approval, its public improvements have been completed, and it has been 

https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=1104
https://ecode360.com/38866283
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=1104
https://ecode360.com/38866283
https://ecode360.com/38866283


recorded with the Lubbock County Clerk, an extension to the two-year time limit shall be 

automatically granted for all phases.  

 

b. Proposed Revision: Renewal and Expiration. If a Final Plat of the remaining area has not been submitted 

within the two-year time period, the portion of the Preliminary Plat for which no Final Plat has been 

submitted shall be deemed null and void. However, if at least one phase of the Preliminary Plat has 

received Final Plat approval, its public improvements have been completed, and it has been 

recorded with the Lubbock County Clerk, an extension to the two-year time limit shall be 

automatically granted for all remaining phases.  

 

18. Section 39.07.040(b) – Preliminary Plat - Purpose 

 

a. Current Language: The purpose of a Preliminary Plat is to provide sufficient information to evaluate and 

review the general design of a proposed subdivision to ensure compliance with 

the Master Development Plan, if applicable, and the requirements of this UDC prior to submittal of 

a Final Plat. If a Final Plat that includes all of an applicant’s contiguous ownership is submitted to the City 

for approval, the Director of Planning shall have the option to not require a Preliminary Plat for the 

property. 

 

b. Proposed Revision: The purpose of a Preliminary Plat is to provide sufficient information to evaluate 

and review the general design of a proposed subdivision to ensure compliance with 

the Master Development Plan, if applicable, and the requirements of this UDC prior to submittal of 

a Final Plat. If a Final Plat contains four or fewer lots and tracts, or that includes all of an applicant’s 

contiguous ownership is submitted to the City for approval, the Director of Planning shall have the 

option to not require a Preliminary Plat for the property shall not be required.  

 

19. Section 39.02.004(a)(7), (b)(7), (c)(7), (d)(7), (e)(7) – Signs in Residential Districts for Non-Residential Uses 

 

a. Current Language: Signs. Table 39.02.004.a-5, RE Permitted Sign Types, denotes sign types permitted 

in the RE district. For more details and specific standards, refer to Division 3.5, Signs. Signs not listed in 

this table are prohibited in this zoning district. In case of a conflict between Table 39.02.004.a-5 and the 

provisions of Division 3.5, Signs, the latter shall control. 

  

b. Proposed Revision: Signs. 

 

A. Table 39.02.004.a-5, RE Permitted Sign Types, denotes sign types permitted in the RE district. For more 

details and specific standards, refer to Division 3.5, Signs. Signs not listed in this table are prohibited in this 

zoning district. In case of a conflict between Table 39.02.004.a-5 and the provisions of Division 3.5, Signs, the 

latter shall control. 

A. Table 39.02.004.b-5, SF-1 Permitted Sign Types, denotes sign types permitted in the SF-1 district. For 

more details and specific standards, refer to Division 3.5, Signs. Signs not listed in this table are prohibited in 

this zoning district. In case of a conflict between Table 39.02.004.b-5 and the provisions of Division 

3.5, Signs, the latter shall control. 

 

A. Table 39.02.004.c-5, SF-2 Permitted Sign Types, denotes sign types permitted in the SF-2 district. For more 

details and specific standards, refer to Division 3.5, Signs. Signs not listed in this table are prohibited in this 

https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=1105
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=851
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=1448
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=1001
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=1105
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=851
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=1448
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=1001
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-viewer.aspx#secid-629
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-viewer.aspx#secid-629
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-viewer.aspx#secid-629
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-viewer.aspx#secid-629
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-viewer.aspx#secid-629
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-viewer.aspx#secid-629
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-viewer.aspx#secid-629
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-viewer.aspx#secid-629


zoning district. In case of a conflict between Table 39.02.004.c-5 and the provisions of Division 3.5, Signs, the 

latter shall control. 

A. Table 39.02.004.d-5, MDR Permitted Sign Types, denotes sign types permitted in the MDR district. For 

more details and specific standards, refer to Division 3.5, Signs. Signs not listed in this table are prohibited in 

this zoning district. In case of a conflict between Table 39.02.004.d-5 and the provisions of Division 

3.5, Signs, the latter shall control. 

 

A. Table 39.02.004.e-5, HDR Permitted Sign Types, denotes sign types permitted in the HDR district. For 

more details and specific standards, refer to Division 3.5, Signs. Signs not listed in this table are prohibited in 

this zoning district. In case of a conflict between Table 39.02.004.e-5 and the provisions of Division 

3.5, Signs, the latter shall control. 

B. Nonresidential. For nonresidential developments, refer to Subsection 39.02.006.a, Neighborhood 
Commercial (NC). 

 

20. Table 39.02.004.e-2 HDR Lot Density and Dimensions – Single-Family, Duplex, and Townhouse 

 

a. Current Language: Requires a 20’ rear setback for adjacent to non-residential 

 

b. Proposed Revision: Change to 15 feet. 

 

 

21. Table 39.02.016-1 – Outdoor Storage – Industrial Park District (IP) 

a. Current Language: Prohibited in the IP District. 

b. Proposed Revision: Change to Permitted “P”. 

 

 

 

https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-viewer.aspx#secid-629
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-viewer.aspx#secid-629
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-viewer.aspx#secid-629
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-viewer.aspx#secid-629
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-viewer.aspx#secid-629
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-viewer.aspx#secid-629
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-viewer.aspx#secid-629
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-viewer.aspx#secid-579


22. Section 39.10.002 Definitions – Utilities and Power Generation, Transmission, and Distribution 

 

a. Current Language:  

 

Utilities means the conduits, pipes, wires, etc. and associated appurtenances used to provide various 

services to both residential and commercial uses. Water, wastewater, and stormwater service are 

primary utilities provided by the municipality and natural gas, electricity, and communication are 

primary utilities provided by public or private utilities.  

 

Power Generation, Transmission, and Distribution means a large-scale creation of power which 

includes large solar collectors and windmills for nonresidential uses and more forms of utility power 

generation. This definition includes central power and lighting plant and public utility installations. 

 

b. Proposed Revision:  

Utilities means the conduits, pipes, wires, etc. and associated appurtenances used to provide various 

services to both residential and commercial uses. Water, wastewater, and stormwater service are 

primary utilities provided by the municipality and natural gas, electricity, and communication are 

primary utilities provided by public or private utilities. This definition includes public utility installations. 

Power Generation, Transmission, and Distribution means a large-scale creation of power which 

includes large solar collectors and windmills for nonresidential uses and more forms of utility power 

generation. This definition includes central power and lighting plants. and public utility installations. 

 

23. Section 39.06.002 – Planning and Zoning Commission  

 

a. Current Language: None. 

 

b. Proposed Revision:  

c. Recommendations. In addition to what is permitted by state law, if the planning and zoning 

commission recommends against a proposed amendment, supplement, change or modification, the 

proposed amendment, supplement, change or modification must receive, in order to take effect, the 

affirmative vote of at least three-fourths of all members of the City Council.  

 

 

24. Section 39.02.020.d(7)(C) – Nonresidential and Mixed-Use Accessory Uses and Structures - Outdoor Storage 

 

a. Current Language: Location. An outdoor storage facility shall be located to the rear or side of the 

primary structure and as great of a distance as feasible from the public right-of-way and adjacent 

residentially zoned or used property. 

 

b. Proposed Revision: Location. An outdoor storage facility shall be located to the rear or side of the 

primary structure and as great of a distance as feasible shall be screened on all sides the public right-of-

way and adjacent residentially zoned or used property by a minimum 6 foot solid wood or masonry 

screening fence. 

 

 

 

 



25. Table 39.03.023-2 – Sign Regulations in the Base Public and Nonresidential and Base Mixed-Use Districts 

 

a. Current Language: Requires a 20’ clearance for Blade Signs.  

 

b. Proposed Revision: Change from 20’ to 10 feet.  

 

 

26. Section 39.02.020.c(6)(A)(ii) Residential Accessory Uses and Structures - Outdoor Swimming Pool, Spa, and 

Hot Tub.  

 

a. Current Language: For garden home housing types, where the structure is set with a zero-foot setback 

on one side property line, an outdoor pool shall have the same setback as the non-zero side setback of 

the residence.  

 

b. Proposed Revision: For garden home housing types, where the structure is set with a zero-foot setback 

on one side property line, an outdoor pool shall have the same setback as the non-zero side setback of 

the residence.  

 

 

27. Section 39.07.044(b) Waiver of Improvements   

 

a. Current Language: Purpose. Waiver of water, wastewater, or paving may be requested, subject to the 

requirements of this Section. The purpose of a Waiver of Improvements is to allow for an exemption to 

complying with the requirements of Sections 39.04.005, Street Network and Design, 39.04.012, Public 

Water Systems, and 39.04.013, Public Wastewater Systems, specifically as such Sections relate to 

extending new or improving existing water or wastewater lines or streets. A Waiver of 

Improvements request may only be considered concurrently with a Preliminary Plat or Final 

Plat, or Replat. The subdivider shall include as part of the Plat application the reason(s) they should be 

eligible for a Waiver of Improvements in accordance with this Section.  Failure to submit such information 

shall render the Plat application incomplete. 

 

b. Proposed Revision: Purpose. Waiver of water, wastewater, or paving may be requested, subject to the 

requirements of this Section. The purpose of a Waiver of Improvements is to allow for an exemption to 

complying with the requirements of Sections 39.04.005, Street Network and Design, 39.04.012, Public 

Water Systems, and 39.04.013, Public Wastewater Systems, specifically as such Sections relate to 

extending new or improving existing water or wastewater lines or streets. A Waiver of 

Improvements request may only be considered concurrently with a Preliminary Plat. In the event a 

Preliminary Plat is not required, a Waiver of Improvements request may be considered concurrently with 

a or Final Plat, or Replat. The subdivider shall include as part of the Plat application the reason(s) they 

should be eligible for a Waiver of Improvements in accordance with this Section.  Failure to submit such 

information shall render the Plat application incomplete. 

 

 

https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=1331
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-viewer.aspx#secid-649
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=1089
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-viewer.aspx#secid-656
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-viewer.aspx#secid-657
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=1002
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=1001
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=1001
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=1031
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-viewer.aspx#secid-649
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=1089
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-viewer.aspx#secid-656
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-viewer.aspx#secid-657
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=1002
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=1001
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=1031


28. Section 39.07.045(b) Delay of Improvements 

 

c. Current Language: Purpose. Delay of water, wastewater, or paving may be requested, subject to the 

requirements of this Section. The purpose of a Delay of Improvements is to allow the subdivider to 

postpone the installation of infrastructure required in Sections 39.04.005, Street Network and 

Design,  39.04.012, Public Water Systems, and 39.04.013, Public Wastewater Systems, specifically as such 

Sections relate to extending new or improving existing water or wastewater lines or streets. A Delay of 

Improvements request may only be considered concurrently with a Preliminary Plat, or Final 

Plat, or Replat. The subdivider shall include as part of the Plat application the reason(s) they should be 

eligible for a Delay in accordance with this Section.  Failure to submit such information shall render the 

Plat application incomplete. 

 

d. Proposed Revision: Purpose. Delay of water, wastewater, or paving may be requested, subject to the 

requirements of this Section. The purpose of a Delay of Improvements is to allow the subdivider to 

postpone the installation of infrastructure required in Sections 39.04.005, Street Network and 

Design,  39.04.012, Public Water Systems, and 39.04.013, Public Wastewater Systems, specifically as such 

Sections relate to extending new or improving existing water or wastewater lines or streets. A Delay of 

Improvements request may only be considered concurrently with a Preliminary Plat. In the event a 

Preliminary Plat is not required, a Waiver of Improvements request may be considered concurrently with 

a or Final Plat, or Replat. The subdivider shall include as part of the Plat application the reason(s) they 

should be eligible for a Delay in accordance with this Section.  Failure to submit such information shall 

render the Plat application incomplete. 

 

 

29. Section 39.02.018.e(9)  Limited Use Standards - Civic and Institutional Uses 

 

a. Current Language: Medical Office / Clinic. The gross floor area shall not exceed 3,500 square feet. 

 

b. Proposed Revision: Medical Office / Clinic. The gross floor area shall not exceed 3,500 15,000 square 

feet. 

 

30. Section 39.07.040(c)Document Requirements(13) – Preliminary Plat – Applicant Responsibilities (and 

Checklist) 

 

a. Current Language: The location, name, and width of all streets, alleys, public and private easements, 

and rights-of-way existing or proposed within the subdivision limits, along with the proposed names of 

streets; 

 

b. Proposed Revision: The location, name, and width of all streets, alleys, public and private easements, 

and rights-of-way existing or proposed, within the subdivision limits shown on the face of the plat, both 

inside and outside the plat boundary , along with the proposed names of streets, as approved by City of 

Lubbock staff; 

 

 

31. Table 39.03.002-1 Building and Site Design Applicability 

 

a. Current Language: Requires Landscaping and bufferyard requirements to be met when the increase in 

GFA is less than 50% and/or when a change in use requires additional parking. 

 

https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-viewer.aspx#secid-649
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=1089
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-viewer.aspx#secid-656
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-viewer.aspx#secid-657
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=1002
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=1001
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=1001
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=1031
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-viewer.aspx#secid-649
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=1089
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-viewer.aspx#secid-656
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-viewer.aspx#secid-657
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=1002
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=1001
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=1031
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=1194
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=1194
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=867
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=1580
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=867
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=1580


b. Proposed Revision: Remove this requirement. 

 

 

 

32. Table 39.02.004.c-3 - SF-2 Off-Street Parking and Loading Schedule 

 

a. Proposed Revision: add the parking requirement for Multiplex 

 

33. Section 39.03.023.b.8 – Monuments Signs 

 

a. Current Language: Separation. Monument or pole signs are permitted on one street frontage when 400 

feet of frontage is provided.  The total area of both signs shall not exceed the maximum sign area listed 

in the table below and the minimum separation between signs is 200 feet. 

 

b. Proposed Revision: Separation. Two monument or pole signs are permitted on one street frontage 

when 400 feet of frontage is provided.  The total area of both signs shall not exceed the maximum sign 

area listed in the table below and the minimum separation between signs is 200 feet. 

 

34. Table 39.04.005-3 – Minimum Driveway Throat Length 

 

a. Proposed Revision: Add this table to an additional location in the UDC under Division 3.3 Parking, 

Loading, Stacking, and Access 

 

https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=1748
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=1748


 

35. Section 39.07.040.c – Preliminary Plat – Document Requirements  

 

a. Current Language: The following notice shall be printed on the face of each Preliminary Plat submitted: 

"Preliminary Plat - for inspection purposes only and in no way official or approved for recording 

purposes"; 

 

b. Proposed Revision: The following notice shall be printed on the face of each Preliminary Plat submitted: 

"Preliminary Plat - for inspection purposes only and in no way official or approved for recording 

purposes"; A statement shall be placed on the plat clearly indicating it is for review purposes only and 

not for recording;   

 

36. Section 39.07.040 – Preliminary Plat and 39.07.041 – Final Plat – Document Requirements  

 

a. Current Language: There is no section number for Document Requirements 

 

b. Proposed Revision: d. Document Requirements (and correct the labeling of the latter sections) 

 

c. Proposed Revision: f. Document Requirements (and correct the labeling of the latter sections) 

 

37. Section 39.07.041.e – Final Plat – Document Requirements  

 

a. Current Language: 3. "Blanket solid waste collection easement as required for service [within the plat 

limits or insert specific lot or tract designation] is herein granted”; 

 

b. Proposed Revision: 3. "Blanket solid waste collection easement as required for service [within the plat 

limits or insert specific lot or tract designation] is herein granted”;  

 

38. Section 39.07.041.e – Final Plat – Document Requirements  

 

a. Current Language: 4. “Blanket [insert ‘underground’ if applicable] utility easement as required for 

service [within the plat limits or insert specific lot or tract designation] is herein granted to [insert name 

of public, private or franchise utility or certificated service provider of telecommunications]”; and 

 

b. Proposed Revision: 4. “Blanket [insert ‘underground’ if applicable] utility easement as required for 

service [within the plat limits or insert specific lot or tract designation] is herein granted to [insert name 

of public, private or franchise utility or certificated service provider of telecommunications].  Blanket 

easements are herein granted exclusively to each individual tract for service to and within that tract”; 

and 

 

39. Section 39.07.041.e – Final Plat – Document Requirements  

 

a. Current Language: 5. “Public pedestrian access easement is herein granted for persons traversing along 

the public parkway and needing to enter onto private property for the purpose of crossing a driveway. 

The easement is limited to those portions of the as-constructed driveways and walks which may extend 

outside public right-of-way onto private property and are constructed for the continuance of the 



accessible routes across the back of the driveway. This easement applies to existing and any future drive 

entrances as constructed.” 

 

b. Proposed Revision: 5. “Public pedestrian access easement is herein granted [within specific lot or tract 

designation, if applicable] for persons traversing along the public parkway and needing to enter onto 

private property for the purpose of crossing a driveway. The easement is limited to those portions of the 

as-constructed driveways and walks which may extend outside public right-of-way onto private property 

and are constructed for the continuance of the accessible routes across the back of the driveway. This 

easement applies to existing and any future drive entrances as constructed.” 

 

40. Section 39.07.041.e – Final Plat – Document Requirements  

 

a. Current Language: 14. Lots shall be numbered consecutively from one (1) to the total number of lots in 

the subdivision. Tracts shall be lettered in alphabetical order. Such designation will be continuous in the 

order that Final Plats of portions of an approved Preliminary Plat are recorded with the County Clerk; 

 

b. Proposed Revision: 14. Lots shall be numbered consecutively from one (1) to the total number of lots in 

the subdivision. Tracts shall be lettered in alphabetical order. Such designation will be continuous in the 

order that Final Plats of portions of an approved Preliminary Plat are recorded with the County Clerk; 

however, if a different naming convention has been established for prior adjacent plats within that 

subdivision, then a naming convention consistent with the prior plats may be used. 

 

41. Section 39.07.041.e – Final Plat – Document Requirements  

 

a. Current Language: 15. Replatted lots will be designated alphanumerically (e.g. Lot 1-A), and further 

subdivision will alternate numbers and letters (e.g. Lot 1-A-1, Lot 1-A-1-A). The same alternating method 

will be used for tracts (e.g. Tract A-1, Tract A-1-A, Tract A-1-A-1); 

 

b. Proposed Revision: 15. Replatted lots will be designated alphanumerically (e.g. Lot 1-A), and further 

subdivision will alternate numbers and letters (e.g. Lot 1-A-1, Lot 1-A-1-A). The same alternating method 

will be used for tracts (e.g. Tract A-1, Tract A-1-A, Tract A-1-A-1);  However, if a different naming 

convention has been established for prior adjacent plats within that same subdivision, then a naming 

convention consistent with the prior plats may be used 

 

 

42. Section 39.07.041.j – Final Plat – Document Requirements  

 

a. Current Language: Within 10 days of receipt and approval of the above documents, the Director of 

Planning shall record the approved Final Plat with the Lubbock County Clerk. After the plat has been 

recorded, the Director of Planning shall issue to the subdivider the necessary copies of the approved and 

signed Final Plat along with the Lubbock County filing number.  Impact fees are determined in 

accordance with Section 41.03.003 of the Lubbock Code of Ordinances. 

 

b. Proposed Revision: Within 10 days of receipt and approval of the above documents, the Director of 

Planning shall record the approved Final Plat with the Lubbock County Clerk.  Or in the case of plats 

located in the ETJ, the Director of Planning shall provide the plat and supporting documents to Lubbock 

County for Commissioners Court approval.  After the plat has been recorded, the Director of Planning 

shall issue to the subdivider the necessary copies of the approved and signed Final Plat along with the 



Lubbock County filing number.  Impact fees are determined in accordance with Section 41.03.003 of the 

Lubbock Code of Ordinances. 

 

43. Section 39.10.002  – Definitions – Cul-de-sac 

 

a. Current Language: None 

 

b. Proposed Revision: Cul-de-sac a bulbous street or passage closed at one end, the design of which shall 

adhere to the City of Lubbock Engineering Minimum Design Standards and Specifications. 

 

44. Section 39.04.021.b  - Recording of Plat and Dedication of Improvements 

 

a. Current Language:  

a. Dedication Deed or Dedicatory Certificate. A dedication deed or dedicatory certificate executed 

by all persons, firms, or corporations owning an interest in the property subdivided and platted 

and acknowledged in the manner prescribed by the laws of the state for conveyances of real 

property shall be submitted for each Final Plat. Two true copies shall be furnished with the 

original. The dedication deed shall include the following information: 

1. Spouses and Homesteads. The spouses of any married party executing such dedication 

deed shall join with their spouses therein unless satisfactory proof is provided showing 

that the property to be subdivided is the sole and separate property of the spouse 

signing such deed and that such property does not constitute any portion of such party's 

homestead, in which case the instrument of dedication shall state the fact that the 

property subdivided and platted does not constitute a part of such party's homestead. 

2. Subordination Agreement. The lienholder shall execute a subordination agreement 

subordinating their liens or enter into the dedication or granting, if any, of all 

public streets, alleys, parks, public easements, and any other public areas shown on the 

plat of such subdivision are being designated for public uses and purposes. 

3. Dedication Deed. The dedication deed shall, in addition to the above requirements, 

contain the following: 

A. An accurate description of the tract of land subdivided; 

B. A statement and express representation that the parties joining in such 

dedication deed are the sole owners of such tract of land; 

C. An express dedication, if any, to the public for public use forever of any 

streets, alleys, rights-of-way, stormwater drainage and impoundment 

easements, parks, public easements, or other public places shown on the plat; 

and 

D. A positive reference and identification of the plat of such subdivision by the 

name of such subdivision, date of the plat, and name of surveyor preparing the 

plat. 

4. Certificate of Ownership. A certificate of ownership statement prepared by a qualified 

attorney or title insurance company licensed to do business in Texas shall be submitted 

with each Final Plat certifying that the title to the property has been examined and 

naming all owners, lienholders, and recorded encumbrances of said tract of land. 

5. Tax Certificate. A current tax certificate from the Lubbock Central Appraisal District is 

required with each Final Plat showing that all taxes have been paid on the tract to be 

subdivided and that no delinquent taxes exist against the property in accordance 

with Texas Property Code Section 12.002 (E).  

https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=1659
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=995
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=1506
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=1089
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=774
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=867
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=1105
https://statutes.capitol.texas.gov/Docs/PR/htm/PR.12.htm


6. Final Drainage Plan. If required, a final drainage plan and analysis that meets the 

requirements of the Drainage Criteria Manual and Master Drainage Plan and has been 

approved by the City Engineer. 

7. Other Documents. Such other ordinances, protective covenants, certificates, affidavits, 

endorsements, dedications, and closures and abandonments as may be required for the 

enforcement of these regulations shall be provided as separate instruments to be 

recorded with the plat. Other plat-associated documents, such as subdivision deed 

restrictions, may be recorded with the plat if the subdivider chooses. 

 

b. Proposed Revision:  

a. Dedication Deed or Dedicatory Certificate. Required Documents. A dedication deed or 

dedicatory certificate executed by all persons, firms, or corporations owning an interest in the 

property subdivided and platted and acknowledged in the manner prescribed by the laws of the 

state for conveyances of real property shall be submitted for each Final Plat. Two true copies 

shall be furnished with the original. The dedication deed shall include the following information: 

1. Dedication Deed or Dedicatory Certificate. A dedication deed or dedicatory certificate 

executed by all persons, firms, or corporations owning an interest in the property 

subdivided and platted and acknowledged in the manner prescribed by the laws of the 

state for conveyances of real property shall be submitted for each Final Plat. Two true 

copies shall be furnished with the original. The dedication deed shall include the 

following information: 

1. A. Spouses and Homesteads. The spouses of any married party executing such 

dedication deed shall join with their spouses therein unless satisfactory proof 

is provided showing that the property to be subdivided is the sole and separate 

property of the spouse signing such deed and that such property does not 

constitute any portion of such party's homestead, in which case the instrument of 

dedication shall state the fact that the property subdivided and platted does not 

constitute a part of such party's homestead. 

2. B. Subordination Agreement. The lienholder shall execute a subordination 

agreement subordinating their liens or enter into the dedication or granting, if any, 

of all public streets, alleys, parks, public easements, and any other public areas 

shown on the plat of such subdivision are being designated for public uses and 

purposes. 

3. C. An accurate description of the tract of land subdivided; 

4. D. A statement and express representation that the parties joining in such 

dedication deed are the sole owners of such tract of land; 

5. E. An express dedication, if any, to the public for public use forever of any streets, 

alleys, rights-of-way, stormwater drainage and impoundment easements, parks, 

public easements, or other public places shown on the plat within the proposed plat 

boundary; and 

6. F. A positive reference and identification of the plat of such subdivision by the name 

of such subdivision, date of the plat, and name of surveyor preparing the plat. 

2. Certificate of Ownership. A certificate of ownership statement prepared by a qualified 

attorney or title insurance company licensed to do business in Texas shall be submitted 

with each Final Plat certifying that the title to the property has been examined and 

naming all owners, lienholders, and recorded encumbrances of said tract of land. 

3. Tax Certificate. A current tax certificate from the Lubbock Central Appraisal District is 

required with each Final Plat showing that all taxes have been paid on the tract to be 

subdivided and that no delinquent taxes exist against the property in accordance 

with Texas Property Code Section 12.002 (E).  

https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=1659
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=995
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=1506
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=995
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=1506
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=1089
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=774
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=867
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=1105
https://statutes.capitol.texas.gov/Docs/PR/htm/PR.12.htm


4. Final Drainage Plan. If required, a final drainage plan and analysis that meets the 

requirements of the Drainage Criteria Manual and Master Drainage Plan and has been 

approved by the City Engineer. 

5. Other Documents. Such other ordinances, protective covenants, certificates, affidavits, 

endorsements, dedications, grants of use by separate instrument, and closures and 

abandonments as may be required for the enforcement of these regulations shall be 

provided as separate instruments to be recorded with the plat. Other plat-associated 

documents, such as subdivision deed restrictions, may be recorded with the plat if the 

subdivider chooses. 

 

 

45. Table 39.03.016-1 – District Bufferyard Standards  

 

a. Proposed Revision: Change MU-6 to MU-5 

 

46. Section 39.10.002 – Definitions  

 

a. Current Language:  

 

 

 

b. Proposed Revision: Remove definitions for MU-4 and MU-6 

 

47. Table 39.03.023-2 Base Public and Nonresidential Districts Sign Standards - Murals  

 

a. Current Language: Murals are limited to 50% of façade area/10% of façade area per tenant and 75% of 

façade or tenant space width in MU Districts. They are also limited to 750 sq. ft. and 35’ width in non-

residential districts. 

b. Proposed Revision: Change Sign Area (max) and Sign Width (max) to No max and remove MU-4 and 

MU-6 from list. 



 

 

 

 

48. Section 39.02.020.b.6.C – Nonresidential and Mixed-Use Fences 

 

a. Current Language: Prohibited Fence Materials. Residential fences not associated with the permitted 

keeping of livestock are prohibited from being composed of the following materials: 

 

b. Proposed Revision: Prohibited Fence Materials. Nonresidential Residential fences not associated with 

the permitted keeping of livestock are prohibited from being composed of the following materials: 

 

49. Section 39.02.020.b.6.A.ii & D – Nonresidential and Mixed-Use Fences 

 

a. Proposed Revision:  ii. Fences and gates that exceed four feet in height shall not extend beyond the 

front facade of the building. 

 

b. Current Language: Location. Except as permitted in Paragraph F., Hotel Fencing, below, fences and gates 

that exceed four feet in height shall not extend beyond the front facade of the building. 

 

c. Proposed Revision: Location. Except in the IP, LI, and GI districts, and as permitted in Paragraph F., Hotel 

Fencing, below, fences and gates that exceed four feet in height shall not extend beyond the front 

facade of the building. 

 

50. Section 39.04.012 - Public Water Systems 

 

a. Current Language: 2. City Limits. All lots in any subdivision platted within the City limits after the 

effective date of this UDC shall be served by public water systems prior to the issuance of a Building 

Permit in accordance with the provisions of this Section.  

 

b. Proposed Revision: 2. City Limits. All lots in any subdivision platted within the City limits after the 

effective date of this UDC shall be served by public water systems prior to the issuance of a Building 

Permit in accordance with the provisions of this Section. Greenspaces maintained by a Public 



Improvement District (PID) or Homeowner’s Association (HOA) may be serviced by a water well and 

utility extensions are not required. 

 

51. Section 39.04.013 Public Wastewater Systems 

 

a. Current Language: 2. City Limits. All lots in any subdivision platted within the City limits after the 

effective date of this UDC that are within 180 feet of an existing City wastewater main shall be served by 

public wastewater systems prior to the issuance of a Building Permit in accordance with the provisions 

of this Section. All lots outside the City limits in the ETJ shall be provided with an on-site sewage disposal 

system or cluster system approved by Lubbock County. 

 

b. Proposed Revision: 2. City Limits. All lots in any subdivision platted within the City limits after the 

effective date of this UDC that are within 180 feet of an existing City wastewater main shall be served by 

public wastewater systems prior to the issuance of a Building Permit in accordance with the provisions 

of this Section. Utility extensions are not required to greenspaces maintained by a Public Improvement 

District (PID) or Homeowner’s Association (HOA). All lots outside the City limits in the ETJ shall be 

provided with an on-site sewage disposal system or cluster system approved by Lubbock County. 

 
52. Section 39.02.023.b.3 - Specific Allowances – Height Requirements  

 

a. Current Language: 3. Setback Plane. As depicted in Figure 39.02.023-1, Setback Plane, where a 

multiplex, apartment, nonresidential, or mixed-use building (Letter "A" in Figure 39.02.023-1) adjoins a 

single-family or duplex property (Letter "B" in Figure 39.02.023-1), the building height may be increased 

beyond the maximum permitted if the setback nearest the adjoining residence is increased one foot for 

each one foot of height above the maximum permitted height (Letter "C" in Figure 39.02.023-1).  

 

b. Proposed Revision: 3. Setback Plane. As depicted in Figure 39.02.023-1, Setback Plane, where a 

multiplex, apartment, nonresidential, or mixed-use building (Letter "A" in Figure 39.02.023-1) adjoins a 

single-family or duplex property (Letter "B" in Figure 39.02.023-1), the building height may be increased 

beyond the maximum permitted if the setbacks nearest the adjoining residence from all property lines 

(with the exception of the front lot line), which abut residentially zoned property, is are increased one 

foot for each one foot of height above the maximum permitted height (Letter "C" in Figure 39.02.023-1). 

 
53. Section 39.10.002 Definitions 

 

a. Current Language: Single-Family Cottage means a type of Single-Family Detached Dwelling that is 

located on its own lot, has narrower than typical side setbacks, and is used by a single family.   

 
b. Proposed Revision: Single-Family Cottage means a type of Single-Family Detached Dwelling that is 

located on its own lot, has narrower than typical side setbacks, and is used by a single family., and does 

not exceed 1,300 square feet.   

 
54. Table 39.02.022-1 (and Section 39.10.002, Definition of Setback) – Language for setback measurements: 

 

a. Current Language: Setback means the horizontal distance of a required open area at grade between the 

outer wall of a building or structure and the adjoining property lines, or, in the case of an abutting private 

street, the back-of-curb, unoccupied and unobstructed by any portion of a structure from the ground 

upward. The front and side setback lines span the entire width of the property.  The interior side and 

exterior side setback lines extend from the required front setback line to the required rear setback line. 

https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=1285
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=1285


 

b. Proposed Revision: “The horizontal distance of a required private open area at grade between the outer 

wall (or exterior finish) of a building or structure and the adjoining property lines” 

 

 

55. Section 39.10.002 – Definition of Front Lot Line  

 

a. Current Language: Front Lot Line means the line at the front of a home where the public right-of-way ends, 

and a homeowner's property begins. 

 

b. Proposed Revision: Front Lot Line means the line at the front of a home on a parcel where the public street 

right-of-way ends, and the homeowner’s owner’s property begins. On parcels intended for multi-family, 

mixed-use, or non-residential development, the front lot line shall be the abutting dedicated street right-of-

way of greatest designation or lot line of most narrow length that abuts a street right-of-way. On parcels 

intended for all other residential development, the front lot line shall be the abutting dedicated street right-

of-way of least designation or lot line of most narrow length that abuts a street right-of-way. 

 

 

56. Section 39.10.002 – Definition of Rear Lot Line 

 

a. Current Language: Rear Lot Line means the line at the rear of a home where the owner's property ends. 

 

b. Proposed Revision: Rear Lot Line  means the line at the rear of a home opposite the established or assumed 

Front Lot Line of the same property where the owner's property ends, abutting a dedicated right-of-way or 

separate parcel.”  

 

 

57. Section 39.07.041.e Document Requirements 19 

 

a. Current Language: Bearing, distances, and ties to the property boundary (including medians) shall be 

indicated; 

 

b. Proposed Revision: Bearings, distances, and ties to the proposed plat boundary, serviced lots or tracts, or an 

adjacent property boundary (including medians) shall be indicated for all easements to be dedicated or 

granted and proposed blocks or other contiguous groups of lots or tracts surrounded on all sides by rights-

of-way. Proposed street islands and medians proposed by the plat shall be dimensioned such that each can 

be mathematically located directly from the information displayed on the plat; 

 

 

58. Section 39.07.041.e Document Requirements 12 

 

a. Current Language: 12. Boundary lines of all lots, tracts, and parcels with accurate dimensions, bearings, 

radii, chord distances, and central angles of all curve segments, for all total curves. Such lines shall be shown 

in the same manner as required for Preliminary Plats in Section 39.07.038.c.4, Contents; 

 

b. Proposed Revision: 12. Boundary lines of all lots, tracts, and parcels with accurate dimensions, bearings, 

radii, chord distances, and central angles of all curve segments, for all total curves. Such lines shall be shown 

in the same manner as required for Preliminary Plats in Section 39.07.038.c.4 39.07.040.c Document 

Requirements 8, Contents; 

 

https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-viewer.aspx#secid-724
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-viewer.aspx#secid-724


59. Section 39.07.040.c Document Requirements 17  

a. Current Language: Proposed arrangement of lots. Property for residential use shall be platted as lots and 

shall be numbered consecutively from one (1) to the total number of lots in the subdivision. Property platted 

for commercial use, public use, or private street use shall be platted as tracts and shall be lettered in 

alphabetical order; 

 

b. Proposed Revision: Proposed arrangement of lots. Property for residential use shall be platted as lots and 

shall be numbered consecutively from one (1) to the total number of lots in the subdivision. Property platted 

for commercial use, public use, or private street use shall be platted as tracts and shall be lettered in 

alphabetical order. If phased development results in lot or tract labels which differ from the approved 

Preliminary Plat and Drainage Analysis lot or tract labels, a revised or updated Finish Floor Table shall be 

submitted to Development Engineering staff; 

 

60. Section 39.07.041.e Document Requirements 28 

a. Current Language: N/A 

b. Proposed Revision: 28. The following certificate of approval by the Lubbock County Commissioners Court 

shall be placed on every Final Plat residing within (either in whole or in part) the City of Lubbock Extra-

Territorial Jurisdiction (ETJ): 

Approved this ______day of ______________, 20__ , 

by the Commissioners Court of the County of Lubbock, Texas.  

Approved ______________________ County Judge 

Attest ______________________ County Clerk 
  

61. Section 39.07.041.e Document Requirements – The following notices shall be stated on the face of the plat 

when they apply to that particular plat #2 

a. Current Language: “Any easements or rights-of-way shown as ‘to be dedicated by separate instrument’ are 

shown on the plat for information purposes only. This plat does not dedicate said easements”; 

b. Proposed Revision: “Any easements or rights-of-way shown as ‘to be dedicated by separate instrument’ or 

‘to be granted by separate instrument’ are shown on the plat for information purposes only. This plat does 

not dedicate said easements”; 

 

62. Section 39.10.002 – Definition of Educational Services – 

a. Current Language: Educational Services means any use devoted to learning, regardless of whether it is 

public, private, commercial or noncommercial or for children or adults. Playground equipment, athletic 

fields, athletic stadiums, cafeterias, gymnasiums, parking (including bus parking), and libraries are 

considered valid accessory uses of this land use. This definition also includes commercial school, including 

trade school; commercial schools, except mechanical or trade; nonprofit training center with retail sales as 

an incidental use; private schools having a curriculum equivalent to that of public schools, public schools; 

and schools, private or public, directly related to the medical profession. 

b. Proposed Revision: Educational Services means any use devoted to learning, regardless of whether it is 

public, private, commercial or noncommercial or for children or adults. Playground equipment, athletic 

fields, athletic stadiums, cafeterias, gymnasiums, parking (including bus parking), and libraries are 

considered valid accessory uses of this land use. This definition also includes commercial school, including 

trade or technical schools; commercial schools, except mechanical or trade; nonprofit training center 

with retail sales as an incidental use; private schools having a curriculum equivalent to that of public schools, 

public schools; and schools, private or public, directly related to the medical profession. 

 

63. Section 39.02.023.d.3 – Contextual Rear Setbacks – (This would move current Sections d.3 (Appearance) and d.4 

(Decision) to d.4 and d.5) 

https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=1121
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=1607
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=1121
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=1607
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=1121
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=1569
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=1191
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=1037
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=1121
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=1569
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=1191
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=1037


a. Current Language: N/A 

b. Proposed Revision:  

A. Notwithstanding the minimum rear setback requirements of Section 39.02.004, Base Residential 

Districts, the applicant may apply a contextual rear setback to the primary structure, when existing rear 

setbacks differ from the rear setback required by the base zoning district. In such circumstances, a 

contextual rear setback may be at a point between the required rear setback and the rear setback that 

exists on the closest developed lots that are adjacent (to the left and right of the subject property) and 

oriented to the same alley right-of-way or rear facing lot or tract lines (where an alley right-of-way is not 

present) as the subject lot. 

B. For example, if a zoning district requires a rear setback of 20 feet for the primary structure, but the 

primary structures on either side of the infill lot have rear setbacks of 10 and 20 feet, then the infill 

house may have a rear setback between 10 and 20 feet.  

C. The contextual rear setback provisions shall not be used to reduce the required setback of a residential 

garage which is 20 feet from a typical right-of-way, access easement, or private drive that it fronts with 

an overhead door or similar oversized opening. 

 

64. Section 39.02.004.a.4.A – Lot Density and Dimensions – Residential Estates 

a. Current Language: A. Residential. All residential developments in the RE district shall be in accordance with 

Table 39.02.004.a-2, RE Lot Density and Dimensions, based on subdivision type. Maximum building heights 

and minimum setbacks are for principal structures. 

b. Proposed Revision: A. Residential. All residential developments in the RE district shall be in accordance with 

Table 39.02.004.a-2, RE Lot Density and Dimensions, based on subdivision type. Maximum building heights 

and minimum setbacks are for principal structures. For accessory structures, building heights and minimum 

setbacks in the RE district shall be in accordance with Table 39.02.004.b-2, SF-1 Lot Density and Dimensions, 

based on subdivision type. Where a minimum required setback is less than 20 feet, a front-loaded garage 

facing a public right-of-way, shall have a minimum setback of 20 feet and the remainder of the building may 

meet the minimum setback that is less than 20 feet. 

 

65. Section 39.02.004.b.4.A – Lot Density and Dimensions – Very Low Density Single-Family  

a. Current Language: A. Residential. All residential developments in the SF-1 district shall be in accordance with 

Table 39.02.004.b-2, SF-1 Lot Density and Dimensions, based on subdivision type. Maximum building heights 

and minimum setbacks are for principal structures. 

b. Proposed Revision: A. Residential. All residential developments in the SF-1 district shall be in accordance 

with Table 39.02.004.b-2, SF-1 Lot Density and Dimensions, based on subdivision 

type. Maximum building heights and minimum setbacks are for principal structures. Where a minimum 

required setback is less than 20 feet, a front-loaded garage shall have a minimum setback of 20 feet and the 

remainder of the building may meet the minimum setback that is less than 20 feet. 

 

66. Section 39.02.004.c.4.A – Lot Density and Dimensions – Low Density Single-Family 

a. Current Language: A. Residential. All residential developments in the SF-2 district shall be in accordance with 

Table 39.02.004.c-2, SF-2 Lot Density and Dimensions, based on the subdivision and building type. Maximum 

building heights and minimum setbacks are for principal structures. Where a minimum front setback is less 

than 20 feet, a front-loaded garage shall have a minimum setback of 20 feet and the remainder of the 

building may meet the minimum setback that is less than 20 feet. 

b. Proposed Revision: A. Residential. All residential developments in the SF-2 district shall be in accordance 

with Table 39.02.004.c-2, SF-2 Lot Density and Dimensions, based on the subdivision 

and building type. Maximum building heights and minimum setbacks are for principal structures. Where a 

minimum front required setback is less than 20 feet, a front-loaded garage shall have a minimum setback of 

20 feet and the remainder of the building may meet the minimum setback that is less than 20 feet. 

 

https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-viewer.aspx#secid-561
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=770
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=1103
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=1103
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=812
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=1103
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=812
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=1103
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=812
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=1582
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=1103
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=812
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=1582
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=1103


67. Section 39.02.004.d.4.A – Lot Density and Dimensions – Medium Density Residential 

a. Current Language: A. Residential. All residential developments in the MDR district shall be in accordance 

with Table 39.02.004.d-2 MDR Lot Density and Dimensions, based on building type. Maximum building 

heights and minimum setbacks are for principal structures. Where a minimum front setback is less than 20 

feet, a front-loaded garage shall have a minimum setback of 20 feet and the remainder of the building may 

meet the minimum setback that is less than 20 feet. 

b. Proposed Revision: A. Residential. All residential developments in the MDR district shall be in accordance 

with Table 39.02.004.d-2 MDR Lot Density and Dimensions, based on building type. Maximum building 

heights and minimum setbacks are for principal structures. Where a minimum front required setback is less 

than 20 feet, a front-loaded garage shall have a minimum setback of 20 feet and the remainder of the 

building may meet the minimum setback that is less than 20 feet. 

 

68. Section 39.02.004.e.4.A – Lot Density and Dimensions – High Density Residential 

a. Current Language: A. Residential. All residential and mixed-use developments in the HDR district shall be in 

accordance with Table 39.02.004.e-2, HDR Lot Density and Dimensions, based on subdivision and building 

type. Maximum building heights and minimum setbacks are for principal structures. Where a minimum front 

setback is less than 20 feet, a front-loaded garage shall have a minimum setback of 20 feet and the 

remainder of the building may meet the minimum setback that is less than 20 feet. 

b. Proposed Revision: A. Residential. All residential and mixed-use developments in the HDR district shall be in 

accordance with Table 39.02.004.e-2, HDR Lot Density and Dimensions, based on subdivision and building 

type. Maximum building heights and minimum setbacks are for principal structures. Where a minimum front 

required setback is less than 20 feet, a front-loaded garage shall have a minimum setback of 20 feet and the 

remainder of the building may meet the minimum setback that is less than 20 feet. 

 

 

69. Section 39.02.020.c.2.B.iv – Residential Accessory Uses and Structures – Setbacks 

a. Current Language: iv. In the RE, SF-1, SF-2, MDR and HDR districts, an accessory structure may be built to 

within 18 inches of the rear lot line if the property has paved alley access. However, if access to a garage or 

one-story carport is facing an alley right-of-way or access easement, the minimum rear setback shall be 20 

feet for garages, or five feet for one-story carports not having solid side walls. Setbacks shall be measured 

from the property line from an alley and/ or from the easement line if from an access easement. 

b. Proposed Revision: iv. In the RE, SF-1, SF-2, MDR and HDR districts, an accessory structure may be built to 

within 18 inches of the rear lot line if the property has paved alley access. However, if access to a garage or 

one-story carport has its vehicular access is facing a street or an alley right-of-way or access easement, the 

minimum rear setback shall be 20 feet for garages, or five feet for one-story carports not having solid side 

walls. Setbacks shall be measured from the nearest right-of-way or easement boundary in a direction 

extending from the right-of-way or easement boundary in a line perpendicular to the face of the garage or 

carport property line from an alley and/ or from the easement line if from an access easement. 

 

70. Section 39.10.002, Definition of Abutting) – Add graphic for definition of abutting: 

a. Current Language: Abutting means property where two adjoining lots have a common boundary, not 

including lots that are separated by a public right-of-way. 

b. Proposed Revision: Abutting means property where two adjoining lots have a common boundary, not 

including lots that are separated by a public right-of-way. 

https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=851
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=812
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=1582
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=851
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=812
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=1582
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=1582
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=1103
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=1582
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=1103


 
 

 

 

71. Table 39.02.006.b-2 Office (OF) Lot Intensity and Dimensions 

 

a. Proposed Revision: Amend the following: 

a. Minimum lot width from 100 feet to 60 feet  

b. Minimum front setback from 40/25 feet to 25/10 feet 

c. Minimum street side setback from 30 feet to 15 feet 

 

72. Section 39.07.040.c Document Requirements – Preliminary Plat 

 

a. Current Language: 4. Location map, legibly illustrating the general position of the property relative to at 

least two intersecting City of Lubbock arterial streets or State highways and the location of the site with 

respect to the City (southeast, northwest, etc.); 

 

b. Proposed Revision: 4. Location map, legibly illustrating the general position of the property relative to an 

intersection containing at least one arterial street or state highway at least two intersecting City of Lubbock 

arterial streets or State highways and the location of the site with respect to the City (southeast, northwest, 

etc.); 

 

73. Section 39.07.041.e Document Requirements – Final Plat 

 

a. Current Language: None. 

 

b. Proposed Revision: 29. Location map, legibly illustrating the general position of the property relative to an 

intersection containing at least one arterial street or state highway 

 

74. Section 39.07.004.f – Plat Filing  

 

a. Current Language: A Final Plat, Preliminary Plat, or Replat is considered "filed" when the Director of 

Planning deems it complete in accordance with Subsection c., Meaning of Complete Submittal, above, when 

https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=1001
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=1002
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=1031


the Director of Planning completes the review process and finds that there are no more corrections to be 

made. 

 

b. Proposed Revision: A Final Plat, Preliminary Plat, or Replat is considered "filed" when the Director of 

Planning deems it complete in accordance with Subsection c., Meaning of Complete Submittal., above, when 

the Director of Planning completes the review process and finds that there are no more corrections to be 

made. 

 

75. Table 39.02.004.d-2 – MDR Lot Density and Dimensions 

 

a. Proposed Revision: Add “per dwelling unit” to the Duplex column. 

  

 

https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=1001
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=1002
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=1031


 AI# 12733 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 7. 11. 
08/13/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Libraries: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute a Lease Agreement with
Luskey Brothers Investments, for the Godeke Branch Library located at 5034 Frankford Avenue.

Item Summary
The City of Lubbock originally entered into a lease agreement with Luskey Brothers Investments for
Godeke Branch Library in February 2014, and that lease expired August 31, 2019. On August 27, 2019,
the City Council approved a new lease agreement that began September 1, 2019, for a 5-year term,
with an additional option 5-year term. The City Manager was recently directed to find a permanent
solution for Godeke Branch Library. 

The resolution for consideration is a 3-year term triple net commercial lease agreement with a 5%
escalator.  The new lease agreement cost is: 

Dates Rate Per Square Foot Base Monthly Rent
09/01/2024 - 08/31/2025 $14.00 $14,735.00
09/01/2025 - 08/31/2026 $14.70 $15.471.75
09/01/2026 - 08/31/2027 $15.44 $16,245.34

Staff recommends approval of the new 3-year lease agreement with the intent of vacating at the end of
the 3-year option.  Staff will immediately begin working to gather citizen input, look into the feasibility
of a hybrid community center/library facility, and develop cost estimates for a City-owned permanent
location. 

If the City Council elects not to approve the new 3-year lease agreement, Godeke Branch Library will
temporarily close to the public on August 31, 2024. The existing lease will become a month-to-month
option until the building is vacated by December 31, 2024.

If the City Council votes not to approve the lease, staff recommends the remaining FY 2024-25 budgeted
funds be placed in a Capital Improvement Project. This would allow staff to begin the work to purchase
a 24-Hour Library System, and the remaining funds would allow the City to begin saving for a
permanent City-owned location.

Fiscal Impact
The cost of the lease for year one is $176,820 plus taxes and insurance, and will increase by 5% each
additional year. 

Staff/Board Recommending
Brooke Witcher, Assistant City Manager



Attachments
Resolution 
Lease Agreement 















































 AI# 12741 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 7. 12. 
08/13/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - City Council: Consider a resolution to fund the security, trolley, and general marketing of
the First Friday Art Trail for the Louise Hopkins Underwood Center for the Arts, as part of the Cultural
Arts Grant Program as recommended by Civic Lubbock, Inc. 

Item Summary
Civic Lubbock Inc. (CLI) is a 501(c)(3) established in 1956. Their mission is to foster and promote
cultural, educational, and entertainment activities, to include the visual and performing arts, for the
citizens of Lubbock and the surrounding communities. CLI and the City of Lubbock continued their
67-year partnership by entering into a license agreement in July 2023. The agreement defines the
relationship between the City and CLI. The Lubbock City Council is responsible for appointing the CLI
Board of Directors.    

As part of this license agreement, CLI administers an allocation of the Hotel Occupancy Tax that is used
to underwrite local visual and performing arts programs. The Cultural Arts Grant Program (CAGP) is
funded through a portion of the Hotel Occupancy Tax allocation and those funds are used in making
grant awards to local established non-profit organizations, for the encouragement, advancement,
improvement, and application of the arts and the promotion of tourism in the Lubbock community. 
 
The total allocation paid to CLI for the 2024 Program was $578,145.04, which represents 5.92120% of
the hotel/motel tax collected at the end of FY 2022-23. Of that allocation, the following amounts have
been deducted: 10% ($57,814.50) for the Public Art Program and ($11,800.00) for the 2024 Airport Arts
Program. This left $508,530.54 available for the 2024 Cultural Arts Grant Program. In addition, interest
of $40,218.64 from prior year and current year funds, unused grant funds of $890, and a carry-over of
$0.62 from 2023 funds provided a total of $549,639.80 available for the annual cycle of Cultural Arts
grants. CLI elected to absorb all administrative expenses incurred for administering this
program. Therefore, the entire amount available for the 2024 CAGP was $549,639.80.
 
A Grant Workshop was held on May 2, 2024, for first-time applicants wishing to apply for a Cultural
Arts Grant. Thirty (30) applications were received by the June 1, 2024 deadline. The CAGP Review
Committee and the CLI Board recommended full or partial funding for all thirty (30) applicants.
 
The CLI Board of Directors approved the grant award recommendations at their June 26, 2024 meeting.
These recommendations were presented to the Lubbock City Council at the July 23, 2024 meeting.
Among the recommendations, CLI recommended the City award a grant to the Louise Hopkins
Underwood Center for the Arts (LHUCA) in the amount of $25,600 to assist in funding for marketing,
artist and musician fees, security, wayfinding, and trolley service for the First Friday Art Trail (FFAT)
described by the Cultural Arts Grant Review Committee as a free self-guided art trail through the
Cultural District that presents a family-friendly evening of arts education in visual art, music, and dance
over 20 different venues.



LHUCA, in their application to CLI for a Cultural Arts Grant Program grant, provided the following
information regarding the FFAT: (i) FFAT is a program administered by LHUCA that is “a free,
self-guided art trail through the Lubbock Cultural District that brings together the South Plains
community and beyond to enjoy visual art, live music, dance, and more”; (ii) LHUCA hires four
trolley/buses to transport visitors to other trail venues in the Lubbock Downtown and Depot District at no
charge to the visitors of FFAT; (iii) LHUCA advertises the FFAT through numerous social media and
electronic outlets including a nationally recognized arts website, state websites such as Tour Texas, and
targeted social media advertisements across Texas, Colorado, Oklahoma and New Mexico; (iv) last year
FFAT attracted approximately 63,000 people of which 10,710 people were described as out of town
guests or tourists; and (v) LHUCA expects FFAT to attract approximately 64,000 people in the next
year.

On a 5-2 vote by the City Council, the City Council denied the funding requested by LHUCA as
recommended by CLI believing that the funds would be used for purposes or activities that were not
family friendly and promoted/advocated a political movement or position and as such should not be
supported by public tax money.

After the July 23, 2024 City Council meeting, additional information was provided by LHUCA
clarifying the type of programs and activities supported with hotel occupancy funds by LHUCA and that
the majority of the funding requested by LHUCA from the Cultural Arts Grant Program would be
designated for general marketing of FFAT, the free to the public trolley service as well as security for
FFAT.

Based on the new information provided by CLI and LHUCA, the City Council finds that the FFAT has a
positive economic impact on tourism to the City of Lubbock, generally marketing the FFAT as
described by LHUCA and as recommended by CLI is an appropriate use of hotel occupancy funds and
that providing a free trolley service and security at the FFAT is a benefit to the health and safety of the
public.

Fiscal Impact
$25,600 from Hotel Occupancy Tax allocated to the Lubbock Cultural Arts Grants Program as
recommended by Civic Lubbock Inc.

Staff/Board Recommending
Christy Martinez-Garcia, Mayor Pro Tem, District 1
Gordon Harris, Councilman, District 2

Attachments
Resolution 








	Agenda
	5.01.__Minutes
	       ATT_7.2.2024 Regular City Council Meeting
	       ATT_7.9.2024 Special City Council Meeting
	       ATT_7.18.2024 S Work Session
	6.01.__Budget Amendment 43
	       ATT_Budget Amendment 43
	6.01.1.__NELCO - Upgrades for Chambers, Studio, Conference Rooms
	       ATT_Resolution - Nelco Inc.
	       ATT_PO 364545 - Nelco Inc., Contract 230105
	6.02.__Budget Amendment 45
	       ATT_Budget Amendment 45
	6.03.__Section 6, Block JS, Lot 334 Underground Street Light Cable Easement Closure
	       ATT_Ordinance - Section 6, Block JS Lot 334
	       ATT_GIS Map - Section 6, Block JS Lot 334
	6.04.__ROW Deed - Upland: 4th to 19th Parcel 20
	       ATT_Parcel 20 - Resolution
	       ATT_Parcel 20 - Dedication Deed
	       ATT_Parcel 20 - GIS Map
	       ATT_CIP Detail
	       ATT_Budget Detail
	6.05.__Former Reese AFB - Groundwater Monitoring Well Permit
	       ATT_Res - 25th St. and Inler Ave.
	       ATT_SUL  - 25th St. and Inler Ave.
	       ATT_GIS Map - 25th St. and Inler Ave.
	6.06._12737
	       ATT_Ordinance
	6.07.__66th Street Drainage Channel Improvements - Freese & Nichols
	       ATT_Resolution
	       ATT_Contract 18233
	       ATT_Location Map
	       ATT_CIP Spreadsheet
	       ATT_CIP Detail
	6.08.__Construction Contract for the 66th Street Channel Drainage Improvements Project.
	       ATT_Resolution
	       ATT_Contract 18190
	       ATT_Location Exhibit
	       ATT_CIP Spreadsheet
	       ATT_CIP Detail
	       ATT_Project Summary Sheet
	6.09.__Amendment 1 to Contract 17087 with HDR for Milwaukee Ave Bond Road
	       ATT_Resolution
	       ATT_Amendment 1
	       ATT_Contract 17087
	       ATT_Location Exhibit
	       ATT_CIP Spreadsheet
	       ATT_CIP Detail
	6.10.__Amendment No. 2 to Professional Services Agreement, Contract 17074
	       ATT_Resolution
	       ATT_Amendment 2
	       ATT_Amendment 1
	       ATT_Contract 17074
	       ATT_Location Exhibit
	       ATT_CIP Spreadsheet
	       ATT_CIP Detail
	6.11.__West Lubbock Water System Expansion Early Procurement
	       ATT_Resolution
	       ATT_Contract
	       ATT_Location Map
	       ATT_CIP Spreadsheet
	       ATT_CIP Detail
	       ATT_Project Summary Sheet
	6.12.__MJE Contract for West Texas Region Disposal Facility Cell 6 Constructions 
	       ATT_Resolution
	       ATT_Contract - MJE, LLC - Cell 6
	       ATT_Budget Detail
	       ATT_CIP Detail
	       ATT_Project Summary
	6.13.__HHSC Contract No. HHS000779500003
	       ATT_Resolution TRY
	       ATT_Contract TRY
	6.14.__Federal Aviation Grant - Mechanical Equipment Replacement at LPSIA
	       ATT_Resolution for FAA Grant Mechanical Equipment
	       ATT_FAA Grant Agreement for Mechanical Equipment
	6.14.1.__Mechanical Equipment Replacement Project at LPSIA
	       ATT_Resolution 17935 Anthony Mechanical, Inc.
	       ATT_Contract 17935 - Anthony Mechanical. Inc.
	       ATT_Capital Project 92839 Spreadsheet
	       ATT_17935 - Project Summary
	6.14.2.__Change Order No. 1 to Contract 17935 with Anthony Mechanical, Inc.
	       ATT_Resolution - Change Order 1 Anthony Mechanical
	       ATT_Change Order _1 Anthony Mechanical
	       ATT_Capital Project 92839 Spreadsheet
	       ATT_CIP 92753-Detail
	6.14.3.__Amendment 16 RS&H, Inc. for Construction Administration Services for Mechanical Equipment Replacement Project at LPSIA
	       ATT_Resolution Amendment 16 RSandH, Inc.
	       ATT_Amendment 16 RSandH, Inc.
	       ATT_Capital Project 92839 Spreadsheet
	       ATT_CIP 92753 Detail
	6.15.__FAA Grant for Taxiway Lima Extension, Taxilane Addition, & Apron Expansion at LPSIA
	       ATT_Resolution FAA Grant Taxiway Lima Design
	       ATT_FAA Grant Agreement for Taxiway Lima Design
	6.15.1.__Amendment 8 Parkhill Taxiway Lima Extension at LPSIA
	       ATT_Resolution - Parkhill Amendment 8
	       ATT_Contract Parkhill Amendment 8
	       ATT_Exhibits Parkhill Amendment 8
	       ATT_Capital Project 92772 Spreadsheet
	       ATT_CIP 92772  Detail
	6.16.__1712 34th Street CRG Facade
	       ATT_Resolution
	       ATT_Market Lubbock Resolution
	       ATT_Market Lubbock Support Documentation
	1 Cover Page 1712 34th St. Facade
	2 MLI CRGP Grants MLI Board 1712 34th Facade
	3 CRGP App 1712 34th St. (Vogue College) 6.13.24
	5.23.24

	4 1712 34th St. Bids 5.23.24
	5 1712 34th St. Before Pics 5.23.24

	6.17.__1937 Texas Downtown Facade Grant 
	       ATT_Resolution
	       ATT_Market Lubbock Resolution
	       ATT_Market Lubbock Support Documentation
	1 Cover Page 1937 Texas (Mixed Nutz) Facade
	2 MLI Downtown Grants presented to MLI Board 1937 Texas Facade
	3 1937 Texas DT Grant App JQ 6.11.24
	11.17.23

	4 1937 Texas Parking Lot Bid 6.19.24

	6.18.__1106 Main Street Downtown Facade Grant 
	       ATT_Resolution
	       ATT_Market Lubbock Resolution
	       ATT_Market Lubbock Support Documentation
	1 Cover Page 1106 Main (Landlines)
	2 MLI Downtown Grants presented to MLI Board 1106 Main (Landlines)
	3 DT Grant App 1106 Main (LandLines) JQ 7.17.24
	7.17.24

	4 1106 Main PIcs
	5 1106 Main City Permit
	6 1106 Main Expense Summary
	7.17.24


	6.19.__1106 Main Street Downtown Permittable Grant 
	       ATT_Resolution
	       ATT_Market Lubbock Resolution
	       ATT_Market Lubbock Support Documentation
	1 Cover Page 1106 Main (Landlines)
	2 MLI Downtown Grants presented to MLI Board 1106 Main (Landlines)
	3 DT Grant App 1106 Main (LandLines) JQ 7.17.24
	7.17.24

	4 1106 Main PIcs
	5 1106 Main City Permit
	6 1106 Main Expense Summary
	7.17.24


	6.20.__3006 34th Street CRG Facade
	       ATT_Resolution
	       ATT_Market Lubbock Resolution
	       ATT_Market Lubbock Support Documentation
	1 Cover Page 3006 34th (The Rolling Cones) Combined
	2 MLI CRGP Grants MLI Board 3006 34th (The Rolling Cones) Combined
	3 MLI CRGP Application 3006 34th St. (The Rolling Cones) JQ 6.21.24
	5.14.24

	4 BRC Estimate 565 - 5.9.2024
	5 3006 34th St. Plans

	6.21.__3006 34th Street CRG Permittable 
	       ATT_Resolution
	       ATT_Market Lubbock Resolution
	       ATT_Market Lubbock Support Documentation
	1 Cover Page 3006 34th (The Rolling Cones) Combined
	2 MLI CRGP Grants MLI Board 3006 34th (The Rolling Cones) Combined
	3 MLI CRGP Application 3006 34th St. (The Rolling Cones) JQ 6.21.24
	5.14.24

	4 BRC Estimate 565 - 5.9.2024
	5 3006 34th St. Plans

	6.22.__1819 E. Broadway CRG Facade
	       ATT_Resolution
	       ATT_Market Lubbock Resolution
	       ATT_Market Lubbock Support Documentation
	1 Cover Page 1819 E. Broadway (Elida Morin)
	2 MLI CRGP Grants presented to MLI Board 1819 E. Broadway
	3 CRGP App 1819 E. Broadway (Elida Morin) 7.16.24
	7.2.24

	4 Facade 1819 E. Broadway Crushed Asphalt
	5 Facade 1819 E. Broadway Exterior Paint
	6 Facade 1819 E. Broadway Fence and Gate
	7 Facade 1819 E. Broadway Front Porch and Curb
	8 Facade 1819 E. Broadway Front Wall
	9 Permittable 1819 E. Broadway Fire Sprinkler System
	10 Permittable 1819 E. Broadway Roof

	6.23.__1819 E. Broadway CRG Permittable 
	       ATT_Resolution
	       ATT_Market Lubbock Resolution
	       ATT_Market Lubbock Support Documentation
	1 Cover Page 1819 E. Broadway (Elida Morin)
	2 MLI CRGP Grants presented to MLI Board 1819 E. Broadway
	3 CRGP App 1819 E. Broadway (Elida Morin) 7.16.24
	7.2.24

	4 Facade 1819 E. Broadway Crushed Asphalt
	5 Facade 1819 E. Broadway Exterior Paint
	6 Facade 1819 E. Broadway Fence and Gate
	7 Facade 1819 E. Broadway Front Porch and Curb
	8 Facade 1819 E. Broadway Front Wall
	9 Permittable 1819 E. Broadway Fire Sprinkler System
	10 Permittable 1819 E. Broadway Roof

	6.24.__2223 34th Street CRG Facade
	       ATT_Resolution - Mags and Blades Ventures LLC
	       ATT_Market Lubbock Resolution
	       ATT_Market Lubbock Support Documentation
	1 Cover Page 2223 34th St. Facade
	2 MLI CRGP Grants presented to MLI Board 2223 34th St. (Mags)
	3 CRGP Grant App 2223 34th St. (Mags & Blades) JQ 7.1.24
	7.1.24

	4 2223 34th St Before Pics
	5 Mags Blades Sign Quote
	6 2223 34th Mags & Blades Parking Lot Bid

	6.25.__Park Court Resurfacing 
	       ATT_Resolution
	       ATT_Purchase Order
	       ATT_Budget Detail
	       ATT_CIP Detail
	6.26.__PO 33001881 with Dell Marketing
	       ATT_Dell Marketing Resolution _PO 33001881
	       ATT_PO 33001881 - Dell Marketing, Replacement Computers
	6.27.__PO 33001880 with Dell Marketing for Storage
	       ATT_Dell Marketing Resolution _PO 33001880
	       ATT_PO Dell Marketing - Storage
	       ATT_Budget Detail
	       ATT_CIP Detail
	6.28.__MOU - United States Secret Service Regarding Reimbursement
	       ATT_Resolution - LPD and USSS reimbursement
	       ATT_MOU with USSS-reimbursement
	6.29.__Resolution to Approve TMG Amendment
	       ATT_Resolution - CC
	       ATT_TMG Executed Agreement
	       ATT_Resolution - EUB
	6.30.__ZC 3224-A
	       ATT_Ordinance 3224-A (c)
	       ATT_Staff Report 3224-A
	       ATT_Documentation 3224-A
	Slide Pics.pdf
	Slide Number 1
	Slide Number 2


	6.31.__ZC 763-D
	       ATT_Ordinance 763-D
	       ATT_Staff Report 763-D
	       ATT_Documentation 763-D
	Slide Pics 763-D.pdf
	Slide Number 1


	6.32.__ZC 2538-MM
	       ATT_Ordinance 2538-MM
	       ATT_Staff Report 2538-MM
	       ATT_Documentation 2538-MM
	7.01.__Quincy Park PID Appointments
	7.02.__Upland Crossing PID Board Appointments
	7.03.__Valencia PID Board Appointments
	7.04.__2022 Street Bond Report
	7.05.__Ordinance
	       ATT_Ordinance - Calling a Bond Election
	       ATT_Ex. A - Election Day Voting Locations
	       ATT_Ex. B - Early Voting Locations
	       ATT_Ex. C - Voter Information Document
	       ATT_Ex. D - Judges and Alternates
	7.06.__Street Bond 2024
	       ATT_Resolution 
	       ATT_Exhibit A 
	7.07._12740
	       ATT_Tax Rate Resolution
	7.08._12739
	       ATT_WTG Rate Case Resolution
	       ATT_Information Sheet
	7.09.__Alternate - UDC - Landscape
	       ATT_Resolution - Alternate Notice
	       ATT_Notice of Public Hearing
	       ATT_Public Hearing Notice Plan
	7.10.__UDC Amendments
	       ATT_UDC Amendments Ordinance
	       ATT_Proposed UDC Amendments
	7.11.__Godeke Lease Agreement
	       ATT_Resolution
	       ATT_Lease Agreement
	7.12.__CLI GRANT
	       ATT_Resolution

